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HEARING ON H.R. 2336, THE INCOME-DEPEND-
ANT EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AC1 AND II.R.
3050, THE SELF-RELIANCE SCHOLARSHIP ACT

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 1992

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC

The subcommittee met, pursuant to cail, at 9:40 a.m., Room 2175,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. William D. Ford [Chairman]
presiiing.

Members present: Representatives Ford, Miller, Sawyer, Payne,
Unsoeld, Washington, Andrews, Reed, Roemer, Kildee, Klug, Good-
ling, Petri, Roukema, Gunderson, and Armey.

Staff present: Thomas R. Wolanin, staff director; Gloria Gray-
Watson, administrative assistant; Maureen Long, legislative associ-
ate; Colleen McGinnis, legislative associate; Angelique Camfield.
staff assistant; Rose Di Napoli, professinal staff member; and Jo-
Marie St. Martin, education coordinator.

Chairman FORD. I am pleased to convene the subcommittee this
morning for the first hearing of the second session of the 102d Con-
gress.

Today we will hear testimony from a very distinguished group of
witnesses on two pieces of legislation which were introduced by
members of this subcommittee. We have before us this morning
H.R. 2336, the Income-Dependant Education Assistance Act, intro-
duced by Representative Tom Petri and H.R. 3050, the Self-Reli-
ance Scholarship Act, introduced by Representative George Miller.

I am especially pleased that Senators Bill Bradley and Paul
Simon can join us this morning, for both of them have introduced
legislation similar to these two bills in the Senate. I am also very
pleased to welcome our colleague Sam Gejdenson, who has been
active in support of these proposals. I didn't think you did anything
but write bothersome reform legislation, Sam.

[Laughter.]
Chairman FORD. On behalf of the subcommittee, I would also like

to welcome Michael Bigelow, the Deputy Assistant Commissioner
for Returns Processing, who will share with us the views of the In-
ternal Revenue Service.

I hope that this hearing will enable us to fully explore these new
initiatives for financing postsecondary education. I look forward to
the testimony of our distinguished witnesses.

(1)
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Let me just add a personal comment. For years businessmen and
others have been coming up to me and saying, "Why don't you
fools in Congress have a system for collecting student loans
through the Internal Revenue Service?" Well, I want to tell you
why. I've been advocating that since before Paul was Chairman of
this committee over here and we have never had a Treasury De-
partment willing to take on the job. It doesn't matter whether
they've been Democrats or Republicans because I've tried both
kinds. The Treasury Department apparently doesn't want to do
anything it doesn't have to.

And the reason that we have not made a futile gesture toward
this kind of provision in our reauthorization legislation is that
under the rules of the House it would send the legislation off to the
Ways and Means Committee where it may never be heard df again.
And we would rather not get into a partnership with the Ways and
Means Committee in writing higher education legislation.

So we intend, fully, to pass legislation here, send it over to the
Ways and Means Committee because they have the right to the re-ferral, and then they will ..tave to wrestle with the Treasury De-
partment about whether it should be done or not.

I think it's high time that the issue was publicly explored and
the people have an opportunity to find out just who it is that
doesn't agree that it's a good idea to use our tax collection system
for collecting student loans and also doesn't think it's a good idea
to have a repayment system that's income-sensitive. With that, I
would like to call on Senator Bill Bradley first.

Mr. PETRI. Mr. Chairman?
Chairman FORD. Oh, pardon me. Mr. Petri?
Mr. PETRI. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I really do want to thank

you very sincerely for holding this hearing today, and to thank all
of the witnesses for coming and testifying. At the outset, I would
like to state that I've gotten involved in this area for one overrid-ing reason, and that is to help devise the simplest, most efficient
student loan program possible.

I didn't get into it to shift the balance between loans and other
forms of student aid. I didn't get into it to shift the burden of
paying for college away from parents and others and toward stu-
dents. I did not get into it to promote one type of school over an-other. I did not get into it for any other broad ulterior motive.

I got into it because we can build a far better mouse trap. Our
current loan programs are enormously complex, wasteful, unfair,
and burdensome to students, schools, and to the taxpayers. If we
were designing them from scratch today, it's hard to imagine we
would come up with the Rube Goldberg contraption that we've got
now.

With income dependence we can have a program open to every-
one; far simpler for scho, Is and the government to administer; far
shmpler for students at application, and more manageable and su-premely flexible during repayment; attractive enough to draw busi-
ness away from current programs even if we leave the current pro-
grams in place; and at the same time virtually eliminating the de-
fault problem and saving immense amounts of money.

Now, this last point is particularly important. Some people have
attacked IDEA while completely ignoring the savings that it can

7
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create. But obviously those savings can be spent elsewhere. H.R.
2336 does not say anything about how the savings are to be used.
But they could be used for increased grants, as Senators Simon and
Durenberger have proposed. Or the Ways and Means Committee
might want to use some of them to pay for deductibility of student
loan interest. In any case, let's not ignore that feature of this
"better mouse trap."

I'm especially pleased that we'll be hearing from the IRS today,
because the central concept of IDEA and similar proposals is that
education is partly an investment in human capital. As such, it can
appropriately be financed through future income taxes.

Under IDEA, students agree to pay higher future income taxes
in return for the wherewithal to earn higher future incomes. In
fact, we shouldn't think of this as a loan program at all. It's a tax
agreement which just happens to include an account for each par-
ticipant with a formula that determines when additional taxes will
end. Except for that, IDEA taxes are identical to the rest of one's
income taxes.

Because of this, IRS collection is central to the concept. IDEA
does not use the IRS simply as a matter of convenience because the
IRS is regarded as a good collector. And IDEA will not provide a
precedent for IRS collection of "nontax debts," such as child sup-
port or farm loans. IDEA obligations are related to income accord-
ing to a bona fide tax schedule. Some people pay more and others
pay less, depending on income over a period of years. And they
agree in advance that these obligations will be income taxes.
Therefore, the IRS is the appropriate agency to collect them, and I
look forward very much to the IRS's comments or. how a program
of this kind can work.

I would also like to stress one other crucial point at the outset of
the hearing. We will hear from a number of witnesses with both
positive and negative comments, and I am sure committee mem-
bers will have many questions. Through it all, I would ask all
present to keep one thing in mind: IDEA, as contained in H.R.
2336, is voluntary. No one has to participate.

We take no current programs away except SLS, which is a worse
deal than IDEA for anyone. Some will argue that IDEA is a bad
deal for students compared to Stafford Loans. I think those analy-
ses are faulty. But keep in mind that if IDEA really is a bad deal
for some, they don't have to choose it.

With that, Mr. Chairman, I will resist the urge to comment for-
ever and again thank you for having this hearing, and I look for-
ward to hearing the witnesses.

Chairman FORD. Mr. Miller?
Mr. MILLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and thank you very much

for holding these hearings, and I welcome our witnesses. This
morning we have the opportunity to explore an idea that can pro-
vide dramatic relief to students and to families throughout this
country.

Unfortunately, today when millions of American college students
are lucky enough to graduate, they receive both the diploma and a
crushing IOU from the Federal Government requiring that they
pay their student loans, loans now that are much larger than I
paid for my first house at their same age.
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I think it's important to understand the cost of education, the es-
calation of that cost, and the impact on people seeking the educa-
tional opportunity. We fmd today that the entire system of financ-
ing a higher education is seriously out of step with reality. Its out
of step with the new economics, with the new job market, and the
ability of new graduating students to participate in that market.

Burdened with high debt from student loans, they find that
they're entering a thinner job market, a more unstable job market,
a job market that may require them to change not only jobs but, in
fact, entire careers more than once during their working life.

Interestingly enough, we also now confront the new reality that
the only people seeking educational opportunities are not those
who are pursuing the pure college education but those who may
have already benefitted from a college education but now find that
the job that they hold has disappeared, has changed, or requires
new requirements.

We see, in just the past few months, over 70,000 auto workers
who will be laid off over the coming years from General Motors,
people at Pan Am where the airline disappeared out from under-
neath them, the threatened layoffs at TWA at Macy's Department
Stores, at General Dynamics, at IBM, and McDonnell Douglas. Mr.
Chairman and members of the committee, I hope that we would
look at this as an opportunity for the first time to give Americans
the possibility of investing in themselves.

Senator Bradley's bill, a bill that I am very proud to co-author,
allows people to bank on themselves, to invest in themselves, to be-
lieve that they can improve their opportunity to participate longer
and more productively in the American economy by having an ac-
count that will be available for them to use either to get their ini-
tial college education or training or to get re-training because of
events that happened in their livesvery often that they have no
control over because somebody ran their company into the ground
or so saddled it with debt that it couldn't survive or technology
changed or the education that they received 10 years ago is out of
date with the needs of the marketplace today.

They will have the opportunity to call upon this account and go
back to school to get trained to receive additional education, to im-
prove their skills. And what we're saying to them is we're going to
guarantee that you repay this loan because if you work, you will
repay. But this time, you will be able to pay commensurate with
your income, commensurate with the ability of your family to do so
or yourself.

And we're going to guarantee to the taxpayers that you're not
going to default, you're going to live with this debt and as you
make more you will pay more. If you become unemployed, then
you will notpay for that period of time. If you go back to work you
will pay again.

For the first time, we have an opportunity to present to the
American people an account that they can use for self-improve-
ment, for self-investment, to improve the productivity of this
Nation, our competitiveness, and the educational attainment.

I welcome you, Senator, and I'm very proud to co-sponsor this
legislation with you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Hon. George Miller follows:]
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Millions of American college students who are lucky to

graduate this spring will receive both their diploma and a

crushing IOU from federal government requiring that they repay

their student loans.

These graduates will find themselves in an increasingly thin
employment market, burdened with tens of thousands of dollars in
student loan debts they cannot hope to repay within the ten years
provided by the federal student aid program.

The federal government has provided billions of dollars
annually in college loans and grants to assist these very
students. Yet the defaults cost the taxpayers over $3.6 billion
last year alone.

The entire system for financing higher education is

seriously out of step with reality. Students simply cannot

afford to repay mortgage-sized loans in today's economy. The
costs are too high, the wages too meager. Nor does it make sense
to require that a student repay the loan during a decade in which
he is also trying to establish a career, buy a home, or start a

family. That approach may have worked in the past, but it is

ill-suited to the realities of the 1990's.

College students aren't the only ones confronting the
education financing barrier. Over 70,000 automobile workers are
losing their jobs at General Motors and thousands more at Macy's
could be facing layoffs. Reductions in military procurement will
leave many more without jobs or skills appropriate for a

peacetime econosy.

(MORE)
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MILLER -- Page 2

These workers may need only to attend a short-term training
program or a few classes at a community

college in order to
upgrade their skills for today's job market. Yet the cost of
financing these training and education programs, especially for
the unemployed, is prohibitive under the requirements of thetraditional student loan program.

Senator Bill Bradley (D-NJ) and I have co-authored
legislation to provide an additional means of financing

education
and re-training that is better for students, better for workers,
and better for taxpayers.

The Self-Reliance Scholarship Act, H.R. 3050, allows
students and workers facing retraining to repay loans used to
finance their postsecondary

education through their annual tax
payments. It does not disturb the federal aid programs which are
currently in place or impact the direct loan program in the
Committee bill, H.R. 3553. I am delighted

that Senator Bradley
has joined us today to testify on our legislation.

Our income-contingent
repayment proposal will save taxpayers

millions of dollars in administrative costs that inflate the
costs of other loan programs. Collection through the Internal
Revenue Service will ensure a dramatic

reduction in the multi-billion dollar default rate.

At a time when
financing a higher

education costs as much as
buying a house,

our repayment policies ought to be realistic
and

flexible. The Self-Reliance
Scholarship Act provides the

flexibility that will make a quality education accessible and
affordable for all Americans,

and far less costly to taxpayers,
too.

1 1
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Chairman FORD. Does anyone on this side have an opening state-
ment?

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Mr. Chairman, no, I do not have an opening
statement. I choose to hear our very fine Senator from New Jersey.
I think this is an important hearing. One the idea of which
pardon the punthe idea of which I have certain strong reserva-
tions, certainly questions if not reservations, but I think it's an
idea that is certainly worth probing. Anything that is going to
expand higher education opportunity in this economy that is influx
and with a Nation that is striving to compete in the global market-
place is certainly welcome. And I look forward to hearing the ra-
tionale and the exposition of the Senator from New Jersey. Wel-
come, Bill.

Chairman FORD. Anyone down here?
Mr. PAYNE. Ditto. Mr. Chairman, I would also like to echo what's

been said by my colleagues here from New Jersey and we are very
pleased to have our outstanding U.S. Senator Bill Bradley to come
before us with this great idea. You know he is an idea person. He's
a person who has for many years talked about the inequities in
education, and he has talked about the opportunities for young
people that are many times shut out because of economic stand-
ings.

Many times he talked about his upbringing in West Virginia and
if it wasn't for the fact that he had an outstanding ability to play
basketball he may have been one of those who would have been
shut out from becoming a person of the stature which he is today.

And so I'm here to licten. I support the concept strongly. We
have to open up education to make it a right rather than a privi-
lege as it has become. So it's great to see you, Senator. Thank you.

Mr. ROEMP.R. Mr. Chairman?
Chairman FORD. The gentleman from Indiana.
Mr. ROEMER. Mr. Chairman, I too would just like to welcome

Senator Bradley, Senator Simon, a fellow Midwesterner from the
neighboring State of Illinois, and our colleague Mr. Gejdenson to
the committee this morning to hear what I'm sure will be eloquent
testimony on a very important issue.

As we've heard through field hearings and other hearings before
the committee, Mr. Chairman, too many of our students are grad-
uating with crippling debt rather than elevating degrees. We need
to look at fundamental change, investing in our people and creat-
ing new opportunities. I look forward to listening to the creative
approaches that will be put forth this morning.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman FORD. Thank you. Senator, you may have observed

that New Jersey is not only well-represented but over-represented
on this committee sometimes. So the New Jersey influence will be
noted in the future on the legislative decisions in this committee.
We have them on both sides and they tend to be the most effective
members of the committee.

Go ahead, Bill.

1 9
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STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE BILL BRADLEY, A U.S.
SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Mr. BRADLEY. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. And let me
agree with the first part of your characterization in terms of being
e ective. I would ask unanimous consent if my full statement could
be printed in the record, and I would like to take just a few min-
utes talking about the Self-Reliance Scholarship concept.

Chairman FOkD. Without objection, your full statement will be
placed in the record immediately following your comments today
and you may proceed to comment in any way you feel most com-fortable and any way you think will make the best record.

Mr. BRADLEY. Mr. Chairman, I needn't tell this committee about
what's happened to the costa of higher education in the last decade
and what's happened to Federal assistance for higher education in
the last decade. The cost of higher education has risen over 50 per-
cent. Federal assistance has risen about 20, 25 percent.

Public colleges and private colleges are dramatically increasing
their cost tuition. Just in the last year public colleges have in-
creased 12 percent. The average public college costs about $5,000.
The average private college cost is around $12,000 and some go ashigh as $24,000.

I needn't tell the co nittee, because of its expertise and experi-
ence, how important higher education is to long-term productivityin this country. In fact, there are some new approaches to thetheory of economic growth that assert the most dynamic and im-portant element of improved growth prospects for our whole econo-my is in the education sector.

And if you want to pull productivity forward, there are two areasthat you have to concentrate on in my opinion. One is in movingthe bottom three or four rungs of the education ladder up several
pegs. And the second is facilitating more people going to collegeand getting degrees so that they can contribute more fully to oureconomic progress.

It is with that in mind, combined with the fact that I think there
is going on in the country today a slight pessimism that a majoreffort on higher education might correctfor example, in our Stateof New Jersey last February, a year ago, about 35 percent of the
people said that their children would have a lower standard of
living than they do. In July, 52 percent of the people in the Etate ofNew Jersey said their children would have a lower standard ofliving than they do.

I believe one of the central elements driving that pessimism isthat college education is drifting out of the reach of a greatnumber of New Jersians and Americans. And we have come to be-lieve in this country that, if not a right, at least it was the mainpath to economic betterment. And when that is drifting out of thereach of people it is understandable that they would conclude thattheir children would have a lower standard of living than they do.
It is with that in mind that I worked through an idea that I call

Self-Reliance Scholarships that Congressman Miller has introducedin the House. And, briefly stated, Self-Reliance Scholarships areprogrammed to allow any American up to the age of 50 to get up to$33,000 to go to college in exchange for an agreement to commit a
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percent of his or her future income for a specified number of years
into an educational trust fund. That trust fund would then be
available for other Americans to use to go to college.

It is a rather simple idea. If I could go back over the first state-
ment, and Congressman Miller made this eloquently, i. is available
to nontraditional students. Student loan program, the Pell Grant
program are primarily used by traditional students, 18-, 19-, 20-
year-olds going to college.

Increasingly in America we have the phenomenon of the high
school graduate who goes to work for 10 years in a job and discov-
ers it's a dead end and needs more training but has no means
really to be able to obtain that additional education. We have the
phenomenon of the mother that raises children and at age 38 de-
cides that she would like to go to college t^ have better prospects
for the job market. We have the phenomenon of companies recog-
nizing an international competition and they need to upgrade the
skills of their workers and if they could, they would like to use the
existing community college structure in their area hut somehow or
another they can't make the finances work.

For all three of these nontraditional segments of the potential
college student population Self-Reliance Scholarships is a help. It is
also obviously a help for the traditional student. We know that if
you go to college you earn 60 to 70 percent more. than if you don't
go to college.

College is, in effect, an investment. So if we make an investment
there should be returns on that investment. And that is the con-
tract that someone who would sign up for a Self-Reliance Scholar-
ship would agree to, that you would agree to obtain a percent, a
certain amount of money, say for example $10,000 to go to college.

And in order to get $10,000, you would agree to commit 1.5 per-
cent of your income for 15 years into an educational trust fund.
Given that you earn 60 to 70 percent more, it's a pretty good in-
vestment. And the thought behind this was that we should have
people, as many people as possible, going to the college that their
ability will allow them to go to.

Now, a central point: this not a replacement for the Pell Grants
or for Guaranteed Student Loans or for any other existing pro-
gram. This is simply another good way to help families pay for col-
lege education.

Now, the cost of the program would be in a budget sense rather
minimal because the only thing that you would really have to
cover is the subsidy cost, the subsidy value. The default rate would
be very low because I would envision doing what the Treasury De-
partment, as the Chairman has stated, has been reluctant to do
and that is having the percent of income taken directly off of your
wages or directly off your income tax.

The IRS will argue they can't do this. I'm on the Finance Com-
mittee. I've heard this song sung many times. The fact of the
matter is they are involved in child support enforcement and they
are involved in a number of other areas, as Congresswoman Rouke-
ma knows very well. And they could also be involved in making
sure that these commitments are kept, the percent of income off
the wages.

1 4
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I think that this idea is one that has struck a cord in the con-stituents that I've shared it with in New Jersey and in many audi-encee across this country. It is also the right time in my view. AndI would hope that this year is the year that we be able to makethis a reality, increasing the pool of resources available for allAmericans to go to college.
Now, as I look at the members of this committee, there are manywho have excellent ideas about higher education. I do not view thisproposal in any way competitive with those ideas at all. I see thisas another good way to try to help families send their children tocollege and Americans have the opportunity to go to college.I appreciate the Chairman's offer for me to come testify. I, ofcourse, will be totally dependant uponnot totally, but Congress-

man Miller will certainly be carrying this idea in part in the com-mittee. And I lock forward to working with the Chairman and com-mittee members at any point that they might call upon me to doso. And I'm prepared to respond to any questions if you choose. Iknow that you have a long hearing list and I know there are a lotof witnesses. I'm prepared to answer questions. If you choose notto, that won't disappoint me either.
[The prepared statement of Hon. Bill Bradley followsl
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Good morning. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for calling this
hearing and giving members of Congress a chance to consider a
major new idea about how to pay for college before the
reauthorization of the Higher Education Act comes to the floor
here and in the Senate. With your leadership, we have a chance
to produce legislation that will maks as big a difference in
opportunity for thoue who want a better education as the original
Higher Education Act of 1965. Let me also thank Congressman
Miller, lead sponsor of the Self-Reliance Scholarship proposal
here in the House, and Congressmen Petri and Gejdenson for their
roles in promoting the idea of a nw option for student finance.
I agree with Professor Bluestone that this is an idea whose time
has come.

To demonstrate the need for a program like Self-Reliance
Scholarships, let me begin not with figures, but with a letter I
received from a young woman in New Jersey: "When it was time for
me to apply to college in the late 1970s," she writes,

my choice of college was practically unlimited because
of the comprehensive Federal financial aid programs....
Today my youngest sister, who is now 18 years old,
finds herself in a very different situation. My ister
has been forced to apply to colleges based on finances
rather than her considerable academic ability. Her
choices were severely curtailed by my parents' modest,
middle-class income and the fact that she is the last
remaining dependent child in their home. Even though
my -earents are "better off" than in the 1970s, my
sister does not even have the same opportunity I had
fourteen years ago.

This family's story is not unusual. It is happening all
across America as tuitions skyrocket and financial aid shrinks.
Last month the College Board reported that tuition at public
universities jumped 12% in just the last year. Average tuition
at a private college crossed the $10,000 mark for the first time,
with some charging $22,000 a year or more. Familius are finding
that without a college education, their kids can't hope to get
ahead, but that education is becoming unaffordable for middle-
class families.

The tragedy is bigger than the individual family, however.
It is a national tragedy of America shooting itself in the foot
despite stiff Lnternational competition. It is a tragedy of
America choosing to squander its human potential. It is a
tragedy of America, by inaction, endangering our belief that the
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future can be better than the present.

For most of our history, higher education was the experienceof very few Americans. World War II changed all that with thepassage of the GI bill. With mature veterans filling the ranks,the number of college students nearly doubled. The result wasthe most talented workforce in the world and a new recognition ofthe value of higher education. State legislatures, alumni, andeven the Federal Government began to invest in higher education.By 1970, enrollment doubled
again to about nine million students.A recent study shows that low-income students gained increasedtheir access to higher education by 41% between 1966 and 1977.Families, many without a college graduate in the house, cameincreasingly to see education's value and to recognize that,without it, life chances diminished.

But in the 1980s, college
costs increased by 50 percent inreal terms while Federal funds for student aid rose by only halfthat amount. And tightened eligibility took college loans awayfrom 500,000 students in the last decade. That 41% access gainfor low-income students in the decade ending in 1977 was wipedout by 1987.

The college cost trap hits the 85 percent of Americans whoearn less than $50,000 after they
are already bearing the strainof health care costs, energy costs, housing costs, interestrates, stagnant incomes and taxes. These pressures began tobuild and in some cases desperation set in. Last February, 35percent of New Jersey parents believed their kids would have alower standard of living than they have. In August, that numberjumped to 51 percent.

These conditions led me to develop Self-ReliaRc
Scholarships. When a family's income is not enough to meeteveryday costs, that income should not also be a barrier toeducation. Instead, I believe we must find a way to harness the60% higher earnings that a student w411 gain from higher
education in order to pay for that education. What we need issomething that builds on the virtues of independence and hardwork to give everyone a chance to increase their life chances bygoing to college.

Self-Reliance Scholarships harness the value of a collegeeducation to get past the hurdle of paying for it. Students' ownearning potential, not what their parents happen to earn, wouldopen the door to whatever colleges they were able to get into.Students whose femilies earned too little to pay a State collegetuition would not be turned away. Students whose families mightearn a little too much to get aid under current programs wouldnot be turned away. The 28-year old who has worked for a decadeout of high school only to find that escaping a dead-end jobrequires new skills, and the mothsr who has raised children and
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now, at 36 or 40 yearns for the independence that a college
education can bring, would all be eligible.

Self-Reliance Scholarships would give anyone, up to age 50,
as much as $33,000 for higher education in exchange for a
commitment to pay a percentage of the graduate's income into an
education trust fund that would provide more Self-Reliance
Scholarships for the next classes of students. The percentage of
income each student would commit and the length of the commitment
would be flexible, based on the student's choices and the amount
obtained. If you took $10,000, for example, you could agree to
pay back 1 11 percent of your income for the next 25 years. Or,
you could agree to pay a little more, say 2 As percent of income,
and pay off the obligation faster, in just 15 years.

There would alao be a ceiling and a floor on repayments. No
graduate could avoid paying his or her fair share, and graduates
fortunate enough to earn very high incomes at a young age would
not be penalized for success. The student who took out $10,000
and agreed to pay back 1 Is percent of income for 25 years would
pay back, in the first year, no less than $477 and no more than
$1,083. A graduate with income less than two-thirds of the
average for college graduates would pay the minimum, and a
graduate who made more than one-and-a-half times the average
would pay the maximum.

This feature, in particular, distinguishes Self-Reliance
from other proposals to link repayment to future income. The
floors and ceilings that keep everyone's payment reasonable will
make Self-Reliance appealing to the full range of students --
those who expect to do well early as well as those who want to be
teachers or social workers and earn very little for quite a few
years after graduation. If an income-contingent loan is an
option in the current system, but only those who expect low
initial incomes elect the option, this "adverse selection" will
make it unworkable. The floors and ceilings on payment make
Self-RelicA.4 fairer, allow us to make it flexible and
affordable', and make it likely to work where other experiments
have failed.

I have developed Self-Reliance Scholarships because the
current Federal student loan and grant programs do not adequately
meet the needs of today's students. First, those sources of
funds are shrinking in relative terms, while the cost of tuition
is rising. The Bush Administration's latest answer is to let
graduates deduct the interest they pay on student loans. How
does that help a family that is declared ineligible for loans
today? How does it help the graduate who starts at a low-paying
job, who cannot meet her loan payments in the first place and who
does not itemize her tax deductions? It does not help.

I should say here that this committee and your counterparts
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in the Senate have done a far better job than the Administrationin striving to increase

our investment in education and improveaccess for all students. But I believe WA can and shouDi do evenmore than increase eligibility
or shift student :swine fromguaranteed to direct loans. It ir time for sow. fresh thinkingabout how to pay for college.

I have been very gratified by the response the Self-Relianceidea has generated. College presidents are supportive; financialaid administrators think it's the right approach, but moreimportant than all of that, when I talk about Self-Reliance withfamilies in their homes and students at high school and collegeevents they agree enthusiastically: This is an idea whose timehas come. Tuitions are skyrocketing. Aid is shrinking. Self-Reliance is the answer.

For the United States to remain the Number One economicpower in the world, we have to be ready for jobs that involvecomputers, information, numbers and intense creativity. We haveto demand more from students, but we also have to promise more.We should promise that if you work hard, if you have ability, ifyou believe in yourself, and if you can get into college, youwill be able to go. Self-Reliance Scholarships will help youngpeople realize the promise by relying en themselves.



15

Chairman FORD. Thank you. During the Reagan Administration,
when it was fashionable for the administration to attack Federal
employees on every front, there was a system set up to find within
the Federal Government all employees who had an unpaid balance
on a student loan and then collect it through the IRS. Didn't we
facilitate some sort of a program to collect through the IRS unpaid
student loans for Federal employees?

Mr. BRADLEY. Well, defaulted student loans, yes. For Federal em-
ployees? I don't know if it was directed specifically to Federal em-
ployees.

Chairman FORD. Federal employees were the avenue that got us
into it. Maybe that's why there was no objection to using the IRS
as a collector. Later, we hitchhiked on that and added the IRS for
defaulted loans as a way of meeting reconciliation targets. But by
then, the die was cast, they were already doing it and they had to
acknowledge that it could be done.

Mr. BRADLEY. Mr. Chairman, there is no question that it can be
done. The IRS does have a pretty good computer. Some people
would argue that it's not as good as it should be. Those of us who
would like to collect more and are responsive to the IRS's request
for more personnel in the Finance Committee and the Ways and
Means CommUtee also would like that new personnel not only to
collect taxes but also to help facilitate collection of certain things
owed the government such as an agreement to pay a certain
amount of your income in order to get a Self-Reliance Scholarship.

There's no question the IRS can do this. It's a threshold question,
as usual. I mean, you know bureaucratic inertia institutions like to
do today what they did yesterday, notwithstanding changing times
and changing needs. And it is, of course, not within the jurisdiction
of this committee to tell the IRS to do that. It is however, in the
jurisdiction of the Ways and Means Committee and the Finance
Committee to determine that they shall do that. I hope that's the
way it will come out because, as you've said, there is no question
that they have the ability to do that.

Chairman FORD. Thank you. Senator Bradley, recently a study
was brought to my attention regardi ag what the difference is after
15 years between a student who comes out of school with a big debt
and a student who comes out of school and goes into the same
career path without the big debt. And there's a surprising differ-
ence.

What's surprising is not that there is a difference after 15 years
in the assets owned by these two people, but it's the dimensions.
This study found that after 15 years the student who started out
after school without debt accounted for 5 to 10 times as much in
assets accumulated during that first 15 years as a student who
started out under the present system repaying their debt the way
we do.

The impact at the low income end of the scale of this flat debt
obligation is not, therefore, something that's temporary that you
work out of as you make more money. It puts you behind the curve
and holds you back making progress during the key early years of
your career. And that's not a result we were trying to achieve. Ob-
viously, it's something we would like to avoid.

U
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All of the bills that are here suggest that we would avoid that
unintended consequence to some degree by stretching out the re-
payment and making it income sensitive. That might be the
answer to a problem that's being more and more identified by
people that we're creating as a wake or a wave from our efforts as
we go through the water.

Mr. BRADLEY. Mr. Chairman, I couldr't agree with you more.
That's one of the aspects of the bill that we thought long and hard
about. I think it would be the characteristic of virtually any
income-contingent loan program, whether it's Senator Simon's idea
or Mr. Petri's idea or others, that you would pay based upon your
income therefbre you would not have the phenomenon of getting
out of college and having to pay a whopping part of your income in
student loan repayments.

You would be able to have resources. You could count on a cer-
tain amount of your income that you would have to pay for repay-
ment. You would have an idea as your income increased over time
how much more but it would be a kind of set percentage of your
income.

Now, in Self-Reliance, what we did, and Congressman Miller was
instrumental or important in this, is we wanted to provide some
certainty not only as to specific percent of income but also specific
number of years. You can do one of two ways. You can either say,
like we do, that you do both specific length of time and specific per-
cent of income, or you can have a specific percent of income with
an indefinite period.

We chose to try to be as definite as possible. And that, of course,
led to a circumstance where there would be some people who made
more than others paying a little bit more back into the fund. But
there would be a cap of 150 percent of the average earnings for a
college graduate and 66 percent floor for the average earnings of a
college graduate.

But neither one of those changes would violate the principle that
you asserted which is it's got to be better to pay a percent of your
income because you will be able to afford that, particularly in the
early years, and you wouldn't have the problem of the diminish-
ment of asset accumulation.

Chairman FORD. Thank you. Mr. Miller?
Mr. MILLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And thank you, Bill,

very much for your testimony and for coming up with this legisla-
tion and this idea. I don't have any questions because I think the
most content'tous point has been the historical one of IRS resist-
ance to this. You have covered that very succinctlyit can be done.

I just think in terms of the realities, that it must be done be-
causeyou're so correctotherwise we're simply foreclosing that
opportunity for what eventually will be millions of young Ameri-
cans and families to do that. In my own State we just went through
a 40 percent increase in cost at the university and State college
system. As I listen to my son's friends talk about that, that's extra
semesters, that's extra time at home, it's time out of the job
market, and above all, it's additional debt when they do enter the
job market.

So thank you very, very much for your testimony.
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Mr. BRADLEY. Thank you very much, George. If anyone doubts
about the IRS you ought to ask them how they manage to compute
for 110 million taxpayers three levels of tax bases for the alterna-
tive minimum tax, plus the regular tax, plus the gross cash tax. So
it's just not an issue.

Chairman FORD. Mr. Petri?
Mr. PETRI. I just have one quick question. First, I wanted to

thank you for coming over here and for your important leadership
in this area in advancing and giving credibility to this whole ap-proach.

My question is this. In view of the large potential budget savings
that could be obtained through either your proposal or IDEA,
which both really go basically in the same direction, do you think
this is something that the Finance Committee might be interested
in adding to the coming tax bill? And to that end, do you think it'swssible to come to an acceptable compromise with Senator Duren-
berger who sits on the committee with you, and with your col-
league, Senator Simon, as this bill moves forward?

Mr. BRADLEY. I do have hope that a provision similar to thiscould be made a part of an overall budget. I know we have talked
about it in the Finance Committee and I think that there are areas
of compromise between what I've proposed and what Senator
Durenberger and Simon have proposed in the Senate.

My concern is that this simply not be a replacement for existing
higher education programs, and that's my major concern. And then
I also think that the repayments schedule has to be clear enough
so that it can be explained to people simply. And I think those arethe two areas where there coulsi be some fruitful discussions. And I
would hope that we would be able to come up with some program.
Things are moving. I think there is a chance.

Chairman FORD. Mr. Sawyer?
Mr. SAWYER. Thank you, Mr. CI airman. I don't have a question,

just a brief observation Senator. And that is that the demographics
of college populations has changed so markedly over the last 25
years that measuring eligibilities based on parents' capacity to sup-
port children really doesn't reflect the needs of that marketplace
anymore. It is the capacity of an individual who may, himself, be aparent to invest in his own potential earning capacity that is, per-haps, the most compelling part of this whole thing. It puts control
into the hands of the person who is taking advantage of the loan.

Thank you very much for introducing this. I look forward to
working with George and our chairman in helping to make this
law.

Mr. BRADLEY. Thank you, Congressman. That is the reason it's
called Self-Reliance. Pell Grant, Student Loan Program depend onparental income. This depends on the individual and the individual
taking on the commitment that in exchange for the money they
agree to a percent of their income for a specified number of years.

Chairman FORD. Brace yourself, Senator Bradley. Marge?
Mrs. ROUKEMA. We've been good friends for a long time haven't

we? We don't always agree but we've been good friends.
Chairman FORD. But I can't pass up an opportunity to tease you;

you'll understand that.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. The Chairman thinks I'm pushy, I think.
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Senator, I don't expect you to answer the specifics of my ques-
tions here. I'm just setting up a framework for discussion. And
frankly, I think that conceptually there could be agreement be-
tween us, particularly with my husband having had experience
when he went on to medical school of a similar program although
it was a private scholarship program. It was a question of borrow-
ing the moneyin that case it was at no interestbut making ar-
rangements with the scholarship fund to get your payment for
medical school tuition and then have an agreement as to what you
paid back to the fund. And it became a revolving fund for future
medical scholarships. In our city of Paterson it was the McBride
Scholarship Fund.

Conceptually, this is the same idea. But here we're talking about
a much larger program and we're talking about taxpayer money, I
think, being involved here. So my concerns areand again, I would
probably submit these questions to you at a later timerevolves
around the question of actuarial soundness of this program. not
sure about the full repayment schedule that you have here, but
could you answer this question: Do I understand that there is a
subsidy here or is it full payment for value?

Mr. BRADLEY. You have to cover the subsidy value of the loan in
the budget, that is what you have to raise. You don't have to raise
money in a direct loan program because it's simply a transfer of
one kind of asset to another. And what this is, is it's about $700 to
$800 million a year, basically. It's much less because the defaults
are down. The banks are not a part of it.

And I would finance that amount by putting a 10 percent surtax
on people who make more than $1 million. And that would cover
the budget cost for this program. Now, because we are

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Excuse me, Senator. On an annual basis that
would be ongoing and that offset on taxes would set the actuarial
soundness of the program?

Mr. BRADLEY. It would set the budget soundness and you
wouldn't be increasing the budget deficit. Now, actually, based
upon some numbers that I'm aware of that are going to come for-
ward in the next couple of days, you could probably do that for less
than 10 percent on people who make more than $1 million because
it turns out that our estimators have discovered that there are a
lot more people who are making income over $1 million and not as
many maiing capital gains over $1 million. So you could probably
do it for a little less than 10 percent, probably 7, 8 percent.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Well, that's very helpful. I m glad that you noted
that, the budget neutrality of it. But the actuarial soundness, that's
what I want to go into at another time. I don't really have all my
questions fully formulated but we've had enough experience, as you
know, with problems in government guaranteed programs, whether
it be PPGC that my subcommittee is dealing with, or banks or even
home mortgages, FHS mortgages. And so we must be very careful
in setting up such a program for the liability there, yes.

Mr. BRADLEY. I'll take a run at it if you want me to, not that I'll
have all the numbers right, but

Mrs. ROUKEMA. NO, I understand.
Mr. BRADLEY. The actuarial soundness of the program of the Self-

Reliance Scholarships depends upon the estimate of average earn-
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ings for a college graduate over a 20-year period being correct. If,
for example, the average earning is higher than you have project-
ed, then you are in a basic surplus. If, on the other hand, it's lower
than you have projected, then you have shortfall.

But one might point out there are other programs that are also
premised on particular income growth in the overall economy, one
of which is Social Security. If you had a dramatic drop in income,
you would have a problem with Social Security as well. So this is
not an unfamiliar concept in terms of projecting but it is not the
same as if you simply took the loan and committed to a percent for
as long as it takes to repay the loan, plus whatever prime was.

And that doesn't give you certainty as to the number of years
you would have to be paying a percent of your income but it would
eliminate the unceitainty as to whether you have projected correct-
ly on average earnings for a college graduate.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Thank you, in a sense you anticipated one of my
other questions. But we will have to explore this a little further
whether there are other revolving funds and what our experience
has been. You alluded to Social Security. I just, offhand, can't
think of other revolving funds like this, unemployment compensa-
tion perhaps? Well, not a

Mr. BRADLEY. I don't know if you would call the highway trust
fund a revolving fund, but that clearly is

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Well, we can look into it.
Mr. BRADLEY. Yes.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. All right, thank you very much, Senator.
Chairman FORD. Mr. Payne?
Mr. PAYNE. Yes, thank you. Senator, I guess the basic princi-

plesI'm trying to see what they arethe proposal would provide
anyone up to age 50 with up to $33,000 and a repayment would be
a fixed percentage of income up to 5 percent, over a period of 25
years. What would happen if a 50-year-old who you would expect, if
it's a female, maybe to work to 62? And if indeecl you come up with
$33,000 at 5 percent, you're going to run into Social Security. I
didn't want to throw in any complicationsI'm not a tax person
and I did read your simplified tax plan of 86, but

Mr. BRADLEY. Well, you mean if someone signed up at age 50 for
5 percent for 25 years, would they still be around at 74 to make
their payment? Well, I think than; a legitimate question. We felt
that that's as high as we could get it in order to get the amount of
money back into the fund that we needed. I tried to go as mature
as possible so that it would be available to more people.

Now, if someone could come in and demonstrate that that jeop-
ardizes the stability of the fund, then you've got to move it to 48,
well, we'll move it to 48. That number is guided by the exact ques-
tion that you raised, which is if somebody makes a commitment
will they actually be able to put the money back in? And if they
don't put the money back in then will the fund itself have short-
fall.

I'm sensitive to that and that is something that I would be pre-
pared to address or change depending upon the data. Again, the av-
erage public college is about $5,000 and I think that you won't find
a lot of people taking $33,000 at age 50; that would be my guess.

2 1 .



20

Mr. PAYNE. Right, thank you. I agree. I'm one of those that still
believe that everything doesn't necessarily have to be budget neu-
tral. Especially if we're talking about an investment in America
and we're talking about trying to get back our competitive edge
which we seem to have lost over these past 10 years as you've indi-
cated. The wealthy have become much more wealthy, that's prob-
ably why you were surprised with the larger number of million-
aires. But the poor have increased and the so-called middle class
also have had serious problems.

So if we're going to reinvest in America I think that this is as
important as that $2 billion B-2 that they're going to build in 1993
at that cost. So I agree with you and it wasn't to say that I'm in
opposition but, I'm even of the opinion that education does not nec-
essarily have to be budget neutral because of what it does to en-
hance our competitive edge in the future.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. BRADLEY. Well, let me respond. I agree with that. We do fi-

nances for the millionaire surtax but keep in mind this is a univer-
sal program. Anybody in America up to the age of 50, which means
even a millionaire's son might want to be self-reliant. In which
case you don't depend on the trust funds, you sign the contract, get
your money, repay over 20 years. So the idea is this should be
available to everyone.

Mr. PAYNE. Thank you. Senator Rockefeller used to talk about
whether he wanted to inherit it or do it the old-fashioned way.

Chairman FORD. Mr. Andrews?
Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you. Senator, thank you for being with us

this morning and for lending your credibility to a belief that I
think you share with most of us on this committee, which is that
although there are a lot of outstanding programs of access for
higher education financial aid, there is something fundamentally
wrong with our system right now. There are too many people who
have the ambition and the ability to get a higher education who
aren't getting one, and we have to do something that's really differ-
ent than what we've beers doing before, and not just rearrange the
furniture a little bit.

I appreciate the fact that this program, I think, goes a long way
toward filling a void for the nontraditional student, as you said and
as Congressman Sawyer said. We know in our State so many
people who are not the 18-year-old leaving home for the first time
with mom and dad at home, but they're people who have been in
the work force for a while, the single parent, et cetera.

So I think that you're absolutely on the right track. I look for-
ward to working with you to try to persuade the Treasury Depart-
ment to take a more active role in doing what we all know it can
do. And I just have one specific question, which is: Does the pro-
gram contemplate students making loan repayments while they're
in school? And if not, what would be the source of those repay-
ments and what would it cost, generally?

Mr. BRADLEY. You can do it either way, it just changes the table.
It changes the repayment table. In my view, either way is fine. If
you sign up to begin during your years in college then you basical-
ly will have a longer repayment. If you sign up to do it after col-
lege, then you probably would have slightly shorter repayment.
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Again, the concept is not repayment of loan but it is return on
investment. The government would be making an investment
giving you the $20,000 or the $10,000 and you would be providing
the return on that investment to those who made the investment
in you, the government, by a percent of your income. You could
leave it to the recipient's option as to whether they would choose to
begin in college or immediately after.

Mr. ANDREWS. Would the minimum payment apply to someone
who is in college? Your testimony indicates that

Mr. BRADLEY. The 66 percent, it could. I think if you're going
tothis deals with the cross subsidy issueif you were going to
have the cross-subsidy and not have adverse selection, which
means people who are going to make a lot of money not participate
in the program because they've got to pay more, then you would
have to apply both the cap and the floor to anyone at any point in
participation in the program in order to keep it solid.

Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you very much.
Mr. BRADLEY. Thank you. And let me thank you also for your in-

terest and leadership in this.
Mr. SAW IER. [presiding] Mrs. Unsoeld?
Mrs. UNSOELD. Just one minor concern because I think there are

a lot of good ideas in this, but by humanizing an inhuman loan
system that students are currently faced with do we run the risk of
getting ourselves off the hot seat for providing more grants for stu-
dents who are also self-reliant but may have less resources to start
with. I don't want us to be thinking that loans are the way that we
no longer have to pay adequate attention to giving grants to.

Mr. El RADLEY. No, this, as I said, is not a replacement for existing
programs. In fact, 1 think there can be a major argument that we
ought to increase, say, Pell Grants. But it is another good way to
pay.

The maximum you can get is $33,000, so what will inevitably
happen is you'll find a student who, if they are eligible, would get a
Pell Grant. And if they're eligible, they will get a g-uaranteed stu-
dent loan and then they'll bethis is a traditional studentthen
they'll be $3,000 to $4,000 short of being able to go to the college
that they could get into but couldn't afford.

And so, enter Self-Reliance Scholarships, they will plug that fi-
nancing gap with Self-Reliance Scholarships that will allow them
to go to the college that their ability allowed them to get in to. And
they won't have to settle for what was second or third choice
simply because of their family income and the amour_t of resourcesavailable to them through Pell Grants and Guaranteed Student
Loans.

Mrs. UNSOELD. Just as long as it doesn't take the political heat
off of us to provide those grants. I appreciate your work

Mr. BRADLEY. Well, again, I wouldif you would just take a look
at some of the new work done on economic growth, it breaks up
what various things contribute to economic growth, labor, capital,
and other things, you find that technology which was your tradi-
tional triumvirate, your third part of your triumvirate in the tradi-
tional theory breaks up now into quality investment in education
and ideas being key engines for economic growth.

Mrs. UNSOELD. You don't have to convince me.

L.
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Mr. BRADLEY. All right, well I'll save that speech then.
[Laughter.]
Mr. SAWYER. Mr. Reed?
Mr. REED. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Senator Bradley, I want to

commend you on your leadership on this important issue. I have a
specific question about the financing mechanism. Essentially what
you're saying is that the only budget costs would be the interest
that the P'ederal Government would pay on the debt it borrows,
and that's about $700 million?

Mr. BRADLEY. Well, the subsidy cost. The subsidy cost, as you
know, in current loan programs deal with banks and deal with de-
fault rates. But no banks here, it's a direct loan so that's out of the
picture. Will there be any defaults? Well, you know, some people
could die but not a whole lot. There would be minimal, minimal
costs, certain administrative costs.

Mr. REED. SO, the subsidy cost of administration, defaultwhich
is projected to be low, and the interest cost of borrowing the money
from the government?

Mr. BRADLEY. That's it, yes.
Mr. REED. And you're going to finance that. Then, when these

people pay the money back into the system, do you anticipate at
any time that those payments back to the system would make this
fund self-sustaining?

Mr. BRADLEY. Yes, I do. It's estimated at about 16 to 17 years
down the road you end up with a self-financing trust fund. So that
from the standpoint of the investment in higher education, you
have something that is forever. So this is a little bit like an invest-
ment in, say, a bridge or a road that once it is built finallymaybe
looking around New Jersey, it's like 287, a road that never seem to
be completedonce it is built, it's forever. And that is another
aspect to this that I think is enormously attractive because it
makes the long-term investment question very clear.

Mr. REED. One other quick questionless a question than sort of
a thoughtif this is run through the tax system, presumably they
would have priority in eny collections. Have you or your staff
thought about any adverse effect on other forms of lending?

I guess the other way to look at it is, have you thought conscious-
ly about how you would accommodate this program with the Staf-
ford Loan and the other loan programs?

Mr. BRADLEY. Well, this would be separate. It would be a third or
fourth good way to pay for college education. How the programs
would interact I think is very difficult for anybody to say now. My
guess is that they would be layers and this would be the final layer
that would try to plug a hole.

Mr. REED. I guess one point, not to deflect the importance and
the significance and substance of the program, is that there could
be a situation where the Department of F,ducation and the Treas-
ury are fighting over the assets of an individual

Mr. BRADLEY. Oh, you mean you would have the Department of
Education trying to get the Guaranteed Student Loan and the IRS
trying to get the Self-Reliance Scholarship?

Mr. REED. Yes.
Mr. BRADLEY. Well, in that case, there's no question in my mind,

the IRS wins.
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[Laughter.]
Mr. REED. So have you talked to Mr. Alexander about this pro-

gram?
Mr. BRADLEY. Well, I'm certainly willing to talk to anybody

about this program because I think it's terribly important.
Mr. REED. Thank you very much.
Mr. SAWYER. Mr. Kildee?
Mr. KILDEE. No questions.
Mr. SAWYER. Thank you very much, Senator.
Mr. BRADLEY. Thank you, and let me apologize to Senator Simon

who, if he's still there, I know how busy these people's time is and
I thank you for allowing me the time. I apologize for taking Sena-
tor Simon's time, but as for Congressman Gejdenson, well

[Laughter.]
Mr. SAWYER. Thank you, Senator Bradley.
Senator Simon, it's a pleasure to have you back here before this

committee.

STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE PAUL SIMON, A U.S. SENATOR
FROM THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

Mr. SIMON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I feel at home in this
room. I spent a lot of years in this room. It is a pleasure to be here.
And I would ask unanimous consent to insert my statement in the
record and also the statement of Senator Durenberger who is a co-
sponsor of my legislation.

Mr. SAWYER. Without objection.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Chairman, I want to commend you and Bill Ford

and Tom Petri and everyone else who has said, "Let's take another
look at this thing." About a year or yeai and a half ago I said to
my staff, "Instead of just tinkering at the edges on the higher edu-
cation bill as we have done the last two times we reauthorized, let's
see what we can do to really do something significant for the coun-
try."

And as it turned out, my colleague Dave Durenberger was think-
ing along the same lines and we ended up with the Simon/Duren-
berger bill. And let me add I'm a cosponsor of Bill Bradley's bill.
We're going in the same direction. I think there are some political
problems in terms of getting the Bradley bill enacted that we have
fewer problems in our bill.

First, what you have done here in raising Pell Grants is extreme-
ly important. If you take the old G.I. Bill after World War II and if
you were to put an index on it, that would be today $8,100 in assist-
ance and there was no income qualification on the G.I. Bill. The
Pell Grant today is $2,400 and you have to very, very lucky if
you're eligible for the Pell Grant.

What we do in our bill is we take the subsidy that we now give
to the bankers, to the lending institutionsand I would remind
you ar....1 we're running into some opposition obviously from the
lending institutions, but I would simply remind you this is a higher
education assistance bill. It's not a banker's assistance bill. It is not
a Sallie Mae assistance bill. This is to help students and colleges
and that's what we ought to be doing. And we think our bill moves
in that direction.
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With the present loan programs, in a recession, what do people
do? There is nothing income-contingent. We are imposing all kinds
of difficulties on people who have been students under the present
program. We ought to move away from that. And what our propos-
al is, like the Bradley proposal, is income-contingent, basically ex-
empting the poverty level, and we make it self-financing.

Borrowers pay back the principal plus interest. And we use for
interest treasury rate plus 2 percent. And the 2 percent more than
takes care of defaults. I heard Mrs. Roukema talk about, "We're
talking about taxpayers' money." You bet we're talking about tax-
payers' money. We're talking about taxpayers' money when we
talk about $3.4 billion that we're going to spend on student loan
defaults this year alone.

This program gets rid of the student loan default problem. It
much of the paperwork. That's why the GAO says a direct loan
program simplifies the paperwork for colleges, for students.
Anyone who wants to is eligible for the loan. We say you can get
up to $6,500 the first 2 years, $8,000 the next 2 years, and $11,000
to $30,000 for graduate school depending on the cost of the pro-
gram. Obviously, if you get a Ph.D. in English Literature, it doesn't
cost as much as if you're going to be a physician or something like
that.

IRS collectionI couldn't agree more with Bill Ford and what he
had to say before about IRS collection. The answer is yes. You're
going to hear from the IRS. They don't want to do this. No agency
wants another function tossed at them. But we have to ask what is
in the national interest. And it is clearly in the national interest
that we develop our human resources.

Economists don't agree on very much, as all of us know. They do
agree on one thing, and that is the United States is going to com-
pete with the rest of the world either through lower wages or
higher skills. And this proposal says, "Let's invest in higher skills
so that we can lift what we do in our country."

It also moves away from the present program which discourages
people from making the choice they really want to in terms of
career. Let's say you're a student in Washi.igton and you're trying
to decide to become social worker or do you become a lawyer.
FranklyI don't mean any disrespect. I married a lawyer. My
daughter is a lawyerwe probably need more social workers than
more lawyers in our society today. But our present systems skews
it in the wrong direction.

We use the money that we save to shift over the subsidy. We
make the loan program self-financing. You begin to pay after you
get out of school and you pay either until the loan is paid or 25
years, and at the end of that it is cut off. But the 2 percent over
treasury rate more than compensates for any defaults.

And then we take the money that we now subsidized the lending
institutions and apply it to Pell Grants. And frankly, what we have
done in order to comply with the Budget Summit Agreement, we
have added $600 to Pell Grants and we have made that an entitle-
ment. If we can work out, in conference with the House, some
system where we can make entitlement of Pell Grants, period, I'm
all for it. I have to tell you candidly, in the Senate to pass some-

29



25

thing we can't do more than whatever we provide the revenue for.
I think that's the political reality.

Now, we're going to provide an option for schools. We're going to
say, "You can go whichever way you want. You can go our pro-
gram. You can go the current program. And you get your choice."
And to Sallie Mae and the banks who are now telling schools, "Oh
you're going to have all kinds of paperwork," the GAO doesn't say
that. But if any school wants to not use our program they don't
need to. We give them the option.

But we ought to do better for this country than we've been doing
and we can do it. I talked to Bill Bradley. We've had some conver-
sations about- working out a compromise. Real candidly, one of the
concerns I have in the Bradley proposal in terms of getting it
passed in the Senate is the additional tax that is there. Frankly, I
will vote for it tomorrow, but I don't know that we can pass that in
the United States Senate. I don't know that we can get the Presi-
dent to agree to it.

Finally, let me just add you're going to hear from, as I under-
stand this morning, also from the Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency. Lending agencies that come here and that
agency and the others do good work and they have done good work,
just as Sallie Mae has done good work. But sometimes agencies get
interested in perpetuating themselves rather than the service they
were originally designed to do. And when anyone makes any
money out of the present system, take it with a grain of salt. It's
like the tobacco institute people who come in and tell you, "We
have research that shows cigarettes don't do any harm."

The question we have to ask ourselves is: How can we more effec-
tively help students? I think this idea is moving in the right direc-
tion. And Tom Petri, we have to give you a great deal of credit for
helping to pioneer in this.

I would be happy to answer any questions.
[The prepared statements of Hon. Paul Simon and Hon. Dave

Durenberger follow:]
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Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, thank you for the

opportunity to testify on the concept of income-contingent loans.

I must begin by emphasizing that providing income-contingent loans is

not the most important thing we can do to promote equal opportunity in

this Nation. The best way to help more of our troubled youth find skills and

jobs, the way to imprave our productivity in tin long term, is to invest in our

human resources by making more grants available to students from low- and

middle-income families. I commend the members of this subcommittee and

the full committee, and particularly the Chairman, for their insistence on a

Pell Grant entitlement in this reauthorization of the Higher Education Act.

Anyone who doesn't believe that more scholarships can help the

economy should look at the old G.I. Bill. It was conceived of as a gift to

veterans of World War II, nothing more. But it turned out to be a

tremendous investment in our own prosperity. If you were to take that old

G.I. Bill and add inflation, it would be worth today more than $8,100. That

helps to put the proposal for a $8,500 Pell Grant in perspective.

Mr. Chairman, the student loan proposals we are discussing today offer

clear, dramatic improvements in student assistance. This hearing is taking

32
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place in the midst of a national recession that, among many other things. is

severely testing our present student aid structure and all of its flaws in ways

that make these differences that much clearer and more dramatic. Right

now, across this nation, thousands of young adults, assaulted by the effects of

the recession, are confronting the choice of making the monthly payment to

the btu* on a student loan, or going into default to use that money to pay the

mortgage and keep the family home. And who will pick up the tab if the

choice is to default? The taxpayers will.

There is a better way, a plan that would prevent this dilemma, prevent

these damaged credit records, prevent these defaults, prevent the cost to

the taxpayer, and give borrowers a reprieve when they need it. Income-

contingrnt loan repaymmt is that better way.

Because even if we can significantly wand grant aid -- which I hope

we do -- there will still be a huge demand for loans, and some students will

still be saddled with large debt burdens, particularly at the graduate school

leveL That is why we must do everything possible to ensure that money in

the student loan system Is not wasted on middle players and bureaucracy.

and we must do what we can to minimize the negative consequences of

student debt burden.

The fact that there are a number of different proposals in Congress for

income-contingent loans Is evidence of the great appeal that the concept

has. While there are differences in the approaches that the bills take.

S.1845 (the Simon-Durenberger bill) and the separate proposals by Senators

Durenberger. Bradley. and Akaka. and Representatives Petri, Gejdenson, and

2
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Miller, all have three elements in common:

--Universal eligibility. The loans are available to any student,
regardless of their family income. This significantly reduces the
paperwork that is now required to figure out if someone qualifies for a
loan program based on their family income and other factors.

--Direct lending. The funds flow directly to students from the Federal
government, through the schools, at interest rates that are wholesale.
not retail. As you know, this simpler process was made more feasible
by the reforms in the FY91 budget bill,

--Income contingency. Me payback depends on the student's income
after graduation, and operates through the income tax system--a far
MP% otificient and effective system than the current collection efforts.

Incame_Cgntingen=113aLdlectian

It is this third common element that I know the subcommittee is

interested in today. Student loan debt creates a number of problems. First,

many youth and adults decide against going to college, because they are

afraid they might fail, and they won't be able to pay off their loans. With an

income-related program, that fear is reduced. During a period of

unemployment or low wages, the required payments are reduced

automatically.

Second, too many students don't do what they want to do with their

lives, because of the loan payments they need to make. This might be a

scientist who wants to be a high school teacher. but works for industry

instead. Or a doctor who enters a high-paying specialty instead of working

in an inner-city health clinic. Debt burdens skew these career decisions.

Finally, large debt burdens postpone dreams. I know a couple in

Southern Illinois who are paying more than $800 a month in student loan

3
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payments. They would like to buy a home, but they simply can't afford to.
Income-contingent payments would help to make their debt more
manageable.

Income-contingent payments and IRS collection also help us to
address the default problem. A large part of the current problem is that
people go through a low income period, default, and then never pick up
where they left off. By reducing the required payment based on income,
borrowers can go in and out of the system without trying to figure out who
owns their loans. Also, for those people who do have money, having the IRS
as the collection agency will make it much more difficult for them to avoid
paying.

The Financial Aid for All Students Act. S. 1845

The proposal I introduced with Senator Durenberger does a number of
things. and it is designed to comply with the budget agreement reached last
year. First, it replaces the current Stafford and SLS programs with a new
loan program called IDEA Credit. This is similar to the program developed
by Representatives Petri and Gejdenson; I will describe the differences later
in my testimony. Replacing those programs with a new program that does
not require a government subsidy allows us to save most of the current costs
of the guaranteed student loan programs, currently about $2.7 billion for
fiscal year 1992.

We use those entitlement savings to increase the Pa Grant by $600
above whatever level is funded by the appropriations committees. If we did

4
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that this year, 470,000 additional students would receive Pell Grants. Then

we establish a new Excellence Scholarship program, capped at a total of

$500 million, to provide $1000 scholarships to students who do take a

challenging curriculum in high school, do well in college, and/or participate

in early intervention and student support services programs. Finally, we

provide funding for a block grant of $100 million to the states for expanded

early intervention programs, like the "I Have a Dream" program pioneered

by Eugene Lang in Harlem. This part of our bill is based on a proposal

developed by Sen. Jeffords.

Because IDEA Credit can offer lower interest rates than the current

system, no origination or insurance fees, and more grants. most students

end up with less indebtedness after college under S. 1845. and all have

more reasonable and flexible loan payments based on their income.

Our blll is not written in stone, and some have suggested that the

savings be used for other purposes, such as continuing some type of in-

school interest subsidy. Others have suggested that the program be made

available at the option of the school. I have discussed these suggestions with

Sen. Durenberger. and they will likely be incorporated into the amendment

that we will offer on the Senate floor when the Higher Education

Reauthorization blll is considered.

income-Dependent Education Assistance (IDEA) Credit

The income-contingent loan system in S. 1845 is based on the Petri

proposal: payments are acllusted on a progressive scale based on income.

5
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the repayment period varies, and amounts owed after 25 years are forgiven.
I will not go into the details of the repayment or collection process, because
you have the experts here today. But let me list the differences between

IDEA (Petri-Gejdenson) and IDEA Credit (Simon-Durenberger):

IDEA Credit replaces. instead of supplements. the current Stafford program. (Both
proposals would replace SLS). TWO results in a savings of more than 82 billion a year.
--IDEA Credit begins with the 1994-95 academic year. instead of upon enactment.

--IDEA Credit is the responsibility of theDepartment of Education, not the Departmentof the Treasury. The income tax collection mechanism la established through anagreement between the Secretary of Education and the Secretary of the Treasury.
--To ensure that parents are dependent students' first source for aid, those parents mustfirst be notified of their eligibility to borrow under the PLUS pmgram, before thestudents can receive LDEA Credit.

IDEA Credit is more sensitive to family size: Instead ofjust protecUng an amountequal to the tax filing threshold, the protected amount is equal to the standarddeduction and any exemptions applicable to the borrower (Le. the maximum payment is20% of income above the standard deduction and exemptions).

IDEA Credit has no penalty for higher Wane participants or for early repayment.Berreweill are explicitly allowed to pay mere than the amount due, if they choose to (forexample. if they want to avoid negative amortization).

lb reduce any incentive for schools to increase tuition. IDEA Credit thrifts the loan tothe cost-of-attendance in 1991-92 (reviewed after two years).

IDEA Credit Includes no autcmstic indexing. After 18 months. the Secretary reportsto Congress on the effects of the program on tuition, and the effects of Inflation on theloan limits and the progresstvity factors used for the repayment amounts. If Congressdoes not take action. the Secretary may adjust the amounts in consultation with the
apprQuiste congressional connnittees.

--In IDEA Credit. the Secretary is given some discretion to determine, by regulation,what to include or exclude from the definition of income.

--IDEA Credit requires the Education Department to use a similar method in providingfunds to echools and students as it does in the Pen Grant program.

--Instead a settirig different higher loan limits for specific medical specialties. IDEACredit provides the Secretary some discretion in determining which medical anddoctoral students should be allowed a higher limit. Also, there Ls no extendedrepayment optlon for medical interns.

6
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The PHEAA Memo

Mr. Chairman, later this morning you will he. from a representative

of the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA). I am

tempted to simply say what I have said about some of the reports on direct

lending that Sallie Mae has put out: A report on student loans by a guaranty

agency is like a report on smoking by a tobacco company. You have to

consider the source.

But I would like to address some of the issues that PHEAA raised in a

November 5. 1991. memo that was provided to my office a few weeks ago.

(I should note that PHEAA has never expressed its concerns, or double-

checked its assumptions, with my office). Essentially. PHEAA argues that

low income students would have to pay more under IDEA Credit than under

the current system. This conclusion is based on two assumptions. both of

which are in error:

--The PHEAA memo looks only at the loan prognam, instead of the

package that Senator Durenberger and I are offering. I would not

propose to eliminate the in-school interest subsidy if it was not

balanr:ed by a Pell Grant increase. (Moreover, the amendment we will

offer in the Senate may maintain the in-school interest subsidy.

making PHEAA's claim even less meaningful).

--The PHEAA memo assumes that our program requires students to

spread their payments out in order to make them more affordable. In

fact. as I noted above, the required payment amount is a minimum

due based on the borrower's income. Our bill explicitly allows

7
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students to pay more if they can afford to. This provides students with
flexibility.

Once you consider these errors, the whole PIMA argument becomes

irrelevant. For the record. I have included with my testimony a more

detailed discussion of the PHEAA memo, prepared by my staff.

Conclusion

I commend you, Mr. Chairman, for your willingness to consider, and

even promote, innovative approaches to helping American families pursue

their dreams of a higher education. I have experienced, over the past few

months, what I imagine you have been dealing with for a year: the onslaught

from lenders, guaranty agencies, Sallie Mae and others with a financial

interest in the current system. I don't have anything against Sallie Mae or
lenders, but we have to decide if the purpose of the student aid programs is

to subsidize banks, or to provide aid to students. And I don't have a difficult

time making up my mind on that.

It is clearer today than it has ever been that we need a strategy to

regain the high-wage economy our nation once took for granted. And in any
equation, education and Job trainingmust be the key elements of that

strateef. The plan you are considering today would expand educational

opportunity and invest more in our people. Opening postsecondary

education to all who seek it is, In the end, not so much a gift to them as it is
a gift to ourselves.

Again, I thank you for the opportunity to testify.

8
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MEMORANDUM

To: Selena Dong, United States Student Associadon
From: Bob Shireman, Office of Sen. Paul Simon
Date: January 30, 1992
Re: PHEAA's analysis of IDEA Credit

As I promised last month, here are my thoughts on the November 5, 1991, memo
from Pennsylvania's guaranty agency, the Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency (PHEAM, analyzing the Simon-Durenberger IDEA Credit
proposal.

Essentially, PHEAA makes a number of erroneous (and some outrageous)
assumptions designed to make IDEA look like a bad deal. This is not surprising
given the agency's vested interest in the current programs. When the errors are
corrected, IDEA is clearly the better option. This is because through direct lending
we can buy more student aid with the same government subsidy; and with IRS
collection we can have a program that is sensitive to income, automatically giving
more flexibility to borrowers with large debt burdens.

I should emphasin that it clearly would be better to provide students with more
grant assistance. But given that some students will have to borrow, there should be
no question that it is better to have lower fees, lower interest rates, and increased
sensitivity and payment flexibility based on the borrower's future income.

I. OVERVIEW

This memo is divided into two main sections. The first section looks at "the front
end" the amount of aid that is delivered to students in the current system versus
S. 1845, the form that it takes (grants, loans, payments of interest), and the resulting
indebtedness. The second section looks at "the back end" the repayment of loans
under each proposal. That is followed by a brief discussion of the concept of
"discounting."

At the front end, PHEAA makes a number of errors and inappropriate assumptions
in its analysis, resulting in a negative portrayal of the Simon-Durenberger proposal.
For example, PHEAA ignores the increased grant aid that is provided under the
Simon-Durenberger plan. I offer a new analysis that addresses PHEAA's criticisms,
but (appropriately) assumes that the total government subsidy is the same in both
systems. With this correction in the PHEAA analysis, it is dear, that the Simon-
Durehberger plan puts far more of the program's money in the hands of students
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than does the current system.

At the back end (paymenb on loans), the PHEAA analysis incorrectly portrays IDEA
Credit as a rigid program, rather than the flexible program it is designed to be.
Because borrowers are not forced to make payments over a longer period, as PHEAA
assumes, the agency's criticisms lack foundation. IDEA Credit offers a more effstient
collection mechanism which also allows payments to be more sensitive to the
borrower's income and family situation.

The most alarming aspect of the PHEAA analysis is that, in its effort to find fault
with IDEA Credit, it ignores a basic economic principle: money changes value over
time. PHEAA concludes that a 10-year loan repayment period must be better than a
16-year repayment period (even with a lower interest rate) because when you add upall the payments, you pay less over 10 years. But if that's the case, why stopat 10?
Why not S? Why not 2? Why not pay for college up front aud avoid all interest
costs? The answer of course is the student can't afford it. The best loan is one with
affordable payments. When you're a student or unemployed, you probably prefer topay little or nothing. When you have a job, you're willing to pay more. IDEA
Credit provides this kind of flexibility, allowing borrowers to stretch out payments if
they have periods of low income oompared to their debt load. PHEAA mistakenly
assumes that IDEA requires lower payments and longer repayment periods; in fact,
IDEA simply allows them. So PHEAA's argument is not only illogical, it's
irrelevant.

II. ME FRONT END: PROVIDING AID TO STUDENTS

The PHEAA analysis is fatally flawed because it does not evaluate the whole of whatSenators Simon and Durenberger are proposing. As you know, the proposal
establishes a new loan program, IDEA Credit, as a replacement of the current loan
programs. This new program is designed to be self-finandng, which means that the
funds that would have been spent to subsidize the current loan programs$2.7
billion in the 1992 fiscal yearare available for other purposes. The Simon-
Durenberger bill shifts most of that money into the Pell Grant program. So, in
evaluating the two proposals, one must compare the loans that a student would get
now, compared to the loans and increased grants that he would get under the
Simon-Durenberger proposal) As our analyses have previously shown, the result
is that most students leave school with less debt under Simon-Durenberger thanunder the current system:

lAs you know, that aspect may change in the amendment that is offered on the floor, to use thefunds instead to maintain the in-school interest subsidy. Part B, below, analyzes the program using thismore likely scenario.
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TOTAL INDEBTEDNESS: Post-college indebtedness for students receiving the same amount of
total financial aid (grants & loans) under the current system vs. Simon-Durenberger, at public
and private colleges.

Low-income family:

Amount owed after four years of zollege under:
Current System Simon-Durenberger

PUBLIC: $10,279 $8,760
PRIVATE: $28,132 $25,793

Middle-income family:
PUBLIC: $20,946 $19,466
PRIVATE: $31,211 $29,200

Higher income family:
PUBLIC: $23,097 $21,900
PRIVATE: $32,937 $31,633

Even though students from low- and middle-income families receive an in-school
interest subsidy under the current system and not under IDEA Credit, the increased
grants and reduced fees under Simon-Durenberger mean that they needed to borrow
less money in the first place. For students from higher-income families (who do
not receive the in-school interest subsidy in the current system), the amount of
indebtedness is lower because the interest rate and fees under IDEA Credit are
lower.

A. Borrowing Assumptions

PHEAA says that some of the borrowing assumptions used in the above analysis are
too high. Instead, PHEAA's analysis assumes that all students borrow $2500 a year,
for a total of $10,000 (yielding $9,200 of usable funds, because of the 5% origination
fee and 3% insurance fee). The agency bases its assumption on its data from
students at public colleges. PHEAA no doubt used this assumption because it makes
the current program look better: the amount is just under the loan limits of the
subsidized Stafford (on which the government pays the interest during school), so
they can avoid showing the build-up of interest on an SLS. In addition, PHEAA errs
in assuming that these need-based loans go to students from higher-income
families, because they would not qualify in the current system. I must assume that
the PHEAA data refers to the unsubsidized Stafford offered by PHEAA to dependent
students whose income is too high to qualify for the subsidized loan. With this
correction to the PHEAA assumptions, using the lower borrowing amounts that
PHEAA suggests results in the following changes in the preceding chart for
"PUBLIC" colleges:

3

4f)



38

TOTAL INDEBTEDNESS (after PHEAA adjustments)
Amount owed after four years of public college, receiving $9200 in aid:

Current System Simon-Durenberger
Middle-income family: $10,000 $8,760
Higher income family: $11,610 $11,193

Therefore, making the changes that PHEAA suggests does not change the
conclusion that students finish school with less indebtedness under Simon-
Durenberger than under the current system.

B. Shifting Subsidies

The government's payment (to the lender) of the student's interest while in schoolis really just a monthly grant of sorts, equal to the interest that the student wouldhave otherwise had to pay. The Simon-Durenberger legislation shifts this subsidy(as well as the current payments to banks and other savings from direct lending andmore efficient collection) into the grant program. What the PHEAA analysis does is
compare the current Stafford loan program, with its in-school interest subsidy,
against IDEA Credit, without the increased grant aid. So it looks like students leaveschool worse off under IDEA Credit only because PHEAA ignores the fact that thereis $2.7 billion in additional student aid in the system.

At the end of its analysis, PHEAA finally notes its omission and argues that onecannot assume that the same person who would get an interest subsidy in thecurrent system would get a Pell Grant under Simon-Durenberger. While there aresuch cases, it does not follow that a fair analysis would only compare borrowers ineach system, as PHEAA does. One should instead compare all students, since thereare also those who will get larger Pell Grants under Simon-Durenberger, but whowould not have borrowed under the current system(and therefore do not lose anyinterest subsidy). PHEAA's approach is the same as if I were to do an analysisshowing only the increased Pell Grants, without showing the impact of theelimination of the in-school interest subsidy.

As I will show, there are better ways of analyzing the two proposals while addressingPHEAA's criticism. The key is to fix certain variables, so that we can analyze others.For example, we could ask, How much would it cost th,.: government to provide Xamount of student aid under each system? This requires us to assume that theterms to students are equal (interest rates and subsidies, fees, loan limits), so we canfind out how the government's costs change only as a result of the new system.That is the first example, below.

The other option is to ask, If the government has Y dollar3 to spend, how muchstudent aid could we get under each system? This requires us to assume that thegovernment has a certain amount to spend, then analyze how much that buys, in
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each system, in terms of loans (including interest .ates and fees) and grants. That is

the structure of the original Simon-Durenberger analysis, to which PHEAA objected
because eligibility is determined differently for grants and for loans. An alternative
approach is to assume that the subsidy, in both systems, is spent within the loan
programs.2 That is the second example, below.

1. Analysis of the total government subsidy necessary to provide the same
amount of aid to students under two different systems.

This is really just the structure of the analysis that the U.S. General Accounting
Office (GAO) did of direct lending. In assessing the comparative cost of a direct loan
system, GAO assumed that borrowers would pay the same fees and same interest
rates under each system, and that the total volume of lending would be equal. As
you know, GAO concluded that the switch to a direct loan system would save more
than $1 billion (present value) in the 1992 loan cohort. More recently, the
Congressional Budget Office concluded that the direct loans in the House bill will
save $950 million compared to what it would have cost to offer them as guaranteed
loans.

So that we are comparing apples with apples, let us assume then that the Simon-
Durenberger proposal is changed to retain the in-school interest subsidy for
qualifying students (remember, this is a policy decisionand probably not an
unreasonable political assumption), and the current fees and interest rates are held
constant (even though fees and interest rates are lower in the actual proposal, just as
they are lower in the actual direct loan proposal). We can reach a conclusion similar
to GAO's, because the front end of IDEA Credit is identical to direct lending (the
source of capital, the elimination of middle players). Furthermore, we can expect
greater savings, because collection through the income tax system is far less costly
than contracting with servicers, and defaults are significantly reduced, even after
accounting far borrowers whose balances are forgiven after 25 years.3

As you have already noted in supporting direct lending, the $1 billion-plus that
could be gained with these changes can be used to the benefit of students, as the next
example shows.

2. Analysis of aid provided under two systems using the same overall
government subsidy.

rrhis is not an unreasonable assumption. Senator Simon, in a letter dated December 5, 1991,
indicated that he will likely propose retaining the in-school interest subsidy (particularly if IDEA
Credit becomes an option for schools rather than a complete replacement of the current loan programs).

3The Congressional Budget Office (CB0) analysis of IDEA Credit concluded that replacing the
current programs with IDEA Credit "would save the federal government roughly $2 billion in 1992."
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Another way of posing this question is, How much student aid can we buy for $2.7billion (the FY92 subsidy)? Again, by starting with direct lending, independentanalyses have already been done that essentially address that question. Both theHouse and Senate committee bills use about the same total subsidy cost, according tothe CBC) analyses. But the product that is purchased with this subsidy turns out tobe very different As the chart below shows, direct lending can eliminate fees and
buy lower interest rates, and higher loan limits. Higher loan limits in thesubsidized Stafford program are a significant benefit to students who qualify.

Loaatermamilskitundsrsunzatrzsienzatilitrelkigill$
IzeitlIthemme.tatsIsalmmentoilikly1

SENATE (GUARANTEED LOANS) HOUSE (DIRECT LENDING)
Sialigullains
Origination fee 5% noneInsurance fee 1-3% none
Interest rate (1st 4 yrs) 9% 8%Interest rate (last 6 yrs) variable (T+3.25), max 10% 8%Loan limit (year 1) $3000 $6500Loan limit (year 2) $3500 $6500Loan limit (years 3-4) $5500 $8000

50/PLUS loam
Origination fee 5% flOreInsurance fee 1-3% MEInterest rate variable (T+3.25), max 11% variable (T+3.25), max 12%Loan limit (years 1-2) $4000 $4000Loan limit (years 3-4) $5000 $6000

Beause, as I have already noted, collection and default costs would be lower under
IDEA Credit, the terms of the loans could be even better for students than the Housebill. But to remain on the conservative side, I will assume only that the terms ofIDEA Credit would be identical to the House bill.4

Now we can compare the two systems, while holding the subsidy constant. It's clearjust from looking at the terms that any student would be better off at the front endwith IDEA Credit. How much better off depends on the amount borrowed.Assuming that the student qualifies for a Stafford loan and therefore gets the in-school interest subsidy, after four years of college, the total indebtedness under each

4It is necessary to make different assumptions about the means of providing the subsidy tostudents to ensure that only one that there is only one dependent variable: total indebtedness. This isappropriate, since the question of whether to provide a given subsidy throughpayments on in-schoolinterest or through increased wants is a policy decision and has no impact on the economics of thesystem used.
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system would always be less with IDEA Credit or direct lending. For example, a
student who needs $3000 in aid each year would owe nearly $13,000 (because of fees)
in the current system, but only $12,000 under IDEA. Students who do not qualify for
the in-school interest subsidy would find even larger savings because of reduced fees
and interest rates. (1 expect to prepare new comparison tables based on the proposal
that will be offered on the Senate floor. I will get them to you when they are ready).

111. ME BACK END: PAYMENTS ON LOANS

The PHEAA analysis is incorrect in its description of the repayment plan under
IDEA Credit. During periods of low income after college, borrowers are not required
to reduce their payments and spread them out over a longer period. IDEA Credit is
simply designed to recognize the borrower's income and family situation and allow
lower payments during those periods (and to forgive the balance if that low income
status continues for a long period). This fact completely eviscerates PHEAA's
claims, unless one believes that borrowers should not be allowed, at their own
choice, to extend their repayment period.5

After making its erroneous assumption, PHEAA then proceeds to use a completely
inappropriate method for evaluating different repayment options. Instead of
properly discounting future payments in order to determine the present value of
any particular repayment plan, PHEAA simply adds up all of the payments over
time. This argument is moot (because borrowers may make larger payments if they
choose to), but I do discuss it briefly in the section IV.

It should be emphasized that the desire to make the lower, income-contingent
payment a required minimum, not a maximum, was an explicit decision on the part
of the authors of the bill. As you know, the IDEA Credit program is based on H.R.
2336 by Reps. Petri and Gejdenson. One of the changes made in the Simon-
Durenberger bill was, to eliminate the early repayment penalty, so that borrowers
would not have that disincentive to making larger payments. And a new section
was added to the bill explicitly stating that borrowers may pay more than the

sAnd if this is the case, then the current consolidation options should be eliminated, too. There
is some evidence that this is PHEAA's position. Page 4 of the memo states that "The basic problem
with the IDEA repayment schedules lies in the fact that borrowers are allowed more time to repay
their loans."

The original Simon-Durenberger materials compared IDEA Credit to the basic loan under the
current system, and aiso to the consolidation loan. PHEAA does not even mention loan consolidation in
its memo (Doing so would have detracted from the argument that spreading out repayment is always a
bad thing to do).
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required payment.6 This was included so that they can avoid negative amortization,
if they choose to in that small minority of cases in which low income and high
indebtedness lead to a required Ayment that does not cover interest.

It must be pointed out that not only are longer repayment periods not unknown in
the current system (with consolidation), but negative amortization is also not
uncommon. Borrowers who plead with lenders for forbearance during periods of
low income or unemployment have the interest added to their principle.
Unfortunately, all too often borrowers do not take the time to figure out who owns
their loan and go through the steps of proving hardship, so they default.
Meanwhile, interest accumulatesand if the system ever finds them, they will have
to pay it. With IDEA Credit, the required payment automatically takes account of
the borrower's income and family situation. And the borrowers who gets laid off
and would default in the current system, upon reemployment would automatically
be brought back into IDEA Credit repayment (because it operates through the
income tax system).

Just so that everything is dear: The minimum payment amount under IDEA Credit
is based on an amortization schedule, with adjustments made according to the
borrower's income and family situation (e.g. dependents)" Paying lower amounts
lengthens the repayment period, except that no borrower pays more than principal
plus interest, and any balance due after 25 years is forgiven.

IV. SPREADING PAYMENTS GUT

The foundation of the PHEAA analysis (which, again, is based on the erroneous
assumption that students are forced to make lower payments) is that it is bad for the
borrower to reduce payments by extending the repayment period. The PHEAA
memo cites one borrower whose payments would be spread over 16 years under
IDEA:

Their repayment amount wig total $22,028, 120 percent more than they
borrowed, and 46.3 percent more than they would have had to pay for $10,000
in Stafford Loans.

6Section 459(f)(4) of the bill states that "Nothing in this part shall be interpreted to prohibit
a borrower from paying an amount in excess of the amount required to be repaid under this part."

7In notifying borrowers of the repayment amounts, it is intended thattholie who ate low inowne
would be informed not only of the minimum, but of the amount that would need to be paid in order to
cover interest, and the amount that they would need to pay in order to pay off the loan in a certain
number of years. Whether to pay the higher amounts would beup to them, based on their own analysis
of their present and future situation.
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This argument is absurd. It is the same as making the seemingly scandalous claim
that a Stafford Loan costs 50 percent more than to just pay the $10,000 tuition up
front. Of course, this is no surprise to anyone. People take out loans and agree to
pay interest because they either do not have the money at the time, or they expect to
have an easier time making money in the future, or both. That's why future costs
and benefits must be "discounted" to determine the net present value. Simply
adding up payments is meaningless.8 As a basic economics textbook notes:

To evaluate . . . benefit streams, future proceeds (or costs) must be
translated into present values. They must be discounted, to allow for
the fact that future benefits are less valuable than present ones. The
same applies to the evaluation of costs,

The value of any given payment depends on when it is to be paid. It "costs" more to
pay $100 today than to pay that same $100 next year. The easiest way to think about
this islo assume that you have the $100 now. You can either pay it today, or you
could put it into an interest-bearing account, and next year you would have $105. So
if you wait until next year to make the $100 payment, you would have $5 left over
clearly a better option. Another way to think about it is to ask, How much would
you be willing to pay now, to avoid owing $100 next year? If you simply consider
the alternative of putting an "equivalent' amount of money in the bank, that
amount would be about $95. That is the present value of the future payment.

This is not to say that to delay payments and pay more interest is always a good
thing. It depends, of course, on the interest rate, on the current income, and on the
expected future income. As an investment in a student's own future, a college loan
can certainly make a great deal of sense. At age 25-34, those with assodate degrees
make on the average 40% more than those with just a high school education. With
a bachelor's degree, they make 63% more. With a professional degree, they make
three times as much. In fact, given the return on an investment in higher
education, most students would heavily discount future payments. Under IDEA
Credit, borrowers have the alternative of extending repayment if they are low
income, and if they remain low income for a long period, some payments will be,

'Using PHEAA's method of analyzing future payments on loans, lenders should be eager to
purchase my $10,000, 10-year, 8% student loan and offer me instead 20 years of payments at 5% interest.
PHEAA's analysis would have me reject that deal, since the total amount paid would be higher than
under the 10-year plan. Of course, moat rational borrowers would be pleased to take the 5% longerterm
loan, but so far no lender has made the offer (at least none that are in business anymore).

PHEAA analysis ignores this bask fact found in any economics textbook. This particular
cite is from Richard A. Musgrave and Peggy B. Musgrave, Public Finance in Theoryand Practice,
McGraw-Hill, N.Y., 1980, p. 184.
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V. PUTTING IT ALL TOGETHER
At the front end, with a given amount of government subsidy, the Simon-Durenberger plan puts more of the program's money in the hands of students. (Theprecise form of that subsidy is a policy decision available in either system). To theextent that aid is provided in the form of loans, IDEA Credit offers a more efficientcollection mechanism which also allows payments to be more sensitive to theborrower's income and family situation.
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STATEMENT BY
U.S. SENATOR DAVE DURENBERGER

HOUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE
HEARING OM DIRECT LENDING

AND THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT

FEBRUARY 6, 1992

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you and the other members of
the Committee fcr allowing me this opportunity to place on the
record my own strong support for fundamental changes in the
student financial aid system -- the kind of changes that are
needed to meet the realities and opportunities facing American
higher education as we approach the 21st Century.

I also want to pay special tribute to one of your members,
Congressman Tom Petri, who has been my mentor on this issue, and
who has devoted much of the last decade to designing a simple,
workable, fair way of making student loans available to every
American who can benefit from a college education.

And, finally, I want to pay tribute to my Democratic
colleagtes who are testifying here today -- Senators Paul Simon
and Bill Bradley -- two Senators whose commitment to higher
education is well known and whose bi-partisan approach to
fundamental reform in how we pay for higher education is much
appreciated by me and by many others on my side of the aisle.

Mr. Chairman, today's hearing offers a powerful statement
about the interest in -- and growing support for direct loans --
and especially, for direct loans that have their repayment based
on the post-college incomes of student borrowers.

The proposal that Congressman Petri and Senator Simon and I
have introduced sets up a new atudent loan program that has both
of these essential features:

** money available to students directly from the
government -- eliminating hundreds of millions of dollars in
administrative expense and red tape;

** and payments based on post-colleqe income made through
the IRS -- eliminating billions of dollars in defaults and vastly
simplifying how loans get collected.
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All the charts and graphs and calculations needed to explain
and analyze the IDEA proposal can be boiled down to those two
central features, those two sets of advantages, and those two
calculations of savings.

Mt. Chairman, like many of the members of this Committee, a
big part of my sensitivity to the rising cost of going to college
stems from my own experience as a parent and the experiences of
frienms in my own generation who also have sons or daughters who
are in -- or about to enter -- college.

Just two months ago, a new national survey found the rising
cost of college to be our third biggest worry as families in
America -- right behind crime and drugs and -- surprising to me,at least -- ahead of health care.

Millions of middle income American families are clearly
worried that going to college is something that could again
become the province of the unsubsidised rich and the totally
subsidized poor.

And, millions of AMeriCan families are clearly worried thattheir kias won't have the same opportunities that we had to go to
college... just one generation ago.

That reality validates one of the primary lessons of the
Generational Equity movement I helped found a half dozen years
ago... that my generation will be the first generation to leave
its children less well off than we were left by our own parents.

Mr. Chairman, I also see the dilemma facing middle income
American families every day in my mailbag.

As one Minneapolis couple wrote me recently, "Even though
our combined incomes are about $60,000, we are finding it hard as
middle class citizens to pay college expenses and support afamily. We are too poor to be rich and too rich to be poor."

One big reason for this frustration lies with the riaing
cost of going to college. From 1980 to 1987, for example,
inflation adjusted tuition grew at five times the rate of the
median family income.

Just three months ago, the papers were again reporting the
College Board's annual report on average tuition and fees at
public and private universities.
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Inflation was three or four percent last year. But, tuition
and fees were up 12 percent at public four-year institutione and
up 13 percent at /N2-year public universities, the fastest
growlng sector of higher education.

All of this is happening at a time when incomes are leveling
off, and home equity -- the traditional "savings bank" that many
of us drew on to finance our kids' educations -- may even be
declining in value.

what scares me about this reality is tnat it represents a
trend that threatens to price middle income Americans out of
higher education at the same time economic realities are
demanding an even better educated workforce.

Let me offer just one example -- of how the economics of
higher education are changing for one average middle income
Minnesota family.

My example draws on the experience of a 42-year-old
Minnesotan who grew up in a middle income family and who would
have to be considered an average middle income Minnesotan, today.

Twenty years ago, this person attended the second most
expensive four-ye/. private college in Minnesota.

And, by drawing on his parents' current income --
supplemented by small savings account, part-time jobs, and a
$250 scholarship in the first two years -- his college education
was paid for without borrowing.

The total cost of that four-year, private college
education -- again just one generation ago -- was about $12,000,
including room and board.

Like many middle income families in a similar situation a
generation ago, meeting that obligation required belts to be
tightened a notch or two. But, it could be done.

And, that same combination of current family income and work
and savings got millions of American students of that generation
through college and on their way toward productive lives.

Today this average middle income Minnesotan has three
children, ages 12, 9 and three.

And, anyone who can do simple arithmetic can figure out
something has to change if those three kids are going to get a
college education like their father or mother got just one
generation ago.
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Projecting current costs out into the future, the total cost
of educating those three children will range somewhere between$200,000 -- if all three attend public colleges -- and $400,000
-- if all three attend private colleges.

That's an average of $67,000 for a public college education
and $133,000 for private college -- a ten fold increase in what
it cost to send our average Minnesotan to college just onegeneration ago.

A prudent family that cares about educating its kids wouldstart saving for that expense right now. But, using reasonable
assumptions, our 42-year old middle income Minnesotan would haveto stdrt putting aside more than $14,000 a year if his threechildren were going to public colleges and almost $30,000 a yearto cover tuition and other expenses at private colleges.

So, by the time the three year old enters college in theyear 2006, this middle income
Minnesotan would have to invest anaverage of $17,500 per year for 15 years -- to finance the samehigh quality college education hl had just one generationearlier.

Mr. Chairman, Senator simon, Senator Bradley, Congressman
Petri, and many of our colleagues believe that this 21st Centurychallenge cannot be met by our current 1960's-era system of
student grants and loans.

... a system that's unnecessarily bureaucratic
andcomplex...

... a system that largely neglects the needs of middleincome students and their families...

... a system that spends billions of dollars a year onoverhead and red tape...

... a system that's vulnerable to administrative andfinancial problems best documented by last year's collapse of theHigher Education Assistance Foundation (HEAF)...

... a system that's limiting institutional,
career andfamily-related choices for a growing number of students...

... and, a system that's burdening millions
of students withinflexible loan payments and a growing level of debt that pro-duced $3.9 billion in student loan default last year.
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In the five years beginning in 1987, Mr. Chairman, federal
student loan defaults have cost the taxpayers $11.5 billion.

More than forty cents of every dollar we now spend on the
federal student loan program goes to pay off defaulted loans.

And, many of the thousands of borrowers in default are now
stuck with a burden and a barrier to getting and sustaining a
good start in life.

I ran into one of those borrowers recently in Duluth... a
reporter for one of the local radio stations who defaulted on his
student loan a few years ago while in a low paying job.

Today, because of that black mark on his credit rating, he
and his wife can't get a loan for their first home.

My mailbag is full of similar sad stories including one
Robbinsdala couple -- both in default, but both now having the
incomes and future earning potential to eventually pay off their
loans.

But, because they are in default, their loans are now in the
hands of a collection agency which is demanding payments they
can't make.

"We would like to make regular payments,"this couple wrote
to me recently. "But, we feel our efforts are denied by the
creditors insisting La unrealistic expectations."

The inflexibility o..! the current system is especially hard
on very low income individuals who may have failed the first time
around in getting a colloge education and defaulted on their
student loans.

As one advocate for many of these low income defaulted
borrowers wrote recently:

"Most of these clients pursued education in good faith,
hoping that school would result in a career and a better life.
Their circumstances derailed their plans, but when we see them,
they remain poor, unemployed, on assistance, and stuck."

"Perhaps most damaging is exclusion from additional
financial aid. Thus, they find that the one door to self-
sufficiency -- education -- is closed and locked."
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That kind of
indictment of the

current student aid systemrequires more than tinkering and fine-tuning.

What we really need is a fundamentally different way of both
easing the burdens of rising

cost and of insuring each of us
against the

uncertainties of incomes that often rise and fallthroughout life.

That two-part challenge is met by legislation
that Senator

Paul Simon and I introduced in the Senate
on October 22.

What we call the "Financial Aid for All
Students Act"authorizes an entirely new student loan program that's available

to any American
up to age 55.

IDEA is a fair,
simple, efficient way of assuring

financial
access to higher

education for millions of middle incomeAmericans who don't now qualify for a federally
guaranteed

student loan.

IDEA offers
flexibility in avoiding needless

defaults for
graduates when their incomes rise and fall because of changes in
the economy,

career choices, illness, or family obligations.
IDEA offers

individuals with relatively low incomes -- like
teachers and social workers -- the opportunity

to pay off their
loans without the unfair burden than now can discourage

a public
service career.

IDEA is the best and lowest
cost solution to the concerns

all of us have heard from medical students about the potential
loss of deferred

interest during long and relatively low-paying
residencies.

And, IDEA saves an estimated
$2.7 billion per year ininefficiencies and flaws in the

current student loan program...
money that's now going for

overhead and red tape... money that's
now going to pay defaulted

student loans.
Under the legislation Senator Simon and I introduced last

fall, that $2.7 billion in savings would go to
students.., based

on financial
need... based on merit.., and based on a willingness

to participate in programs that improve academic performance.

Mr. Chairman, some of our
colleagues might be asking: "How

could a liberal
Democrat from Illinois and a moderate

Republican
from Minnesota get together on a single

legislative proposal so
sweeping, so

revolutionary, and yet so deeply
rooted in values

that promote
access, individual

responsibility, quality, and
excellence in higher education?"
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The answer to that question, lies in two essential
principles -- principles that aren't Democratic or Republican...
principles that aren't liberal or conservative.., but principles
that represent common sense and what's good for students and
what's good for America's future.

The first of those principles, recognizes the reality that
higher education today is both more costly and more important.

That principle states that the national government has an
obligation to help assure financial_access to higher education to
every Americap who can benefit from the rich rewards that higher
education can offer.

And, the second principle, Mr. Chairman, is that meeting
this challenge will reguire fundamental changes in a svstem of
financin hi her education that's badl in need of refo

Before I close, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to address a few
remarks to my colleagues in the Administration and to my
colleagues on my side of the aisle.

I do that, in part, to respond to another very obvious
question: "Why would I introduce legislation that includes
direct loans -- a provision that the Bush Administration has said
would trigger a veto of the entire Higher Education Act
reauthorization?"

In responst Mr. Chairman, I first believe it's very
important to point out the important differences between the IDEA
proposal and more traditional direct loan proposals including the
House legislation and the proposal that the Administration
previously considered and then rejected.

IDEA addresses many of the criticisms -- on projected cost
savings and administrative feasibility, for example -- that the
Administration has made of the House proposal and which cause the
Administration to set-aside its own proposal.

And, with its income-contingent feature, IDEA produces real
savings from fewer defaults -- savings that wouldn't necessarily
occur through a more conventional direct loan program that
retains the kind of inflexible loan repayment we now have in the
current system.

Of course, the Administration has also expressed concerns
about the impact of a direct loan program on banks and other
third parties in the current system and the impact of a direct
loan program on the deficit.
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On that point, I must say I believe the Administration is
wrong. The purpose of the federal student loan program is to
help provide financial access to higher education, not to offer a
guaranteed source of income for banks. If students, institu-
tions, and taxpayers can be better served by a different way of
doing things, I say "why not?"

I also distinguish between a direct spending Program -- that
does add to the deficit -- and a dirag_taggin_sigstran that recyc-
les money back into the treasury once loans are repaid. That's a
clear distinction that Congreaa -- and the Administration -- made
in last year's budget agreement when we moved the issuance of
debt for loan programs like IDEA "off-budget."

Finally, Mr. Chairman, IDEA represents that most basic of
"Republican values" -- a clear focus on individual
responsibility.

With the kind of improvements in student loan programs
contained in IDEA, we focus primary responsibility for financing
higher education with individuals who benefit, not on the
government.

IDEA loans, after all, do have to be paid back. On the
other hAnd, billions of dollars now being spent on defaults are
being lost forever.

Mr. Chairman, Senator Simon and I have introduced
legislation that we believe should be part of this year's
reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. We realize these
are far-reaching proposals. They are controversial. They
confront powerful special interests. They challenge deep-seated
ideology.

But, the system we have now, will not adequately serve
Americans into the 21st Century. The system we have now must be
fundamentally changed.

In its place, the IDEA program offers a solid commitment to
ensuring access to higher education for all Americans. I urge
your support and I urge the support of your colleagues.

Thank you very much.

U.S. SENATOR DAVE DURENBERGER (R-Minnesota) is a menber of the
Senate Labor and Human Resources Committee dnd the Senate Finance
Committee.
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na or Dave Durenberer
Senator for Minnesota

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROVISIONS IN THE RNANCIAL AID FOR
ALL STUDENTS ACT OF 1991

The Simon-Durenberger proposal produces savings
estimated at 82.7 billion by eliminating the current Stafford
aed SLS student loan programs. It uses those savings to:

" Create a new, simpler student aid program called
IDEA Credit, available to students regardless of income,
with payments made through the IRS and tied to a
percentage of income.

" Fmance a $600 increase in the current maximum
Pell Grant to provide more auistance to those currently
eligible.

" Cteate a new program of $1000 'Excellence
Scholarshipa' for low-income students who work hard and
do well in school.

" Provide matching block grants to states to establish
early intervention programs for at.risk you, to help prepare
them for college and to make them aware of the availability
of financial aid.

Following is a brief summary of these four major
provisions. In each case the dollar figure are actual, not
simply authorizations. They are 'shifted entitlements' as
allowed under the Budget Enforcement Act of 1990.

Incom Dependant Education
Mala(inco (1DEA OWN)

Beginning with the 1994.95 academic year, the current
federal guaranteed student loan programs (except the PLUS
loan for parents) would be replaced with new IDEA Credit
available to all students regardless of income. Features of
the program include:

" Loan maximums: Students are eligible to establish
ILI IDEA account and receive education assistance of up to
$6,503 per year for first and second-year undergraduates, up
to $3,000 per year for other undergraduates, and up to
$11,000 per year for graduate students. Medical and some
other doctoral studenu could receive up to 120,000 or more
in some circumstances. Total credit is limited to $70,000
per student (or $100,000 OS DIME for medical and SOME
other doctoral students). Anyone 55 years of age or
younger may receive IDEA credit, but maximum loan limits
are gradually scaled down between the ages of 35 and 55.

" ligaggfalintsjarges: While a student iS In
aChOOL interest accrues in their IDEA Amount at a rate
equal to the 91-day T-bill rate plus two percuntage points,
up to a maximum of 10 percent. The rate currently
projected by the Congressional Budget Office (8%) is lower
than all of the current guaranteed student loan programs
(Stafford increases to 10 percent after four years). While

there Is no in-school interest subaidy (as there now is in the
Stafford program) there would be no origination fees or
Insurance (an average of 6.6% up from levy, sometimes a*
high as 8%, is amenity charged to Stafford borrowers and
is being considered for the other programs).

" lamordwaslaumfigis After the student finishes
school and finds work, he or she will begin to make pay-
ments to the IDEA account through increased income tax
withholding by the employer. The amount of the payments
each year depends on annual income, but the intent of the
program is to have no borrower pay back MOM than bOr.
rowed, plus interest. Borrowers would not have to make
payments in any years in which they do not earn enough
income to have to file a federal income tax return. Further,
no payment may exceed 25 percent of the differeace bet-
ween actual income and the minimum filing income. Most
loans will be paid off in 10.13 years. And, anyone with a
balance on their loan still due 25 years after finishing school
will have their slate wiped clean.

Expandad PM Grants

Under the Simon-Durenberger proposal, S2.1 billion of
the estimated $2.7 billion in savings is shifted to the Pell
Grant program. And, the maCmum Pell Grant is increased
by $600 above the appropriated amount. This would be on
top of any appropriated increase in todays $2400 maximum.

The affect of this increue is that the average size of
grants for students who already qualify will increase, and
grant eligibility will rise above the current median family
income.

Because these savings are being shifted out of an
ensting entitlement program (largely Stafford loans), current
budget rules require the increase in Pell Grants funded by
this legislation to be treated as an entitlement to qualifying
studeats.

In additioa, a full entitlement is authorized for the
entire Pell Grant program, If Congreu designate: additional
savings or revenue for that purpose.

And, finally, first.year graduate students would be
eligible for Pell Grants if funds are available after fully
funding the authorized grants for undergraduates.

Excallonc* ScItolanaNpa

The Simon-Durenberger proposal creates a new $500
Million per year scholarship program to encourage
outstanding Pell Grant recipients to work hard in school.
Eligible students would receive a $1000 per year bonus On
their Pell Gum if they take a challenging curriculum in high
school and either rank at the top of their class, perform well
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on a national standardized test, or participate in a TRIO or
other early iatervation program.

lo order to cootinue receiving time excellence scholar-
ships at a degree-granting college. recipients must demon-
strate high achievemenL or, for those who first qualified by
participating in TRIO or other early intervention wpm,
continue to make progreu toward achieving their goals.

Esey intonvollon Bloc* GiantPew=
Finally, the Simon-Durenberger proposal earmarks $100

million in matching funds to states to establish programs
modeled on the Have a Dream' effort started by Eugene
Lang in New York. The funds would be used to ruo
programs that mentor, advise and tutor at.risk yor'.n. Youth
patticipating in these programs would be eligible for the
Excellence Scholarships discussed above.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ON THE
FINANCIAL AID FOR AU STUDENTS

ACT OF 1991

S. *two dose Not money canto *cm NW NW go Into
wooden, Poi Dm" No Emily= Statairstalp,
and We ototo ntothing pronto lot oot* hiwvontion
Frogman?

Replacing the current guaranteed student loan programs
uith IDEA Credit saves about $2.7 billion per year, which is
shifted in these three new programs. By getting the capital
for the program directly, instead of paying banks to do it,
the federal povernment saves up to $1.4 billion iaccording to
a new report from the U.S. General Accounting Office).
Additional savings come from simpler collection through the
income tax system, and reduced defaults. Also, the in.
school interest payments that the federal govermnent now
makes for Stafford borrowers would, in effect, become part
of the increased PeU Grant and new Excellence Scholarships
under this program.

2 &mode IDEA Credit lust incrow the Weal
Melt?

No. IDEA Credit is designed to break even. The Congres.
sional Budget Office bas analyzed the proposal on which
IDEA Credit is based (H.R.2336, PetriGehdenson and
S.1645, Durenberger.Fowler) and determioed that parici.
pants who remain low income after college would, on the
average, receive a slight subsidy in the program, while those
who are middle and higher income provide a small profit to
the government because the interest rate is slightly higher
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than the federal cost of money and otter costs of the
program. In reaching the 1990 budget agreement, Congreu
and the President recognized the distinction in calculating
the federal deficit between programs like that mentually
break even and propams that directly spend federal funds.

& Moro ito problem In pang owl El too fhb
program. Ills wive ..anM No Anew (or Naomi
Moot Student Loon) prognont

No. The Perkins propam is under.funded only because it is
not an entitlement. IDEA credit is an entidement to the
student, like Stafford loans are currently to those who have
incomes that qualify. There is nothing inherently more
stable about guarantees as a funding source as opposed to
direct loans. In fact, there have been shortages in the GSL
program in the past (sometimes because of banks'
unwillingness to lend) and the current HEAL program for
medical students is an example of a guaranteed program
with a limit on its overall capital.

4 NV to Oaoa ssaniofEdgaraNcn be obis to nit NW
promo?

Right now, the Department tries to keep track of the
thousands of institutions, millions of students, 10,000 lenders,
35 secondary markets, and 45 guarantee agencies Because
of all the players, it takes years for the Department to know
how many students at which institutions took out how much
money in longs. One indication of this difficulty is that, in
the most recent list of defaulted loans, the Department
often listed the guarantee agency as 'unknown', IDEA, on
the other hand, would be run much like the PeU Grant
program. Schools would determine eligibility, draw down
funds, and then reconcile die accounts. The Department of
Education will only have to worry about schools and
students.

A Won't NW open up the pogrom b mon abuses?

There is no question that, whatever changes are made in the
student aid programs, the potential for fraud and abuse will
need to be addressed. IDFA would improve accountability
in two ways. First, as in the Pell grant program, no school
could draw down more than its previous year's allocation
without providing additional justification. The current
finger.pointing by banks, schools guaranty agencies and the .

Department of education will end. In the loan programs
now, the Departmect can't tell if a school has an unusual
increase in loan volume until it's too late. And, second,
defaults will be virtually eliminated, since payments are tied
to each year's income and collected through payroll
deductions by the IRS.
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WW IDEA make more work for ft ti whet*?

No, in fact, the goal is to require less work of schools -- and
certainly a lot less than othei, more traditioaal direct loan
proposals. Right now, schools have to process individual
applicatious, receive separate checks al various times (often
to different offices on campus) from different banks for each
student. They them have to get the student's signature on
the cheek and proem a check foe the retnaisider after
tuition and fees are paid. Under IDEA, the school would
still process applications and get a signature on a promissory
note from each student. But, the funds would come in one
luom-sum payment to the school for all of the IDEA
applicants. And, the school would disburse to the student
any funds remaining after tuition and fees are paid.

7. MINN* subject schools o mom NOW

Schools continue to be responsible for errors they make, just
as in current loan program. But, due to the reduced
number of players, schools have greater control over the
process, and the possibility of mistakes is reduced. Further
more, most of the errors that banks make in the current
programs are in complying with the 'Due diligenos' requires
in the collection of payments on loans. With IDEA Credit,
collection in the responsibility of the federal government,
through the IRS.

a IVW student loam abil be mailable over the not
two yaws until IDE4 Credit becomes awtatible?

Yes. The current programs gay in Place until the new
programs begin. A recent study by the Department of
Education found that guaranteed student loans are among
die most profitable and least risky for lenders. Even after
IDEA starts, lenders will continued to get the guaranteed
interest rate on outstanding loans, although Stafford and
other GSL borrowers will have the option of converting
their loam to IDEA Credit. And, any borrowers defaulting
on Stafford and other GSL loans will automatically be
converted to the IDEA program.

S. Who are dm seams and keen under Simon.
Dininbergar?

Of c011fSe banks and others who currently handle some part
of federal loan programs that will be eliminated will loose
that part of their business now represented by existing loan
programs. But, most students and their families will be
winners. To what extent individual students are better offer
under Simon-Durenberger depends on a multitude of factors
Including current and future income, tuition rates they pay,
how many years they attend school, and whether they qualify
for an 'Excelleoce Scholarship.' The attached tables at-

tempt to estimate the effect of the IDEA program and the
Pell Grant expansion and 'Excellence Scholarship' programs
on 12 different students. Following those tables is a listing
of assumptions used in making these calculations.

la DWI Prolgen Augartand Education Seesaw
Dal dame propene oareeathwi CM yaws age.
Ar4 melt fra datoniewlion that ended ep bang
entretad wonalgamd pretty mob a alum?

President Reagan and Secretary Bennet did promme an in-
come contingent loan program but it was part of a $600 mil-
lion cut in canspus.based grants and loans and most people
in the education community opposed it on that basis. Both
tbe New York Times and Washington Post endorsed the in-
come contingent concept, while opposing the aid cut that
went along with it. The Simon.Durenberger proposal, on
the other hand, includes a significant increase in grant aid.

As far as the l(1 demonstration program that came out of
tbe original Reagan-Bennett proposal, by most accounts,
there have been a number of problems. But, none of the
problems with the demi:ill:mations apply to IDEA. For
example, the ICL demonstration program requires schools
to collect copies of income tax forms to determine die
students' payments, and the school does the collection.
With IDEA, the IRS is responsible for collection. Under
the demonstrations, some ICI. borrowers will also be
indebted for life. Negative amortization (resulting from
payments that are leu than interest charges) can lead to
someone never being able to repay a loan if he or she
remains relatively low income throughout life. IDEA
addresses this problem by forgiving any amount still owned
after 25 years and by capping interest rates at 10 percent.
The ICL demonstrations also have no minimum income
protectiou. That means that people who make so little that
they don't even have to file a tax form must fde anyway and
then make a payment. Under IDEA, those under the fding
threshold would owe nothing in that year.

It. Do high income baronets haw to subsidbe low
income borrow= by pokily maw then Ow owe?

No. The intent of IDEA is that no one pay back more than
what they borrowed plus interest.

12 it MAI no high income penalty then how can
obi Worm be weitrunding?

IDEA charges borrowers interest at rates 2% above what it
costs the government to borrow that money. This 'profit' to
the government is used to subsidize low Income borrowers
who have their loam forgiven after 25 years and to pay other
expenses of the progam. Those expenses are much lower
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under IDEA because of its simplicity. And, rWO big ex-
penses of current programs defaults and in.school interest
subsidiea are largely reduced or eliminated.

13. Shoulddt paw* &he more responelbelty tor
Onanclng thea ch*fred a educator; ins teed or torckg
debt on the mune

For most middle and upper income families, there will still
be a strong incentive to make a maximum family contribu-
lion, in order to hold down borrowing and interest payments
over time. And, the IDEA proposal also encourages par-
ents to pay their share by requiring that they be notified of
their ability to borrow in the PLUS program before a de-
pendent student can take IDEA Credit. On the other hand,
many parents are already seriously strapped and with the
rising cost of tuition simply can't make the kind of con-
tribution to paying for college that we've expected in the
past And, finally, a growing percentage of students are
older can't count on parents for support. Those 'non-
traditional' students also have much higher expenses than
18.22 year olds for child care, housing, and other
expenses.

N. Soot* bent*, torn the higher education and Job
raking that Modena. mein; Shouldn't society,pay,
belted ot etude" for higher education?

Both society and the students benefit, and under Simon.
Durenberger -- both continue to take some responsibility for
paying through a more equitable mix of loans and grants.
Clearly, post-college income is a good indicator of the value
of an education, however, and that's one good reason for
having loan payments based on post-college earning levels.
For example, at age 25-34, those with associate degrees
make on the average 40 percent more than those with just a

high school education. With a bachelor's degree, they make
63 percent more. And, with a profeuional clegm, they
make three times as much as a high school graduate.

ILL IrrYi taw grunts and Nreirlee boarnalng Ned to
higher tuition?

Clearly, the rising cost of higher education is of great
concern and no new program like IDEA that makes
borrowing 'easier' should be viewed as authorization to
colleges and universities to pay no attention to costs.
To reduce any incentive OD the part of institutions to raise
tuition, the loan amounts allowed under IDEA are limited
to the cost of attendance in 1991-92; and there is no
automatic indexing for inflation. After the program starts,
tne Secretal of Education will report to Congress on the
effects of the program on tuition, and the effects of inflation
oo the loan amounts and repayment provisions. The Sem-

E; 1

tary, in consultation with Congress, will make adjustments in
loan limits after the fint two years of the program.

ta marten km et *bide* w lowlnooma etueems
horn pertirdpatnet

Low income students will be provided with more aid in the
Pell Grant program under Simon-Durenberger, including the
extra S11130 bonus grant available to outstanding students
under the Excellence Scholarship program the legislation
creates. Also, low-income students fear debt because they
do not know if they will make enough money to make
payments. IDEA Credit addresses that problem by making
payments sensitive to income.

87. Why create gm Erceginoe Schoivralloe and cork
kitarovraion program ea entlfaments?

Under the Budget Enforcement Act of 1990, entitlement
ods (like those in the Stafford program) can only be

shifted into other entitlements. The Excellence Schola ships
and the early intervention program are 'capped' at $500
million and $100 million, respectively, so that they will not
result in the same kind of unexpected spending that other
types of entitlements -- such as Medicare can entail.

For more Information, contact U.S. Senator
Dave Durenberger, 1020 Plymouth Building,
Minneapolis, Mn. 55402; 612-370-3382.



57

Mr. SAWYER. Thank you very much, Senator. I h ad one question
based on my failure to understand what you were baying when you
talked about the option for schools.

Mr. SIMON. Yes.
Mr. SAWYER. Were you suggesting that this is an either/or situa-

tion or that the current programs are compatible with what you
propme?

Mr. SIMON. This is the area where we may be able to work out
compromises. What I frankly have suggested is that schools have
one or the other. I think very few schools are going to want to
choose the present system if they're given the option. And for those
who say it's going to cost the students more, one of the ways the
calculate it's going to cost the students more is they assume that
we require them to pay for the full 25 years. First of all, you stop
when it's paid. And if anyone wants to pay up in advance they can
pay up in advance.

But because of the additional assistanceyou have some schools
from Sam Gejdenson's good State of Connecticut right over here, if
you were to ask the president of Wesleyan what percentage of the
tuition that he now uses to help other students, it would be a con-
siderable amount. If we can lift the amount that we give to stu-
dents we are going to help schools and we're going to have tens of
thousands of additional people going to school.

George Miller was here on this committee when we passed the
Middle Income Students Assistance Act. And while there were
abuses, we opened college up to a lot of people in this country. It
paid off tremendously. If we, once again, expand opportunity in
this country it's_going to joay off, just as the old GI Bill did.

Mr. SAWYER. Mr. Petri?
Mr. PETRI. It's Paul Simon. I feel you should be up here because

this is where you used to be.
Mr. SIMON. I would be happy to give you my proxy.
[Laughter.]
Mr. PETRI. I really don't want to ask a question. I just wanted to

thank you very much for taking this issue on and displaying tre-
mendous leadership and commitment to it. It's always tough
making changes in any sort of program that's been established for
a long time, but it's terribly important. I think we do have a
window of opportunity here. But it's not going to just happen in
and of itself. 'You've Wen just tremendous in the Senate and I'm
looking forward to working with you as we move forward.

I think our approaches are very similar and they're all headed in
exactly the same direction. And between now and conference, hope-
fully there will be plenty of opportunities to sit down and work
through these various details, such as school options or high
income premiums or poverty level where you don't pay, and vari-
ous things like that which we really need to work on at a tactical
level.

You've been mobilizing the higher education community and
have displayed real leadership in this area. I thank you very much.

Mr. SIMON. Thank_ )rou.
Mr. SAWYER. Mr. Miller?
Mr. MILLER. Mr. Chairman and Paul, thank you very much for

your testimony for the bill. I think it's fair to say that in the last

f
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few days, certainly on this side there has been a renewed interest
in this concept, whether it's Bradley/Miller or Simon/Petri/Gejd-
enson. And I think it's incumbent upon those of us that have in-
vested some time in this to start to look toward that compromise
vehicle.

One of the geniuses of the American competitive system has
been to create instruments of finance so that businesses can
expand and opportunities can expand. And we have now a system,
the higher education system, that is tied to a very old, outdated
system of finance and we have got to bring that current. And that's
really what this legislation is about when we look at both the fi-
nancing of higher education, the participation in higher education,
and the troubles and the pressure that the institotions are under.

So I think we have an opportunity here. In my discussions both
with the leadership and with other committees, it's fair to say that
this is being looked at very seriously. And so if we have the oppor-
tunity to narrow the differences and present this package, not only
do I think we will have bipartisan support but I think we will have
the support of all of the relevant committees to pursuing this
effort.

So I am excited to participate and appreciate all the interest.
And I know some of the battles that you have been through on the
other side of the Capitol and I think it's serving us well for this
concept. Thank you.

Mr. SIMON. I thank you. As usual, I agree with George Miller.
Mr. SAWYER. Mr. Payne?
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much. I certainly won't prolong your

stay, Senator, since the fine Senator from New Jersey took so
much of your time, so I will be very brief.

Mr. SIMON. These New Jersey people do that all the time.
[Laughter.]
Mr. PAYNE. It's always a pleasure to see you and to hear your

very progressive thoughts. And I certainly support the concept. As
I indicated before, I think education is going to be the way out. In
my opinion, once we correct the educational deficiencies we will see
that people will be self-reliant. People want to work. People don't
want to be dependant but we have to prepare them so that they
can be self-reliant.

So I am just 100 percent supportive of just one additional great
idea that you have. Thank you.

Mr. SIMON. I thank you.
Mr. SAWYER. Mr. Andrews?
Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Senator, I also want to

thank you for this very clear and inspiring testimony. We're very
fortunate to have people like Chairman Miller and Congressman
Petri who have been talking about these things on our committee,
and, doing more than talking about them, educating us about
them. You've supplemented our education this morning. I appreci-
ate that.

I have found that this discussion can be divided not by Republi-
can versus Democrat or any ideological barrier but by those who
are thinking about principles and those who are thinking about
programs. We can talk about tinkering with the existing programs,
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changing a little bit of this and changing a little bit of that, and
that's interesting, but not very productive.

I think what you are doing this morning is talking about the
principle that opportunity to higher education is something we be-
lieve in, and it should be universally extended and that the univer-
sal extension of that principle makes the whole country better and
the whole economy better. It's not simply an individual good, it's a
public good.

A lot of people acting in good faith, who are experienced and
know a lot about this subject, certainly more than I do, are inter-
ested in some of the administrative question marks or administra-
tive unknowns in shifting to a system that is characterized, as you
put it, by universal eligibility, direct lending, and income contin-
gency.

The voices that I hear, that are concerned, are aid administra-
tors, university administrative officials, college administrative offi-
cials, people who have to deal with these problems on an adminis-
trative level every day. I think it's incumbent upon those of us who
share a desire to make fundamental change in this system to open
the door to the people who have those concerns and address some
of them.

How would you, in a minute or a few minutes, talk about ways
that we might address the administrative concerns of schools and
colleges and universities under the new system? What kinds of
things can we do to answer those questions?

Mr. SIMON. First of all, I would point out that the college busi-
ness officers associationI forget the exact name of itthey have
gone on record in behalf of direct lending saying this is going to
save them a lot of work.

Generally speaking, the colleges that are coming up and saying
it's going to mean a lot more paperwork have been told that by
banks and the lending institutions. And my answer to them is if
this is going to mean so much more paperwork, then you continue
with the present system. We're going to give you the option. So
we're not going to do any harm to you.

But we're talking about, depending on where we come up, I
assume we're talking about at the earliest the 1993-1994 school
year. So we have plenty of time to work out the details with the
IRS.

I also think that we ought to, as part of the final packageand
this is not part of my bill right nowI think we ought to create an
ombudsman somewhere where schools and students and former
students, if someone says, "They're taking too much money out of
my check on withholding," or a college is having trouble getting a
payment, that we can get that resolved.

But in terms of the practical way it works for a college or univer-
sity, it works the way the Pell Grant does right now. The school
fills out the form. They estimate what the Pell Grant amount is
going to be. The school gets a check and then they have to adjust
depending on the number of students. And for our program stu-
dents sign a note; those notes are sent in; the school estimates
what it's going to be; they get a check; then there is an adjustment.
And if they're $10,000 too high or $10,000 too low, you take care of
that.

f;.1
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Mr. ANDREWS. Let me ask you a narrower question. One of theconcerns I've heard if we go to a phased-in program or a choiceprogram like you've described, where an institution can choose todo direct lending or the present program, is the differences in loanlimits under the Stafford Program versus the new program; Staf-ford limits are lower under present law than the new programlimits would be, and institutions feel that it would automaticallyput them at a competitive disadvantage.
What would you think of the idea, under your choice idea, ofequalizing loan limitations by cutting the special allowance to thebanks under the existing program in order to fund the higher loan
Mr. SIMON. I guess my immediate reaction is negative.Mr. ANDREWS. The banks have the same reaction.
Mr. SIMON. And I do it because frankly, given the choice, I thinkvery few schools are going to continue with the present program.They're going to go to a program that provides greater opportunityfor everyone.
And we limit it to treasury rate plus 2 percent, and that, in fact,according to CBO estimates, will be less than the interest that theStafford Loan now provides. So the students ultimately save in theinterest side, too.
Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you, very much.
Mr. SAWYER. Mrs. Unsoeld? Mr. Reed?
Mr. REED. Thank you. Senator, again congratulations on your ef-forts to help us move forward on this issue.
Mr. SIMON. It's a good Rhode Island tradition that you lead oneducation. I'm happy to see you here.
Mr. REED. Thank you, Senator. One question in terms of yourmodel of choice, there's a real question of who chooses and you se-lected the schools to be sort of the focal point of choice.Mr. SIMON. That's what we're talking about right now because itis somewhat simpler, but this is an area where I think compro-mises can be worked out.
Mr. REED. I guess one problem or potential issue would be somestudents who might have preferences about or exigencies thatwould force them to go to one institution over another becausethey could access bigger loans, as Rob suggested, one school versusanother. And I don't think that should be something that shouldinfluence ultimately the choice of the student.I know it's a complicated issue, but are you thinking about differ-ent modes of choice?
Mr. SIMON. By having it self-financing, in fact, you can provideappreciably more assistance though this method. But maybe youhave another problem: what about those who are in the presentprogram and in the middle of 4 years chipped over to another pro-gram; they're going to then be owing money. So there are somepractical things that we have to work out but I don't think theyshould be barriers to seeing that we create more opportunity forstudents.
Mr. REED. Thank you, Senator.
Mr. SIMON. Thank you.
Mr. MILLER. residing] Paul, thank you very much for you time.Mr. SIMON. Thank you, great to be with you again. Thank you.
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Mr. MILLER. Mr. Gejdenson?

STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE SAM GE.IDENSON, A REPRE-
SENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It's nice to be here.
I'm not going to take much of your time. I would like to ask that
my entire statement be included in the record.

Several college presidents from Connecticut are here today
President Sandell from Mitchell Community College, President
Chase from Wesleyan.

As I was thinking about the bills, I thought about the rising cost
of college. The University of Connecticut today costs about $10,000
a year, as does Mitchell. Wesleyan, I believe, is over $20,000, Yale
is $24,000, and Somers is $42,000. Now, a lot of you probably
haven't heard about Somers. It's not a normal university; it's one
with bars. It's our State penitentiary.

The amount of money this society is willing to spend on prisons
is phenominal. Nobody has ever asked us to worry about the fi-
nancing system when there's a prison bill on the floor. Yet, when
we can set up a process that avoids people ending up in prison, we
all of a sudden get into a panic over the financing.

My choice, if we didn't have the realities of today, would be uni-
versal college education. In 1635, the Boston Latin School looked
around and said it was better for our entire community if every kid
in Boston gets a college education.

What we should have done is looked around a long time ago and
recognized the world has changed. In almost, every academic area
we are 70 years behind where we should be. There is so much more
information that the average person in society needs to know in
order to survive. Somebody was once doing a speech and they
talked about how often information doubled. It used to take 100,000
years and then 5,000 years and now we're down to 10 years.

And so to sit back and to say that the way for this society to be
competitive is to have our youth only stay in school until they are
16 years old is complete lunacy. Further, it is just as insane to
think that you can inspire poor children from inner cities or by
telling them if you work real hard you can either borrow $80,000,
$90,000 and go to Wesleyan or Yale or you can hang around on a
street corner with a real good diploma.

When we look at the examples in society where a couple of
healthy individuals who were generous enough to offer kids a free
college education we find that the offer changed their lives in two
instances. These cases, funded by Louisiana oilman Patrick Taylor
and Eugene Lang in New York made all the newspapers and maga-
zines.

It is important to note that these miracles occurred where the
crime rates have gotten worse, the drugs are worse, there are more
rats, the housing units are deteriorated, and there are more single
parents. Yet, because of two wealthy individuals, school systems
where the dropout rate is usually 50, 60, 70 percent, 80 and 90 per-
cent of the kids are in school because there is a hope of going to
college.
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Our business here, it seems to me, is simple. You all know the
numbers on the incredibly high default rate as well as the political
problem in funding education when every several years a candidate
for President decides he wants to spend more time talking about
the 11 percent of the kids that default rather than what society
gets back from investing in education. Again, the ideal situation to
me is if a student has the ability and you can get accepted at a
college, then you should be able to attend. Unfortunately, that's
not the reality today.

So, what's our choice? As a cosponsor with Mr. Petri and his bill,
and with Mr. Miller and his bill, I feel there are very few differ-
ences in the bills that need to work out. The loan limits in the
Petri bill are a little higher. I believe we should stick with those
higher loan limits because, first of all, they are going to try to work
us down through this process. Secondly, I want that kid who grows
up in the housing project in Middletown to be able to sit down and
not worry about somebody being generous.

If & student works hard and gets As in their high school, I want
them to say, "Yes, I can go to Wesleyan." I don't want them to
hay, to worry about finding a rich person to take care of them If
they can get into Wesleyan, they should be able to get a $70,000
loan and pay for their degree.

Again, with Mrs. Unsoeld, if we had a first choice, I think we
could get rid of some off the other programs, but we don't need to
do that. I think this one makes so much sense it will end up tower-
ing above all the othe-s. You and I, George, have worked on this
for some time, as I have with Mr. Petri. We've got strong support
in the Senate. We need to press both sides of the aisle to make sure
this is included. It's also a critical time to do it. As all of this un-
employment is happening, the displaced workers from defense in-
dustries will need these loans to get the retraining they deserve.

You know, during good times when a person gets laid off, his or
her instincts would be to go immediately back to work. Well,
during the difficult times we're experiencing now, there are not say
aren't a lot of good jobs out there. So this is the maybe now perfect
time for people to take a step step forward and finish college. We
can help them do this.

Thank you for giving me some time. I know there are other wit-
nesses. I don't want to take up too much more time. So I'd be
happy to answer questions, if there are any.

(The prepared statement of Hon. Sam Gejdenson followsj

67



63

TESTIMONY

BY

TEE HONORABLE SAM GEJDENSON

BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION

HEARING ON INCOME-CONTINGENT STUDENT LOAN PROPOSALS

H.R. 2336 AND H.R. 3050

FEBRUARY 6, 1992

Chairman Ford and Members of the Subcommittee, thank you

for allowing me to testify today in support of the two income-

contingent student loan proposals introduced by my colleagues,

Congressman George Miller of California and Congressman Thomas

Petri of Wisconsin.

would like to take this opportunity to urge the

Subcommittee to consider implementing an income-contingent plan

when revamping the student financial aid system this Congress.

As the cost of college continues to escalate, more and more

students are finding that they lack the resources they need to

pay for a college education. This inability to find the

financial means necessary to attend college has severe

repercussions on today's youth. Without the hope of attending

college, low- and middle-income students have no incentive to do

well in elementary or secondary schools. High drop-out rates and

poor attendance are the result.

An experiment going on ir one of the poorest school

districts in the country shows that when middle school students

are given the financial means to attend college, they become
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better students. Located in New Orleans, thie is a school

district where students usually have little hope of graduating

from high school, let alone aspirations of going to college. In

1988, however, a wealthy Louisiana oilman named Patrick Taylor

decided to give a few of the children in this school district a

chance. He promised 183 seventh and eighth graders in New

Orleans that he would pay for the college education of any

scudent who wished to go. The results have been dramatic--almost

all of these students are still in school today and making good

marks. Eugene Lang, a businessman from New York, also tried this

type of experiment with a similar success rate.

Unfortunately, we cannot always rely on one or two wealthy

philanthropists to give America's poor and middle class a

fighting chance. It is essential, therefore, that Congress act

to implement an income-contingent plan which gives all students

the opportunity they deserve.

Although the Miller and Petri plans have different

financing mechanisms and loan repayment schedules, they do share

some common advantages which I believe would be beneficial to our

nation's students.

First of all, both plans ensure that anybody who wants to

go to college will be able to get loans they need to finance

their education. The two bills increase access to college since

a student would not be required to meet a financial means test to

be eligible for the loans.

Secondly, loan defaults, which last year alone cost the

federal government well over $2 billion, will be greatly reduced.
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Since loan payments will be collected by the IRS as income taxes

there will be less opportunity to default.

Another benefit would be the savings which will result from

removing banks from the student loan system. Currently, student

loans are financed by using private capital from local banks, for

which the government is charged market interest rates. Through

these programs, students would receive loans directly from the

government. This direct lending would remove banks as the

middle-men in the student loan business. Therefore, the cost

would be equivalent to the interest paid on government bonds of

comparable maturity, which typically is much lower.

In closing, I would just like to point out that there are

some aspects of the Petri bill that I hope the Subcommittee will

include in any income-contingent loan package. First of all, the

higher loan limit of $70,000 in H.R. 2336 will give more

flexibility to students when choosing schools ana offer them a

fairer repayment schedule. Even though the Miller bill has a

lower loan limit becauee it acts as a supplement to the Stafford

loan program, I believe its repayment schedule will unduly burden

borrowers with low incomes after graduation. Under H.R. 3050.

for exanple, when a person's income is zero, they will still have

to make payments on their loans as if they were making 661 of the

average college graduate income. In addition to that loan

payment, the borrower would also have to make payments on any

Stafford loans he or she may have taken out. This type of loan

burden would be avoided under H.R. 2336 since a person with an

income below the IRS filing threshold would not have to make any

7
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loan payments until his or her income was higher.

I encourage the Members of the Subcommittee to carefully

consider the best aspects of these two plans as they make changes

in the current financial aid system. These types of plans give

all students the same chance as those kids in New Orleans and I

hope the Subcommittee will view them positively.
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Mr. MILLER. Thank you very much for your testimony. Mr. Petri?
Mr. PETRI. Sam, I just want to thank you very much for your

grabbing hold of this and working so hard on it. I think it's very
important that it be, as it has been so far, a bipartisan effort on
both sides of the Congress. So, we're just hoping to get a few more
on board down at OMB and the Education Department.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Well, I don't think we can hold our breath for
OMB.

Mr. PETRI. No, but I think they yield to reality, too. If we keep
working on this and get it in good shape, which I think we're
doing, this is a great improvement.

Mr. GEJDENSON. You know, the IRS, with its reluctanceboy, the
IRS doesn't have any reluctance to get involved in drug deals, you
know, assets, figuring out where the guy got his money, whether
you ought to confiscate his house. It seems the IRS ought to be
ready to step forward here.

Mr. MILLER. Mr. Andrews?
Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Congressman Gejdenson, thank 3rou, not only for your substance

of your comments but for your enthusiasm. I think those of us who
have been working on this issue

Mr. GEJDENSON. It's hard to keep Miller awake, so I'm doing ev-
erything I can.

Mr. ANDREWS. Well, you kept us all awake, and we appreciate
that. Those of us who have been working on this throughout the
reauthorization, you can get a little bogged down on the details.
But what's going on here is really important. It's about millions of
people across the country and whether they're going to get an edu-
cation or not. Unless we'i.e willing to do something that is different
and radical and bold, they're not. That is something worth getting
enthused about. I hope we can all be as enthusiastic as you are.
Thank you for your commitment this morning.

Mr. MILLER. Mr. Reed?
Mr. REED. I just want to commend my colleague from Connecti-

cut and ask him to continue to work on this project and also the
underwater classroom project we're engaged in. Thank you.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you.
Mr. MILLER. Thank you very much, Sam. Thanks for all your

help.
Next, we'll hear from Mr. Michael Bigelow, who is the Deputy

Assistant Commissioner from the Internal Revenue Service. Mr. Bi-
gelow, welcome to the committee. Your prepared statement, if you
have one, will be placed in the record in its entirety. You proceed
in the manner in which you're most comfortable. To the extent
that you want to react to other things that have been said, since
there's been some discussion of the IRS, certainly feel free to do so
also. Thank you.

STATEMENT OF MICHAEL S. BIGELOW, DEPUTY ASSISTANT COM-
MISSIONER, RETURNS PROCESSING, INTERNAL REVENUE
SERVICE; ACCOMPANIED BY JIM HELM, DEPUTY ASSISTANT
COMMISSIONER, COLLECTION, INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE

Mr. BIGELOW. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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It's interesting to come forward under so much interest in IRS'sposition on this. I do appreciate the opportunity to testify on theproposals that would have the IRS collect repayments on studentloans. With me today is Jim Helm, the Deputy Assistant Commis-sioner for Collection. I appreciate you putting the entire statementinto the record.
Right now we are working with the Department of Education toexamine the issues of mutual concern raised by this bill. My testi-mony today will discuss the issues and concerns we see at thisearly stage of inquiry. They are not meant to convey a judgment onour part that these problems are insurmountable, nor that we areopposed to or do not want to do this, as I heard some testify.hile I will not comment on the policy, I must point out that theproposal to have the IRS collect student loans would be a funda-mental change in the mission of the Internal Revenue Service andour role in the lives of taxpayers.Before I comment on the legislation, I would like to give you alittle background on the size and scope of IRS operations. The In-ternal Revenue Service affects the lives of almost all Americans.During 1991 alone, the IRS processed more than 200 million taxreturns and more than a billion information returns. We sent outrefunds to more than 80 million taxpayers, and collected more than$1 trillion.

The IRS has a longstanding commitment to making the taxsystem simpler and more responsive to the needs of taxpayers. Be-cause even minor changes can have a substantial impact on theoverall tax administration system, it is important to carefully con-sider any changes that would affect our ability to collect the morethan $1 trillion owed to government each year. In analyzing anynew proposal, we must consider its impact on both taxpayer burdenand complexity.
The IRS already collects non-tax debts owed the Federal Govern-ment. Congress first authorized the collection of delinquent childand spousal support payments through offset of taxpayer refundsin 1981. Refund offset was expanded in 1984 to other Federal non-tax iebt, such as unpaid student and small business loans. Because

of concern that collection of non-tax debt could affect compliancewith the tax laws, Congress directed the Treasury to study theimpact of these offsets on future compliance.The long-term effect is the subject of a 5-year study that we arenow conducting. We expect to publish interim results later thisyear and final results in 1994. The study will also estimate the costof the program, including any increase in the cost of collecting thetax debts. It will also estimate revenue lost as a result of subse-quent taxpayer noncompliance.The refund offset program has been successful in securing pastdue Federal debts. In 1991 alone, IRS offset over 1.5 million re-funds and secured over $900 million for Federal agencies. Of thatamount, over $360 million was for defaulted student loans, whichwas remitted to the Department of Education.Taking into account all of these factors, Congress and the admin-istration must ultimately make the policy decision whether IRSshould become the collection agent for all k'ederal debts. Let me ex-plain. Under the IDEA proposal, as we understand it, Congress
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would move from requiring IRS to act as a debt collector of last
resort to establishing IRS as the primary Federal debt collector for
student loans.

While IDEA speaks only to collecting student loans, it seems
likely that this concept, once begun, would eventually be extended
to other non-tax Federal debts.

Above and beyond the policy decision on whether IRS should
become the government collector for all Federal debts, we have
some very practical concerns about the feasibility of such a propos-
al. These reservations stem from an analysis of the impact of the
IDEA proposal on: first, the ability of taxpayers and employers to
cope with the changes; our current tax processing system limita-
tions; our revenue accounting system; and, our tax collection activi-
ties. Moreover, we currently have neither the computer capacity
nor the resources to undertake such an effort at this time.

The IDEA proposal would have a significant impact on the Serv-
ice's current processing system. Implementing the provisions would
require substantial forms and processing changes, increased capac-
ity, new accounting routines, and greatly increased collection en-
forcement resources.

Former Commissioner Goldberg and other IRS executives testi-
fied last year before both Houses of Congress about the need to
modernize our tax system. We are at a crossroads at the IRS. Our
outmoded systems make it difficult for us to properly store, timely
deliver, or update information already in our system. If the IRS is
to be charged with collecting non-tax debts, we would need to begin
planning for this as part of tax systems modernization.

To implement this legislation, the Form 1040 would have to be
revised to calculate loan repayment amounts due and to record
loan payments transmitted. Adding a new line to the Form 1040 is
much easier said than done. The IRS would have to adapt several
systems to process IDEA accounts. IDEA accounts would have sig-
nificant difference from current tax accounts. As an example, tax
accounts are generally kept in active files for only a few years, al-
though unpaid tax accounts are kept for 10 years. A delinquent
IDEA account could be active for 25 years or longer.

As we contemplate processing changes for 1993 and beyond, we
are confronting very real limits to our ability to capture informa-
tion from the 1040. Modifying the computer record that is built
from the Form 1040 to transmit information to our Individual
Master File to accommodate loan payment information would re-
quire format changes which would create unacceptable overhead,
severely impacting processing times, making it harder to issue re-
funds on time

There would also be a tremendous impact on Taxpayer Service
sites and service centers responding to inquiries on subsequent no-
tices that we would send out each year during our busiest season.
In addition to the processing issues, which we feel are significant,
additiona/ workload would be incurred in our collection function.
The collection oi delinquent student loan payments would add to
the very sizable existing accounts receivable inventory. I've out-
lined the collection process further on pages 10 through 13 of my
prepared statement.
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The bill envisions that the student loan payments would be paidalong with an individual's current year's tax. However, it does notseem to anticipate altering withholding tables and estimated taxworksheets to ensure that taxpayers pay in the amount that wouldbe due for student loans in advance.
We must note that the bills do not have specific effective datesnor do they contemplate a transition period. I about fell off mychair when I heard 1993. From our preliminary analysis, start-upcosts would be significant. If the IRS were also to take on the re-sponsibility for developing a loan processing program, which weare not experienced in administering, lead time, significant leadtime, and resource needs would increase.
In conclusion, I agree with the Honorable Senators Bradley andSimon. I do not want to convey the impression that IRS would notbe able to collect student loan repayment if that is the will of theCongress and the President. However, I must emphasize that thiswould be a major change in the way we do business and wouldimpact many different aspects of our current tax administrationsystem.
We know that with proper planning, we can implement majortax legislation. We have done so in the past, and we expect tomake major changes in the very near future. As I noted at the be-ginning of my statement, we will continue to work with the De-partment of Education to pursue these issues in greater detail andin a variety of scenarios.
We appreciate your taking this opportunity to determine whatthe impacts on the IRS would be as you consider this legislation.Mr. Helm and I will be pleased to answer any questions you ormembers may have.
[The prepared statement of Michael S. Bigelow follows:]
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STATEMENT OF
MICHAEL E. BIGELOW

DEPUTY RESISTANT COMMISSIONER (RETURNS PROCEBBING)
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE

BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION
EOUBX COMMITTEE ON GDUCATION AND LABOR

FEBRUARY G, 1,92

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

I appreciate the opportunity to testify on the proposals

that would have the IRS collect repayments on student loans.

With me today is Jim Helm, the Deputy Assistant Commissioner for

Collection.

IL 92M1Y.1111

We have done a preliminary analysis of our responsibilitier:

under Congressman Petrils bill, the "Income-Dependent Education

Assistance Act of 1991" (HR 2336). My testimony today is based

on that analysis and our experience with collection of non-tax

debts. We are working with the Department of Education to

examine the issues of mutual concern raised by the bill. My

testimony today will discuss the issues and concerns we see at

this stage of our inquiry. They are not meant to convey a

judgement on our part that these problems are insurmountable.

I also will not commention the policy. However, I must

point out that this proposal to hav, the IRS collect student
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loans would be a fundamental change in the mission of the IRS and

our role in the lives of taxpayers.

11.11ILMIMIALMILUZZAILMI
Before I comment on the legislation, I would like to give

you a little background on the size and scope of IRS operations.

The Internal Revenue Service affects the lives of almost all

Americans. Our taxpayer base includes all indkriduals, terrines,

businesses, trusts, estates, tax exempt organirAtions, and

government agencies throughout the United States, and others

throughout the world who do business in the United States. OUT

budget for FY 1992 is almost $6.7 billion and we have over

115,000 employees in our service centers, call sites, district

offices and overseas posts of duty.

During 1991, the IRS processed more than 200 million tax

returns and more than 1 billion information returns, sent out

refunds to more than 80 million taxpayers, and collected more

than 1 trillion dollars. We sent out more than 8 million notices

to taxpayers who made math errors, or forgot to sign or attach

schedules to their returns; sent out more than 2 million notices

requesting name and Social Security Number afid received more than

40 million letters in our service centers. We handled more than

36 million calls in our Taxpayer Service call sites and received

more than 3.6 million calls and placed more than 3.2 million

calls in our Collection Automated Call Sites.
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We enforced compliance with the tax laws by conducting more

than 1 million examinations and sent out more than 4 million

notices to taxpayers who did not include all of their income on

their returns. We also sent out more than 18 million balance-due

collection notices and initiated more than 4 million collection

actions (ranging from filing notices of tax lien to bank levies

and property seizures).

To support all of these activities, /RS employees requested

copies of more than 40 million tax returns from archives for our

use, and received more than 6 million requests from taxpayers for

copies of their returns. We made more than 54 million inquiries

to our master files and effected more than 700 million

transactions to master file accounts.

THE NM FOR TAX_BIMPLIFICATION

The IRS has a longstanding commitment to making the tax

system simpler and more responsive to the needs of taxpayers.

Our goal is to provide quality service to taxpayers at all times.

Because even minor changes can have a substantial impact on the

overall tax administration system, it is important to carefully

consider any changes that could affect our ability to collect the

more than one trillion dollars owed the government each year. In

analyzing any new proposal, we must consider its impact on

taxpayer burden and complexity.
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Congress has legislation pending before it that would

simplify the tax rules and reduce the reporting burden on

taxpayers. These carefully considered proposals are a very

important step in the right direction -- a step that will, if

enacted, bring about a positive change in taxpayers' perception

about the equity and fairness of the overall system.

IL COLLECTIQN OP MORaja_DIMUILM

The IRS already colleots non-tax debts owed the federal

government. Congress first authorized the collection of

delinquent child and spousal support payments through offset of

taxpayers' refunds in 1981. Refund offset was expanded in 1984

to other federal non-tax debts, such as unpaid student or small

business loans. Because of concern that collection of non-tax

debt could affect compliance with the tax laws, Congress directed

the Treasury to study the impact of these offsets on future

compliance. The long-term effect is the subject of a five year

study that we art_ now conducting. W. expect to publish interim

results later this year and final results in 1994. The study

will also estimate the costs of the program, including any

increase in the cost of collecting tax debts. It will also

estimate revenue lost as a result of subsequent taxpayer

noncompliance.
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The refund offset program has been successful in securing

payments on past due federal debts. In 1991, IRS offset over 1.5

million refunds and secured over $900 million for all federal

agencies. Of that amount, over $360 million is for defaulted

student loans and has been remitted to the Department of

Education.

Taking into account all of these factors, Congress and the

Administration must ultimately make the policy decision whether

IRS should become the collection agent for all federal debts.

Let me explain. Under the IDEA proposal, Congress would move

from requiring XRS to act as a debt collector of last resort to

establishing IRS as the primary federal debt collector for

student loans. Under the current rules, IRS is only required to

offset any tax refund due an individual who is delinquent in

paying a non-tax federal debt. Under the IDEA proposal, IRS

would collect the entire loan repayment. Under IDEA, this would

be a federal obligation, but not a tax. Under Mr. Miller's

proposal, this repayment would, in fact, be a tax. While IDEA

speaks only to collecting student loans, it seems likely that

this concept, once Negun, would eventually be extended to other

non-tax federal debts. To date, no cost-benefit analyses have

been done to determine whether there is an overall savings to the

government from transferring collection responsibilities to IRS.

These analyses, along with research on the potential impact of

such a proposal on the tax system, must be done before Congress
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and the Administration can make an informed decision an how to

best collect all monies due the federal government. IRS will

continue to work with.the Department of Education on costs

analyses of the various proposals.

Above and beyond the policy decision of whether IRS should

become the government collector for all federal debts, we have

some very practical concerns about the feasibility of such a

proposal. Based on our preliminary analysis of the IDEA and

similar proposals, such an idea could be implemented only with a

lead time of at least five years. These reservations stem from

an analysis of the impact of the IDEA proposal on 1) the ability

of taxpayers and employers to cope with the changes, 2) the

current tax processing system limitations, 3) our revenue

accounting system, and, 4) our tax collection activities.

Moreover, we currently have neither the computer capacity nor the

resources to undertake such an effort.

III. IMPACT ON IRS PROCESSING AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

The IDEA proposal would have a significant impact on the

Service's current processing systems. We have not done extensive

estimates of the computer capacity needed to implement this

program nor have we projected costs. However, we believe that

implementing the provisions would require substantial forms and
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processing changes, increased capacity, new accounting routines

and greatly increased Collction enforcement rsources.

Congressman Petri's office estimated that between 1 and 1.8

million borrowrs would take advantage of the IDEA program the

first year. Eventually, ovr 12 million accounts could be active

on the system. Every on of those accounts would need some type

of maintenance by the Treasury, ven if it is just to calculate

that no repayment is due that year. The processing changes would

impact the processing of the over 100 million individual income

tax returns since our routines must take into account all

possible forms and scheUules.

The discussion of this proposal must also take into account

the work now being done on Tax Systems Modernization (TSM).

Former Commissioner Goldberg and other IRS executives testified

last year before both Houses of Congress about the need to

modernize our tax system. We are at a crossroads at the IRS.

Outmoded systems make it difficult for us to properly store,

timely deliver or update information already in our system. If

the IRS is to be charged with the collection of nontax debts, we

would need to begin planning for this as part of Tax Systems

Modernization.

In analyzing the proposal, we have assumed that maintenance

of the loan account would be handled by an agency other than the
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IRS, a:,%ough under RR 2336 the Secretary of the Treasury could

assign that responsibility to the IRS. Assuming that IRS' role

is primarily to collect repayments, we would have two major

responsibilities: 1) we would transmit to the lending agency tax

return information that would enable them to calculate the amount

due from the borrower/taxpayer in the coming year; 2) we would

collect payment information from the tax return and transmit that

information to the lender to apply to the outstanding loan(s).

Computations related to the loan would be done outsicW of the tax

system by the lending agency. Once the computation is made,

however, IRS systems would need to keep track of the amounts paid

and to generate balance due accounts if the loan repayment is

less than the expected amount calculated.

To implement this legislation, the Form 1040 would have to

be ievised to calculate loan repayment amounts due and to record

loan payments transmitted. We are assuming that we would design

an IDEA repayment schedule that would be attached to the 1040.

Adding a new line and schedule to the 1040 is much easier said

than done. In addition to changing the form and instructions, we

would.need to re-write software, design new processing routines

in the service centers, train staff in the service centers and

Taxpayer Services sites, account for money collected with the

returns, and inform and advise taxpayere about completing the

return. The impact on these activities would be s'gnificant.

63



79

-9-

The IRS would have to adapt several systems to process IDEA

accounts. First, to accommodate those loan accounts that are not

paid in full, we would have to examine our entire account

structure which now includes 155 million individual tax accounts.

IDEA accounts would have significant differences from tax

accounts, so we could not maintain them an tax accounts in the

Individual Master File as it is currently designed. Among the

differences are the length of time the accounts would be

maintained and the different interest calculations that would

apply. Tax accounts are gene:ally kept in active files for only

a few years; although unpaid tax accounts are kept for 10 years;

a delinquent IDEA account could be active for twenty-five years

or longer. We have not estimated the exact impact of these

accounts because we do not know exactly what information we would

capture for each account.

Likewise, processing loan payments that are not delinquent

could cause some problems. As we contemplate processing changes

for 1993 and beyond, we are confronting very real limits to our

ability to capture information from the Form 1040. Modifying the

computer record that is built from the Form 1040 to transmit

information to the Individual Master File to accommodate loan

payment information would require format changes. These changes

would create unacceptable overhead and severely impact processing

times. We have a major effort under way to address this problem

based on current needs.
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The /DEA bill would require the IRS to send notices to

borrowers vith outstanding IDEA loans in January of every year.

The actual production of such a notice that would show that the

borrower is in a repayment status, the maximum account balance,

the current account balance and the method of computation used to

determine the amount due would not be difficult. However, there

would be a tremendous impact on Taxpayer Service sites and

service centers which would have to respond to inquiries on these

notices each year during our busiest season. In addition to up-

front costa for printing, sorting and mailing, we would need

resources to respond to these taxpayer inquiries. Our experience

is that whenever we send a notice, even one that just conveys

information to the taxpayer, we will receive inquiries to our

call sites and service centers, in this case asking about

incorrect loan balances, for explanations of repayment

computations.

V. IMPACT ON COLLECTION ACTIVITIN

In addition to the processing issues, which are significant,

the primary additlonal workload would be incurred in our

Collection function. At the beginning of the Collection process,

we would need to make clear to taxpayers whether we are

collecting delinquent taxes or student loan repayments. We

5,5
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anticipate having to use two types of notices or to show the

amounts separately on each notice. We may need to maintain two

separate systems in order to compute account balances or to

answer taxpayer questions on their accounts. If we needed to

make personal contact to collect the tax, we must be able to tell

taxpayers whether we are collecting a student loan or a tax

delinquency. All IRS programs could be affected by this new

workload. '

The collection of delinquent student loan payments would add

to the very sizeable existing accounts receivable inventory. A

portion of this inventory is made up of current accounts which we

will collect in due course. However, about 27% of the inventory

is composed of cases which we categorize as currently-not-

collectible. These cases include bankrupt taxpayers, taxpayers

who cannot pay because of hardship and taxpayers that we cannot

locate. While under IDEA provisions many of these taxpayers

would be exempt from making repayments, we believe that many of

the delinquent student loans which cannot be collected through

the offset program will fall into this category. It is likely

that the offset program operates at a much lower cost than would

the more comprehensive program envisioned by IDEA.

We have a major effort underway to improve our handling of

accounts receivable which has been the subject of numerous

hearings before Congress over the last two years. We appointed a
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high level executive to serve as Accounts Receivable Executive

Officer. This executive is responsible for coordinating the many

different aspects and IRS functions that must work together to

reduce the rate of growth in accounts receivable, particularly in

uncollectible accounts.

We are concerned that we could not devote sufficient

collection resources to delinquent student loan liabilities.

Because our current collection workload exceeds the resources

available to work it, balance due cases are ranked in priority

order for future work, primarily on the amount due. Cases ready

to be worked are held in t "queue" that assigns cases based on

their priority as staff to work them becomes available. Based on

a review of the payment amounts in the charts accompanying Mr.

Petri's bill, we conclude that many of the delinquent student

loan cases would not be assigned a high enough priority under our

current rating system and therefore would receive only routine

attention. Although those cases would receive delinquent notices

(4 to 5 notices) and could result in levy action, they most

likely would not be worked by Revenue Officers making personal

contact.

Nonfiler case workload would also be affected. This work is

also prioritized based on potential tax due and available

resources. We would have to determine whether to treat potential

S 7
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leAn payments as we would potential delinquent taxes when

determining which non-filer cases to pursue.

A major assumption of the proposals is that the IRS would be

an effective collector of delinquent loan payments. Because of

the unique nature of tax obligations, the Service is given wide

ranging authority to take distraint action to effect collection

of delinquent taxes. This authority, or even the threat of using

it, is a primary reason that the IRS collected over $24 billion

from delinquent accounts last year. Congress recognized the

importance of our ability to enforce collection administratively,

and has recently given similar authority, administrative wage

garnishment, to the Department of Education. Administrative wage

garnishment, similar to our lovy authority, should greatly

increase the collection of delinquent student loans.

L. IMPACT ON TAXPAYERS AND EMPLOYERS

The bill envisions that the student's loan payments would be

paid along with an individual's current year's tax. However, it

does not seem to anticipate altering the withholding tables and

estimated tax worksheets to ensure that taxpayers pay in the

amounts that would be due for student loans. In fact, borrowers

will not know their liabilities until January of the year the

payment is due (on April 15th).

S
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The IRS takes very seriously its role in educating taxpayers

about the best way to meet their tax obligations. In order to

avoid a large number of taxpayers eiscovering that they owe a

significant amount and must pay it _thin a short time, the Form

W-4 (Employee's Withholding Allowance Certificate) would have to

be revised to factor loan repayments into the withholding

calculation. Although this would further complicate the Form W-

4, which already contains a page of additional worksheets for

taxpayers with two jobs or for two wage-earrer households, we

believe it would be necessary to avoid balance due tax returns.

While borrowers could compute their anticipated repayment amounts

when they complete their education, they would need to adjust the

repayment if their income changed.

These revisions would need to be communicated to taxpayers,

employers, and practitioners at least a year before the

repayments were due to give taxpayers the maximum amount of time

over which to spread their payment. Instructions to employers

are particularly important since they field most questions from

employees about their withholding.

yxj. LEAD TIME AND RESOURCE NEEDS

We must note that the bill does not have specific effective

dates nor do they contemplate a transition period. We would need

significant coordination with the Department of Education to

arrange the transition and to develop protocols for ongoing

S
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information needs. Education, for example, is responsible for

determining the eligibility of an institution to participate in

the loan program. We would also have to coordinate syetems

modification efforts with the agency designated to make the

loans.

We have not estimated either the cost of modifying our

systems or the operational costs once implemented. Significant

coordination also would be necessary to develop common

assumptions that would enable all /RS functions to accurately

estimate the time and resources necessary to implement this bill.

From our preliminary analysis, start-up costs would be

significant, and we note that neither bill contains funding for

start-up but only for administration of the loans. If the IRS

were to also take on the responsibility for developing a loan

processing program, which we are not experienced in

administering, lead time and resource needs would increase

significantly.

VIIL CONCLUSIOV

Mr. Chairman, I do not want to convey the impression that

the IRS would not be able to collect student loan repayments if

that is the will of the Congress and the President. however, I

must emphasize that this would be a major change in the way we do

business and would impact many different aspects of our tax

administration system -- a system that we are committed to
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improving through simplification and through our modernization

efforts over the next decade.

We know that, with proper planning, we can implement major

tax legislation. We have done so in the past and we expect to

make major changes in the very near future. However, as Former

Commissioner and now Assistant Secretary of the Treasury for Tax

Policy Goldberg frequently noted, in order for us to implement

tax law changes, we must consider all aspects of the changes on

our system. As I noted at the beginning of my statement, we will

continue to work with the Department of Education to pursue these

issues in greater detail in a variety of scenarios.

We appreciate your takirl this opportunity to determine what

the impact on the IRS would be as you consider this legislation.

Mr. Helm and I will be pleased to answer any questions you

or the Members may have.

91
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Mr. MILLER. Thank you very much for your testimony. I don't
know that I have a lot of questions because I think the issues that
you quite correctly raised will not be necessarily addressed by this
committee. But I think you certainly raised a number of those
issues.

In the preparation of your testimony, has the IRS looked at this
system or is this sitting down in terms of preparing for this morn-
ing and thinking about the kinds of issues that would be raised?
Have you done any formal studies on what major debt collection
would mean or not mean to the IRS?

Mr. BIGELOW. Well we have been looking at this bill ever since
we became aware of it and have been working with the Depart-
ment of Education. There was some discussion about calculating
our cost, how much it was going to actually cost to implement this
type of a thing within our own administration of it. But beyond
that, I'm not sure how extensive because, you know, we do have
that one 5-year test already undergoing, looking at noncompliance,
which is a big concern we have.

Mr. MILLER. So, there is some additional sort of fleshing out of
the proposal that can be done if hearings are held in either Fi-
nance or Ways and Means with respect to what you believe the
cost or the manpower requirements and so forth are?

Mr. BIGELOW. Absolutely, and our staffs would be more than will-
ing to work with staffs of this committee or of those other commit-
tees on anything that we would need to flesh out.

Mr. MILLER. I've learned not to tread too deeply into the other
committees' jurisdiction, so I think I've had my last question. But I
do appreciate very much the willingness of IRS to come and to dis-
cuss this, because, obviously, the implementation of this would be
terribly, terribly important in terms of the expectations that we
will create and hopefully the reality that we will create about the
accessibility of this program.

I think that these questions go to transition times, it does go to
questions of whether some of this can be folded into the other
study that you have ongoing to try to develop this information. But
again, those are queb dons better raised by staff and members that
fully understand the complexities of the IRS system. I only try to
comply, nothing beyond that.

Mr. Petri?
Mr. Pgriu. Thank you. I'd like to compliment you and your staff

for the time that you have put in, in working with my staff and
with others on attempting to understand where we're coming from
and helping us to understand how the IRS operates with many of
your internal procedures and policies. I think that process is
moving forward.

We'll give students enormous assistance if this does go into
effect. But it's something that must be administratively sensible
and sensitive to the requirements and constraints that you face in
doing your business.

I do have a few questions, and you may not be able to answer all
of them, which is undetstandable. But there's a difference, I think,
and I just don't understand the reason for it, in your characteriza-
tion of Mr. Bradley and Mr. Miller's bill in your prepared state-
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ment on page 5 as a tax, and the IDEA collection as a non-tax gov-
ernment debt.

Is that because of something in the way our bill is drafted? Me-
chanically, it seems to be the same thing. They're both taking per-
centages of income, and we think it can fairly be characterized as a
tax in both cases. But I'd like to hear your explanation for why one
is characterized as a tax and the other is not.

Mr. BIGELOW. I think the way we envision it is that the one
speaks of it directly, where, in your bill it does not. That's the char-
acteristics of the two. I think if you want to declare it as a tax, you
need toyou know, I would recommend it be more clear.

Mr. PETRI. That might be helpful if you're worrying about this
policy of suddenly getting into the business of collecting every-
thing. Since this is income related, we could argue that it's on the
tax side of the divide rather than on the government obligation
side.

Mr. BIGELOW. That's true.
Mr. PETRI. Those obligations are not income-sensitive, normally.
Mr. BIGELOW. One thing we always watch for is the ability for

the taxpayers to understand the tax system, the education that we
try and put out there. Student loan collection would require a
major effort in order to convince, I think, the public this is really a
tax. So, it's those kind of perceptions we'd have to work on in order
to educateif we just put it into the tax. But it would still have
some major differences from the normal tax, as I pointed out, inter-est computation

Mr. PETRI. Carryover from year to year and so on. I just have
three other questions briefly. If you assume that an agency such as
the Financial Management Service actually maintains the IDEA
accounts, and that your job at IRS is simply to report payments to
the FMS and collect delinquent payments, isn't that similar to
what you already do in collecting self-employment social security
taxes and reporting them to the Social Security Administration?

Mr. BIGELOW. I'm saying it's not insurmountable. They just re-
quire different accounting routines. We would have to have sepa-
rate lead times in order to develop those accounting routines, de-
pending on which side of theif it's just a trust fund as opposed to
just go into the national treasury, those types of things.

It could be worked out, and that's why I want to make sure that
you don't think that we're totally against it. We don't have a real
position on it, but things could be worked out. It's in the account-
ing functions.

Mr. PETRI. This is a slightly mischievous question so you may not
want to answer it. but on the question of lead times, and your esti-
mate that it might take 5 years to phase this program in, there are
a lot of different tax and IRS-bhsed proposals floating around town
these days. It seems to be that time of year.

Does your testimony mean basically that it might take 5 years to
put in place the proposal for a new credit for first-time home
buyers or a new type of reverse IRA account, or is that somehow
less onerous than this particular new proposal?

Mr. BIGELOW. As far as the 5 years, you know, I don't know if it
would be 5 years, number one. First of all, what you have to look
at is any time tax legislation is passed, we always try and work

9 3
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with the staff to give adequate lead time. It depends on if you're
changing simply the percent of tax due. That's a very easy comput-
er routine in order to change.

If you're changing the entire accounting systems for the account-
ability of those funds, which is something that is in this bill, or the
interest computation routines, we struggle with that under our an-
tiquated systems. It requires a lot more lead time.

So, it really depends on the actual legislation, and we try to work
very closely with all the different areas of Congress passing this to
make sure that they understand that. We've had very, very good
cooperation, I think, in giving us adequate lead time that we would
need. It really just depends on how complex. This is a lot more
complex than most of the ones that are going on now.

Mr. PETRI. Just one last question. The adoption of IDEA would
eventually get the IRS completely out of the business of refund off-
sets for student loans. Aside from the question of volume, that is if
you were doing it for the same number of taxpayers each year,
would you rather withhold refunds from student loan defaulters
who may really be hardship cases, or collect IDEA taxes that are
guaranteed to be a reasonable percentage of income, and that
people would actually have the ability to pay?

Mr. BIGEWW. I think that's a policy decision as opposed to an ad-
ministration decision. All we do is administer the tax laws. So, I
would not want to get into that one.

Mr. PETRI. Thank you.
Mr. MILLER. Mr. Sawyer?
[No response.]
Mr. MILLER. Mr. Andrews?
Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Bigelow, thank

you for your remarks. They were very well thought out, and we ap-
preciate them. Do you think that there's a reasonable analogy be-
tween the ideas Mr. Petri has been talking about and the payroll
deduction for U.S. savings bonds that an employer withholds?

Mr. BIGEWW. I've never really given it any thought between the
two.

Mr. ANDREWS. My experience has been that, generally speaking,
probably hundreds of thousands of employers across the country
have a voluntary payroll deduction for U.S. Savings Bonds. It's an
asset, single asset. It's the bond issued by the United States govern-
ment. This would be a loan issued by the United States govern-
ment.

The point that I'm making, isn't the direct lending component of
Mr. Petri's bill a tool of simplification for IRS collection, since, in
fact, the U.S. government owns the asset that's the basis of the col-
lection? The person has to give their social security number, their
address, their other information at the time they make the loan.
Doesn't that substantially simplify the problems that you outlined
in your testimony?

Mr. BIGELOW. In the collection aspect? Mr. Helm?
Mr. HELM. Yes. I also hadn't really focused on that aspect of it.

One of the concerns that we have in Caection is that a portion of
our accounts receivable inventory, a significant portion, is made up
of what we call trust fund liabilities; that is the employees with-
held taxes and FICA. This, of course, would add to the employer's
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burden, if you will, not only in terms of withholding but in deposit..
ing those taxes on a regular time schedule.

So, whatever order of magnitude the annual payment would add
to that employer's burden, the potential of the Internal Revenue
Service, encountering delinquency on the part of the employers in
collecting that tax, is an issue. We haven't quantified that at all, of
course, because we're at such early stages in considering the
impact on the Service.

Mr. ANDREWS. Would you agree, though, with the statement that
the switch to a loan program where the United States government
is the owner of the note, is the payee under the note, simplifies the
collection problem, from your point of view?

Mr. HELM. Again, I'm not sure I have a point of view on that. On
the surface, it sounds like that. But again, I personally haven't
thought about that aspect of it.

Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you.
Mr. MILLER. What's the easiest way to do this for the IRS?
Mr. BIGELOW. As far as what?
Mr. MILLER. To guarantee this collection and to provide for this

collection?
Mr. BIGELOW. Well, we have found that the refund offset pro-

gram is not very expensive to run. It certainly brings in a lot of
money. We still have some concerns as far as how many taxpayers
do not subsequently file as a result of having this happen to them
once, and that's part of that study. But as far as administrating
this programyou know, we offset for 26 agencies right now.

As you can see, it's big bucks. It's very easy for us. We have
those routines already developed. Even if we change this one, we
would still maintain those for all those other government agencies
and government debts.

Mr. MILLER. I see. Any other questions by any members?
[No response.]
Mr. MILLER. Thank you very much. I'm sure we'll continue to be

in touch with you as this progresses. Thank you.
Mr. BIGELOW. Thank you.
Mr. MILLER. Next we will hear from a panel made up of Mr. J.

Shawn Landres, who is a student at Columbia University; Ms.
Stacey Leyton is Vice President of the United States Student Asso-
ciation; Mr. Arthur Hauptman, who is an education consultant;
Mr. Kenneth Sears, who is Associate Director of Financial Aid,
West Virginia University Health Sciences Center; and Mr. Jerry
Davis, Vice President of Research and Policy Analysis of Pennsyl-
vania Higher Education Assistance Agency.

Welcome to the committee. Again, your prepared statements will
be put in the record in their entirety. We will recognize you in the
order in which I called your name, and look forward to your testi-
mony.
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STATEMENTS OF J. SHAWN LANDRES, STUDENT, COLUMBIA UNI-
VERSITY, NEW YORK, NEW YORK; STACEY LEYTON, VICE
PRESIDENT, UNITED STATES STUDENT ASSOCIATION, WASH-
INGTON, DC; ARTHUR HAUPTMAN, EDUCATION CONSULTANT,
WASHINGTON, DC; KENNETH SEARS, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF
FINANCIAL AID, WEST VIRGINIA UNIVERSITY HEALTH SCI-
ENCES CENTER, MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA; AND JERRY
DAVIS, VICE PRESIDENT, KESEARCH AND POLICY ANALYSIS.
PENNSYLVANIA HIGHER EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AGENCY,
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA

Mr. LANDRES. Thank you very much, Mi. Chairman. My name is
Shawn Landres. I'm a sophomore at Columbia University. I'm the
government affairs representative on the Columbia College Student
Council.

I come to you today from a university which, because of the cut-
backs in Federal and State aid over the past 10 years, is grappling
with a tough problem. It looks like that next year, for the first
time in over 20 years, Columbia will no longer have need-blind ad-
missions, and it will no longer have full coverage of financial need.

That would be a tragedy for Columbia, and it would be a tragedy
for students from every State who have the opportunity to get a
great education, because they had a commitment that no matter
what their needs were, if they had the stuff to go to Columbia, they
were going to get through.

Today, we're looking at two bills, H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050, which
would obviate the need to move away from need-blind admissions
and to move away from full coverage because every student who
needed to borrow money, who wanted to borrow money would be
able to, and they would know that they would be able to pay back
that money at a reasonable percentage of their income.

Now, I've spoken to a number of students at Columbia. I've
talked to them about IDEA. I've talked to them about SRS, and
this is their feeling. We like IDEA a lot better because we like the
higher loan limits. We like the method of repayment because- you
don't have to start paying back your loans until you actually make
something that the IRS is going to make you pay taxes on, and be-
cause the system is very sensitive to student needs and to budget-
ary realities.

I've also brought up the point with students that under IDEA or
under SRS, they would be paying more interest payments, and
they would be paying their loans for a longer period of time. But
what they say to me is, "Am I going to default on my loans?" I say
no.

I say you're going to be paying a reasonable percentage of your
income. They tell me that that's a reasonable bet. They'd rather
pay a little more a little longer, or maybe a lot longer, and not de-
fault on their loans and not have their credit ratings ruined.

They don't know whether they're going to have jobs next year at
Columbia. They don't know what their future holds. I know that
the members here have talked about this in caucuses all over the
place about a whole host of issues, but this program makes a com-
mitment to students. It's budget sensitive; it's not budget neutral.



92

But as students and as voters and as taxpayers, wo know that
education doesn't exist in a vacuum, that in an ideal world we
would have a Pell Grant entitlement, and I think we should have a
Pell Grant entitlement. But if it doesn't happen this year, we'd
better make sure that there is something a lot better than we had
going into this reauthorization process.

I think that IDEA is a step toward that. I think that we can do a
lot to make sure that students get into school, they get into the
schools that they want. to go to and they can go to. I was reading
the New York Newsday on my way down here. Twenty-eight per-
cent of students this year chose their school because of low tuition
or because of financial aid. That's up 5 percent, up from 23 percent
of students just last year choosing for low tuition, up from 25 per-
cent of students choosing for good financial aid offers.

Everyone should be able to go to the school where they want to,
where the program that they want to study is the best, not where
they have the money to go. It doesn't make sense. So, that's why
we're supporting IDEA. That's why we believe that an incomr-con-
tingent loan system would make a lot of sense.

I have a lot of details in my testimony that I would love to take
questions on. I have concerns about some things in SRS with the
average annual postgraduate income, for example, that would sort
of determine minimum and maximum payments. As we've seen in
this recession, those numbers are very different in New York, Los
Angeles, Atlanta, Chicago. There's no real national average that I
think is fair to operate on.

I think that there are plenty of issues that are worth going into.
But the bottom line is this: access is down, retention is down. We
have a budget deficit in this country, but we have more than that
for the students of my generation. We have an education deficit,
and what's even worse is we have a hope deficit.

So, when you consider these bills, I hope that you will look to the
future of my generation and say what can we do to make America
stronger, to make our future brighter, to make us more competitive
on the international scene, and to make it possible for our genera-
tion to continue to live the American dream. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of J. Shawn Landres followsd
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Mr. Chairman, distinguished members of the Committee:

My name is Shawn Landres. I am a sophomore at Columbia University in the

City of New York, and my family lives in Santa Monica, California. I serve as
Government Affairs Representative for the Columbia College Student Council, and
I chair the Columbia University Student Higher Education Advocacy Committee.
This past spring, I coordinated the Columbia College Student Council's Washington

Student Delegation, and had the opportunity to speak with n my of you regarding

our concerns about the Higher Education Act. I am pleased to submit my comments

regarding HR2336, the "Income-Dependent Education Assistance Act of 1991," and
HR3050, the "Self-Reliance Scholarship Act of 1991."

Mr. Chairman, thank you for making students an integral part of the
reauthorization process. I hope that we have been able to contribute constructively

to the reforms which we all know need to take place. My thanks are due also to

Congressman Thomas Petri, whose continued dedication to the question of a

workable income-contingent loan is to be commended.

Before us today are two bills, both of which contain provisions which would
replace the current income-contingent loan program within the Higher Education
Act. While each bill attempts to address fundamental problems in the pilot project

high interest rates, the prospect of a lifetime of unsubsidized payments for low-

income graduates, and fixed payments in the first two post-graduate years I

believe that HR2336, the Income-Dependent Education Assistance Act, provides for

a fairer and more effective loan program. Realistic loan limits, a highly efficient

repayment system, and an equitable aoss-subsidy combine within IDEA in a way

which is sensitive both to student needs and to federal budget realities.

9 9
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Because it would be a supplemental program, rather than a replacement for

other student loans, IDEA would allow students greater freedom to choose among

different postsecondary financing options. However, those students who wished to

consolidate their loans and to manage them more easily would be able to convert all

of their GSLs into IDEA loans.

A more refined income-contingent loan program would greatly expand access

for students of all income levels and would dramatically broaden the choices

available to your constituents, whose postsecondary education options are ever

more restricted by financial rather than educational considerations. At a

financial aid forum I helped organize last year, one student described the conflict she

felt between her desire to become a teacher and her need to repay her student loans.

Her sentiments are echoed time and again across campuses all over America: "I'd

really like to go into community service, but I have to pay back my student loans, so

I guess I'll become a lawyer."

Income-contingent loans will allow thousands of graduates to balance student

loan payments with the austerity of the community servant's annual compensation.

Although loan deferment and forgiveness programs do exist under certain limited

circumstances, they do not allow the flexibility needed. Only an effective ICL can cap

loan repayments at a reasonable percentage of income.

Based upon my conversations with Columbia students of all socioeconomic

backgrounds, I am confident that au income-contingent loan program would attract

a high number of participants. Among those with whom I talked were students who

would not otherwise borrow, because of concerns about high fixed payments. They

indkatcd that they would be likely to take advantage of a loan program in which



96

their payments were a manageable perce..tage of their income. Additionally, a

considerable number of students who are Stafford, PLUS, and SLS borrowers said

that they would much prefer an ICL's more reasonable interest rates and more
favorable repayment schedule. Most importantly, however, many students who
currently do not qualify for federal aid and who anticipate high post-graduate

incomes showed great interest in the program. These are precisely the borrowers

ICLs require to balance their budgets.

I believe that the implementation provisions found in HR2336 are superior

to those in HR3050 for three major reasons:

The loan limits in HR2336 are more realistic. FIR3050's complex system

of determining repayment schedules reduces its effective limit well below the
already tight $33,000 cap. IDENs limits, at $70,000 for most students and higher for

medical students, much more effectively address current and future student need.

Furthermore, studies have revealed that the more postsecondary education a

student receives, the higher his or her postgraduate income will be. Those students

whose lending approaches the cap are more likely to have the high postgraduate

income needed to help power the program. The bottom line: it is possible to finance

a college education and even some graduate school using only the IDEA program;

the same is not necessarily true for the SRS plan.

IDEA's repayment system efficiently and fairly addresses concerns

about IRS implementation. Under IDEA, only those borrowers whose income

reaches or exceeds the tax filing threshold would be required to submit paymer.t. In

contrast, HR3050's repayment calculus is problematic for two reasons: first, it uses

Census estimates of the national average post-graduate income to determine what
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minimum and maximum payments should be. However, post-graduate incomes

differ greatly from region to region, because of differences in the cost of living, and

more importantly, because of differences in the economy. Second, and more

importantly, the minimum pay . wit requirement in HR3050 would generate huge

amounts of paperwork at IRS, as all borrowers even those whose incomes fall

under the normal tax filing threshold would be required to submit minimum

payments and documentation. This minimum payment requirement would

unfairly burden low-income and unemployed students precisely those students

whom ICLs usually assist the most. Such a payment would be especially onerous

during recessions, when few graduates are able to find steady work.

The cross-subsidy within the IDEA program keeps it self-contained and

inherently equitable. From an economic standpoint, it makes sense to charge high-

income graduates slightly more and to subsidize the payments of low-income

graduates: in this way, no one is required to forfeit an unreasonable percentage of

his or her income to student loan repayments. Philosophically, as well, it creates a

situation wherein students are through the cross-subsidy helping each other to

succeed.

Some of IDEA's critics have expressed concern about skyrocketing costs. One

concept which HR3050 includes, and HR2336 does not, and perhaps should Include,

is that of a national postsecondary education trust fund, an idea most recently

advocated by Arkansas Governor Bill Clinton. Such a trust fund provides an easily

measurable indicator of the success or failure of an income-contingent loan

program. If loan disbursements and subsidies exceed repayments, the fund runs a

r 2
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deficit; if, as we anticipate, after a number of years, repayments begin to overtake

disbursements and subsidies, the fund can be considered a success.1

To be sure, setting up an education trust fund would require a great deal of

financial. support. The economist Robert Shapiro, in his excellent paper, Paying for

Progress, estimates that cutting back on certain subsidies to high-income people

"could release $15 to $20 billion or more to help young Americans prepare for the

future."2 That number coincides with Deputy Secretary Kearns' worst-case

assumption that IDEA loans could reach $20 billion annually.3

I Without any revenue-enhancing measures, an education trust fund might require fewer than fifteen
years to become self-sustaining. Catholic University economist John J. Murphy has esdmated that if
the federal government were to borrow $20 billion per year at 9 percent interest, an education loan fund
would be self-sufficient after only fourteen years.

"He has assumed that 4 million students drew an average of $5,000 a year, that repayment
began after four years, and that the students' average income in the fifth year was $20,000 and
increesed by 5 percent annually thereafter. With these figures as given, as repayment rate of 9 percent
of gross income would pay off the obligation in twentyyears. A repayment rate of 5 percent of gross
income would require thirty-five years to satisfy the obligation.

If, to establish the fund, the government borrowed, at 9-percent interest, the money needed to
support $20 billion in annual advances (i.e., using the assumptions on levels of participation and
advances given above), the fund would become self-sustaining after fourteen years; if the government
paid no interest on the money it advanced, the self-sustaining point would be reached after eleven
years. (These figures assume a payback based on 9 percent of the beneficiary's gross income.) Multiply
$20 billion by the eleven or fourteen years and you have a cumulative total of grand proportions. Bot
you also have a solution to a vammoth national problem." William J. Byron, "Neither Grant Nor
Loan: New Groend for Federal Student Aid Policy" in Lawrence E. Gladieux, ed., Radical Reform or
Incremental Change: Student Loan Policy Alternatives for the Federal Government (Washington: The
College Board, 1989) 30-31.
2"The Treasury could raise $5 billion a year by taxing 85 percent of the benefits of retirees with joint
incomes of $32,000 and above; however, we also would increase the income threshold, and so raise less.
Various medicare proposals could raise $2 to $8 billion; capping the state-and-local-tax deduction at 9
percent of a person's adjusted gross income would raise $6 billion. For discussion, see Congressional
Budget Office, Reducing the Deficit: Spending and Revenue Options, February 1990." Robert J. Shapiro,
Paying for Progress: A Progressive Strategy for Fisol Discipline (Washington: Progressive Policy
Institute, 1991) 6.
3 "With the significant expansion of loan eligibility and loan limits included in the bill, annual
borrowing could approach $20 billion." Testimony By David Kearns, Deputy Secretary for Education,
before the Senate Committee on kabor And Human Resources, on the Financial Aid for All Students Act
of 1991, Tuesday, October 29, 1991, 6.
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We must remember who would be paying the interest on any increased

government borrowing -- we, the students. If IDEA were unable to pay for itself,

requiring an infusion of federal funds, we, the current and future taxpayers, would

still be the ones paying for our education. However, we would not be making those

payments during the particularly trying early postgraduate years, when many

cudents find it difficult to meet their living expenses because they are not earning

enough to pay their loans and still put dinner on the table. For students, IDEA is

virtually a win-win opportunity.

Most important to me in this entire process is the philosophy embodied in

the income-contingent loan: giving back to the community. Through income-

contingent loans, sodety gives the gift of education and the student, financially and

through his or her career and service to the community, repays that obligation. It is

simple, fair, and effective.

Mr. Chainnan, I would be happy to respond to any questions you or any other

member of the Committee might wish to ask me.
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Ms. LETrorr. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee,
thank you for this opportunity to testify on H.R. 2336 and H.R.
3050. My name is Stacey Leyton, and I'm vice president of the
United States Student Association, representing more than 3.5 mil-
lion postsecondary students in 4-year public and private institu-
tions, technical schools, and community colleges.

As you know, USSA is a strong supporter of H.R. 3553, which
would go a long way toward our shared goal of equal educational
opportunity. We particularly applaud the inclusion of the Pell
Grant entitlement, which we believe is a necessary prerequisite for
making our loan programs work in the interest ofstudents.

Let me emphasize that USSA is a strong supporter of the concept
of direct lending of student loans by institutions. My written testi-
mony details the reasons for our position as well as our views on
how a direct lending system should be executed. Let me also em-
phasize that USSA sees the issue of direct lending as very separate
from H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050's provisions for income-contingent
loan repayment through the IRS.

Basically, USSA appreciates the intent of Representatives Petri
and Miller to help students and their families afford a postsecond-
ary education and to lessen the impact of postgraduation debt bur-
dens. However, USSA is concerned about some aspects of these two
bills, including student loan collection through the IRS, 25-year re-
payment periods, and the lack of an in-school interest subsidy.

We thus have some thoughts on how income-sensitive loan repay-
ment ar an option could be used in the interest of students. USSA
agrees with Mr. Petri and Mr. Miller that income-sensitive loan re-
payment is an idea well worth considering.

That is why we are supportive of a number of provisions in H.R.
3553 which would ease the loan burden from students, including
provisions to provide graduated repayment schedules for Stafford
Loan borrowers who request it, require that students be notified by
both the seller and the purchaser when their loan is sold, and man-
date that graduated or income-sensitive repayment schedules be of-
fered to consolidation loan borrowers.

H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050 further extend these income contingent
loan ideas. We have the following concerns regarding H.R. 2336.
First, without significant increases in funding for the Pell Grant
Program, H.R. 2336 would exacerbate the loan grant imbalance
particularly among dependent students who would see the amounts
they could borrow nearly double.

However, independent students currently eligible for Stafford
and SLS Loans would see a dramatic decline in the loan amounts
they can borrow because the bill would eliminate the SLS program,
and Stafford Loans would count against the total IDEA Loan
limit

Second, under H.R. 2336, the interest rate on IDEA would float
up to 10 percent and have no in-school interest subsidy. This would
make IDEA Loans much more onerous for needy students, even
though they would have no origination fees and insurance premi-
ums. In fact, Mr. Petri's own statistical analysis indicates that
many students would see an increase in their total student loan in-
debtedness after graduation if they chose IDEA Loans over Stafford
Loans.
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Students in long-term programs and graduate school would gen-
erate particularly huge IDEA Loans. For example, a typical stu-
dent who takes out an unsubsidized SLS Loan of $4,000 will, after 9
years, have had to repay $8,362. You can imagine what that loan
would look like under a 25-year repayment plan. Hence, if students
must borrow to finance their postsecondary education, the loans
they take out should only be Perkins and Stafford Loans, which
have subsidized interest rates and an in-school interest subsidy.

In order to correct the problem of negative amortaation, that is
when low payments mean that students keep paying off the inter-
est but never touch the principal, H.R. 2336 proposes forgiving
IDEA Loans after 25 years. The indisputable bottom line is that if
you were on a 25-year loan repayment plan, you end up paying
much more than if you were on a standard 10-year plan. Under
such a prolonged repayment period, borrowers would still be
paying off their loans while in their 40s and 50s and while many
are trying to purchase homes and raise families.

In any event, USSA believes that it must be a conscious choice
for students to commit themselves to such a prolonged repayment
period that means ultimately that they owe a huge amount to the
Federal Government and end up repaying quite a lot of money. In
addition, in order to avoid a Federal subsidy, H.R. 2336 requires
one group of student borrowers to subsidize another group of stu-
dent borrowers. This is an inappropriate and unfair way to subsi-
dize low-income borrowers.

Third, H.R. 2336 may complicate, not simplify, the student loan
repayment process. We have the following concerns regarding IRS
loan collection. Where are students supposed to turn for counseling
and information on their student loan repayment options and prob-
lems, the IRS? The current system is far from perfect, but at least
students can work with their lender on deferment options.

Will the IRS or the Department of Education provide counseling?
What if a student is drawing a salary and having increased em
ployer withholding for their student loan repayment but has genu-
ine hardships? How can students predict what their monthly loan
payments will be? After graduation, a student's earnings are prob-
ably the most unpredictable aspect of his or her life.

Isn't IDEA a disincentive to working? If you never work and file
taxes, you will never have to repay your loans? While USSA under-
stands the economic conditions and structural barriers that make
it difficult to find employment in this country, we fear that politi-
cal and public support for a program with a perceived built-in dis-
incentive to work would eventually be undermined.

In terms of H.R. 3050, borrowers could choose among 15-, 20-, or
25-year repayment options. The exact impact of these different op-
tions for borrowers is not clear to us. In addition, under H.R. 3050,
a minimum level of repayment is set so a borrower could not avoid
repaying their loan even if they are unemployed. While this avoids
the problem of a disincentive to work, it could impose real hard-
ships for students, many of whom, in today's tough economic times,
are finding it difficult to obtain steady and well-paying jobs. We do
appreciate the fact that the Self-Reliance Scholarships would sup-
plement and not replace current loan programs.
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One last concern is that both these bills would provide quite an
incentive for institutions to raise tuition. Schools could continue
raising tuition, which would be matched dollar for dollar by in-
creased loans for students. Pell Grants, however, would not in-
crease dollar for dollar as tuitions rise.

As an alternative to these proposals, USSA joins the American
Council on Education in proposing an optional income-contingent
loan repayment plan for borrowers whose income is inadequate to
service their debt for a period of years. We believe that these bor-
rowers should have the option to petition the government to allow
them to repay on an income-contingent basis during the period in
which their salaries are inadequate to service their debt without
great hardship. Interest during this period that is not taken care of
by the borrower's payments should be forgiven and not added to
their total debt.

For most borrowers, this period of lower payments would prob-
ably be temporary. But for those who are still repaying their loans
after a certain period of time, 25 years or so, should have their re-
maining debt forgiven. We believe that this kind of income-contin-
gent proposal is feasible, necessary, and much more in the interest
of students. Under these other proposals, USSA is concerned that
students would simply fall into 25-year loan repayment plans with-
out a conscious choice to do so and without an understanding of all
of the consequences.

Many students do not get all the necessary information whenthey first rece;ve and/or start repaying their loans. For many,taking out a loan is the very first financial decision in their lives.
Students should not choose at the outset of receiving their loans a
25-year repayment period simply because they are anxious about
their future income potential after college. In any event, an option-
al postgraduation income-contingent repayment process would be
the student's choice and not something into which he or she fallsand later regrets.

Lastly, USSA has some philosophical problems with the premises
behind these two bills that propose to create new loan programs to
address the very real problems of declining access to higher educa-
tion, skyrocketing college costs, rind difficult student loan burdens.
New loan programs will not sufficiently address the underlying
reason why students default on their student loans.

Half of Stafford Loan defaulters are dropouts from postsecondary
programs. We should not assume that all of these students choose
not to pay back their loans; we should recognize that most of them
simply cannot pay them back.

While USSA shares the concern about the increasing costs ofStafford Loan defaults, we believe that better loan collection
through the IRS is not the answer. What is desperately needed is
an increased commitment to retention programs and grant pro-
grams including a Pell Grant entitlement.

In conclusion, USSA urges this committee to carefully consider
how any income-contingent loan program system would work and
whether our shared goals of increased access, enhanced informa-
tion, and loan repayment rates, and simplification of the student
loan system would be achieved.
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Thank you for this opportunity to share USSA's thoughts on this
legislation.

[The prepared statement of Stacey Leyton follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, thank you for this opportunity to
testify on H.R. 2336 Vile Income-Dependent Education Assistance Act") and H.R. 3050
elle Self-Reliance Scholarship Act":. lnd the possibilities of income-contingent
repayment of federal student loans. My name is Stacey Leyton and I am Vice President
of the United States Student Association (USSA), the largest and oldest national
student organization, representing more than 3.5 million postsecondary students in
four-year public and private institutions, technical schools and community colleges.

As you already know, USSA is a strong supporter of H.R. 3553 ("The Higher Education
Act Amendments of 1991"), which would go a long way toward our shared goal of
equal educational opportunity. We particularly applaud the inclusion of the Egil
canisnusmsig, which we believe is a necessary prerequisite for making higher
education accessible to all.

Basically, the USSA Rnard of Directors appreciates the intent of Representative Petri
and Representative Miller to help students and their families afford a postsecondary
education, and to lessen the impact of post-graduation debt burdens. However, USSA
is concerned about some aspects of these two bills, including student loan collection
through the Internal Revenue Service; 25-year repayment periods; and elimination of
the in-school interest subsidy. We thus have some thoughts on how income-sensitive
loan repayment as an option could be used in the interests of students.

Let me emphasize that USSA is a strong supporter of the concept of the direct lending
of student loans by institutions. While we have many, concerns regarding how a direct
lending system would be phased-in and executed, we are very supportive of the
concept because of the enormous savings and enhanced simplicity of such a system.
This testimony will also detail these concerns. Let me finally emphasize that USSA
sees the issue of direct lending as very separate from H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050's
provisions for income-contingent loan repayment through the IRS,

Lastly, USSA recognizes that the student loan programs have enabled countless
students to pursue a postsecondary education. However, our recommendations for
the student loan programs and repayment options are accompanied by our strong

programs work in the interests of students.

INCOME-CONTINGENT LOAN REPAYMENT
USSA agrees with Mr. Petri and Mr. Miller that income-sensitive loan repayment is an
idea well worth considering. It is tru.: that students are graduating with huge and
often onerous loan burdens: in 1986, students graduated from public institutions with
an average debt of $6,810 and from private schools with an average of $10,000 worth of
debt. That is why we are supportive of a number of provisions in H.R. 3553 ("Higher
Education Act Amendments of 1991"), which would ease the loan burden from
students, including provisions to:

2
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Provide graduated repayment schedules for Stafford Loan borrowers who
request it [Section 424 (a)1;
Requires that students be notified by both the seller and the purchaser when
their loan I. sold [Section 427 (i)1;
Mandate that graduated or income-sensitive repayment schedules be offered to
consolidation loan borrowers [Section 430 (01.

H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050 both involve income-contingent loan repayment through
the Internal Revenue Service, and the direct lending of loans through institutions.
Both create unsubsidized loans, and H.R. 2336 eliminates the Supplemental Loans
for Students program (for independent students). Under H.R. 2336 but not under
H.R. 3050, loans under the new program (i.e. IDEA) would count against Stafford
Loan limits (and vice versa). In an attempt to make the loan repayment process
more manageable for students and to decrease the number of student loan defaults,
students would pay their loans (under the two new programs) on an income-
contingent basis through increased payroll-tax withholding.

H.R. 2336, 'The Income-Dependent Educational Assistance Act"
While USSA does support the idea of income-sensitive methods of loan repayment,
we would be concerned about H.R. 2336's construction of income-dependent loan
assistance for the following reasons.

Current H.R. 2336
Stafford SLS 112EA.Cogil Difference

(Stafferd loans would
count against annual\
aggregate IDEA loan li- .its.
& SLS would be eliminated.)

Undergraduate
1st & 2nd Year Dependent Students* $2,625 $6.500 $3.975

" Independent Students $2,625 $4,000 $6,500 - $125

Other Dependent Undergraduates* $4,000 $8,000 $4.000
" Independent Undergraduates $4.000 $4,000 $8,000 0

GraouatelProfesslonal** S7300 $4.000 SI 1 ,000 . $500

The PLUS loan program for parents of dependent students would continue under H.R. 2336.
Under H.R. 2336, medical and other high-cost doctoral degree students would be eligible forup
to $22.500 of IDEA credit. Students in extraordinarily high-cost graduate degree programs
would be eligible for up to $30,000.

(1) Without significant increases in funding for the Pell Grant program, H.R. 2336
could exacerbate the loan/grant imbalance, particularly among dependent students.
H.R. 2336 would continue the Stafford Loan program, create an unsubsidized ban
program (IDEA), and eliminated the Supplemental Loans for Students (SLS).

3
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Currently, only independent students (and in rare circumstances, some dependent

students) are eligible for the unsubsidized SLS program. Under H.R. 2336, any loans

received under Title IV of the Higher Education Act (as well as Title VII of the Public
Health Service Act) mat be counted against the annual and aggregate IDEA loan
limits, and IDPA loans must be counted against the annual and aggregate loan limits

of these other loan programs.

The result I. that for students not eligible for SLS (i.e. dependent student), H.R. 2336

practically doubles the maximum loan limits! While USSA supports inflation-
adjusted increises in the maximum loan limits - this is a little extreme!! The key to

expanded access is NOT larger loan burdens, but significant increases in the grant

programs, including a larger maximum Pell Grant (and to add some certainty - and
fact, rather than fiction - to the Pell Grant program, it needs to be an entitlement!).

However, independent (and othe.) students currently eligible for Stafford and SLS

loans would see a dramatic decline in the loan amounts they can borrow (between $125

and $1,300) - which USSA finds objectionable in light on skyrocketing college costs.

How can we ask independent and graduate students - large numbers of whom are

mostly older, have children and other dependents to support, and have no family to

turn to for resources - to make do with less?

(2) Under H.R. 2336, the interest rate on IDEA would float (T-bill plus 2 percentage

points, not to exceed 10%) and have no ln-school interest subsidy; this would make
IDEA loans much more onerous for needy students. IDEA loans would also have no

origination fees and insurance premiums. USSA is not convinced that these factors

"cancel each other out." In fact, Mr. Petrrs own statistical analysis indicate that many

students would see an increasein their total student loan indebtedness after

graduation if they chose IDEA loans over Stafford loans. Students in long-term

programs and graduate school would generate particularly huge IDEA loans. We
believe that it is the responsibility nnd in the self-interest of the federal government to

offer student loans with manageable terms and that will have the least impact possible

on the job and career choices of graduates. Hence if students must borrow to finance
their postsecondary education, the loans they take out should only be Perkins and
Stafford Loans, which have subsidized interest rates and an in-school interest subsidy.

We only have to look at the current SLS program to see the adverse affects of a loan

program lacking an in-school interest subsidy. Looking at an actual Repayment
Addendum and Disclosure Statement from a lender to a SLS borrower, a student from
Louisiana, shows that after she makes repayments on her SLS loan of $4,000 over the

next nine years, she will have had to repay $8,362. She will have to pay $8,362 for a
$4,000 loan. It's crazy that poor people are expected to pay twice as much for their

education!

Now, H.R. 2336 attempts to address the problem under the current Income Contingent

Loan program of students forever paying off their loans because of negative

4
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amortization - that is, students whose low-payinc jobs result in their paying off the
interest but never touching the principal, and remaining indebted for life - by
forgiving their IDEA loan after 25 years of repayment. 25 years is a long time to keep
penalizing students, and is hardly a reward for taking out an ever-growing loan. The
indisputable bottom line is that if you are on a 25-year loan repayment plan, you end
up paying mush rearg than if you were on the standard 10-year plan. Under such a
prolonged repayment period, borrowers would still be paying off their loans while in
their 40's and 50's, and when many an trying to purchase homes and raise families. In
any event, USSA believes that it mot be a conscious choice for students to commit
themselves to such a prolonged repayment period that means ultimately that they owe
a huge amount to the federal government and end up repaying quite a lot of money.

In addition, in order to avoid a federal subsidy, H.R. 2336 requires one group of student
borrowers to subsidize another group of student borrowers. Higher-income borrowers
would pay at a higher interest rate than they do under the SLS program. IDEA's
interest rate would be T-bill plus 2%, capped at 10%. However, ifa student's post-
graduation income was sufficiently high to repay the loan in 12 years or less, an "early
repayment" penalty would be charged. At the same time borrowers with such low-
paying employment that they do not file taxes would not have to make student loan
payments. If a borrower is still paying after 25 years, the rest of her/his loan would be
forgiven.

(3) H.R. 2336 may complicate, not simplify, the student loan repayment process.
While USSA strongly supports the idea of income-sensitive loan repayments as a
more fair and manageable way for students to repay their loans, we have concerns
about H.R. 2336's particular way of collecting income-dependent loan repayments.

Where are students supposed to turn to for counseling_and information on their
student loan repayment options and problems? The IRS? The current system is
far from perfect, but at least students can work with their lender on deferment
and forbearance options. Will the IRS or the Department of Education provide
counseling? What if a student is drawing a salary and having increased
employer withholding for their student loan repayment, but has genuine
hardships?

How can students preiLict what their monthly loan payments will be? After
graduation, a student's earnings are probably the most unpredictable aspect of
his/her life! Won't employers have increased administrative expenses as
participants in loan collections? Will they and the IRS get administrative cost
allowances?

LSO IDEA a dilincentive to working? If you never work and file taxes, you will
never have to repay your loans? While USSA understands the economic
conditions and structural barriers that make it difficult to find employment in
this country, we fear that political and public support for a program with a

5
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perceived built-in disincentive to work would eventually be undermined.

ELL 3050, "The Self-Reliance Scholarship Act"
Our concerns about H.R. 3050 are very similar to those we have regarding H.R. 2336.
H.R. 3050 would allow students to borrow up to $10,000 with a maximum of $33,000.
Borrowers could choose among 15, 20 or 25 year repayment options. The exact impact
of these different ortions for borrowers is not clear to us. In addition, under H.R. 3050
a minimum level of repayment is set so a borrower could not avoid repaying their
loan even if they are unemployed. While this avoids the problem of a disincentive to
work, it could impose real hardships for students, many of whom - in today's tough
economic times - are finding it difficult to obtain steady and well-paying jobs. We do

appreciate the fact that the Self-Reliance Scholarships would supplement and not
replace current loan programs.

One last concern is that both these bills would provide quite an incentive for
institutions to raise tuition. Schools could continue raising tuition, which would be
matched dollar-for-dollar by increased loans for students (to a high level because both
would, overall, increase maximum loan limits). Pell Grants, however, would not
increase dollar-for-dollar as tuitions rise.

Income-Contingent Loan Repayment for Students with Economic Hardship
USSA agrees with the proposal advanced by the American Council on Education on
income-contingent loan repayment for borrowers whose income is inadequate to
service their debt for a period of years (i.e. those who debt service exceeds 10% of their
income). This group includes students who choose a career in low-paying public
interest fields, as well as those who did not persist in higher education and do not
have sigracantly higher incomes. We join ACE in believing that these borrowers
should have the option to petition the government to allow them to repay on an
income-contingent basis during the period in which their salaries are inadequate to
service their debt without great hardship. Interest during this period that is not taken
care of by the borrowers' payments should be forgiven and not added to their total
debt. For most borrowers, this perio 1 of lower payments would probably be temporary,
but for those who are still repaying their loan after a certain period of time (25 years or

so) should have their remaining debt forgiving.

We believe that this kind of optional income-contingent loan repayment takes care of

many of our concerns regarding most income-contingent proposals. Students would
not just automatically be put on the 25-year loan repayment track: since they would
have to petition for such a payment plan, they would be fully cognizant of the
implications of income-sensitive repayment (i.e. it could extend the number of years

they would be paying off their loans).

We believe that this kind of income-contingent proposal is both feasible, necessary,
and much more in the interests of students. Under these other proposals, USSA is

6
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concerned that students would simply fall into 25-year loan repayment plans without a
conscious choice to do so and without an understanding of all the consequences.
Many students do not get all the necessary information when they first receive and/or
start repaying their loans. For many, taking out a loan is the very first financial
decision in their lives. Students should not choose at the outset of receiving their
loans a 25-year repayment period simply because they are anxious about their future
income potential after college. In any event, an optional post-graduation income-
contingent repayment process would be the student's choice, and not something into
which he or she falls and later regrets.

Also, at this time, we are still uncomfortable about the Internal Revenue Service
playing any role in student loan collection.

Lastly. USSA has some philosophical problems with the premises behind these two
bills that proposes to create new loan programs to address the very real problems of
declining access to higher education, skyrocketing college costs, and difficult student
loan burdens. New loan programs will not sufficiently address the underlying reason
why students default on their student loans. We should not assume that all of these
students choose not to pay back their loans; we should recognize that most of them
simply can't pay them back. While USSA shares the concern about the increasing costs
of Stafford Loan defaults, we believe that better loan collection through the Internal
Revenue Service is not the answer. What is desperately needed is an increased
commitment to retention programs and grant programs, including a Pell Grant
entitlement.

There are many reasons why students default, including ones for which it is unfair to
assign blame to the student. Half of Stafford Loan defaulters are dropouts from
postsecondary programs. These people are not likely to have the job prospects or
enhanced earning power that accompany a postsecondary degree or certificate, and
thus face difficulty repaying their loans. Many student loan defaulters WANT to pay
back their loans; they Just CANNOT. Hence, we must strengthen our investment in
the retention programs - including the TRIO Programs for Students from
Disadvantaged Backgrounds - that enable students to stay in school. We must make
Pell Grants an entitlement ... which would decrease the amount of low-income
students forced to take on huge loans to pay for their postsecondary education and
increase their persistence rates. We must also ensure that students have all the
knowledge necessary to make good decisions and to be responsible and informed
student loan borrowers - and H.R. 3553 would definitely help in this area. Without
these changes, better loan collection techniques through the IRS will not help improve
the number of students paying back their loans.

DIRECT LENDING
The second .najor element of these two bills are their use of federal borrowing as the
source of loan capital for student loans. At USSA's 44th Annual National Student
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Congress held in August 1991. students fiom all over the country voted to support the
concept of the direct lending of student loans by institutions. We applaud the
inclusion of direct lending in H.R. 3553 for the following reasons:

. .1 i I .t II I I

processes ... and reduction of loan defaults. The current GSL structure of
more than 13,000 lenders, over 50 guarantee agencies, and many secondary
markets results in an overwhelming system of multiple application forms,
fees, paperwork and massive confusion for too many students. By contrast,
the Perkins Loan program is far easier for students to understand and use.
USSA believes that many defaults are the result of the complexity and
confusion of this system that leaves too many students with too little
information and no sense of who to go to for answers.

Increased efficiency. Because of the complicated nature of the system,
students experience numerous delays in getting their loans, causing much
hardship: students are penalized for paying their tuition bills late or are
dropped from their classes, and have difficulty paying their child care costs or
putting food on the table. Under a direct loan program - like the Perkins Loan
program - a school could process and deliver a loan along with a student's
regular financial aid application. In addition to reducing paperwork, the
school would have direct control over the timing and distribution of loan
funds. Hence, students would receive their loans more promptly.

The possible elimination of origination fees and insurance premiums.

The possibility of substantial savings (a reduced need to pay the special
allowance rate) that could be channeled into increased grant aid. Estimates of
savings range from $600 milli in to 81.4 billion.

Automatic loan gaggligatign.

EggiutigninAgfialkijatunsagnisling. If schools originate the loans along
with the regular financial aid application, students would get more and
immediate information on how and when to repay their loans, and
deferment and consolidation options. In addition, a Harvard study found
that a direct loan program would reduce or simplify 44% of its administrative
functions associated with the current Stafford Loan program. A decrease in
the administrative complexity for institutions would mean that schools could
devote more of their energies on reducing defaults through better counseling
of student loan borrowers.

However, USSA hopes that the following questions will be satisfactorily answered as
the full House discusses and considers direct lending:

8
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Will there be adequate capital so that the loan program will remain an
entitlement under which every student who is eligible for the program can get
a loan?

Will there be a phase-in perio4 so that there is opportunity to assess and
address problems in the system?

How do we prevent institutions from "red-lining" students they consider risky
borrowers? Since institutions are being held responsible for high default rates
(i.e. high default schools are being cut off from partidpation in student loan
programs), will they deny loans to students whom they think are likely to drop
out and default? Will this end up denying first-generation college students,
and students from low-income and ethnic minority backgrounds access to
loans and a postsecondary education?

If financial aid offices at direct lending institutions take on new overhead costs
and thus require additional funding, will there be new costs passed on to
students? Would direct lending really eliminate the need for origination fees
and insurance premiums? If there are savings from restructuring the loan
program, will they go to student aid programs? Or will all savings be lost to
new administrative costs for the Department of Education and institutions?

Will nontraditional students - older students, part-time students, and evening
students - receive adequate services regarding loans if financial offices are only
open during the day?

USSA looks forward to further discussing these issues as you consider direct lending
proposals, and stands ready to be of assistance. We think that the direct lending could
be a powerful way to ensure that student loans work in students interests.

In conclusion, USSA urges this Committee to carefully consider how any income-
contingent loan program, and/or direct lending system would work and whether our
shared goals of increased access, enhanced information and loan repayment rates, and
simplification of the student loan system would be achieved. Thank you for this
opportunity to share USSA's thoughts on this legislation.

9
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Mr. HAUPTMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. There's a chart in
the back of my testimony which compares the features of the
number of the different loan proposals, and th at might be helpful if
you wanted to keep track of that.

My testimony indicates that at least four distinct issues are
raised in the current set of loan proposals. First is a question of
direct lending, whether it would be more efficient to use the gov-
ernment as a source of loan capital rather than the private sector,
as in the current GSL programs.

Second is whether the Federal Government should continue to
pay the in-school interest for borrowers while they remain in
school.

Third is whether the amount of loan repaid should be geared to
the income of the borrowers once they are in repayment, so-called
income-contingent repayments.

Fourth is whether the IRS should be responsible for loan collec-
tion.

As today's testimonies, I think, demonstrate, those issues tend to
get mixed up. You can start a discussion with direct lending, and
then you're into income contingent, and then we're talking about
IRS collection. People say I'm for this or I'm against that. It would
be very helpful as the debate evolves for people to try to be careful
and say which is it that they're talking about, which do they want.

You can have a direct loan program with or without the in-
school interest subsidy. You can have a direct loan program with
or without income-contingent repayments. Conversely, you could
have an income-contingent repayment system imposed or layered
on to the current GSL program with no direct loans. So, as you go
through it, I think that would be helpful for all concerned.

Today I wanted to talk briefly about direct lending and then turn
my attention to what might be done in the repayment period to
help reduce defaults. The current situation of the Stafford Loan
Program speaks volumes about the inappropriateness of the cur-
rent financing arrangement in the Stafford Loan Program. The 91-
day Treasury 13ill rate is currently below 4 percent.

Since the rate returned to lenders in the Stafford program is
paid at the T-bill rate plus 3.25 percentage points, that rate of
return would be roughly 7.25 or less at the current time. But the
rate charged to borrowers and the rate that the government pays
lenders during the in-school period is set by statute at 8 percent;
thus, banks, Sallie Mae and other holders of student loans ar3 cur-
rently receiving in excess of the statutory rate of T-bill plus 3.25.

As a result of this loophole, Sallie Mae's profits and its price, I
expect, will go up quite a bit. Banks and other holders of student
loans will also find their profits increased during this time. At a
minimum, I hope the committee, during reauthorization, will con-
sider closing this loophole so the government would only have to
pay the lesser of T-bill plus 3.25 or a percent, rather than the
greater of the two, which is what happens now.

This current situation also suggests the possible desirability to
shift to a variable interest rate in Stafford just as what was done in
the last reauthorization for the PLUS and SLS programs. It's
worth knowing that borrowers in the SLS program who do not
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have financial need now pay a lower interest rate than Stafford
borrowers who are determined by financial need.

This current excess in payment to lenders also points out the po-tential cost savings of direct loans. Rather than have the govern-ment pay out T-bill plus 3.25, direct loans achieve savings byhaving the government pay, in effect, the T-bill rate. That's how it
is at current T-bill rates where they are low. When T-bill rates gethigher, let's say 10 percent, then there's no saving on the in-school
interest subsidy The saving occurs in the fact that you eliminate
the special allowance.

So, now, savings of direct loans would be reducing the amount of
money the government pays the banks during the in-school period.In the higher T-bill rate situation, the savings would be under thespecial allowance, elimination of special allowance.

I know a lot of people who oppose the direct loan concept, argue
that additional administrative costs would outweigh these savings.I find that statement difficult to believe and largely unsubstantiat-ed. You could have administrative costs of twice or three times thelevel of current program and you'd still have substantial savings inthe program.

My testimony also points out why I believe the administration's
arguments against direct loans are largely specious. For example,the administration opposes direct loans because it will require the
Federal Government to borrow to provide the loan capital. But inthe current Stafford program, the government, since it is alreadyin deficit, is borrowing over $5 billion a year to pay for annual in-
terest in default costs. At least under direct loans, most of what isborrowed will be repaid, unlike the current program which, what-
ever the government borrows to make those payments, is neverrepaid.

The bottom line is I would argue for an adequately-funded and
representative direct lending option that allows for a demonstra-tion of whether direct loans will save taxpayer dollars over thenext 5 years. The GSL program should not be totally cashed out in
that period of time and replaced with an untried idea, but neithershould we stick exclusively with a current model when there is an-other approach that could potentially save Federal taxpayers bil-lions of dollars with no decrease in access.

I also would comment that it is necessary, I think, to have a gooddemonstration to try several different administrative procedures inmaking those loans. I mean, we might all agree that the concept is
worthwhile, but we have to test out a couple different administra-
tive procedures. I hope we don't make the same mistake as we didwith the ICL program that the Reagan Administration proposedwhere there was only one model that was in effect, and, therefore,we never got to test anything.

In terms of reducing default costs, we have to look more at theterms and conditions that borrowers face and the system repay-ment than at loan origination, which is what direct loans is allabout. The problem I have with most of the proposals currently onthe table that would revamp repayment is that they start with the
assumption that the system should be self-financing.

The practical fact is that to achieve self-sufficiency, it's necessaryto do one or several fairly unpleasant things: first, remove the in-
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school interest subsidy; second, require that borrowers with highincomes after graduating subsidize their less fortunate colleagues,the cross-subsidy issue; and/or third, require that unpaid interest isadded to the principal owed by low-income borrowers whoseincome-contingent repayments are not sufficient to pay the interestthat they own on their loans. In other words, if you owed $800 ofinterest and your income-contingent payment is only $600, that$200 of interest would be added in the case of negative amortiza-tion. On the matter of in-school interest, I pointed out in my testi-mony that none of the other proposed changes are likely to saveanywhere near the money that would be saved if there were noFederal in-school interest subsidies. As a result, the proposals thatdo call for deferral on accrual of interest during the in-schoolperiod, such as Petri or Miller/Bradley, do achieve much higherlevels of cost savings than the proposals that do not.In terms of cross subsidy, I believe it would be far preferable forthe Federal Government to subsidize those students who need helpwith their repayment than to require cross subsidization or to re-quire all borrowers to pay on an income-contingent basis.With all deference, 1111r. Chairman, I think it's going to be diffi-cult to make the case that Miller/Bradley, for example, is a goodprogram for middle class students if you're going to ask thosemiddle class students, many of them, to repay on their loans morethan what they borrowed in interest and principal.So, what I would like much more to see is a case where thepeople who can make repayments on a regular amortized basis con-tinue to do so, and we fccus income contingency and graduated re-payment on a set of s'ndents who really need the help; that is,those whose debts e::ceeds their income or whose debt service ex-ceeds a reasonable portion of their income to repay. I think itwould be much more administratively feasible, and I think it wouldbe a lot easier to sell.
There's a chart in my testimony behind page 6 which shoWs thedifferent proposals as it relates to this cross subsidy. There's a hori-zontal line on it which is basically equal amortized payments.Those plans that have lines above those horizontal lines, that's es-sentially the size, the degree of the cross subsidy. Those higherincome bars, those bars with incomes roughly above $35,000 aregoing to be paying back more than what they owe on a regularbasis. Those bars with incomes below $35,000 are essentially theones that we're trying to subsidize.
The Simon bill manages to avoid cross subsidy by basicallysaying once you have paid back the amount of interest and princi-pal you owe, that's enough. That's one way of doing it.My own personal preference would be for a flexible repaymentapproach in which borrowers whose debt exceeds their income canpetition for relief while all other borrowers continue to repay, asthey do now, on an amortized basis. One way of doing that is laidout in the Association's statement for today's hearing.
The basic point is that income contingency is not for everybody.For the majority of borrowers who are promptly repaying their stu-dent loans, it is neither desirable nor necessary to make themrepay on an income-contingent basis. Such a repayment scheduleshould be confined to those borrowers who need the assistance.
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I also want to emphasize the importance of allowing flexible re-
payment for students who are already in the system, as well as
providing it for whatever new loans may be made. If flexible repay-
ment or 4-kny other income.contingent scheme is restricted only to
new borrowers, all current borrowers are condemned to not having
any alternative means of repayment if their income is less than
their debt.

The more than $50 billion oi loans currently in repayment will
spin out at an annual default cost of $3 billion or so per year for
the next 5 or 10 years if no repayment options are offered to bor-
rowers already in the pipeline. I think the Petri bill is the best on
this regard because they allow current GSL borrowers to come into
the new system. So, any proposal that does that I would myself
support.

In terms of negative amortization, Simon, Miller/Bradley, and
Petri all would require that interest be added to principal when
income-contingency payments exceed a borrower's interest obliga-
tion. The committee bill, by contrast, does not require negative am-ortization. For that reason, I would favor it, at least for that pro-
posal.

Finally, on the matter of IRS involvement, I want to point out
that involving the IRS in student loan collection does not reduce
defaults to zero. If a student does not have enough income to repay
their student loans, having the IRS on their case is not going to
resolve the issue any differently. The IRS cannot affect the repay-
ment of borrowers who are unable to pay rather than those who
are unwilling to pay.

Through the rough sense of the magnitudes involved here, rough-
ly one-third of the loans that default now are repaid under the ar-
rangement by which State guarantee agencies collect on those
loans after default has occurred. When you take out the 30 percent
that the agencies retain, that brings it down to about 25 percent,
of the loans that defauit, about 25 percent of them, net, are repaid
over some period of time.

There was recently, as part of the Unemployment Insurance
Compensation Bill, a provision for wage garnishment. The Depart-
ment of Education apparently assumes that wage garnishment
would increase this collection to roughly 50 percent or possibly a
little bit more. It would be my guess that IRS collection might raise
this collection figure to maybe 70 or 80 percent, but that still
leaves 20 to 30 percent of defaults uncollected. In short, the IRS
collection reduces the default problem but does not make it go
away.

I just want to add one thing which is I've heard a number of
folks at different times state that tuitions would be fueled by
thesean increase in tuitions would occur as a result of these pro-
visions.

I don't see anything in the bills that either leads to higher tui-
tions or lower tuitions than what we have today in the current stu-
dent aid system. I've talked about that to this committee before
and would be glad to answer questions about it. But I'm reluctant
to have the argument made that this is going to lead to runaway
tuition increases in the future.
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'd be glad to answer questions at any
time.

[The prepared statement of Arthur Hall/Amin follows:]
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Mr Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

I appreciate the opportunity to testify before you today on several of the

proposals currently before the Congress which would entail reforms in the

federal student loan programs. Specifically you have asked me to review the

strengths and weaknesses of H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050. To place these bills in

context. however, I will also refer to current law and to other proposals that

are before the Congress, including the House Committee bill itself (H.R. 3553).

I want to begin by urging you to recognize that the various pieces of

legislation which Congress is now considering contain at least four provisions

that would substantially modify the current system of student loans, including:

o Direct Lending by Institutions;

o Elimination of the In.School Interest Subsidy:

o Income Contingent Repayment Schedules; and

o Loan Collection by the Internal Revenue Service.

Each of these four issues deals with very different aspects of the

currcnt loan systcm. Direct lending is a question of the source of capital for

student loans. The provision of thc in.school interest subsidy involves who

should receive government benefits. Income contingency is a repayment

issuc. IRS involvement raises the question of program administration.

Each of these issues is controversial in its own right and deserves

serious conversation. The public policy debate, in my view, is not enhanced

when these issucs are all lumped together and debated collectively. Each

should be dealt with separately, argued on its own merits. To this end, I have

included at the cud of this tcstimony a chart which compares the various

provisions of these bills in an effort to highlight both thcir similarities and

differences at least with respect to these four issues.

Direct Lending. The notion behind the various direct student loan

proposals is a simple one: that it would be cheaper for the federal government

to finance student loans by borrowing at the Treasury bill rate than to rely on

thc currcnt program in which banks and other private sources of capital arc

paid 3.25 percentage points above thc prevailing Treasury bill rate to make thc

loans. In addition, a direct loan arrangement could ease program

administration by enabling educational institutions to package all aid at :he

campus level rathcr than scnd students to banks for their loans.

-I -
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Curiously enough, the debate over direct loans first gathered steam over
a year ago when newspaper accounts indicated that the Bush administration
was considering a proposal to replace the existing bank-based program with
direct loans. Since then, however, the Administration has apparently decided
that it would rather stick with the existing student loan program and its $S
billion a year price tag than try something new.

Not surprisingly, banks and others that profit from the program are
now lauding the Administration against those in Congress who want to try a
direct loan approach. They have generated analyses which assert there are
many hidden costs to direct loans and have produced reams of rhetoric
explaining why it would be better to stay with the existing program than to
take a chance on the unknown.

Ironically, after years of claiming that they only make student loans out
of a sense of social obligation, the banks are now saying they would like to
continue making student loans because it is one of their few remaining
profitable lines of business. A recent study released by the Department of
Education bears this out: it indicates that student loan profit margins are
higher than for many other types of bank investments, including car loans,
home mortgages, and Treasury securities.

What has been surprising is that administration officials in the
Depanment of Education and at OMB are mouthing the same concerns as the
banks. In response to this Subcommittee's request for the Administration's
view on direct loans, Education Secretary Lamar Alexander first gave
lukewarm support for thc concept of direct lending but expressed concerns
about the particulars of the proposal that is being debated. More recently, the
Secretary has said that the President would likely veto a bill that contained
direct lending provisions.

The Administration has thrcc basic objections. First, it says that thc
federal government should not be borrowing money to make direct loans,
thereby increasing .he debt and the deficit and possibly creating another S &
L-typt bailout in student loans. Second, it is reluctant to create a program that
would obligate the federal government to bear all the risk of default, unlike
the current program where it claims some risk sharing now exists. Finally,
the Administration opposes direct loans because it says that its own
Depanment of Education is not competent to run such a large undcrtaking.

-2 -
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The Administration's three blind mice of no more federal borrowing, no

risk sharing, and no competence deserve to be put to sleep. On the matter of

federal borrowing, Administration officials for some reason are choosing to

ignore the fact that under the new credit reform rules which they advocated

and which were adopted as part of the 1990 budget agreement, direct loans
were placed on an equal footing with guaranteed loans under federal budget

accounting procedures precisely as a way to make federal loan programs more

efficient. The Administration's opposition to direct student loans also ignores

the fact that since the federal budget is in deficit, the federal government

borrows more than $5 billion a year for interest and default payments in the

current program which it never will get back. At least under direct loans,

much of whatever the government borrows will be repaid.
Despite OMB assertions to the contrary, there is no real risk sharing in

thc current program. As long as lenders follow "due diligence" rules, they are
assured of receiving 100 percent of whatever default claims they submit to the

state-designated agencies that initially guarantee the loans. Borrowers are

charged fees to cover whatever the federal government does not reimburse

ihe state agencies. Moreover, last year when the the biggest such agency, the

Higher Education Assistance Foundation (HEAF) failed, the federal government

picked up the pieces by fully guaranteeing the remainder of HEAF's bad loans.
The fact is that risk sharing in both Stafford Loans and direct loans

could be easily achieved by having panicipating lenders and colleges eat a
portion the costs of defaults over a certain level, and by not allowing them to

shift these costs to borrowers. The Administration surely would do better by

considering reasonable alternatives instead of its apparent current policy of

simply rejecting out of hand anything to do with direct lending.
The question of the competence of the Department of Education to

administer a program of this size is a valid one, especially if direct loans were

run as a highly centralized program. But a direct loan program could and

should be highly decentralized, with many of the administrative

responsibilities farmed out to the state agencies or other nonprofit groups at a

fraction of the cost of what the government currently pays the banks.
What is needed in this debate now is less rhetoric and more

thoughtfulness about how a direct loan program might actually work. The

critics of direct loans are right whcn thcy say that it is neither feasible nor

desirable at this time to cash out the existing program and to replace it with an
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untried idea where few of the details have been worked out. But it makes even
less sense to say that since this idea of potentially great benefit is untested, we
should blindly stick with the inefficient and very costly model we now have.

Vie more reasonable alternative would be to establish a substantial
direct lending option now of at least several billion dollars a year. Then over a
period of several years, direct lending could be responsibly evaluated and
compared to the existing program. By the time of the next reauthorization in
1997 and probably even sooner, we woulti then have a much better sense
whether direct loans is the right answer for the future or not.

It is also critical that the direct lending option be set up to allow for
adequate evaluation and testing. In this context, care should be taken to avoid
many of the pitfalls that befell the Income Contingent Loan program that was
included in the 1986 reauthorization. The ICL pilot was flawed in several
fundamental ways that doomed its effectiveness from the first. Participating
institutions were allowed little or no flexibility in designing how they would
provide the loans. The ICL loan terms were distinctly less favorable to students
than the regular GSL program and the percentage of income that borrowers
were required to repay in many cases would disqualify the borrower from
bcing eligible for a mongage. Not surprisingly, the vast majority of students
chosc OSL over ICL. In addition, the ICL pilot was inadequately funded, with
only 10 schools participating, certainly not enough to give a true perspective
of the merits of the approach. In short, the ICL was not designed to allow for
an adequate evaluation, a major shortcoming for a program billed as a pilot.

A direct lending option in this reauthorization should consciously avoid
the mistakes made with ICL. The option should be large enough to allow for
adequate testing of different approaches. Institutions which participate
should be allowed sufficient latitude in trying different kinds of direct lending
approaches. The terms and conditions to student borrowers should be the samc
as in the GSL program to provide a level playing field. One possibility would bc
to test direct lending in several designated states, and to allow state agencies to
act as direct lenders for students t.t nonparticipating institutions.

You should also note that none of the alternatives now being discussed
by the Congress arc as radical as the suggestions made by Bob Reisehauer or
Barry Bluestone. Their proposals would involve using the Social Security Trust
Fund as a future source of student loan capital and the payroll tax system as the
means of repayment. Personally, I find the notion of using the Social Security

-4 -
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system as a source of capital quite appealing, although I would Advocate

lending the funds to the institutions rather than directly to the students. I

would also note that the Reischauerfilluestone approach would be
substantially less amenable to au experimental pilot program than the direct
loan approachcs presently under consideration in the Congress.

Elimination of the In-School Interest Subsidy. The largest long term
subsidy in the current GSL program, it may surprise you, is not defaults.
Instead, it is the interest the federal government pays on behalf of borrowers
while they are in school and for a grace period thereafter. In-school interest

costs comprise well over half of the total long term federal costs of loans, when
costs are measured over the life of the loan and discounted to reflect their

present value as called for under credit reform rules.

Thc House Committee bill would preserve this subsidy, but each of the
other proposals discussed here would eliminate it. In place of the federal
payment of interest, the other proposals would allow students to defer their
interest obligations while in school and to add this interest to the principal
amount borrowed.

The potential for federal cost savings are a major reason for eliminating
the in-school interest subsidy. All of the other provisions combined in the

various proposals now before Congress -- including direct lending, income
contingent repayment, and IRS collection -- do not generate as much federal
cost saving as the elimination of the in-school interest subsidy. The o'her
principal argument for eliminating the in-school interest subsidy is that it
may be morc appropriate to provide subsidies in this program based on the
income of the borrower during repayment than to subsidize borrowers on the
basis of (heir parents' or their own income before they borrow. I find (his a
very compelling argument, but it only works if income contingent repayment
options are provided and if some range of low incomc borrowers arc subsidized
during repayment.

The principal argument for retaining the in-school interest subsidy is
(hat its elimination will greatly add to the loan burden of borrowers. The

individual who borrows $10.000 while an undergraduate could easily end up
owing $15,000 due to the accrual of interest while in school. The medical

student with $100,000 initially borrowed ends up with $150,000 or more in
principal and interest owed. Rather than correcting (he loan/grant
imbalance", (he elimination of the in-school interest subsidy would add to it.

-5 -
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Ultimately, the question of whether to retain the in-school interest
subsidy should boil down to the relative merits of different subsidies. The
attention that is being paid now to various student loan proposals has had the

ancillary positive effect of highlighting the fact that the federal payment of
in-school interest is of substantial value to the borrower. For many middle
class students, their exemption from paying in-school interest far exceeds the
value of their becoming eligible for Pell Grants. My advice is that Members
should think hard about the relative merits of grants and in-school interest
subsidies rather than viewing them as entirely different forms of assistance.

Income Contingent Repayment. The concept of income contingent

repayments for student loans has been around for a long time, stretching back
at least to an article written by Milton Friedman in 1945. The basic notion is
that it makes more sense for student loan borrowers to repay on the basis of
their income onc :. they complete their education than to charge them a fixed
amortized amour.: that often bears little resemblance to their ability to repay.

In the context of the current debate, several key questions should be
raiscd with regard to income contingent repayments. One is the formula for
determining the level of repayments. The second is whether all borrowers
should be subject, to income contingency, or should it be restricted to those
borrowcrs who cannot meet their repayment obligations. And third is what
happens to those borrowers whose income contingent repayments are

insufficicnt even to rcpay the interest on their loan obligations.

Income contingent repayment can be tied to a number of factors,
including: the interest rate charged, length of repayment, and the percentage
of income that is devoted to student loan repayment. Most income contingent
proposals in the past have called for a fixed percentage of income per $1000
borrowed. The Miller/Bradley bill would require that borrowers pay 5 percent
of their income regardless of the amount borrowed, but it also would limit
repayments so that borrowers would pay no less than 66 percent and no morc
than 150 percent of what is owed based on the aversge gross incomes of
individuals with college educations. The Petri and Simon bills put a different
twist on the typical approach by varying a number of factors according to the
borrower's income including: the percentage of income paid in a progressive
fashion, the interest rate charged, and the length of repsyment. The graph on
the following page of this testimony indicates how repayment of $10,000 in
loans under these plans would diffcr for borrowcrs at different income levels
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PRESENT VALUE OF REPAYMENTS ON $10,000 LOAN UNDER ALTERNATIVE LOAN PROPOSALS
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Each of the income contingent proposals currently before the Congress
contemplates that all new student loan borrowers will repay on the basis of
their incomes once they graduate or complete their education. The
requirement that all borrowers repay on an income contingent basis stems
from the notion that higher income borrowers are needed in the pool of
repayers to help pay the costs of lower income borrowers whose repayments
based on their income are not sufficient to meet their student loan obligations.

Economists use the term "cross subsidy" to describe when higher
income borrowers help pay off the obligations of flwer income borrowers.
The advantage of using cross subsidies is that in,ome contingency can then bc
self financing as wealthier borrowers make up for what lower income
borrowers cannot pay. This self financing feature is the principal reason
why each of the current proposals except the Committee bill and the Simon bill
would require all borrowers to repay on an income contingent basis. In the
graph on the preceding page, the degree to which higher income borrowers
in thc Petri and Miller bills would pay more than they borrowed (as indicated
by the flat portion of the Simon bill) is the cross subsidy these bills.

The disadvantage of using cross subsidies to finance student loans is that
individuals who expect that their incomes will be highT.: tend to resist
panicipating in a program in which they will be asked to repay more than
what they owe with interest. This process of higher income borrowers opting
out of income contingent plans is referred to as "adverse selection". It is
difficult if not impossible to design a cross subsidized program in which
adverse selection would not occur. If policymakers want to avoid adverse
selection, however, alternatives to cross subsidy must be identified to finance
the unmet obligations of low income borrowers.

The best way to avoid adverse selection is not to. require higher income
borrowers to repay more than they owe. The Simon bill would do this by
cnding repayments once borrowcrs have rcpaid all they owe in principal and
interest. Another simpler method for avoiding cross subsidies and adverse
selection is to allow those borrowers for whom student loan repayments are
not a problem to continue to pay on a traditional, amortized (equa' payment)
basis. The Committee bill would allow this to happen by permitting income
contingency at the borrower's option. Borrowers who are not having trouble
with their repayments would continue to repay as they do now. Only those in
trouble would avail themselves of graduated or income contingent schedules.

-7 -
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This notion of leaving income contingent repayment at the option of

the bonower is also what is contemplated in the flexible repayment proposal

put forth by the higher education associations and endorsed, I might add, by

the Consumer Bankers Association. I would commend the Committee's

attention to the income contingent approach that would occur under flexible

repayment in that it would minimize administrative difficulties by limiting the

program to those who need it. The bulk of borrowers would be able to continue

repaying u they do now. What flexible repayment would do is allow students

whose debts exceed their income (a good proxy measure for which borrowers

are having difficulty) to petition for assistance in the form of extended,

graduated, or income contingent terms.
The current loan consolidation provisions are a form of flexible

repayment at least .for the borrowers who qualify (those with debts in excess

of $7,500). Lender forebearance is another form of existing flexible

repayment in that borrowers in difficulty are excused from repayment for up

to a year. But the problem with both the current consolidation and

forebearance provisions is that they t ost the federal government money as

special allowance and other payments arc larger and continue for a longer

period of time than would be the case under a normal repayment schedule.

A key for making a flexible repayment system work in a cost effective

way is to get the loans out of the hands of the banks and into the hands of

nonprofit organizations which will not require a special allowance in order to

maintain the loan. One obvious candidate for this job is the guaranty agencies.

Thcy in effect do this already when they pay off the bank for a default and

then seek collection from the borrower. The only difference is now we call

these borrowers defaulters, while in the case of flexible repayment, they

would continue in active repayment at reduced levels for more years.

The other key for a successful flexible repayment program is to do it on

an exception basis by placing responsibility on the borrower to petition for

relief. Flexible repayment is not for everyone, and the way to keep it

manageable is to limit its benefits to students who are willing to apply for it.

For the bulk of borrowers who are not having difficulty making their
repayments, they would continue to repay as they do now. Income tax forms

would not be necessary for them.

This leaves the question of what to do with borrowers whose income-

based repayments are not sufficient even to meet the interest on what they

-8 -
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owe. Several options exist in this regard. One is not to reduce the obligations
of lower income borrowers, but to make them pay over a longer period of time,
by adding the unpaid interest to what they already owe. When interest is
added to principal during repayment, "negative amortization" occurs,
reflecting the fact the borrower's obligation grows over time rather than
being reduced as would happen in the caw of a normal repayment.

In order to be self financing, each of the proposals other the Committee
bill would require negative amortization on the loans of some borrowers. This
is the feature of the proposals that I find most objectionable. If borrowers
cannot find work sufficient to pay off their student loan obligations, or more
importantly, if they choose to take lower paying jobs, then I think it is wrong
for the government to add to their loan burden through negative amonization.
The Petri and Simon proposals would forgive these repayments after 25 years,
but by then the damage may have already been done.

One alternative to negative amortization is to use borrower fees to pay
for the costs of subsidizing low income borrowrs. For example, the current
origination fee and the insurance premium that guaranty agencies charge
could be used to pay for the shortfall of low income borrowers. This would be a
cross subsidy of sorts, but the difference is that all borrowers would
contribute, not just higher income borrowers, and the fee would be charged
before individuals kncw what their future income would be. Or the
government could decide to subsidize the costs of these low income borrowers.
These costs which would be fairly minimal compared to the total current
federal costs of GSL -- subsidizing the repayments of low income borrowers
would cost no niore than 5 percent of the initial amount borrowed, compared to
the current GSL program where the federal government now pays out over 25
cents per dollar loaned in the form of interest and default payments.

My own preference in this regard is to charge a fee to all borrowers to
pay the cost of low income borrowers. This would avoid both adverse selection
and negative amortization, while minimizing the government's budgetary
exposure. Most borrowers already pay these fees; I would propose that the
purpose of these fees be clearly identified with default prevention rather than
the current practice of using the fees to pay a portion of the interest cost: in
the program. To the extent that the government would be obligated to pay the
costs over and above those covered by the fees, there would be a reduced
federal budgetary exposure relative to current policy.

-9
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IRS Collection of Loans. Perhaps the most contentious issue that

surrounds most income contingent proposals is that they usually require that

the Internal Revenue Service to collect the loans. This proposed use of the IRS

stems from the notion that if repayment is going to be tied to income, why not

use the government agency that knows what everybody's income is?

One of the biggest obstacles to this in the put has been reluctance of

the IRS to get into the business of student loan collection. Some observers,

however, have pointed out that the IRS is already in the business in that it

withholds the refunds of taxpayers who have defaulted on their student loans.

But withholding refunds of defaulters is a far cry from regularly collecting on

the loans of many millions of student loan borrowers.
The more important issue, in my opinion, is whether it is worth getting

the IRS involved when more than 80 percent of student loan borrowers (the

nondcfaulters) are making their repayments on a regular basis. Why have all

thc borrowers in good standing subject themselves to the rigors of IRS

collection when they are perfectly content and able to pay off their student

loans just as they would any other type of loan? It is for this reason that I

strongly favor flexible repayment to income contingency for all borrowers.

I would also like to take this opportunity to dispel a prevalent
misconception about a potential benefit of IRS collection of student loans. It is

often asserted that bringing the IRS into student loan collection would

eliminate defaults. That is not thc case. For thc borrowers whose income is

insufficient to repay their loans, or to even cover the interest owed, using the
IRS does not mean these borrowers are any more sble to repay their loans

than without the IRS involvement. The IRS would certainly be helpful in

reducing the fraud associated with student loans by bringing into line those

borrowers who can repay but choose rot to. But it should not be any more

effective in getting people with little or no incomc to repay.

To the extent that most defaulters are in the latter category of being

unable to rcpay rather than unwillipg to pay, IRS collection will not solve thc

bulk of the default problem. In addition, it is possible that IRS involvement

will convert some amount of what we currently call default into what

reasonably might be referred to as tax evasion. That is, tying student loan

repayments to the income of borrowers would increase whatever incentives

currently exist for taxpayers to undcrrepon their income.

-10 -
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I would like to conclude by commenting on a question which was raised
previously in Senate hearings about whether these loan proposals will either
lead to higher tuitions or to a greater shifting of responsibility for paying for
college from the generation of parents to the generation of students.

My general response to this question is that there is no particular
reason why these loan proposals would lead in this direction any more than
dots current policy. If loan limits are increased either in the current GSL
program or in some new program. then the threat of tuition inflation exists.
and steps should be taken to prevent this from happening. I have previously
testified before this committee suggesting that student aid awards in both Pell
Grants and GSL should be limited to the average expenditures for instruction at
different types of institutions to prevent tuition inflation from occurring
because of incentives currently imbedded in the student aid programs.

On the matter of intergenerational shifting of responsibilities for
paying for college, as with the case of tuition inflation, the proposals before
you now contain no more or less incentive for intergenerational shifting than
do the current programs of student aid. In my opinion, neither direct loans
nor income contingent repayments po se will affect this balance.

A better way to address the real question of intergenerational shifting
may be to make parent loans a more attractive borrowing option than is
currently the case. It is my sense that thus far in this reauthorization process
Congress has paid relatively little attention to the issue of parent loans. If
your concern about intergenerational shifting of responsibilities is genuine,
then more should done to make parent loans a more viable alternative, either
by reducing the PLUS interest rate or perhaps by allowing parents to use the
federal inschool interest subsidy which previously has been available only to
student borrowers. In effect, the subsidy could only be used once on each
loan. but parents and their children would decide who could use it.

My Chairman, that concludes my formal testimony. I would be glad to
answer questions at this time.
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COMPARISON OF GSL PROGRAM AND STUDENT LOAN PROPOSALS

Current Program House Commitwo Bill HR 2336 (Petri) HR 3050 (Miller/Bradley) S 1843 (Simon/Durenbure)

Direct Loans/Initial Source
of Capital?

No/private casnul Yes/sale of bonds Yes/sale of bonds md
repayment of loam

Yeshurtax on millionaires md
Education Tn111 Fund bonds

Yee/sale of bonds md
repayment of loans

Supplant Existing GSL
Proven?

Yes. by 1996 No, but SLS is phased out No Yes

Fees Charged so Bormwers 5% origination fee; up to
3% insistence premium

none none none none

Loan Limiu 2-4ffiligaElt
$2.623 In yr, $4,000
other undersea& 57,500

pad & prof
gleglIL.ive:$17,250
uridergre& $54,750

Stsa/Plor
Poo lemma! tsisy

Subsidised/Annual: $6,300 Annuli: $6500 lit IX 2nd
yr, 111.000 other undeterred;
511,000 gred; $22500
pharmecy. public health;
$30,000 various medical.
dental, mid veterinary,
Cumulative: 570,000, oe ku

&pa& $10,000
Cumulative; $33000

&mg 16.500 leithid yr,
$1.000 other undsegrack

$11.000 Vad: $20.1300
mod/high-cost Pla $30,000
extra high4oet grad
Cumuladvn 570.000.1ese if
borrower owe 40; 5100,000
medrItigh.cost Phd; 5120,000
extra high cost grad

1st yr; $6,000 other
unclog:0d; $13000 grid
Cumulative: $36,500
undergrath 591,500 gred

kviatosidsagl
$4.000 lii ir; $6.000 otheit
=derv& 510,000 grid
Cumulative: $26000

if borrower is ovet 35;
$I 15.700 pharmacy, public
health; $142870 medical

Assul: $4,000
Curruilativel $20,000 undergrad; 571.000 gred

Interen Rile Charged to
BOTICIIVOIll

8% for first 4 yens of
repayman,10% theredne

subsidized: 1%
unsubrithead. T.bil1.3.23%

91 day T-bill+2%. with a
mu of 10%

Average ran of 10 and 30 Yes
Treasury bonds, mu of 10 %

91 day T.bill+2%, with a max
of 10%

In-School Interest Paid by
Federal Governmau?

Yes. fee student with
AriNICild need

Yes, foe student' with
financial need

No No No

Income Contingent
Repayment Terms?

No Yes. greduseed I.:4 income
contingent terms at
burrower option, with a
minimum annual repayment
of $600

Yes, foe all borrowers.
Repayment based on

progressive percenuge of
income

Yes, for all borrowen. Repay
at 5% of income, minimum mid
muirmen payments eel at 66%
Ind 150% of average income

Yes, foe all borrowers.
Repayment based on
progressive percentage of
Income

Cross Subsidy &MOM
Borrower Gmups?

No No Yes Yes No. Repayment emit when
loans am fully repaid.

Nunn., Amortization foe
Borrowers in Repayment?

No No Yes Yes Yes

Length of Repayment 10 yn (25 yn for
corrolidating)

10 yrs (more et the ED
Secretary's option)

25 yn (remaining loan
forgiven after 23 yrs)

15. 20, or 23 yrs 23 yrs (remaking loon
(orgiven Ma 25 yre)

IRS Collection? No No Yes Yes Yes

Conversim of Existing
Loons to Direct Loans or
Income Contingent?

No Yes, elective under
consolidation provisions

Yes No Yes, mendatory foe all
defaulted loins, elective for
others.

Estimated Federal

Cosi Per TBill.5%:
51,000 Lom T.Hill.10%

5270
$490

5250

5280
550

550

570

$70

160

560

CsD
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Mr. SEARS. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, my nameis Ken Sears and I'm the Associate Director of Student Financial
Aid at West Virginia University, and I work at the Health Sciences
Center Campus. In my capacity as a financial aid administrator,
I've been directly involved with the awarding and management of
student aid for 23 years.

I'm here today to testify on behalf of several professional Fchool
associations, including schools of allopathic medicine, dentistry,
nursing, pharmacy, podiatry, eptometry, veterinary medicine,
public health, and programs in health administration and allied
health, as well as over 200,000 students enrolled at those institu-
tions.

I have written testimony that I would like to submit. I'll make
my observations short and brief this morning because of the hour.I need to tell 3rou that my view is one from the trenches. I'm afoot soldier in this business of student aid. I see the students that
walk through the door. Literally, I see every one of them. Because
of that, I'd like to thank the committee for the current student aid
programs that we have, for all of the opportunity that our studentshave had over the past 25 or 30 years.

If you ever need a testimonial from a student, give me a call. Iknow many. I can tell you about a gentleman by the name of Scott,
an African-American from Paw Paw, West Virginia, who camefrom a family without a father. His mother survived on Social Se-
curity benefits. Scott is now a cardiologist.

I can tell you about Sherman from Cabin Creek, West Virginia.
Sherman came from a foster home. He had been abused as a child.He spent his summers working in a circus so he'd have a place tostay during the summers.

Scott not only managed to negotiate the process as an undergrad-
uate, but also managed to get himself admitted to our medicalschool a few years ago.

This morninr I'd like to focus my remarks on why income-sensi-
tive repayment is beneficial to health profession students.

Indebtedness and access to financial aid are particular concernsin the health profession area. Federal grant support is available
only to a small portion of our students. The vast majority of health
professional students have to borrow, and they graduate with con-siderable debt. The programs authorized under Title IV of the
Higher Education Act are critical sources of financial aid for ourstudents. In fact, among the 1990 medical and dental school gradu-
ates, over 75 percent borrowed a Stafford Loan and nearly one-
third utilized the Supplemental Loan for Students in the PerkinsLoan Program.

Although it's reasonable to expect students to borrow in order tofinance graduate or professional education, the escalation and the
level of educational debt is causing alarm in our community. Medi-
cal and dental school graduate indebtedness has increased over 75percent in constant dollars in the last decade. Mean debt among1990 medical and dental students was $46,224 and $45,550, respec-
tively.

Even more troubling than these averages are the numbers, espe-cially of disadvantaged and minority students graduating with
debts exceeding $50,000. In addition, $100,000 of educational debt is

1 3
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not uncommon for health profession graduates. While some stu-
dents in health profession disciplines such as nursing and public
health have shorter periods of in-school training and may not incur
these very high debt levels, the relatively lower starting salary of
these disciplines intensifies the problem of repayment.

Many health professionals in the higher-paid disciplines also ex-
perience difficulty in repaying their loans during the first few
years after school, difficulties which are exacerbated when the in-
debted graduates opt for lower paying careers in primary care or
underserved rural and inner city settings.

In order to meet successfully the challenges faced by health pro-
fession students with heavy debt loads, we need to be able to offer
more grants, higher loan limits on low-interest loan programs, and
offer more flexible repayment schedules. However, Federal budget
constraints limit Congress ability to offer more grants and subsi-
dize loans. Unfortunately, the committee's reauthorization bill does
not yet include these measures for health profession students.

We see three inherent advantages in the concept of an income-
sensi Ave loan repayment program. First, income dependent repay-
ment schedules factor in a graduates earnings and aggregate level
of borrowing, thereby enabling the individual to satisfy the educa-
tional debt in a manner formulated on his or her ability to pay.

Second, income-sensitive loans promote simplicity in the finan-
cial aid process in a variety of ways, including allowing all borrow-
ing to take place through one Title IV program, reducing paper-
work burdens, eliminating the necessity of deferments or forbear-
ance, and precluding technical defaults.

Finally, through income-sensitive repayment plans, prospective
students can matriculate and borrow at the level necessary to fi-
nance an education leading to a public service career, without con-
cern that their salary upon graduation will not support repayment
at that level of debt.

In addition to easing repayment, any income-dependent loan pro-
posal should provide borrowing options for students that are supe-
rior to the current system. A major component of this is realistic
loan limits that would be sufficient to eliminate the need for
health profession students to borrow from HEAL or other high-cost
programs.

We believe the income-dependent loan proposals offer new and
innovative structures for student financial aid. Thank you, and I'd
be glad to try and respond to any questions.

[The prepared statement of Kenneth Sears follows:]
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Good morning. My name is Ken Sears, I am the Associate Director of Financial Aid at West

Virginia University at the Health Sciences campus. In my capacity as a financial ald

administrator, I have been directly involved In the management and awarding of financial ald for

the past twenty-three years. I am here today to testify on behalf of Several professional school

associations representing schools of allopathic medicine, dentistry, nursing, pharmacy, podiatry,

optometry, veterinary medicine and public health, and programs in health administration and

allied health, and academic health centers, as well as over 200,000 students enrolled at

institutions providing these programs.

This morning I would like to focus my remarks on why income sensitive repayment would be
-

beneficial to health professions students.

Indebtedness and acceus to financial aid are particular concerns in health professions

education. Federal grant support is available only to a small portion of our students. Hence,

the vast majority of our health professions students must borrow to finance their educations and

graduate with considerable debt burdens. The programs authorized under Title IV of the Higher

Education Act are critical sources of financial aid for our students. In fact, among the 1990

medical arid dental school graduates, over 75% borrowed a Stafford loan, and nearly one third

utilized the SuprAmental Loan for Students (SLS) and the Perkins loan programs.

Approximately 50% of nursing students and 70% of optometry students borrowed from Stafford,

and two thirds of the Optometry students also utilized SLS. Clearly, without Stafford Student

Loans, Supplemental Loans for Students, and campus-based Perkins Loans, health professions

students would find it difficult, If not impossible, to finance their education.

It is important to note, however, that Titie IV loan sources do not meet fully the needs of many

health professions students. As these students reach the maximum borrowing levels in Title IV

subsidized programs, they are forced to rely on more expensive loans, such as the Health

Education Assistance Loan (HEAL), with terms and conditions much less favorable than the

1
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Title IV loans. HEAL borrowers currently pay an 5 percent insurance premium upon origination
and are charged a floating interest rate tied to the 91-day Treasury bill. Despite the costly
terms and the fact that the HEAL loan was designed as a loan of last resort', last year HEAL
was the seoond largest financial source behind the Stafford Student loan program for health
professions students.

Although it is reasonable to expect students to borrow in order to finance graduate or

professional education, the annual escalation in the level of educational debt Is causing alarm In
our community. Medical and dental school graduate indebtedness has increased over 76
percent in constant dollars in the last decade. Mean debt among 1990 medical and dental

students was $46,224 and $45,550, respectively. Even more troubling than these averaaes are
the numbers, especially of disadvantaged and minority students, graduating with debts
exceeding $50,000. In addition, $100,000 of educational debt is not uncommon for health
professions graduates. While some students in health professions disciplines such as nursing
and public health have shorter periods of in-school training and may not incur these very high
debt levels, the relativqly lower starting salary of these disciplines intensifies the problem of
repayment Many health professionals in the higher-paid disciplines also experience difficulty in

repaying their loans during the first few years after school, difficulties which are exacerbated

when indebted graduates opt for lower paying careers in primary care or underserved rural and
inner city settings. RN example, the 1990 starting salary for a registered nurse averaged

$24,768, approximately $50,000 for a general pediatrician, and approximately $40,000 for a
general dentist. Some health professions graduates are interested in, but financially deterred
from, such career choices. Similarty, the debt-to-income-ratio of a heavily indebted graduate
can make it impossible, despite the Individual's willingness, to make the required loan payments
during the first few years following graduation.

It is necessary to note that many health professions students must continue in a training
program, known as a residency or internship, following graduation in order to become licensed
or certified. Residency training for medical school graduates lasts between three and seven
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years depending on the specialty, during which time the average stipend received in 1990 was

approximately $27,000. Other disciplines do not require post-graduate clinical training, but many

of their graduates choose to participate in internship or residency training programs to prepare

them for specialty practice, such as in geriatrics. In a number of cases, theso residents are

required to pay tuition to participate in that supervised clinical experience. In dentistry, for

example, well over nalf of those graduates who participate in residency programs pay tuition

and receive little if any stipend. Loan repayment is particularly problematic for residents and

interns.

In order to meet successfully the challenges faced by health professions students with heavy

debt loads, we need to be able to offer more grants, higher loan limits on low interest loan

programs, and offer more flexible repayment schedules. These steps would decrease the

number of students with enormous debt, create a better balance between the grant and loan

aid available, reduce overall debt burdens, curtail the instance of default, ease repayment, and

facilitate the ability of health professionals to afford lower income positions in underserved areas

as well as careers in primary care, teaching or research. However, federal budget constraints

limit Congress' ability to offer more grants and subsidized loans, and unfortunately, the

Committee's Reauthorization bill does not yet include these measures for health professions

students.

We see three inherent advantages in the concept of a income-sensitive loan repayment

program, First, income dependent repayment schedules factor in a graduate's earnings and

aggregate level of borrowing, thereby enabling the individual to satisfy the educational debt r a

manner formulated on his or her ability to pay. Second, income sensitive loans promote

simplicity in the financial aid process in a variety of ways, including allowing all borrowing to

take place through one Title tV program, reducing paper work burdens, eliminating the necessity

of deferments or forbearance, and precluding technical defaults. Finally, through income

sensitive repayment plans, prospective students can matriculate and borrow at the level

necessary to Mance an education leading to a public service career, without concern that their

1 -1 3



138

salary upon graduation will not support repayment at that level of debt.

In addition to easing repayment, any income-dependent loan proposal shoukl provide borrov ing
options for students that are superior to the current system. A major component of this is
realistic loan limits that would be sufficient to eliminate the need for health professions students

to borrow from HEAL or other high cost programs. In setting higher loan limits and longer
repayment periods, we recognize that some health professions students may pay slightly more
over the life of a loan than would be the case under existing standards. This point is
neutralized by the fact that borrowers wOuld be offered an option that is responsive to the

timing of their ability to repay the debt and that they could borrow with confidence that they

could service the debt over time. Apprehensions related to a borrower's abUity to meet
educational debt obligations exists in the current system. Income sensitive repayment would

remove this element of fear and represent a positive step for students, institutions, and the
government.

We believe the income dependent loan proposals offer new and innovative structures for

student financial aid. We would be pleased to discuss this further with committee staff and help

develop details that are related to this program. On behalf of the associations I am here to
represent, I thank the Committee for alkiwing us to make these comments. I will be happy to
respond to questions or to clarify or expand on my remarks.
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Mr. DAVIS. Good afternoon. I'm Jerry Davis, Vice President for
Research and Policy Analysis for the Pennsylvania Higher Educa-
tion Assistance Agency; that's the agency th it administers State fi-
nancial aid programs and guarantees Fedei al loans in the common-

wealth.
We don't grow tobacco. I make that comment because Senator

Simon indicated that sometimes agencies such as ours have a
vested interest that clouds our testimony. I would like to say that
we have calculated that if there were a direct lending program, as
proposed in either the Senate or the House versions, that our
agency would make more money than we make right now. So, it
isn't a monetary or a financial issue with us.

I would like to just summarize my testimony, the written testi-
mony that you have. I appreciate what I assume must be a primary
motivation behind both of the income-contingent loan proposals,
and that is to reduce borrower repayment burdens and the poten-
tial for defaults. Trying to help ease borrower repayment burdens
is laudable. However, I think some compelling evidence indicates
that undergraduate Stafford Loan debts are not skyrocketing.

The baccalaureate graduates in Pennsylvania, where the college
costs are higher than they are in the rest of the Nation, and where
student access to loans is not restricted by need analysis, as it is
elsewhere, these college graduates in Pennsylvania are funding the

same proportion of their education costs with Stafford Loans in
1991 as they were 5 years ago.

A typical Bachelor degree recipient from Pennsylvania now
leaves school owing about $10,000. Now, experience and research
have shown that when loan payments reach 10 percent of a bor-

rower's gross income, they become burdensome and often lead to
default. NVhen I looked at the 1989 earnings of persons with 4 years
of college who were between ages 25 and 34these are the years
most borrowers will be repaying their loansI found that 23 per-
cent would have incurred debt burdens. That is, their annual pay-
ments would have represented 10 percent of their annual earnings
if they had borrowed today's typical $10,000 amount.

Over 7 out of 10 of the graduates with debt burdens would have
been females because they earn so much less than males. They also

were five timec as likely as males to have had no earnings. About
29 percent of the black graduates would have experienced debt bur-
dens because their average earnings were less than those of white
graduates, $22,000 versus $28,000.

So, only a fourth of the baccalaureate graduates would have had
debt burdens at the typical $10,000 level of borrowing. But female
and minority borrowers would be much more likely than others to
have had burdens. The evidence indicates that debt burdens are
more a function of borrower earnings than the amounts they
borrow.

Now, because loan debts are not rising to levels that are burden-
some for the majority of undergraduates, and because existing re-
payment burdens are not distributed evenly among all student
groups, offering income contingent loan programs to everyone may

be unnecessary and unwise.
I'm generally opposed to income-contingent loan programs. The

basic problem I have with them is that borrowers do not and
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cannot know how much it will cost to repay their loans when theyaccept them. If they cannot know this, then they cannot know howmuch their education will actually cost.
If they can't know what their educadon will actually cost, thenthey can't make intelligent and informed cost benefit analysis.They cannot access the relative value of attending institutions ofwidely different costs because they cannot compare the net cost;that is, the cost after financial aid of the alternative choices.I think virtually all income-contingent loan programs allow, ifnot encourage, borrowers to incur larger debts than fixed paymentprograms. Larger debts are made possible because payments fre-quently, but not always, represent smaller proportions of the bor-rower's income upon graduation when their earnings are less. Butsmaller loan payments made over many years ultimately meanthat the total payments for a given amount borrowed will be great-er than the payments made for a fixed payment loan, such as aStafford Loan.

It's impossible to escape the mathematics of the PRT equation,principal times rate times time, unless at some point interest isforegone, a portion of the principal is forgiven, or time collapsed.When student loans cost more, than so does the education pur-chased with them, regardless of the fact that paying for the educa-tion is spread over many more years.
When I compared the borrower's total repayments for $1,000 inStafford Loans and the same amount borrowed under the IDEAand the Self-Reliance scholarship programs, I found them to befrom 15 to 83 percent higher under the income-contingent plans.The differences for the borrowers who earned the least are dramat-ic.
When a borrower initially earns $13,000, and his income growsby 5 percent per year, he will eventually pay $27,518 for an IDEALoan and about, I think, around $21,000 for a Self-Reliance Schol-arship Loan, the differences of 83 and 40 percent, respectively. Atthe end of the 25 years of payments, IDEA borrowers who initiallyearned $13,000 would still owe over $9,000 in principal and inter-est, which the government would then forgive.
Now, it's clear that borrowers with below-average earnings willhave to pay more for IDEA and Self-Reliance Loans than will theirmore affluent peers in absolute dollars and proportions of theirincome. In other words, if you were a low-income earner and youaccept a loan under either one of these income-contingent pro .grams, you're going to have to pay more in absolute and propor-tionate terms.
Now, this means that the two proposals would discriminateagainst women and minorities and borrowers who entered lowerpaying professions, such as teachers and the ministry. Rather thanreducing the disincentive to borrow when a student is considering alower-paying ocripation, both the proposals add to the disincentiveand exacerbate the negative effects of education costs on choices ofinstitutions, majors and future careers.
Now, I know that some believe that income-contingent loans willsolve the default problem. This is wishful thinking. Borrowers de-fault on their loans primarily because they do not have enoughmoney to make the loan payments. The education and training de-
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faulters paid for with loans did not sufficiently enhance their abili-
ty to earn enough additional money to repay their loans. This gen-
eralization applies at every level of postsecondary education.

Income-contingent loan programs assume that all borrowers will
have incomes. But in 1989, 7 percent of the 4-year college gradu-
ates between age 25 and 34 had no earnings, and another 16 per-
cent earned less than $12,500. Now, giving students income-contin-
gent loans will not ensure that they have incomes or incomes sub-
stantial enough to amortize their loans.

It may be considered impossible to default on an income-contin-
gent loan, but it is very possible to not repay them. Failure to
repay them will cost the government money or the other borrowers
of the income-contingent loan, depending if you're having cross
funding.

Income-contingent loan programs can help reduce borrower's
debt burdens when they experience lower earnings, but so can for-
bearances and deferments and graduated repayment schedules that
are offered in the current programs. I think the best way to reduce
defaults is not through income-contingent loans, but is through as-
suring that the education and the training paid for with loans is of
the highest quality and enhances the student borrowers ability to
secure a good job with an adequate salary.

Another way to reduce defaults is to provide students who enter
quality programs but have academic, socioeconomic or other dis-
abilities which are likely to inhibit their success with a grant in-
stead of a loan, an income-contingent loan or otherwise.

When students are at risk, there is no social justice in making
them share the majority of the risk of trying to improve their con-
ditions through education paid for with loans when failure and con-
sequent default on those loans leave them worse off than had they
not attempted to improve themselves in the first place.

When considering ways to reduce debt burdens and loan defaults,
the persons who are responsible for providing financial aid to the
Nation's students should take to heart a primary tenet in the phy-
sician's code of ethics. First, do no harm. I think the income-contin-
gent loan program proposals before you will, if implemented, do
considerable harm and won't solve the problems that they're in-
tended to address.

Thank you for your consideration of my remarks.
[The prepared statement of Jerry Davis followsj
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The Simon-Durenburger IDEA proposal's repayment schedules as offered to
the media when the bill was introduced mike the proposal look much more
attractive in comparison to the current system than it would be in reality.
First of all, the media repayment schedules gummed total cumulative debts
under the current system that are much different from reality. For example,

here are the average amounts assumed and the actual average amounts borrowed
by Pennsylvania students who entered repayment during FeY 1991 after com
plating four years at a public university:

Income GrOups TDTA essemptien eilEAA Stafford.

Low Income $ 9,600 $9,715

Middle Income $18,000 $4,730
Nigh Income $18,000 $11,910

Sy using extraordinary amounts borrowed under the current system, the
media handouts did not offer a legitimate comparison of repeyment costs under
the current system and the IDEA proposal.

The more important problem with the Wth media handouts lies in the com-
parisons of proportions of monthly incomes devoted to repayments under IDEA

and the current system. The handouts appropriately described these propor-
tions in terms of monthly payments, but did not describe how many pays:Into
borrowers would have to make to amortize their loans under different
circumstances.

This paper compares the repayment schedules for borrowers who accept $10,000
in total Stafford or IDEA loans for four years of undergraduate study when the
borrowers have four different starting incomes, as defined bY the media hand-
outs. They arc Low Starting Income Borrowers, those who would earn only
$9,750 in their first repayment year; Average Starting Income Borrowers,
$13,000; High Starting Income Borrowers, $26,0001 and Higher starting Income
ftrrowers, $36,000. The analyses demonstrate that the IDEA proposal would
cost more students more for their education loans than tne current Stafford
Loan program and very well might cost the federal government more as well.

ft vas assumed thst all borrowers would borrow $2,500 each year for four

years end that they would repay their loans under the current Stafford Loan
provisions or ths proposed IDEA provisions. Table One shows amount. borrowers

would have to repay for their Stafford loans. Their monthly payments are $121

for the first four years (at 8 percent interest) and $128 for the next six
years (at 10 percent interest), for a grand total of $15,052 for the $10,000
borrowed.

All borrowers' repayment schedules are the same, regardless of their
starting incomes. The right half of the table shows the percentages of
different incomes represented by the monthly/annual repayments. All incomes

were inflated by 5 percent per year. Thus the Low.Starting Income group is

4seumed to earn $10,236 in the second year of repayment (9,750 times 1.05
opals $10,237.50), $10,749 in the third year of repayment ($10,237.50 times
1.05 equals $10,749.36), and so on.
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Low Starting Income borrowers have to spend from 14.9 percent to 10.2
percent of their incomes to amortize their loans in ten years. The :maw
Starting Income borrowers have to cpond from 11.2 percent to 7.6 percent: the
High Starting Income borrowere, from 5.6 percent to 3.8 percent; and the
Nigher Starting Income borrowers, from 4.0 percent to 2.8 percent. All
borrowers repay $15,052, or 50.5 percent more than the amount borrowed. They
repay 63.6 percent more than the $9,200 they would have received to spend for
education ($10,000 less a 5 percent origination fee and a maximum 3 percent
insurance premium).

What happens to repayment schedules under IDEA for 510,000 borrowed? The
first thing that happens ia that $10,000 becomes $12,166 bY tho time the
borrower leaves school, because interest is capitalieed each year and the
borrower has to pay 8 percent interest on the accumulated interest. There-
fore, by the time borrowers leave school, they would owe 21 percent more in
the IDEA program than in the Stafford Loan program in which the government
pays the in-school interest.

Table Two shows the repaymeer schedule for IDEA for the Low Starting
Income Borrowers who got 510,000 in loans. Here is how to read the table.
Annual incomes are inflated by 5 percent each year. It is necessary to
subtract the Standard Deduction from income each year because, according to
the bill, "the annual amount payable by the taxpayer for any taxable year
shall be the lesser of (i) the product of (I) the base amortization amount,
and (II) the progressivity factor for the taxpayer for such taxable year, or
(ii) 20 percent of the excess of (I) the modified adlusted gross income of the
taxpayer for such taxable year, over (II) the sum of the standard deduction
and any exemption am;unt applicable to such taxpayer's income tax return for
the taxable year."

Therefore, in the second column of Table Two, the Standard Deductions arc
subtracted from annual income to get an amount willed &Ousted gross income.
Multiplying AGI by 0.20 yields the second (ii) criterion for annual repay-
ments, which is listed in the fourth column under "X 0.2."

The first criterion (i) for the annual repayment is the base year times
the progressivity factor. The IDEA bill defines base year amortization
amounts as "the amount which, if paid at the close of each year for a period
of 12 consecutive years, would fully repay (with int 1st) at the close of
such period the maximum account balance of the borrower. For purposes of the
preceding sentence, an S percent annual rate of interest shall be assumed."

To amortize a $12,166 debt over 12 years requires annual payments of
$1,580, the "Base Amount" listed in the fifth column. The sixth column
contains the progressivity factors given in'the bill for different incomes and
taxpayer statuses. So, for Low starting Incooe Borrowers the annual payment
amount is 1790, the lesser of 20 percent of AGi or SO percent of the base
emeunt Of $1,580. rhe last column shows the Remaining Balance owed by
borrowers at the end of the year after making the annual payments.

Note that the annual payment amount for the first year (and sebsequent
years) goes not cover the percent interest that is accruing. Therefore, the
Remaining Balances increase each year. Since Remaining Salances increaue, nee
Sass Amounts have to be calculated, because the bill says that the Baso Amount
is "the maximum account balance of the borrower."
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Mote that the Remaining salences the Low starting Income Borrowers owe on
their loans increase until repayment Year 18. This is because annual payments

don't cover the accruing interest. Note also that by the end of repayment

year 25, borrowers still ows $14,650 on the $10,000 borroved for education.

And they will have made a total of $27,288 in repayment on the loans for the
25 years they were paying on them. So borrowers pay $27,288 for a $10,000

loan AND the government ends up havine to forgive $14,650 in loan debt at the

end of the repayment schedule. It would have cost the government less to give

these borrowers the $10,000 outright.

Table Three shows the repayment schedule for Average Starting Income
Borrowers, i.e., those who maks $13,000 in their first repayment years. Mere

the same taxable income pattern for Low Starting Income Borrowers is followed,
i.e., borrowers remain single through repayment Year 4, are married in repay-

ment Years 5 through 10, and ars married with one child in repayment Year 11

and thereafter. Those borrowers' annual payments do not cover their accruing

interest until Year 12, go the remaining balance owed increases until then.
sy the end of 25 years in repayment, these borrowers will have paid 427,518 on
their original $10,000 loans and the goverment will have to forgive $9,218 in
debt.

Nigh Starting Income Borrowers should be able to totally amortise the

original debt. The data are displayed in Table Pour. Borrowers who earn

$26,000 in their initial year of repayment and 5 percent more each year
thereafter will take 16 years to repay their loans. Their repayment amount
will total $22,028, 120 percent more than they borrowed, and 46.3 percent more
than they would have had to pay for 410,000 in Stafford Loans.

Teals rive displays the repayment schedule for Nigher Starting Inome
borrowers, those who initially earn $36,000 per year. These borrowers

amortise their loans in 12 years, repaying $18,958. This amount is 89.5

percent more than they borrowed end 25.9 percent more than they would have had

to pay for $10,000 in Stafford Loans.

Table Six ccopares the basic data tor the four borrower income groups.
Under the IDEA proposal, borrowers would have to pay from 25.9 percent to 82.8
percent more than they would have to pay for similar amounts of Stafford
Loans. While under the Stafford Loan program borrowers repay 63.6 percent
more than the amounts they actually were able to use on education (receiving

$9,200 and repaying $15,052), IDEA borrowers would have to pay from 89.6
percent to 175.2 percent more than they received for their education. If the

one -fourth of ID1A borrowers are in each of the four groups, they would pay,

on the average, 139 percent more than they borrowed. And they would pay 59.1

percent more than they would have had to pay if they had had Stafford Loans.

Perhaps the worst outcome of the IDEA proposal is that students who
financially benefited the least from their education, Low Starting Income
Borrowers, have to pay 43.9 percent more for their loans than students who
benefited the most, Nigher Starting Income lorrowers, $27,288 versus $10,950.
The senators asserted that the IDEA program would benefit borrowers with lower
starting ineeMes and reduce the negative effects borrowing has for students

who want to enter lower-paying occupations. The data show that We is not

the case. Borrowers with the lowest incomes pay more, much more, for their

loans.
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The basic problem with the IDEA repayment schedules lies in the fact that
borrowers are allowed more time to repay their 10fuls. As any borrower knows,
taking more time to repay any loan raises total repayment costs. In an
atteept to reduce some burrowers' repayment burdens in their early years of
repayment, the IDFA proposal places a groater overall repayment re OUirement on
all borrowers.

How much does the IDEA repayment schedule reduce repayment burdons?

Table Seven shows the percent of income paid to loans under the Stafford and
IDEA programs for the four borrower groups' repayment years. In Years 1
through 10, Low Starting Income Borrowers pay about 12.3 percent of their
incomes in Stafford payments but only 6.3 percent of their incomes for IDEA
payments. But after Year 10, IDEA borrowers have to continue to make payments
for another 15 years at about 5.7 percent of their incomes. Average Starting
Income Borrowers pay about 9.2 percent of their salaries to Stafford Loans for
ten years, while IDEA borrowers would by paying only 5.6 percent. But, under
the IDEA plan, these borrowers would pay 4.0 percont of their incomes for
another 15 years.

For their first ten years in repayment, High Starting income borrowers
would pay 4.6 percent of their incomes for Stafford Loam' and 4.3 percent for
IDEA loans, a negligible difference. To achiove this "lower debt burden,"
these IDEA borrowers would have to pay 3.3 percent of their annual incomes for
six additional years. The reduced percentages of incoma paid to IDEA loans by
Higher Starting Inc0O4 Borrowers is equally negligible. 'Itey would pay 3.3
percent of their incomes for ten years for IDEA loans and 3.5 percent of them
for Stafford Loans. And then IDEA borrowers would have two additional years
of payments, at about 2.6 percent of their.incomes.

It oan be argued that lowest-income students will have to borrow less
under the total bill, because they will get more grants to pay for their
education. However, the lowest-income students will not necessarily be the
Iowan-income borrowers. Students who cOme from middle-income and higher-
income familienilMve less access to grants and will have to borrow more
to meet their educational costs. If they do this, and do not enter higher-
paying occupations, than the IDEA program will cost them much more for their
education than the Stafford Loan progrem. And because so oany loans for
lowest-income borrowers will hove to be forgiven, the IDEA program might cost
the federal government more than if it providad Stafford Loans or even grants
to students from middle- and higher-income families.

RP7.48911112/01
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Table One
interest Paid and Loan Amounts Au a Portion of

Salaries, For Stafford Loan of $10.000

Interest
Paid

Monthly
?anent Low

Percent of income to Loans

HigherAverage hit

Year 1 $775 $121 14.9t 11.2% 5.6% 4.0%

Year 2 719 121 14.1 10.6 5.3 3.8

Year 3 550 121 13.5 10.1 5.1 3.7

Year 4 591 121 12.9 9.6 4.0 3.5

Year 5 632 128 13.0 10.2 4.9 3.5

Yaw 6 559 128 12.3 9.3 4.6 3.3

Year 7 457 In 11.0 8.8 4.4 3.2

Year 8 343 128 11.2 8.4 4.2 3.0

Year 9 218 128 10.7 8.0 4.0 2.9

Year* 10 80 128 10.2 7.6 3.8 2.0

Total $5,052 $125 13.3% 9.3% 4.6% 3.41

Low Income $9,750, Average Income $13,000; High Income = $26,000;

Higher Income $36,000.

All incomes inflate by 5 percent per year.

Loan interest rate is percent per year.
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Table TV°
IDEA Repayment Schedule For $10,000 Borrowed

and Eerning $9,750 Upon Graduation

Year
Annual
Income

Standard
Deduction AGI X 0.2

ilase

Mount
Prog.

Factor
Annual
Payment

Remaining
Balance

1 $9,750 $5,300 $4,450 $890 $1,580 0.5 $790 $12,356

2 10,237 4,937 987 1,605 603 12,549

3 10,749 " '5,449 1,090 1,630 " 815 12,746

4 11,287 5,987 1,197 1,655 827 12,945

5 11,851 $9,550 2,351 470 1,680 " 470 13,532

6 12,444 2,894 579 1,755 579 14,055

7 13,066 " 3,516 703 1,810 " 703 14,493

8 13,719 " 4,169 834 1,862 834 14,831

9 14,405 . 4,855 971 1,902 II 951 15,076

10 15,125 " 5,574 1,115 1,958 " 979 15,312

11 15,188 $11,600 4,281 856 1,989 856 15,696

12 16,675 5,075 1,015 2,039 0.571 1,015 15,791

13 17,509 5,909 1,182 2,051 1,171 15,887

14 18,385 6,785 1,357 2,064 " 1,178 15,984

15 19,304 7,704 1,541 2,076 1,186 16,081

16 20,269 8,669 1,734 2,089 If 1,193 16,179

17 21,282 9,682 1,936 2,102 1,200 16,278

18 22,346 10,746 2,149 2,115 0.643 1,360 16,219

19 23,464 11,864 2,373 2,107 1,355 16,160

20 24,637 13,037 2,607 2,099 1,350 16,097

21 25,869 II 14,219 2,854 2,091 1,345 16,039

22 27,162 15,562 3,112 2,083 0.786 1,638 15,672'

23 28,520 16,920 3,384 2,036 1,600 15,313

24 29,946 18,346 3,669 1,989 1,563 14,963

25 31,444 19,044 3,969 1,944 1,527 14,650

Total $464,633 $27,288

Borrower remains single through Year Pour; Married in Year Five through Ten;

and Married with one child thereafter. Income grows at 5 percent per year.



Table Three
IDEA Repayment Schedule For $10,000 Borrowed

and Miming $13,000 Upon Graduation

Year
Annual
Incoae

Standard
Deduction AGI X 0.2

H8118

Amount
Prl.

Factor
Annual
Payment

Remaining
Balance

1 $13,000 $5,300 $7,700 $1,540 $1,580 0.533 $842 812,302
2 13,650 N 8,350 1,670 1,598 N 852 12,440
3 14,333 9,033 1,807 1,616 0.600 970 12,467
4 15,049 9,749 1,950 1,619 972 12,494
5 15,802 59,550 6,252 1,250 1,624 0.500 812 12,689
6 16,592 7,042 1,408 1,648 824 12,888
7 17,421 7,871 1,574 1,674 0.571 956 12,966
8 18,292 8,742 1,748 1,684 962 13,045
9 19,20; 9,657 1,931 1,695 II 968 13,124 ma10 20,167 II 10,617 2,123 1,705 0

973 13,203 4e
11 21,175 $11,600 9,575 1,915 1,715 II 979 13,283 *40

12 22,214 10,634 2,127 1,725 0.643 1,109 13,235
11 23,346 II 11,746 2,349 1,719 " 1,105 13,187
14 24,513 12,913 2,583 1,713 1,101 13,119
15 25,739 14,139 2,828 1,708 1,097 13,091
16 27,026 " 15,426 3,085 1,701 0.786 1,337 12,792
17 28,379 16,779 3,356 1,662 1,306 12,500
18 29,796 " 18,196 3,639 1,624 1,276 12,214
19 31,286 19,686 3,936 1,587 " 1,247 11,634
20 32,850 " 21,250 4,250 1,550 0.893 1,384 11,489
21 34,492 N 22,892 4,578 1,492 . 1,333 11,060
22 36,217 24,617 4,923 1,437 .. 1,283 10,647
23 38,028 26,428 5,286 1,383 " 1,235 10,250
24 39,929 28,329 5,666 1,332 1.000 1,332 9,720
25 41,926 30,326 6,065 1,263 1,263 9,218

Total $620,449 $27,518

Borrower remains single through Year Four; Married in Year Five through Ten;
and Married with one child thereafter. Income grows at 5 percent per year.
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Table Four
IDEA Repayment Schedule For $10,000 Borrowed

and Earning $26,000 Upon Graduation

Year
Annual
Income

Standard
Deduction AGI X 0.2

Base
Amount

Frog.

Factor
Annual
Payment

Remaining
Balance

1 $26,000 $5,300 $20,700 4,140 51,580 0.867 $1,370 $11,744
2 27,300 . 22,000 4,400 11,328
3 28,665 " 23,365 4,671 " " 10,927
4 30,098 " 24,798 4,960 n so

10,540
5 31,603 59,550 22,053 4,411 0.786 1,242 10,161
6 33,183 . 23,633 4,727 .

0.893 1,411 9,568
7 14,842 .

25,292 5,058 ' 1,411 9,0098 36,585 .
27,035 5,407 .

1,411 8,484
9 38,413 . 28,863 5,773 1,411 7,988
10 40,335 30,785 6,157 1.0 1,580 7,010
11 42,351 611,600 30,751 6,150 . 1.0 1,580 5,952
12 44,469 32,869 6,574 . 1.0 1,580 4,807
13 46,692 . 35,092 7,018 If

1.0 1,580 3,067
14 49,927 37,427 7,485 . 1.0 1,580 1,68215 51,478 39,878 7,976 .

1.0 1,580 16216 54,052 $42,452 8,490 $182 1.0 182 0

Total 6615,093
$22,028

Borrower resains single through Year Four; Married in Year Five through Ton;
and Married with one child thereafter. Income grows at 5 percent per year.



Table Five
IDEA Repayment Schedule For $10,000 Borrowed

and Earning 836,000 Upon Graduation

Year
Annual
income

Standard

Deduction AG1 X 0.2
Base
AmoUnt

Prue.

Factor
Annual
Payment

Remaining

Balance

1 $36,000 $5,300 30,700 6,140 $1,580 1.0 81,540 $11,536
2 37,800 32,500 6,500 ft 10,854
3 39,690 34,390 6,878 I.

10,115 0+
4 41,675 36,375 7,275 . ft

9,315 cn
0+43,758 $9,550 34,208 6,842 55

8,4486 45,946 36,396 7,279 ' 7,510
7 48,243 38,693 7,739 " 55

6,494
50,656 41,106 8,221 OM

5,393
9 53,188 43,638 8,728 4,201
10 55,848 46,298 9,260 " 2,910
11 58,640 $11,600 47,040 9,408 ° 1.512
12 61,572 49,972 9,994 1,578 1,578 0

Total $573,016 $18,958

Borrower remains single through Year Four; Married in Year Five through Ten) and
Married with one child lu Years Eleven 1.nd Twelve; Income grows by 5 percent per
year.

E;
1 f; 1



Table Six
Compalisons of Amounts Borrowed and Repaid
Under Stafford and IDEA Wan Programs,

By Borrower Incomes

Low Income

Difference

I'DMELTLIMT!!

Stafford IDBA DifferenceStafford IDRA

Borrowed . $10,000 $10,000 0.0% $10,000 $10,000 3.0%
Available for Education 58,200 $10,000 4 8.7 $9,200 $10,000 4 8.7%
Owed at Graduation $10,000 $12,166 +21.7 $10,000 $12,166 421.71
Amount Repaid $15,052 $27,288 481.3 $15,052 $27,518 482.84
Repaid/AvailabIe 1.636 2.729 466.8 1.636 2.752 468.2%
Government Forgives None $14,650 -- None $9,218 --

r1221 Income Ni%ber Income

Stafford IDLA Difference Stafford IDBA Difference

Borrowed $10,000 $10,000 0.0% $10,000 $10,000 0.0%
Available for Education $9,200 $10,000 4 8.7 $9,200 $10,000 4 8,7%
Owed at Graduation $10,000 $12,166 +21.7 $10,000 $12,166 421.7%
Amount Repaid $15,052 $22,028 +46.3 $15,052 $18,958 425.8%
Repaid/Available 1.636 2.203 434.7 1.636 1.896 415.9%
Government Forgives None None -- None None --
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Table Seven
Peroent of Income to Loans Usder Stafford
and INA Programs For $10,000 Principal, By

Income Groups and Repayment Years

year

pow income Average Incase Sigh Income Higher Income

Stslfort X0tn Stafford MRS Stafford IDSA Stafford 1110%

1 14.1% 0.1% 11.24 6.1,6 5.6% 5.3% 4.0% 4.4%
2 14.1 4.2. 10.6 6.2 5.3 5.0 3.8 4.2
3 13.5 7.6 10.1 6.8 5.1 4.8 3.7 4.0
4 11.9 7.3 9.6 6.5 4.8 4.6 3.5 3.8
: 13.0 4.0 10.2 5.1 4.9 3.9 3.5 3.6
6 12.3 4.7 9.3 5.0 4.6 4.3 3.3 3.4
7 11.A 5.4 8.9 5.5 4.4 4.0 3.2 3.3
e 11.2 6.! 8.4 5.3 4.2 3.9 3.0 3.1
9 10.7 6.6 8.0 5.0 4.0 3.7 2.9 3.0
SO 10.2 6,5 7.6 4.8 3.8 3.9 2.8 2.8
11 0.0 5.6 0.0 4.6 0.0 3.7 0.0 2.7
12 0.0 6.1 0.0 5.0 0.0 3.6 0.0 2.6

13 0.0 6.7 0.0 4.7 0.0 3.4 0.0 0.0
?4 0.0 6.4 0.0 4.5 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0
15 0.0 6.1 0.0 4.3 0.0 3.1 0.0 0.0
16 0.0 3.0 4.9 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0
17 0.0 5.6 0.0 4.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
18 0.0 6,1 0.0 4,3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
15 0.0 5.8 0.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
21 0.0 5.5 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
21 0.0 5.2 6.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
22 0.0 6.0 0.0 3.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
23 0.0 5.6 0.0 3.2 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0
2. 0.0 :J.2 0.0 3.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
25 0.0 4.9 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

16 4



154

PHEAA
ace:an:Access to Education

TE5T1MONY

for thu

U. S. HOUSE or REPRESENTATIVES
SUSCONMIIITE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION

prepared by

DR. JERRY SHEEHAN DAVIS,
VICE PRESIDENT, RESEARCH AND POLICY ANALYSIS

rebruary 6, 1992

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency
660 finat Lind.Prt horn, flatortrulunnin 171171.170.0

1 G 6



155

Good morning. I am Jerry Davis, vice president
for research end polioeanalysis for the Pennsylvania

nigher tducation Assistance Agency, the agencythat administers state financial aid programs and guarantees federal studentloans in the Commonwealth.
I am pleased to be here to offer testimony on twoincome-centingent Loan programs proposed in bills before the Subcommittee, theIncome Dependent 'Education Assistance Act (IOW MI the Self-Nslianco

Mchaarship Act (SPS). As a part of my written testimony, I ask that a paperI wrote in November, 1991, which
compared borrower loan repayment costs under=A and the Stafford Loan

program, be entered in the record. since I willrefer to it in fay remarks today.

I very mut& appreciate what I mese must be a primary motivation behind
both income-contingent loan proposals, reducing borrower repayment burdens and
the potential for defaults. Trying to help ease borrower Nipayment burdens islaudable. kewever, before commenting on the two proposaas, I wont to offersome evidence that student indebtedness

is not rising as rapidly, nor ars loandebts as burdensome, as many are led to believe.

Some Pennsylvania data ore helpful here. Table 1 shows the changes inaverage Stafford Loan indebtedness for
baccalaureate graduates from our public

and privets colleges during tho past five federal fiscal years. The ay-ragedebt increased by about 26 percent. Costs increased by over 33 percent in
those years. Sut borrowers who loft school in each of tha five years had paid
for similar proportions of

their cumulative costs of education with StaffordLoans, about 27 percent at public
colleges and 17 percent at private colleges.

Pennsylvania's college costs are aeons, tho highest in the nation, so morePennsylvanians than students in other states need to borrow to filmes theireducation. While students in other states have their access to Stafford Loansrestricted by need analysis, we offer students non-need-based Stafford Loansthrough our state-funded nonsubsidieed loan program. So borrowing ig notrestricted only to students who
can demonatrato financial need for the funds.

Therefore, because our costs are higher tnd access to loans is not restricted,our students' loan indebtedness is
higher and must have risen at a much higherrate than did losn indebtedness tor
students elsewhere. If the average debtgrew at a slower pace then average
coote in Pennsylvania, then the situation

in other states must be much better. Thus I think it ib safe to say that loandebt among the nation's undergraduates is not skyrooketing, anti Le likelygrowing more slowly than educational coats.

We can assume with some confidence
that the "typical" four-year college

graduate leaves school today awing around $10,000 in Stafford Loans.teperience and research have shown that when loan payments reach 10 percent ofa borrower's gross income, they
become burdensome, often leading to default.ror how many and what kinds of borrowers might loan payments OH $10,000 indebt be burdensome?

Table 2 shows the 1989 total
Annual money uernings of persons with fouryears of college who were between eges 25 and 34. Eernings for this age groupars particularly relevant, hecause there are the years most borrowers will berepaying their loans.

Note that the average earning was $27,216, but 6.9percent of graduates had no earnings and another 16.2 percent timed under
$12,500. (It you ever wondered why

borrowers default on their loans, here is

1M7
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Table 1
Average Cumulative Stafford Indebtedness For Pennsylvania

'Baccalaureate Graduates of four -Year Colleges,

Average Annual Costs, and Wens As A Perosnt of Costa,
Fre 1987 tO rre 1991

rour-Uar Public Colleges

Avg

Wall
Percent
Chang61

Avg
Cost

Percent
Change

Avg Loan/Cumulative
4-Yr Avg Costs

1967 $7,454 $6,895 .. 29.3%

1966 7,769 + 4.2% 7,265 + 5.4% 26.9

1969 8,506 + 9.5 7,895 1.7 30.1

1990 9,150 + 7.6 1,370 4. 6.0 29.7

1991 9,47$ + 3.6 9,235 +10.3 29.7

1987-1991 +92,024 +27.2% +92,340 +33.9% + 0.4%

rour-eear Private Colleges

Avg Percent Avg Percent Avg Leon/Cumulative
Loan Change Coat Change 4-Yr Avg Costs

1987 56,062 .. $13,150 ..

1988 6,337 + 3.4% 14,320 + 8,96 16.4

1989 9,232 +10.7 14,865 3.1 17.0

1990 9,075 + 7.0 16,055 8.0 16.9

1991 10,154 2.8 17,505 + 9.0 16.1

1987-1991 +92,092 +25.9% +94,355 +33.1% - 1.0%

lfjS
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Table 2

1989 Total Money Earnings of Persons With Four Years of

College Education, By Gender and Race, Agee 25 to 34

All
Males

All

Females Total

white
Males

White
Females

Black
males

Black
Females

Without Earnings 2.4% 10.9% 6.8% 1.6% 10.7% 5.7% 43%

Uhder 812,500 11.4 20.0 16.2 10.4 20.6 24.3 24.2

512,500-611,499 6.5 11.0 8.8 6.4 10.1 4.4 13,0

517,500-522,499 13.7 16.4 15.1 13.1 17.1 24,3 15.6

522,500-824,999 5.9 6.3 6.1 5.9 6.1 6,9 10.5

525,000-029,999 13.4 12.2 12,8 13.5 11.8 23.5 14,4

530,000-539,999 21.7 14.6 10.0 22.6 15.2 4.4 10.0

540,000-549,999 12.2 5.0 8.5 12.9 5.0 1.6 4.7

$50,000 or Above 12.8 2.8 7.7 13.6 2.8 4,9 2.5

All Earnings 100.0% 100.0t 100.0% 100.0% 100.01 100.0% 100.0%

Avg Earning 532,465 $22,247 $27,216 $33,251 $22,277 $23,280 $21,646

Pot in Group 48.6% 51.4% 100.0% 42.5% 44.6% 3.6% 4.0%

Source: U. S. SUXSAU of the Census, Current Population Reports,
Series P-60, No. 172, Money Income of Households, families
end Persona in the United Statee, 1988 and 1989.

53-481 0 - 92 - 6
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one answeri many of them have no money to make payments.)
Average earnings offemales were much lower

than those of males,
$22,247 versus $32,465. end 10.9percent of females had

ao earniegs, while another 20.8 percent earned under$12,500. So it is reasonable
tw expect females to have greater debt burdensthan males. (There is no evidence

to suggeet that borrowing
patterns ef malesand females are different when

years in school and types of institutionsattended are held constant.)

Tidal* 3 displays the
estimated proportions of these graduate. who wouldhave experienced debt

burdens at $10,000 and other levels of borrcwing in
1999. If the graduates

had borrowed the "typical" $10,000, then 23 percentwould have incurred
debt burdens; that is, their annual payments

would haverepresented at least 10
percent of their annual earning*. Over seven out often graduates with debt
burdens would have been females,

because females sunso much less than males.
They also wore five times as likely se males to havehad no earnings.

ebout 29 percent of
Slack graduates would have experienceddebt burdens had they

been trying to repay $10,000 in Stafford Loans, as theiraverage earnings were less than those of
White graduates, $22,420 versus$27,630.

The estimates in Table 3 indicate that debt buedens are more a functionof gradeates' earnings
than amounts borrowed.

For example, when loanindebtedness doublee, from $5,000 to 510,000, only 9.6 percent more of thegraduates are added to
the proportion with debt burdens, 23.0

percent versus13.4 percent. When loan indebtedness
triples, from $5,000 to $15,000, anadditional 21.2 percent

of the graduates would face debt burdens. In rawnumbers of graduates,
when loan indebtedness rises by 100 percent,

from $5,000to $10,000, the number
of graduater with debt burdens grows by 72 percent.When loan indebtedness
rises by 200 percent,

from $5,000 to $15,000, thenumber of graduates with
debt burdens grows by 158 percent.

These data have
important implications for consideration of income-contingent loan proposals.

First, loan indebtedness is not rising as fest ascollege costs, or am such as muny believe.
Second, the vest majority ofundergraduates ars unlikely

to xperience debt burdens under typical borrowingcircumstances now, and within
thy next five years if

loan debts grow as theyhave in Pennsylvania for
the past five years. If the typical loan in fiveyears is $12,500, matching
the 25 percent growth of the past five years, then27.8 percent Of thn groduates would experience

debt burdensif their incomesremained as they were in 1969. Even if all the graduates
borrowed the maximumallowable for undergraduate

study, $17,250, only 44 percent would have dcbtburdens, again if their incomes stayed at their 1969 levels,
Over half thegraduates, in 1969, could hove afforded payments on at least $15,600

inStafford Loans without
incurring debt burdens.

Third, debt burdens
are not evenly distributed

among all graduates.Females, especially White females, are much more likely than
others to havedebt burdens, because

meny have no or relatively
little earnings. Slackgraduates are more likely

than White graduates to have debt burdens,
becausethey earn lees. There is no reaeen

to expect these situations
to change inthe foreseeable future, as the gender-ralated

and race-related dieferences inincomes have been with uo for many pare.

Because loan debts ore
not siring to levels that

are burdensome for the
majority of graduates,

and because existing
repayment burdens are not
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Table 3

Estimated Proportions of Four-Year College
Graduates Ages 25 to 34 Who In 1989 Would Have Had Dobt

Burdens In Repaying Stafford Loans,
By Cumul.mivo Loan Amounts

Amounts All All white White Slack Black

Borrowed Males Females Total Males Females Hales Females

85,000 6.2% 20.31 13.4% 4.8% 20.3% 15.4% 11.9%

$7,500 9.3 24.8 17.2 7.8 24.9 21.5 17.7

$10,000 13.8 31.7 23.0 12.0 31.3 30.0 20.5

512.500 17.4 37.7 27.8 15.6 37.0 32.8 37.5

515,000 23.0 45.6 34.6 20.6 45.1 40.9 42.6

517,250 31.5 56.1 1.2 29.1 56.0 54.3 54.0

Amounts
Borrowed

$5,000

$7,500

$10,000

$12,500

$15,000

$17,250

All Grads

Percentages uf All Borrowers With Burdens

All All White White Black Black
Hales Females Total Hales Females Halos Females

22.4% 77.6% ICC.Ot 15.41 67.54 4.11 3,5%

26.1 73.6 100.0 19.2 64.3 4.4 4.1

29.2 70.8 100.0 22.1 60.8 4.6 4.9

30.4 69.6 100.0 23.0 59.1 4.2 5.4

32.3 67.7 100.0 25.7 58.1 4.2 4.9

34.7 65.2 100.0 28.0 56.5 4.4 4.9

48.6% 51.4* 100.01 42.5% 44.6% 3.61 4.01
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distributed evenly among all studwnt groups, offering income-contingent loan
repayment programs to everyone may bu unnecessary end unwise. Offering those
students with debt burdens forbearance, deferments, graduated repayment
schedules, and, in Wee Cases, loan forgiveness, is a better alternative than
reqeiring all borrowers Um participate in en income-contingent loan program.

I am generally opposed to income-contingent loans. The first prOblem
with them is that borrowers do not and oannot know how much it will cost to
repay their loans when they accept them. if they cannot know this, then they
cannot know how much their ducation will eventually oost them. If they
cannot know what their education will actually cost, then they cannot make
intelligent and informed "cost-benafit" analyses. They cannot assess the
relative value of attending institutions

of widely different costs, because
they cannot compare the "net costs," that is, the costs after financial aid,
of alternative choices.

Virtually all income-contingent loan programs allow, if not encourage,
borrowers to incur larger debts than fixed-payment programs. Larger debts are
made possible because payments frequently

represent smaller proportions ofborrowers incomes upon graduation, when earnings are lower. But smaller loan
payments made over many MOTO years ultimately

main that the total payments for
a given amount borrowed will be greeter than the payments made tor fixed-payment loan at the same interest rates. It is imposeible to escape the
mathematics of the "PAT tquation" (Principal WWI fate times Time) enigma, at
some point Interest is foregone, a portion of the Principal ie forgiven, or
Time collapsed. Whon student loans cost moro, then so does the education
purchased with them, regardless of the fact that paying for the education is
spread over many more years.

If larger loan emounts are availeble through an income-contingent loan
program than a fixed-payment one, colleges

may feel freer to raise their posts
at higher ratee than they heve in recent years. After all, if moat students
are paying most of their costs through

n income-contingent loan program and
cannot calculate their true "net costs" of education, it is easier to raise
the so-called "sticker price" for them.

The self-Reliance Scholarship
proposal addr aaaaa this issue by requiring

institutions to ::ustify cost increases that are greater than the increase in
the higher educatAn price index. But if all institutions spend more because
they can raise tuitions to cover those expenditures, then ell institutions'
price indexes, and tuitions, will rise. Thus this provision of the bill
becomes meaningless. Moreover, if more than hat of an institution's studentsfinance ubstential portions of their costs through income-contingent loans,then costs to all tudents are more likely to rise. It ie not difficult to
envision situations in which

institutions raise charges to all students inamounts that substantially reduce the purchasing power of other types of
federal financial aid, such as Pell Grants and Supplemental Bducational
Opportunity Grants. Higher tuitions also Man a diminution in value of stategrant and scholarship funds from private sources. Thus more students are
forced into borrowing to pay for their education.

When the IOLA propose!. was introduced in the Senate, I cempared borrower
costs to repay 610400 in loans under Iota and

the Stafford Loon program. Thefirst repayment problem with tha IDEA proposal, end the Self-Reliance
Scholarship propotal, is that interest accrues while borrowers are in school.
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(The government pays the in-scheol intereet under thr Stafford Loan program.)
Accruing interest at 8 percent per year on $10,000 borrowed at $2,500 per year
for four years of undergraduate study results in borrowers leaving School
owing 512,166 rather than 510,000, almost a 22 percent greater debt.

We know that all undergraduate borrowers won't be in school for four
years, so not all would experience a 22 percent increase in indebtedness under
IDEA and the SRC However, considering their debt and the numberm of yeas
they spent in school, the Pennsylvania undergraduates who entered repayment on
Stafford Loans In III 1991 weeld have owed 5383 million, rather than $322
million, if their loan interest had accrued while they were in school. That
difference is about 19 percent. Therefore, it is safe to assume that
borrowing nationwide under the IDEA and EPS proposals will very likely
increase undergraduate debt levels by at least 15 percent oven if students
borrow the ame amounts they borrowed under the Stafford Loan program. If the
borrowers attend graduate school, their debts will increase ven more
dramatically, by at least 25 percent.

When Senators Simon and 0urenburger released meteriale supporting IDEA,
they identified four initial-year income levels to cover the majority of
students: $9,750, $13,000, $26,000 and $36,000. I think these income levels
are reasonably representative of the kinds og earnings undergraduates can
expect when they leave school.

I assumed that all students would borrow $10,000. Using the !DEA
formulae and assuming that all borrowers' incomes would grow by 5 percent per
year during their repayment years, I found that chose borrowers who start out
earning $9,750 will make payments for 2$ years totaling $27,288. This is 81
percent more than they would have paid for a $10,000 Stafford Loan. At the
end of 25 years, these berrowera will till ewe $14,650 on their principal
plus interest. Tha government would forgive this amount, meaning that it
would forgive about 46 percent more than the borrowers received for their
education.

The borrowers who initia)ly earn 513,000 would make payments for 25 years
totaling $27,518, 83 percent more th.an they would have paid for Stafford Loans
and nearly three tiMils what they originally borrowed. And the 90varnment
would have to forgive $9,218 in remaining principal and intereet payrents for
these borrowers.

The borrowers who initially earn 526,000 repay $22,028, 46 percent more
than they would have paid for Stefford Loans and more than twice what tney
originally borrowed. The more fortunate borrowers who initially earn $36,000
would repay $18,958, about 26 percent more than they would have paid for
Stafford Loons. Figure One graphically illustrates the comparleon of borrower
=MS for the four groups.

Figure Two is even more ccmpelling, displaying the cumulative payments
made and remeining balances on SIC,OCO after ten years of payments. At the
end of ten years, the borrowers would hava repaid their Stafterd Loans! with
$15,052. The borrowers who initielly earned only $9,750 will have peid $7,751
on IDEA loans at the end of ton years, but they would still owe more than the
borrowers who nad already paid their Stafford Loans in full. The situation
for the borrowers who initially earn 513400 is net much better. At the end
of ten years they will have paid $9,13) but still owe $13,283.
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COMPARISON OF BORROWER REPAYMENT COSTS
GSL vs IDEA LOANS
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CUMULATIVE PAYMENTS MADE AND REMAINING
BALANCES ON $10,000 GSL AND IDEA LOANS

AFTER 10 YEARS OF PAYMENTS
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The borrowers who initially earn $26,000 will have paid only 60 percent
at much as they would have had to pay for Stafford AoSMS. But they would
still owe $7,010, almost half as much as tha Stafford Loan borrowers paid to
fully pay oft their loans. Finally, at the end of ten years, the borrowers
who initially earn $36,000 will have paid only $748 more than the Stafford
Wan borrowers. However, they will still owe $1,512 on their interest and
principal,

Figure Three shows hew cumulative payments for Stafford and IDEA loans
would look over repayment periode ef five, ten, fifteen, twenty and
twenty-five years for the four borrower groups. At the end of five years, all
four IDEA borrower groups will have paid loss than they would have paid for
Stafford Loans. Mut at the and of fifteen years, only the two loweat-income
groups will hay, paid less on their IDEA loans than they would have for
Stafford Loans. At 20 and 25 years, all four groups will have paid much more
than they would hove for Stafford Loans.

The repayment schedules proposed by the Self-Reliance Scholarshin bill
ere different from =Eh's. But tho borrowers will still have to pay more for
their SRI loins than they would for Stafford Loans. SAS payments generelly
are to represent lust 5 percent of the borrowers gross annual incomes.
However, there are exceptions. Vhan the borrowers' incomes "arc not more than66 percent of the average gross income of individuals with college educations
as determined by the Bureau of the Census from the most recent data
available," then tho annual payments will bo 5 percent of that amount, oventhough an individual borrower's

earnings may be substantially less than 66
percent of the average.

In 1909, the average income of all persons with four or more years of
college was $36,038. This means that borrowers with incomes at or below
$23,785 (66 percent of $36,038) will pay 5 percent of $23,785, or about $1,189
per year. This means that all borrowers with incomes below $23,785 will be
paying more than 5 percent of their annual incomes, As we shall see below,
there are likely to be many such borrowers.

The SAS bill hes another exception to ite general 5 percent-of-income
repayment schedule. When borrowere' incomes arc greater then 150 percent of
the average income for college graduates, then their maximum payments cannot
exceed 5 percent of that amount. Using the 19$9 data,-ilinircent is equal toabout 154,057, 8o:rowers who earn more than this amount have to pay only 5
percent of $54,057, about $2,703 per year. This WM that borrowers earning
considerably more than $54,000 will pay less then 5 percent of their earnings.
A proposal that reqvires financially

handicapped borrowers to devote greaterproportions of their earnings to loan payments than it requires of the mosteffluent borrowers it hardly in the spirit of traditional income-conti.tgent
loan plans.

Using the four initial-year income
groups identified for IeEA loans, I

calculated the costs of repaying $10,000 in loans under the Soif-Reliance
Scholarships program. The rerults are displayed in Table 4.

Four things in this table urc noteworthy. First, all four borrower
groups pay more for their SRS loans than they would pay for their Stafford
Loans. Second, the Sid repayment schedule, like the IDEA schedule, requires
the two lowest initial-income

groupa to pay more for their loons than it

17 S
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Table 4
Comparisons of Repayments ror $10,000 In

Stafford Loans and Salf-Relioncu Scholarships
Loam By Burrowers' Initial Year Incomes

rry 1987 to Fry 1991

All Stafford SRS $R$ $AS SR8Borrowers 59.750 411,000 $24,000 $36,000
Borrowed $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Owed at Graduation $10,000 $12,166 $12,166 $12,166 $12,166

Amount Repaid $15,052 $21,100 $21,100 $20,030 $17,306
Years Repaid 10 14 14 12 9

SAS Pct 02 Earnings ..,
11.1% 8.2% 4.e% 4.3%

Stafford Pct oi
eerning4 12.3% 9.2% 4.6% 3.3%

Soto: All borrower incomes are
assumed to grow by 5 percent per yea:. ber:entsof earnings repredowr. loan payments as a proportion of earnings duringyears payments are made.
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requires of the two highest income groups. Third, the proportions of earning;

devoted to loan payments for the lower-income SU borrowers will be only

slightly less than the proportions they would devote to repaying Stafford

Loans, esthewibradditionar Years. fourth, the two
highestisseMfetcuse greeter proportions of their
earnings to amortise their 8115 loans than they would Stafford Loans. The

percentage differences here are odmittedly slight, but they still are greater

for $AS loans, another feature that should not occur in an incoMe-contingent

loan program purported to make loan payments less burdensome.

It is clear that borrowers with below-average earnings will pay more for
IDEA and SAS loans, in absolute dollars and proportions of their incomes, than

will their more affluent peers. In tha Stafford Loin program, borrowers with

below-average earnings pay the same as everyone. That lower-income borrowers

pay more has different effects on different borrower groups. Because they

will earn less, females will pay more for their loans than melee. As Table 5

shows, they will also pay a greater percentage of their incomes for their

loans. Note that over half the females would have had minimum SAS loan
payments of more than 5 percent of their incomes. About one-third of the

males would have experienced such a situation.

Minority group members will pay more for their loans than will white

students. morrowers who enter lower-paying professions, such as teaching,
nursing or the ministry, will pay more for their IDEA and SRO loans than will

borrowers who enter the higher-paying professions, such as business

administration, engineering and law. Rather than reducing the disincentive to

borrow when a student is considering a career in a lower-paying occupation,
both proposals add to the disincentive and exacerbate the negative effects of
education costs OA choices of institutions, majors and future careers.

Some believe that income-contingent loans will solve the default problem.

This is wishful thinking. Borrowers default on their loans primarily because

they de not have enough money to make the losn payments. The education and

training defaulters paid for with loans did not sufficiently enhance their
ability to earn enough additional money to repay their loans. And this

generalisation applies at all levels of postsecondary education. When

students borrow small amounts to pay for vocational trainIng and no jobs are
available or the available jobs have low salaries, they are very likely to

default. When students borrow thousands of dollars to attend graduate schoel

and their consequent earnings do not increase enough to cover the debt, they
are likely to default.

Lending atudents Whey through income-contingent loan programs assumes
that all borrowers will have incomes. As we saw in Table 2, 6.8 percent of
four-year oollege graductes between ages 25 and 34 hod no earnings in 1989 and

another 16.2 percent uarned under $12,500. Giving students income-contingent

loans will not ensure that they have incomes, a: incomes substantial enough to
=Ortiz* their loans.

Income-contingent loan programs can help reduce borrowers' debt burdens
when they experience lower earnings. Out so can forbearances, deferments, and

graduated rapeyment schedules offered through the Current Guaranteed Student

Loan Programs.
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Default. can be reduced another
way in a nest-repayment loan program, by

simply extending the time borrowers
can be delinquent before declaring theleen in default. When the period in which delinquent

Stafford Loans had to bedeclaxmd in default was extended
fro% 130 daye to 150 days a few years ago,the numbers of defaulters

on loans guazanteed by Pittaa fell by ans.-third.This is because we hed an additicmal
two months to work Vith delinquent

borrowers to bring their loans
into good standing .--and the borrowers hadanother two month. to solve their finanoial difficulties.

The best way to reduce defaults is not through income-contingent loans,forbearance, deferments or extensions of delinquency periods, but is byassuring that the education and
training paid for with loans is of the highestquality pag_eahances the student borrowers' ability to secure a govi_job withan adequate selarY. A second better way to reduce defaults is to provide

grants rather than loans to student. who enter quality programs but haveacademic., socioeconomic or other
disabilities likely to inhibit their success.

When students are "at-risk" there is no social justice in making thembear the majority of the risks of
trying to improve their conditions througheducation paid for with loans when
failure and consequent default on thoseloans leaves them worse off than had they not made the attempt in the firstplace. Persons who ars responsible tor

providing *Question and financial aidto the nation's students should take to heart a primary tenet in thephysician's code of thicso "First do no harm."

2n conclusion, let me briefly
summarize my observations on the twoincoms-contingent loan bills before you. The patterns of student borrowing

and incomes after empleting
their education indicate that the majority oftodey's borrowers, and those of the near future, do not have loan debt burdensthat will be solved by either proposal. Seth income-contingont loan programswill increase students' costs of borrowing and, consequently, their educationcosts. Sorrowers would have to pay more for 2DIth or Self -Salience

Scholarshiploam than they ourrenlly
pay fus. St...Med Wee - -much more. This I.especially true for borrowers

who are &levet certain to earn less than theirpeers after gradustion--women, minority
students and those who pursue thelower-paying careers in our society. Melly, neither proposal reduces thecoots to the government when students

cannot repay their loans. ft may beconsidered impossible to default
on these income-contingent loans, but it ispossible to not repay them, hod failure to repay them will cost thegovernment money.

Thank you for your attention
to and consideration of,my remerks thismorning. X hope they have helped you.

SP3.41920204/01

5 3 f'' e
likse0 i WWI

rm
t
wigs



169

Mr. MILLER. Thank you, and thank you to all of the panels. I ap-
preciate all of the testimony. I think it raises a number of issues
with respect to the income-contingent programs that we have. I
think it also raises many of those same issues that exist in the cur-
rent system.

The erlucation and the knowled; fe and the choice available to
people i hey seek loans is something that many of us have sought
to improve, whether they're seeking a loan at a bank, or a student
loan, or car loan, or credit card application, or what have you; we
all would prefer to have better informed consumers of credit.

I think that's true of the current programs. The question of what
kind of education we provide and what kind of opp, tunity they
are buying with the loan goes to the current program. This com-
mittee has been saddled and this program has been saddled with
one schlock operation after another that has sought nothing to do
than to get that loan transferred from the student to the institu-
tion and abscond with it without leaving behind not only an educa-
tion, but also an indebted student. I don't think that that's neces-
sarily changed by these two programs.

I think also I would hope that the people would recognize that
this universe is somewhat larger than some of the testimony was
directed at. If I'm working at GWA today or I'm working at
Macy's, I'm starting to think that I may have a year or 2 years
time in which I may want to make a change in my career.

I also may not have the household income to go out and to imme-
diately finance that education opportunity, whether it's a commu-
nity college or training facility or to get an advanced degree in
something I've already been trained in. 1 think that the income-
contingent loan speaks to that issue somewhat better than the cur-
rent programs.

The fact is, as we have witnessed.over the last several years, mil-
lions of people who never thought they'd be in that situation, who
have already completed a good portion of their education, now find
that they may, in fact, have to acquire additional skills to move to
another segment of our economy. It's keeping that in mind with
this program.

The question of which arrow do you pick out of the quiver in
terms of trying to finance that education is obviously one that that
individual is going to have to make. I think it's important that we
make sure that we put that financing in place so that they can in
fact do that.

We all know that credit is very cruel to low income people.
There's nothing friendly about a VISA card to a low-income
person. But the low-income person may also understand that there
may be no other way to acquire the necessity that they need other
than to engage in that credit activity. If they pay it off over a
longer period of time, they are going to pay more for that product
than somebody who could walk in and pay cash.

That is a reality of the marketplace. Again, we go back and say
we should try to educate people not to make that choice if they
don't have to make that choice.

But I think, clearly, that we need a wider array of financing
mechanisms for higher education so that people can make those
choices. I take the criticism in the sincerest fashi( 1. I think clearly

1 I
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neither Mr. Petri nor myself are suggesting this is the last word orthis is the way this legislation should be passed, but I think thatthe intent is there.
Also, I worry that a person who makes the decision to engage inthis loan activity and then to go through the education may findthemselves, after they have finished 2 or 3 years of education, thatthis additional loan burden would be the deciding factor in the de-cision not to work.
There's something inconsistent about those two disciplines. To gothrough the discipline of completing your education, there's noquestion there's people who would do it, but to suggest that that's amajor component and a problem with the program I think defiesour historical experience as to why people default. They areunable, as you point out. They simply don't have the wherewithalto complete the payment.
Mr. Petri?
Mr. PETRI. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have all kinds of ques-tions, and I'll try to restrict myself to just a few. I want to join youin thanking our panel for spending this time with us and for theeffort that they put into preparing their testimony and studyingthe bills that are before us. We look forward to continuing to workwith you.
Ms. Leyton, I appreciate what I thought was a qualified ormaybe a wholehearted endorsement at least of one part of theIDEA bill, which is to give students the option of switching over toan income-contingent repayment of their existing Stafford Loans.Mr. Landres and Ms. Leyton both, as students you're having topay for education and a lot of other expenses, including coming toWashington and testifying, out of your own pocket. I know it's agreat experience, so it's no doubt worth it. But in your case, Mr.Landres, I know you've come a couple of times because we've re-scheduled these hearings. So, I'm glad that it has finally come topass that you were able to present your testimony and did so quiteably.
I would like to give you an opportunity to respond to some of thecomments that Mr. Davis made, particularly his assertion thatIDEA would be unfair because it would require a longer repaymentperiod than the current GSL programs.
We're not substituting one for another; we're simply presentingstudents with an additional choice. It's hard to understand howthat could be unfair, but I wonder if I could ask which repaymentstructure students who you actually deal with would prefer, if theyhad to choose.
Mr. LANDRES. Well, I think that before I answer, I just want toexpress my appreciation again to you, and Mr. Miller, and Mr. An-drews for sticking with us this long to wait to hear from students.After all, we're the consumers in this proposal, and it's always niceto do a little market research before you go forward.
When I discussed with students their choices, basically the con-cerns that they felt were not against repaying more. I mean,nobody wants to pay more money. That's the bottom line. But withpeople seeing personal bankruptcy go up, we've seen credit card de-faults go up, we're in a recession in which recovery is crippled by
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consumer debt and inability to pay back student debt. There is a
fear of defaulting out there that is incredible.

People look at paying more longer as sort of an insurance bet.
Nobody likes to do it, but when it's a choice, when it's not a forced
option, when you can move into the income-contingent program at
any time during your repayment, that really opens up the system
for people that there isn't right now. The real point that needs to
be made here is you're increasing access, you're increasing choice.

The IDEA plan would really make it possible for people to con-
sider what they want to do. They have their Stafford Loans. They
have their Perkins Loans, though that's less of an issue. They have
their IDEA Loans. They really feel strongly that they want some
kind of protection out there because it's a harsh world they're
going into when they graduate. All bets are off as to income and as
to success. If they have to pay a little more, they're willing to do it
if it means that their credit ratings will stay good for as long as
possible.

Mr. PETRI. Thank you. Mr. Hauptman, I had a couple of com-
ments and questions. One is, so far as negative amortization is con-
cerned, what's really wrong with negative amortization if you
never have to pay the extra interest if you can't afford it? Why
should people who live ordinary middle-class lives pay extra to sub-
sidize someone who goofs off for 10 years or joins some Ashram in
the Himalayas or whatever, and then goes to Wall Street and
makes a lot of money?

Mr. HAUPTMAN. Well, there's two parts to the question. I think a
lot of people would object to paying more for their loan to pay for
somebody who goofs off and never ends up repaying it. So, that is
the reason why I don't think the cross subsidy would be viewed fa-
vorably.

In terms of the negative amortization, what do you do with low
income borrowers? I think there's a general predilection against
the notion that what somebody borrows ends up growing over a
period of time, and the fact that you're going to forgive it at the
end of 20 or 25 years is a difficult point to sell.

I guess I would come back with the question: Why have the nega-
tive amortization? I think the answer is because we're trying to
make the system self-financing. What I'm arguing is the cost of
subsidizing those low income borrowers by not putting in negative
amortization is not that high to incur the kinds of bad affects that
would occur under it.

Mr. Perm. Well, I guess the point of my question is that without
negative amortization we're not only subsidizing low income bor-
rowers; we're subsidizing conceivably very high income borrowers
because people don't earn the same amounts every year of their
lives. Someone may take a couple years off to have a lifetime expe-
rience and then go on and make big bucks, and they've got a subsi-
dy for those low income years if you forgive rather than capitalize
that interest.

So, my argument is that it's more just to forgive at the end of a
long period of time rather than each year, since you have a lot of
funny transfer payments if you do it on an annual basis.

Mr. HAUPTMAN. Valid point.
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Mr. PETRI. Maybe one or two other things. I've argued repeatedlythat the in-school interest subsidy is regressive because those whostay in school the longest and, therefore, have the highest later in-comes statistically, receive the most subsidy. Wouldn't it be betterto decide whatever level of subsidy we want and then to distributeit progressively based on postschool income?
Mr. HAUPTMAN. Well, I've written to that effect, so yes, I agree.One thing that might be helpful, which was surprising to me, wason this graph on page 6, the line for the Simon bill, I guess, but itwould also be true for others if it were done this way, is not thatmuch higher when you accrue interest of principal. It's surprisingthat the debt doesn't grow as much as we might suppose during thein-school period.
So, the other way to do it, which is something I would encouragethe committee to think about at some point is, what about splittingthe in-school interest subsidy between the Federal Government andthe student; that is that you would accrue interest at, let's say, 4percent, which would make for a much larger debt accumulationover a period of time, and the government would pick up the otherhalf. I've also suggested why not split it between the school, thegovernment and the student, but sometimes the schools don't likethat.
In any case, the notion of splitting the in-school interest ratherthan having the Federal Government pay the whole thing, I thinkhas a lot to be said for it.
Mr, Pgriu. The concern I have is that if you just have an evensplit, you tend to build in a subsidy, then, for higher income people.If you were to discount it for the first year of school, then the voca-tional school kids who probably have a lower income will get some-what the same subsidy as
Mr. HAUPTMAN. That's another way of doing it.Mr. PETRI. There are a number of ways of looking at that. Ithink we should noodle over it a little bit.
Mr. HAUPTMAN. WS just that 8 percent accumulates very quicklyto a fairly large amount. So, if we could kind of lower that rate ofaccumulation, we might get a lot more students able to handle theaccrual of interest.
Mr. Perm. Mr. Sears, thank you. Do you think the health profes-sions students would choose to borrow from an income-dependentloan program rather than the HEAL program, given their differentterms? Could you address the administrative burdens of theincome-contingent program that we've been discussing here?Mr. SEARS. Yes. I think there are many attractive features to theincome-sensitive proposal. I think yes, that many of our schoolswould be interested in pursuing that.
In terms of the administrative burden, I guess it's somethingthat I've seen recently in the way of a study. It suggests that theadministrative functions would drop from 63 to about 36 in a directloan proposal. So, I guess I'm expecting and believing that that'sgoing to simplify significantly the administrative burdens forschools.
Mr. PETRI. Thank you. Mr. Davis, I wish I could thank you foryour testimony, but I'm not sure I'm as happy with it as with someof the others. In any event, as best I can tell in reading it and
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trying to analyze it, we sort of have a fundamental analytical dif-
ference over how you account for the time value of money and
whether a dollar toclay is worth the same as a dollar in 20 years, orwhether you ought to discount future costs because there's a differ-ence, and that you don't do.

Your analysis tends to, I think, distort or mislead the analysis
Muse you're not really comparing similar values if you don't dis-count.

You give us an example on, I think, the middle of page 3, of aborrower who you say would have $14,650 forgiven at the end of 25
years. You claim it would have cost the government less to give the
borrower $10,000 outright. Have you actually done the math on
that? According to my calculation, the present value of $14,650 in
25 years, using the congressional budget office's discount rate of 7.7
percent, is $2,129, not $14,650.

When you consider all the payments that the borrower did make
over the 25 years, then that present value is, according to ourfigure, a $1,201 subsidy. In contrast, the subsidy in the SLS pro-gram is 16 cents on the dollar or $1,600 on this $10,000 loan. So,even if all IDEA borrowers turn out to be low income, the cost to
the government would actually be 25 percent less per loan than inthe current SLS program, but that subsidy would go to low-income
borrowers instead of to middlemen and to defaulters.

So, would you care to comment on that? Have I missed some-thing?
Mr. DAVIS. What is an SLS borrower?
Mr. PETRI. Supplemental Loan Program. Well, let me just addthat two paragraphs lower, on page 3, you talk about discounting.There you say if one discounts the present value of $10,000 origi-nally borrowed, the government might be forgiving fewer real dol-lars at the end of 25 years than it originally loaned, but not muchfewer.
Actually, it is much fewer because the net present value of thatexample would be a subsidy of about $650 according to our figures,if you discount it back. So, I think you're tending to magnify thesize of the problem by not using the discounted value over time,which, really, students and borrowers have to do.One other comment, you say that it's impossible for people tofigure out how much they're going to owe because of income con-tingency, but they certainly can figure out the range and the buy-

out feature if their income should soar. So, if they're buying an in-
surance policy, they know what they're paying for that pretty defi-nitely. It'E3 not just totally uncertain at all.

There are defined parameters. You could not put an exact dollarfigure on what it is, but you certainly could make the self-interest
calculation and hit it pretty roughly; right? That's about the bestwe can do in life in most of the decisions that we make.

Mr. DAVIS. You think they could? See, I don't think an 18-year-old student can make a decision on an income-contingent loan be-
cause they don't know what the X is in the variable, their income.They have no notion of what that could be. I say this from a view-point of having been an admissions and financial aid officer.I could recruit students like crazy with an income-contingent
loan program because it would notI would tell them it's not going
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to cost them a lot. It's going to cost you 1 percent of your income.
It's for the rest of your life, but it's only 1 percent. They're not
going to have any notion of what their income is going to be. Now,
a person of our age, being a little bit more sophisticated, might be
a little less easily swayed by this.

Mr. PETRI. Maybe they shouldn't be allowed to choose which col-
lege they go to either, then.

Would you care to respond to that?
Mr. LANDRES. Yes. I would like, with the leave of the committee,

to introduce my partner who is sitting right in the front row in the
brown suit right over there. His name is Lee McAdams. He's also a
sophomore at Columbia and he has a very high number of loans. I
think I started talking to Lee about income-contingent loans a few
days ago when we finalized the decision to come down here.

I don't know how much time he put in when he was first apply-
ing to college, looking at the various financial aid options, but it's
my sense that he's a pretty good judge of what's best for him. I
mean, he managed to choose Columbia. He managed to come up
with a financial aid package that he's comfortable with.

I do resent the implication that 18 year olds who can fight and
die for their country in the Persian Gulf can't make a decision
about taking out student loans. We're required to make all sorts of
judgments; where we're going to go, what we're going to eat, what
we're going to study, what we're going to do. We might as well go
to sort of a Soviet system where the government makes the deci-
sion of what you study, where you study, how much you make,
where you live. We don't live in that kind of society. I think that
we're perfectly capable of making cur own choices.

Ms. LEYTON. I'd, also like to respond to that. In saying that it's
important for students to be able to make a conscious choice to
enter into this kind of program, we're not at all saying that stu-
dents aren't prepared to make this kind of decision or that an 18
year old doesn't look at their options seriously and doesn't look at
the costs of education and what benefits they will reap.

In addition, Mr. Miller's point is well taken, that many students
today, including a number of the students that we represent are
nontraditional students who aren't 18 years old, who are older stu-
dents that are re-entering college. But there are a number of prob-
lems that students encounter when trying to make these decisions
about what kinds of loans they're going to enter into.

They are often not notified of the full terms of the loans or they
are presented with confusing answers about what their total debt
will be, particularly with some of the uncertainty that revolves
around a contingent loan repayment plan. Students don't know
what their postgraduation income will be and have a definite right,
given these economic times, to be very fearful of how much they'll
be able to make after college.

So, students have a number of legitimate concerns which make
income-contingent loan repayments very appealing. When we
began discussing this with our board of directors and with students
all over the country, people are very interested in looking at ways
that loan program repayment can be more income sensitive. How-
ever, affordability of payments is not the only concern of today's
students.
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Students are also concerned about total loan debt. They are con-
cerned about the length of time that they will have to repay their
loans. Many of the students who are involved with USSA and who
we've spoken to are very concerned that they can see themselves
falling into a 25-year repayment plan because they are concerned
about the postgraduation income, because it will be more afford-
able for them and enter into something that will leave them
having to pay much more back and over a longer period of time.

That's not at all to say that those students made a poor decision,
but it's to say that those choices should be made when students
have the opportunity to have the full information and also when
they know what their postgraduation income will be in a process
that is much more conscious, such as through a petitioning process.

Mr. PETRI. Thank you.
Mr. ANDREWS. [presiding] Thank you very much. I just want to

conclude the hearing with a few questions. Before I do, I want to
again thank Congressman Petri for his persistence in this idea. I
think that at the end of this reauthorization the financial aid loan
system is going to be fundamentally different than it was before it
started. I hope it will be for the best, because I know a lot of people
with good intentions are trying to make that happen.

In large part, that difference will be a result of .,-9ur persistence
and diligence in this issue. As a fellow member of the subcommit-
tee, I appreciate all you've done and your inspiration for having
today's hearing. I very much appreciate it. I also want to thank the
last panel. We stayed because we know that the last panel is
always the best panel. We all knew what the other guys were going
to say, but you, ladies and gentlemen have distinctive points of
view.

Mr. Landres, I appreciate the student point of view you present
as to what choices and options are available. I thought it was very
helpful.

Ms. Leyton, I'm particularly grateful that you created a distinc-
tion between the issue of where we raise the capital to run these
programs and then how we collect the loans at the back end be-
cause those are distinctly different legislative and political issues.

Mr. Hauptman, I will refer to your chart on many an occasion. Itis the most concise and comprehensive presentation of the varying
proposals I've seen. I hope that we have your permission to share itwith the other members on a regular basis because it's very help-
ful.

Mr. HAUPTMAN. Surely, Mr. Chairman. The one caveat is thatthe proposals are changing from time to time. 1 he way I character-
ize it, some of the proposals are no longer accurate.

Mr. ANDREWS. We understand that as far as today's date, but it
is an extremely helpful way of organizing the issues and the an-swers.

Mr. Sears, you pointed out an issue that has particular import to
those in medical education which I've heard about from people in
my State as well. I hope that there is commitment on both sides ofthe aisle to address that as the reauthorization moves to the floor,
to conference, and, hopefully, to enactment prior to the September
30th deadline.
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Dr. Davis, I thought one excellent poiLt in your presentation was
that you've quantified a lot of the rhetorical conclusions people
draw about the debt burden. It's very easy to oversimplify that
issue. I found it instructive and, frankly, unique to be able to see
your analysis laid out the way it was with respect to what incomes
people are earning and how much they cost.

I want to come back to one point that you made about your argu-
ments in opposition to income-sensitive repayment. I think it
makes sense intuitively that--

Mr. DAVIS. I'm sorry. I am opposed to income-contingent loan re-
payments, not necessarily income-sensitive.

Mr. ANDREWS. Okay. I stand corrected. One of the arguments
that you make in opposition to the ideas we're talking about this
morning is whether or not the prototypical freshman borrower can
make an informed decision about what to do. I take your com-
ments, frankly, as saying that you're not casting any aspersions
about the maturity or intellect of the decisionmaker; you're saying
that the variables are not present to make an informed decision.

You could have the chair of Sallie Mae make these decisions, but
that person may not have all the facts. I understand that.

Mr. DAVIS. I tried to imagine myself making the decision be-
tween buying two homes, two different priced homes, within an
income-contingent mortgage. I pretty much know what my income
stream is going to be like. A person who is 22 years old doesn't.

Mr. ANDREWS. That sort of leads to my question which is: can't
we address that concern by moving the date of the election, as to
what the repayment schedule would be, to after graduation when
the person does have a sense of what he or she is going to make?

I mean, you can sign the note when you're a freshman, and then
make an election 8 months, 9 months after graduation, when
you've taken your job or you have a sense of what your income is
going to be. Couldn't we address it that way, and also by providing
for some reasonable number of changes during the repayment
period?

If I get a raise--which, as a member of Congress, I certainly
won't be getting in the near future, this being an election year
but if we get a raise, we have the opportunity to readjust our
thinking and change the repayment schedule. Can't we address
that problem that way?

Mr. Davis. It's possible, yes.
Mr. ANDREWS. Because it would strike me as being relatively

simple administratively. It would require one more stop in the
process of collection, I suppose. Before you begin repayment, you
would make the election. Is there any reason why we shouldn't do
that?

Mr. DAVIS. You would drive the people crazy who were servicing
the loans. But other than that, that's no

Mr. ANDREWS. We've probably done that to a fair extent already.
Mr. DAVIS. Right.
Mr. ANDREWS. It's really sort of analogous to what Congressman

Petri said about making choices here. If you carry the thinking for-
ward, that borrowers may not have all the data to make an intelli-
gent choice and that they will wind up with larger debts through
negative amortization or whatever, shouldn't we in the FHA home
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mortgage program mandate that people borrow for 15-year mort-
gages instead of 30? I mean, is that any different than the argu-
ment that you're making this morning?

Mr. DAVIS. I'm not sure. Your FHA repayments are not based on
income-contingensy, right, in their low income?

Mr. ANDREWS. That's correct.
Mr. DAVIS. And all you're doing is reducing their payments, their

total payments, by making them every 15 years payout?
Mr. ANDREWS. WS always smarter to repay a mortgage in 15

years than 30. It costs less out of pocket. It's a Federally-guaran-
teed program. Why don't we mandate that?

Mr. DAVIS. In a student loan program?
Mr. ANDREWS. No, in FHA housing. I mean, doesn't the same ra-tionale carry forward?
Mr. DAVIS. No, I don't think so. I'm not sure. I guess I'm missing

the connection you're trying to make between home mortgages andstudent loans.
Mr. ANDREWS. Well, if I understand the argument correctly, it'sthat you have a concern, which I think is a very valid one, thatborrowers who are at the beginning of their educational process,

the 18-year-old prototypical borrower, who, by the way, isn't at allthe prototypical borrower, as you well know, but that individual is
not going to have the data about how much money he or she isgoing to make. I'm suggesting we can address that by letting that
election take place when you generally know how much money
you're going to make, after you've graduated and gotten a job.

Secondly, you're making the argument thatand correct me ifI'm misphrasing itpeople are going to be prone to make unwise
choices. They are going to be prone to make choices that minimize
their payments in the short run, but balloon the overall obligation
over time. Well, the same argument would hold in the home mort-gage program.

Mr. DAVIS. I don't think, in my testimony, I thought of the ideaof making an unwise choice and borrowing more than they should.I think what my major concern was, as I was thinking about thisand writing about it, was that the choices would be uninformed
and that they wouldn't be able to consider, you know, the various
alternatives between going to, say, a low-cost college versus ahigher cost college.

My other concern when thinking about all this and writing aboutit is that with the income-contingent loan, it seemed to me thatpeople whose education did not pay off to the extent that it pays offfor other people, males versus females, would have to pay morethrough an income-contingent loan program, more in absolute dol-lars. Now, there's no way to keep females from paying more in pro-portion to their income unless you raise or somehow equalize fe-
males incomes. I'm concerned about that part of it.

The other thing that bothers me is that usually, if you look atand I don't have a lot of information or data to support this conten-tion, just some stuff that we did in Pennsylvaniabut if you lookat people who have lower earnings, they usually came from lower
family backgrounds.

A Bachelor's degree doesn't level the playing field as far as in-
comes are concerned. So, not only did the person go through school
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financially handicapped, now he's graduated and you place a long-
term handicap on him that is not equivalent to his more affluent
peers. That's a thing that bothers me about these programs.

Mr. ANDREWS. The reference I was making is on page 3 of your
written statement where you say virtually all income-contingent
loan programs allow, if not encourage, borrowers to incur larger
debts than fixed payment programs. Larger debts are made possi-
ble because payments frequently represent smaller proportions of
borrower's incomes upon graduation when earnings are lower.

But, smaller loan payments made over many more years ulti-
mately mean that the total payments for a given amount borrowed
will be greater than the payments made for a fixed payment loan
at the same interest rates. What I'm saying, what I think Congress-
man Petri was alluding to earlier, is shouldn't that be a choice that
the individual borrower gets to make for himself or herself through
the offering of the income-sensitive or income-contingent loan?

Mr. DAVIS. As opposed to a fixed loan or in parallel? You could
make your choice one way or the other; right?

Mr. ANDREWS. Yes.
Mr. DAVIS. Sure. I don't have any problem with that. What I

have is a problem substituting the income-contingent loan for an-
other kind, for a fixed repayment loan.

Mr. ANDREWS. Would you support legislation that would give
that option to the student between fixed payment and income sen-
sitive, which is what the House bill looks like?

Mr. DAVIS. Assuming that the student would be told the kinds of
things that he is told when he enters what we call the entrance
interviews, when you accept your Stafford Loans. Assuming that
the student has a chance to make an informed choice. He has some
notion of what income streams are going to be like in the future,
some notion of what choices of jobs are going to be, and things like
that.

Mr. ANDREWS. I appreciate that. I think the way we could accom-
plish that would be, as I say, move that election date later in the
process when the person is graduated and has an idea of what his
or her income will be. With that modification, I think it would
work.

Mr. Hauptman, did you want to comment?
Mr. HAUPTMAN. Yes. Thank you, Mr. Andrews. Absolutely

moving the point of decision from the time of the loan to the point
of hen the repayment starts is the whole point behind the flexible
pay ment option that I was talking about. The question back to you
would be: What options are you providing to the borrower at the
time when repayment starts?

If I take your last comment, you would offer them an option be-
tween amortized payments or regular payment or some sort of
graduated or income-contingent, according to negotiation between
whoever has the loan at that point. That's exactly what I was
trying to say.

The one point I would add to your comment, though, if you do
that and the bank still holds the loan, that increases the cost to the
government of taking the election other than the 10-year straight
repayment.

_r3
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Mr. ANDREWS. Do you have any suggestions as to how we can seethat the banks don't hold the loans?
Mr. HAUPTMAN. Yes. There should be another agency involvedwhich is responsible for doing income-contingent repayment. Iwould not make it the IRS. I would make it the State guaranteeagencies who do not require a special allowance payment in order

to do business, unlike the banks.
So, in other words, if a student came in and the point of repay-ment starts and says, "I need help. My debt is too much for myincome," then the set of loans that that student holds wovld besold or bought by the guarantee agency and then an alternative re-payment schedule extended, graduated income base, whichever,would then be set up for that student. The government at thatpoint has no additional cost involved with it. So, that would be myonly thing.
Mr. ANDREWS. I appreciate that. The House bill in its presentform would not mandate but would permit exactly that scenario. Itwould permit the Department of Education to contract with theState guarantee agency to perform precisely that function. It's oneof the reasons why the House bill tries to be broad in its adminis-trative options.
Does anyone else have a comment, and then we'll close? Yes, sir?
Mr. LANDRES. I think that, to sort of summarize and put into per-spective the exchange that just went on, we needand I believethat the committee has done in its billa much greater effort atdisseminating information upon application; that informationneeds to be provided to students on a whole range of issues on stu-dent aid; that we can make a much better decision about our op-tions the more information we have.
The other thing that I wanted to point out, we're talking aboutthis repayment plan as if everybody who goes in is going to bepaying back for 25 years. That's not true. According to my readingof the bill, most people are going to take 10 to 12 to 15, maybe 17,

years to repay. That's not the same thing as 25, and the interestrate and the payments are much less.
The final thing that I wanted to say was that I think moving the

choice date is something that we should look at very, very serious-ly. Maybe there could be some consultations with Mr. Petri and thecommittee and the guarantee agencies, such that one has theoption of taking a Petri Loan, which would be just like a StaffordLoan except amortized at this variable interest rate
Mr. ANDREWS. We prefer to think of them as Ford Loans.
Mr. LANDRES. Okay. Maybe we could give it a bipartisan name.But at some point during that amortization process, during that re-payment process, if a student says, "I want out. I want income con-tingent," they can do that. So, it drops down at income contingentat any elected point.
Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you.
Mr. Chairman, did you want to comment?
Chairman FORD. It just occurred to me that we could reach Mr.Hauptman's concern. There's never been any necessity for it beforebecause the conditions were rigid, fixed, and there were no alterna-tives available to students. We have a law in the books that we've
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worked with for a good many years called the Truth in Lending
Law.

When young people go to buy a home, for example, they have to
have presented to them a truth in lending statement that describes
all of the characteristics of the instrument they are about to sign
called a mortgage, including a table that shows them how much
they're going to repay if they pay only at the rate required by the
mortgage over a period of years. It's a very sobering experience for
people to find out what they really pay for a $50,000 home mort-
gage over its life.

If we were going to give these options, it occurs to me that it
would be rather simple to simply make it clear that everybody, no
matter whether it's done at the State agency or any place else,
would be subject to the terms of the Truth in Lending Act so that
at the point of the decisionmaking, the maximum amount of infor-
mation that you can project would be out there.

When the student makes the choice, they've got the maximum
amount of information before them.

One of the reasons we cut out several of the student deferments
is because students told us that they are meaningless because so
few of the students understand them. So we made them very
simple.

The second thought that comes to me as I listen to this exchange
is I'm presupposing that if I, for example, came out of law school
and thought that I might like to work for worthy causes for a
period of time, I would choose the lowest initial payout that I could
get. But that still would not foreclose me if I stumbled into a wind-
fall along the way of advancing the payoff time on my note.

We don't write these notes like fixed mortgages that penalize
people for early repayment. It's got a flexibility in the direction of
shortening the time, if you're able to do so. So, you can save that
tremendous payout. If they are properly informed at the beginning,
they will be motivated to do that as soon as possible.

Amongst my cmitemporaries, when I started practicing law, was
a commonly discussed phenomenon that the first time you happen
to hit a case where you weren't working for the good of God and
your country but for a real fee, you finally paid off all the debts
you'd been accumulating in school and while you started your prac-
tice. If you were lucky enough to have that happen early enough in
your practice, then you could take off like a big bird. But it was
clearly understooe it's hard to project where your income stream is
going to go.

Now, I heard, just before I had to go to this little meeting out
there, Mr. Landres saying that the studentsyou mentioned Co-
lumbia?

Mr. LANDRES. Yes.
Chairman FORD. Students in Columbia are like other Americans

at the moment. They don't know what's going to be out there when
they get out of school next year or 2 years from now, because for
the first time in many years, there's a genuine concern that a col-
lege educated person who is not just a bearer of a certificate, but
actually an educated person, may have trouble finding a job for a
while. So, the choices that they make, even while in school, may

0I 17,
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not be appropriate to the way they're going to live the rest of their
life.

I can't see how anyone could claim that it would cost us more
money to defer the choice of whatever options we end up with until
the period when you're going to go into repayment rather than at
some earlier period. I don't see how it advantages anybody in the
lending stream to tell them early when you sign the note how
you're going to pay it back when they suffer no penalty no matter
what your decision.

The difficulty, however, is you have to extend the interest subsi-
dies for this extended time if we're talking about Stafford Loans. If
we're talking about Andrews Loans, we don't have to worry about
it because it's Federal Government. Mr. Chairman, it occurs to me
that in an indirect way these people are telling us that the really
best way to go is with your direct loan program.

Thank you very much for letting me butt in.
Mr. ANDREWS. You're welcome anytime, sir. Do we have any-

thing else?
[No response.]
Mr. ANDREWS. Now, before we adjourn, we do have some state-

ments to be entered into the record; the statement of Elizabeth M.
Hicks of Harvard University, the statement of Senator Joseph Lie-
berman; the statement of the Coalition of Higher Education Assist-
ance Organizations; the statement of Senator Dave Durenberger;
the statement of our colleague Congressman Joe Gaydos; the state-
ment of John Schullo from Bemidji State University in Minnesota;
the statement of Professor Barry, Bluestone; and the statement of
Charles B. Saunders, Jr., from the American Council of Education.
Without objection, they will be entered on the record.

With that, we stand adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 1 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
[Additional material submitted for the record follows.]
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MACK TO TAB MUM MARINO TIN GaSt FOR MUM LiNDINO

I. iNTRODUCTIOU

One of the most controversial debates during the current
reauthorization is whether the federal government should move from
a guarantee student loan program to a direct loan program. Without
Careful review of direct lending, there is a temptation to assume

that it is either a return to a past failure or a risky experiment
for the future.

Nothing could be further from the truth. Direct lending is neither
the rebirth of a prior program that failed, nor is it a major
innovation yet untried. Rather, direct lending is the application
of successful components of several past financial aid programs to
the present environment, with the goal of ensuring the perpetuity
of Jur largest federal student financial aid program well into the
future.

The purpose of my presenta ,ion is to explain how direct lending
will take us "Back to the Future". After a brief background of the
Guaranteed Student Loan program, I will highlight the benchmarks
of an ideal student loan program and explerin why direct lending
meets those standards. We will examine how direct lending works
and conclude by sxploring what the future holds. Throughout, my
basic premise is that a guarantee loan program is outdated and a
direct loan program timeless.

it. RACROROUND

The fundamental concept of the Guaranteed student Loan program --
whereby federal expenditures are leveraged to generate private
capital -- has changed very little from its beginnings in the mid-
1960's. What has changed is the nature of the students and
families the GsL program serves and the environment in which the
program operates.

* Originally directed to middle-inclose families experiencing cash
flow problems, the GSL program now is used to meet the
demonstrated financial ned of federal student aid applicants
from low- and middle-income backgrounds.

Initially serving students at a few public and private
institutions, the GSL program now serves students enrolled in
thousands of institutions from all sectors of postsecondary
duoation.

Formerly a program used to award the last dollars for student's
educational costs, the GSL program now is used to distribute the
first dollars for students' direct educational and living
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expenses.

In the beginning a program that awarded millions of dollars
annually to students, the GSL program now awards billions of
dollars each year.

These changes have stretched the limits of the GSL program too far.
The program was originally designed to operate on a smaller scale.
A student borrowed all his loans from the family's neighborhood
bank and the lender held and serviced the borrower's entire loan
portfolio throughout the life of the loans.

But economies of scale have rendered this personal approach
impractical, if not impossible. Lenders now have no prior banking
relationship with the borrower, conduct most of their business with
the borrower by mail, offer 24 hour loan processing in order to
compete, contract out loan servicing, and sell loans as needed to
secure capital -- sometimes even before the loan is disbursed, and
often without informing the borrower.

In addition to the student, the school, the lender, and the federal
government, this private-federal partnership now includes the
guarantee agency, the servicer, the secondary market, and the
collection agency. Further, since the original design of the GSL
program did not take into account a growth industry of servicers,
there is leas oversight of these entities, which has recently
resulted in improper servicing of millions of dollars worth of
loans.

The GSL program carries with it the seeds of its own destruction.
It is an inappropriate structure in the present environment because
it directs limited federal dollars to the burgeoning administrative
bureaucracies required to support the program, rather than to
students in need of funds for their educational expenses.

During the past year, many federal legislators, educational
associations, and educational institutions have concluded that
simply changing the current GSL program will not address its
multitude of problems. The next logical progression -- to
restructure the program -- ic necessary. With this thought in
mind, several proposals have been developed to create an ideal
student loan program.

III. TUE IDEAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM

The ideal student loan program serves the needs of the borrowers
for whom it is intended, results in the most effective expenditure
of the lender's funds, and provides reasonable assurances that the
funds will be repaid. The benchmarks I have identified for the
ideal student loan program can be summarized as follows. The ideal
atUdent loan program:

2



185

is responsive to the needs of the borrower

is understandable to the borrower

is administratively manageable and effective

keeps administrative costs to a minimum

ensures program accountability and integrity

provides assurance for capital demands

is equitably available to all potential borrowers

has beneficial terms for borrowers

protects the rights of the lenders

results in timely delivery of the loan proceeds

A careful evaluation -- by those in the best position to make suchjudgments-- of these, and similar value descriptions, against thecurrent GSL structure indicates the program is in need of change.
At its November 1991 Board of Directors meeting, NASFAA did notfully endorse current federal direct loan proposals, but
recommended develepment and implementation of a parallel direct
loan program, with no limitations on the number of schools that
Could participate. In a letter to the NASFAA membership, DallasMartin, the President, shared the Board's evaluation of the currentGSL program against their ideal student loan "value descriptions".
The letter states:

Generally speaking, there was nearly unanimous
agreement that the existing GSL program has a
number of deficiencies that need to be
addressed to make the program more
understandable and responsive to students, to
improve administrative efficiency, and to
ensure program integrity, The Board
particularly favored proposals which would
standardise application, deferment, and
reporting documents and efforts to reduce
origination fees and administrative complexity
for students. Many Board members expressed
genuine frustration with the time delays and
difficulty they experience in providing quality
service to student borrowers under the current
structure.

On the other hand, direct lending fared quite well when the NASFAABoard of Directors measured it against their value descriptions.
The letter continues:

3
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For those reasons, many members favored the
direct lending proposals, believing that
institutions could originate loans, disburse
funds, and make needed adjustment much more
effectively and without the delays and
inconvenience that now occurs at many schools.
Further, the idea of reducing the number of
ntities that students must deal with to
initially secure their loans was seen as a very
positive feature of the direct lending
proposals. A majority of Board members also
strongly favored the House direct lending
approach which would eliminate student
insurance and origination fees.

XV. MOW DIMECT LAWING MOMS

Some of the most adamant critics of direct landing are those that
make erroneous assumptions about the program and how it will
operate. One incorrect assumption is that direct lending is the
Guaranteed Student Loan program with the school as the lender --
that is, something akin to the previous Federally Insured Student
Loan program. A direct loan program would be more similar in
concept to the Pell Grant program, or the Perkins Loan program,
with some notable differences.

In order to comprehend how dirct lending works, it is important
to understand the similarities and differences of direct lending
with the Guaranteed Student Losn program, the Perkins Loan program,
and the Pell Grant program.

ILSOISIAT412.11_2LRiLtta_kwuuLAngLill_suareAtulLituslut_tain
2129X101

A Direct Loan program and the Guaranteed Student Loan program share
the following features al both:

* Are an entitlement program.

Have no limit on the amount of capital.

Have capital availability determined by student and parent
eligibility only.

* Have eligibility for subsidized loans based on financial
need.

Direct lending differs from the Guaranteed Student Loan program as
under direct lending:

* The capital is secured at wholesale, rather than retail,

4
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rates.

The program is financed through the sale of government
securities, not through commercial lenders.

Government subsidizes are targeted to students, not to the
administrative bureaucracies required to support the
program.

* The multiplicity of guarantee agency policies and procedures
is eliminate&

The process is transparent to the student.

The resolution of overawards and refunds is more easily
facilitated.

&_gemparlege_gf,_Riregradeeps and the Prkins Loss _psvir

A Direct Loan program and the Perkins Loan program share the
following features as under both:

There is no need for the borrower to complete a separate
loan application in addition to the federal student
financial aid application.

* The school is able to disburse and deliver the loan along
with the rest of the student's financial aid package.

* Schools have direct control over the timing and
distribution of loan funds.

* The school secures the student's pruperly endorsed signature
on a standardized promissory note.

Direct lending differs from the Perkins Loan program as under
direct lending:

There is no limit to the amount of capital.

* Schools are not required to submit an institutional
application to secure a level of funding.

* Schools are not the lenders and never own the loans.

Schools are not responsible for the aervicing and collection
of loans, or for contracting these services.

* Schools are not required to provide long-term storage
of promissory notes, but rather transmit signed promissory
notes to the school's designated servicing contractor.

5
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Li22MIHIXIMIMIALALISHLIIHSHR-HIHILthi-1111-grall"--re-glall

A Direct Loan program and the Pell Grant Program share the
following features as under both:

At the beginning of each awar4 year a school is given an
initial authorization, which is adjusted as the award year
progresses based on the actual nuaber of eligible studenta.

A school draws down funds from the Department of Education's
Payment Management Elites'.

Direct lending differe frau the Pall Granc program as uader direct
lending:

There is no limit on the amount of capital.

* Receipt of funds is not dependent on the submission of a
separate voucher for each student, such as the Pell Grant
Student Aid Report.

TIP-11I4L-LtSPI-ISLA2Ply_tar_Saa
Here are the ten basic steps involved in applying for and receiving
a direct loans

S tep 1 A student completes a federal financial aid application
to apply for all forms of Title IV aid. There is no
additional application for a direct loan.

S tep 2 The student submits the application to a processar.

Step 3 The processor computes a student's eligibility according
to the federal need analysis and conducts central data
base 'latches with entities such as Selective service,
the Immigration and Naturalization Service, the
Department of Justice, and the National Student Aid data
base.

S tep 4 The processor forwards its result, including default
analysis, to the school.

Step 5 The school reviews the need analysis, determines the
student's eligibility for all forms of Title IV aid, and
aanda the student an award notice.

S tep 6 The school secures the student's signature on a
standardized promissory note and ensures that the note
is properly executed.

2 '0
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The sdhool draws down the funds from the Department of
Education's Payment Management System and posts the funds
to the student's account within tine frames consistent
with existing procedures.

The school conducts entrance loan interviews with new
borrowers. A school can credit a new borrower's account,
but cannot advance loan proceeds to a new borrower prior
to the completion of the entrance loan interview.

Step 9 The school transmits the promissory note to the
Department of Education's servicing contractor.

Btep 10 The school originally reports essentie data elements to
the Department of Education's contractor such as:
enrollment status and amount of loan. The school also
updates this information with the contractor as
necessary, based on change in enrollment status or amount
of loan disbursed, including refunds and overpayments.

V. UMW= MIS MUM

ehe future holds the possibility of either failure or success,
depending on the path we choose.

If we continue on our present course with the Guaranteed Student
Loan program, we wi. end up spending more to make loans to fewer
students. To bring escalating default costs under control,
Congress and the Department of Education will continue to micro-
manage the program. There will be little or no possibility of
performance bonuses for those entities that administer the program
effectively.

I agree that we could improve the current GSL structure by
standardizing policies, procedures, and forms and by making better
and Common use of new technologies. And / hope that you would agree
that, to date, lenders, guarantee agencies, secondary markets, and
servicers have failed to do this on their own initiative.

I also agree that the creation of the National Student Aid Data
base would be of the same benefit to the GSL program as it will be
to direct lending.

But, I also believe that the centralization that would occur under
direct lending -- which is the same as that under the Perkins Loan
program -- will lead to a faster and smoother transition to this'
standardization. In addition, the creation of direct lending will
provide the needed incentive to make the completion of the Nationa1
Student Aid Data base a top nriority.

In the final analysis, the one irrefutable fact is that the current
GSL program will cost more than direct lending because it obtains

7
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capital at retail, rather than wholesale, rates. rf you do not
belieVo Me, ask any child old enough to understand the concept of
borrowing end interest whether he would want to bor7ew a loan at
x interest rate, or x interest rate plus 3.25e. Without the cost
savings direct lending produceS, the future of our largest federal
student loan program is not bright.

VI. CONCLUSION

I began this presentation on the merits of direct lending with the
*Back to the Future" analogy. For those of who you are not movie
buffs, or did not see "Back tO the Future I, II, or //I", you may
be unfamiliar with tha plot of this science fiction trilogy And
the struggle of the protagonist which is central to all three
films.

The plot is straightforward. A successful time machine is invented
which provides the protagonist with an opportunity to travel at
random from the present, into the past, on to the future, and back
again. Knowing exactly what the future holds, the protagonist
struggles with whether he should change the course of destiny by
effecting the outcome of critical events.

I a* not trying to portray these movies as deep philosophical works
of art. They were simply made to be entertaining, and they are.
I am using this analogy in the hopes that if I leave you with only
one message it is the following.

We do not need to travel into the future to know that direct loans
will result in considerable cost savings. Responsible analysts in
the congressional Budget Office, the General Accounting Office, and
the Department of Education have told us so. We do not need to
travel into the future to know that schools can, and will, more
effectively originate leans than commercial lenders. Our past
experience with the Perkins Loan program proves that. We do not
need to travel into the future to know that direct loans will
better serve borrowers. Confused, and often desperate students andtheir families, ars telling us now that they need a simple and
Understandable program.

Unfortunately, we are at a point in time when the current GSL
program is beginning to show the signa of serious systemic
problems. But fortunately, we are also at a point in time where
a number of events are converging that make direct lending a
possibility. Recent international events, as well as the credit
reform act, provide us with an opportunity to reprioritite our
federal spending and invest funds in our nation's youth. We have
several members in both the House and Senate who have shown the
vision and leadership to promote creative direct lending proposals.
We have universities and colleges that are willing, on behalf of
their students, to commit time and energy to help make direct
lending a success.

8
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As the protagonist in "Back to the Future", we have the ability to
change the course of destiny -- in our case, by replacing the
federal guarantee loan program with a federal direct lending
prcgram. It we do not intervene, but rather continue on our
present course, we will endanger our largest federal student
financial aid program. Out more importantly, we will risk access
to higher education for the very individuals who must be in the
forefront of our future efforts to remain amOng the world's leading
nations. We cannot let this moment of opportunity escape, for --
unlike the protagonist in "Back to the Future" -- we are not in a
time machine and will never pass this way again. Thank you.

9
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SENATOR JOSEPH I. LIES
TESTIMONY BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON PO TSECONDARY EDUCATION

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
NOVEMBER 14, 1991

Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to have this opportunity to
testify in support of the concept of self-reliance scholarships
whiLh would enable students to borrow money for tuition and payit back as a fixed percentage of their income. Over the past
several months I have been traveling around Connecticut speaking
to my constituents about their financial ooncerns and what I hear
again and again is the fear that they will not be able to afford
to send their children to college. In fact, as tuitions continue
to rise and student aid becomes increas.Ingly more difficult to
get, fewer and fewer Americans can afford to send their children
to our many good colleges and universities.

Middle-income families find themselves between a rock and ahard place. With the average cost of tuition at a private
university now over to $16,000 a year, they can't afford to paythe tuition, yet they make too much money to qualify for grantsor loans. Every year the cost of higher education takes a bigger
and bigger bite out of a family's income. In 1970 the average
family could send a child to college for less than 28% of theirannual income, now college costs 38% of what they make each year.College is fast becoming a luxury many Americans cannot afford.

But college is not a luxury for the American economy. We,as a society, cannot afford to deny so many of our young people
the opportunity for a college education. In an increasingly
competitive, global economy, America needs more, not fewer,educated workers. We must develop programs to provide as many
students as possible the opportunity to pursue higher education.

I am pleased to be working with Senator Bradley on S. 1562,
legislation to implement the Self-Reliance Scholarship program.This program will make more funds available to students for
college and graduate school, while making it easier for them to
repay their loans after they graduate, and much more difficultfor them to default.

Millions of American families will have access to this
program without having to fill out complicated financial
disclosure forms, and without having to determine the value of
their home and their other assets. This program will provide
middle-income families with access to student loans, allowing
many more students to pursue the dream of a college education.

The hallmark of this new student loan program is therepayment plan. Students can choose to repay the loan over a 10,15 or 25 year period and depending on the time period will pay it
back as a percentage of their income ranging from 1 and 5%. Theowed amount will be automatically collected by the IRS. Defaultswill be dramatically curtailed because of the IRS collection and

7
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because the amounts being paid will fairly reflect the graduate's
earnings. Teachers will hot have to move to Wall Street because
they cannot afford their student loan bills; doctors will not
have to opt for private practice rather than working in a
community health center.

The Self-Reliance Scholarship Program will also enable
adults with families to return to school to complete their
education or upgrade their skills. It is difficult for adults to
return to school because they have families to support and
mortgages to pay. By providing them with access to funds and a
loan repayment schedule which is tailored to their income level,
this program should allow them to return to the classroom and
improve their ability to compete in today's job market.

We cannot afford to become a society where only the rich are
able to attend college. Everyone in this nation, no matter what
their income level, should have the opportunity to pursue an
education. An educated population is the most critical factor in
enabling this country to succeed in a competitive international
market. The Self-Reliance Scholarship program will assist all
students attending school. The recent high school graduate whose
parents cannot afford tuition, the single mother struggling to
support a family and get an education, the forty-year old worker
who needs to update his skills in order to remain in the
workforce, all will benefit from this program. And so will our
country.

Mr. Chairman, I thank you for holding this hearing and I
look forward to working with my colleagues in the House and
Senate to enact of program of this kind before the end of this
Congress.
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Postsecondary Education Hearing

February 6, 1992

Joseph M. Gaydos

Mr. Chairman, I can understand the attraction of

implementing an income contingent loan repayment system for

students borrowing under the Higher Education Act of 1965
because it seems so simple on the surface. Graduates who have
high salaries would fully repay their loans quickly and
graduates who consistently earn low wages may never fully

repay their loans.

As I said, this concept may appear very simple and very

fair in theory, but I have some severe reservations about

fully embracing this type of repayment plan. Aside from my

concerns about how effectively an income contingent loan

program would be implemented and managed, I have concerns
about whether tying loan repayment to future earnings will
truly treat students in a fair and equitable manner.

For the rokst several years students at ten institutions
have been palticipating in an income contingent loan program.
So far, to my knowledge, there is no reliable empirical

evidence that this type of loan repayment is beneficial for
students. At the same time, there seems to be some indication

that we should not adopt this type of repayment plan for all
student loans or even allow the original ten institutions to
continue making loans with this type of repayment obligation.

The terms of income contingent

2, 9

programs usually require
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that the interest on loans be capitalized each year -- even

while students are in school. This causes those students who

must borrow heavily to finance their educations and don't earn

high wages after graduation, to pay an enormous amount of

interest every year without substantially reducing their

ove:all levels of debt because the outstanding principal is

repaid very slowly.

In some of the income contingent loan proposals this

situation is supposedly "dealt with" by dismissing students'

loan obligations after a certain number of years -- usually 20

or 25.

don't believe this approach is "dealing" with the

situation. It seems that for many low-wage-earning graduates

the burden of paying high interest without repaying a

sufficient amount of the outstanding principal each year may

force them into the position of putting their lives on hold

for 20 to 25 years while they arc virtually held hostage by

their educational debt.

I'm looking forward to hearing how our witnesss's feel

about this issue and would especially like to welcome a fellow

Pennsylvanian, Jerry Davis, Vice President for Research and

Policy Analysis at the Pennsylvania Higher Education

Assistance Agency.

A.;
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Bemidji state University

Sinancial Aid Office
1500 Birohmont Drive NI

Bemidji, Minnseota 56601-2699
(218) 755-2035

TootloonY bY John Schullo, Director of Financial Aid, Bemidji State University,80midli, Minnesota 56601-2699 for the House Subcommittee on Postsecondary
Si:lunation, in support of H.R. 2336, the "Income-Dependent Iducation AssistanceAct of 1991."

Bemidji State University is a small State University of 5,400 students locatedin northern Minnesota. Ws ars one Of the smaller universities comprising theseven institutions which maks up the Minnesota State University System of65,000 tudent.. Our institution is located within forty mile. of three major
Indian Reservations. Many of our students ars high need students from lowincome families...and in cal. you ars wondering, our cohort default rats on theStafford Loan Program is 4.81 and our default rats on the Perkins Loan Programis 3.911. Our tudents pay back their obligations.

Reauthorization is always an exciting time for the financial aid community. Ifind myself asking, "Ars they going to get it right this time7" My financialaid career began in 1966 as a direct result of tho Higher Iducation Act of1965. I have, for many Years, observed and eagerly anticipated each Amendmentand Reauthorization of that brilliant original piece of legislation. Again, In1991 I find myself asking, "Ars they going to get it right this time?"

many of the new proposals surfacing
as a result of the Reauthorization prods..

are right on target. A single need analysis, a fres application, direct loans,simplification, etc., ars xamples which demonstrate to ms and to students thatCongress is moving in the right direction.

It is evident to me in reviewing H.R. 2336, the "Income-Dependent EducationAesistance Act of 1991," that
someone in Washington must be receiving callsfrom the same mother I am. / call her "Hother-of-the-Smoking-Phons."

She hasbeen calling me for 25 years. I would like her to atop calling me. I
sincerely hope you get it right this time.

Getting it right will require a complete revamping of the federal student loanprograms. We know how complex it is to determine eligibility and continuallyadjust lotus for potential and actual overawards. When we hould be spendingour time processing applications
for financial aid and establishing awards forneedy students, we find ourselves involved with lenders and guarantee agencies,receipting checks, cancelling and revising checks for withdrawing students orchanges in enrollment and in attempting to resolve the increasingly burdensometask Of clearing students who have been determined to be in default because ofa missing form. W. know the lost to etudents in terms of confusion, delays and*Motional stress. We know, too, that the more agencies involved between the

funde and the student, the more confused studs- 4 become and the more problemsthey encounter. The process has become tremen.ously complex involving manyoutside agencies each with their own priority agenda. It is indeed time to gotit right this time.
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Toward getting it right, a direct student loan proposal is not only right on
target...it hits the bulls-eye. In addition, the IDSA plan addresss default
and repayment problems in a unique and realistic manner. The Income-Dependent
IducatiOn Assistance Act proposed by Representative Thomas Petri provides
answers to the very real awarding, delivery and repayment problems inherent in
the present student loan borrowing system.

I want to mention only three thIngs about the Petri proposal. They concern

three very real frustrations people have with financial aid and how these

frustrations ars resolved by this direct loan proposal.

First, students feel caught in a government sting operation with regard to
loans. They must take them to remain in school. No loan, no school. They
know that the future is uncertain. For some, the odds are against their
repaying their loans in timely manner. The economy, the geographic region,
the family history, crime rates, divorce rates, personality of the borrower,
low wages of entry level positions...many factors enter into student default
rates. Because of factors such as those, the current Guaranteed Student Loan
programs guarantee defaults for a large segment of the borrowing population.

My point is that any loan program which uses as collateral the academic
progress and potential earnings of the borrower, must either accept high

default rate on those loans or establish a method of addressing the default
problem which is not to the detriment of the borrower. To put it another way,
some students have choice...loan or no school. When they graduate or leave
school, they have a choice...pay or default. When real life problems occur,
including necessary consumer purchases such as a refrigerator or automobile,
the choice often becomes one of survival or default.

The IDEA repayment plan provides exactly what students noed...a reasonable way
to repay their lOans when starting out or when times aro bad and way to

write-off the loans of those in cronic low income situations without ruining
their credit. It seems to me that the government has no business loaning money
out on the basis of potential earnings without either accepting greater risk
at the repayment end or providing a reasonable method of eliminating defaults
completely. In this regard, the Petri proposal hits the bulls-eye, again.

Second, students are frustrated by the fact that someone is ripping them off.

The frustration is from the responsible students who will repay their loans.
Why should they be charged an origination and insurance fee of 7e7 They don't

agree that they should be charged for the defaulted loans of someone elee. The

/DIA Loan would eliminate or substantially reduce these charges and allow the
student to borrow the full amount of the loan at reasonable interest rats.

Students, under the direct loan concept aro accountable for their own repayment
and their own credit rating. They are no longer vehicle to provide profits

for lenders or guarantee agencies.

Third, students are frustrated with the complex and confusing repayment
process. / belisve that the repayment concept in ths IDEA proposal would save
considerable dollars for the student and the institution. Under H.R. 2336, the
management of student loans is simplified and streamlined. For example, our
institution spends approximately 6-7 hours per week working with lenders and
guarantee agencies regarding alleged defaulted loans of currently enrolled
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students, many of which were the result of erroneous mailing addrasess and lostdeferment forme. Removing someone vho was erroneouely placed in default maytake weeks. Under IDIA, there sre no defaults. Students and parents will know
where the loin came from (the federal

government through the school), how muchit was for (the fags value
of the amount borrowed), who they ere to ropey (the

federal government), and where they repay the obligation (the IRS). They willknow that they will be tracked through the IRS and, therefore, are more likelyto repay their loans. Since the IRE is tracking the same individuals for
inOome tax purposes, it would seen that a duplication of effort could be
avoided at considerable cost savings to tho government.

The Petri proposal ci.ught my attention as a positive consumer oriented act.The proposal addressoi
some major student financial aid issues head on...from a

problem*solving standpoint. The problems I hear from students and parentsevery day have been addressed in this proposed legislation. The ability to
respond quickly And efficiently to the changing situations of students would bea major plus for financial aid offices. Control of the amount and delivery ofloon checks is a major plus.

Simplification, equal access to loans for allfamilies and a unique repayment
process, which resolves a national

embarrassment, ere additional Advantages.

I do find support among the small institutions for the general concepts
Proposed in this Act. Most feel that they are able to provide the quality
service neccessery to administer a direct loan program. Indeed, the onlyconcern I have had xpreseed to me is fear that lenders may cease lending tostudents before the dirsct loans become available.

Student loan defaults, a problem which is built into the current system, willOnly get Worse. The default problem will only get resolved through a unique
repayment system, similar to the one proposed in this Act.

As with any bill this large snd
complex, opposition will surface armed, 1 am

sure, with all of the facts and figures to prove this or that can't be done.
hope, in the procees of marking-up the Reauthorisation of the Nigher XducationAct, that you will remember the smoking phone and some of us who ere
financially unable to teetify in person end enact legislation which addressee
soma of the frustrations of the consumer.
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USTI:MOUTON

N.M. 233S, TU "1110201-DIPINDINT MDUCATION
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Proftssor of Political Economy
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Institut. of Public Affairs
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TESTIMONY OF BARRY SLUSETONE ON CR. 2335, TEX "INCOME-
DEPENDENT EDUCATION ASSISTANCE ACT OF 111101" AND

LS. 3050, TEE "STLF-RMLIANCII SCOOLARSIIP ACT OW 1,91"
MOAN TES SUSCONNITTIN ON POSTSECONDARY XDUCATION,

U.S. EONS OF RIPISSDNIATIVES

November 14, 1991

I would like to thank Congressman William D. Ford for the
opportunity to testify before this Committee on two important
pieces of legislation, H.R. 2336, the "Income-Dependent Educa-tion Assistance Act of 1991" and H.R. 3050, the "Self-Reliance
Scholarship Act of 1991". These two bills, along with com-panion legislation recently proposed in the U.S. Senate by
Senators Paul Simon and David Durenberger (S. 1845) and Senator
Bill Bradley (S. 1562), as well as Senator Daniel Akeka's callfor a higher education finance demonstration project (8.1414)

,represent in my opinion an idea whose time has come. Each ofthese bills in its own way would provide postsecondary studentswith a rational, equitable, and fiscally responsible method forfimancing their own educations.

This legislation exemplifies a fresh approach to one ofthe two domestic issues most on the minds of American voters asthey look toward the 1992 elections. Unquestionably, the spe-cial Senate election held earlier this month in Pennsylvania
highlights the strong political sentiment in this country for
innovative federal initiatives which can deal with the mounting
problem of providing universal medical care. I am quite
certain that if opinion survey were taken today, the financ-ing of postsecondary education would place high up on a list of
politically salient issues along with the desirability of someform of national health insurance.

I would like to use this opportunity not so much to exam-ine the details of the two bills specifically under considera-tion during this hearing, but to testify to the need and pro-priety of the general approach to higher education finance
found in H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050. In doing this, I will drawon my own work in this area -- particularly in the background
research for the "Equity Investment in America" program devel-oped with the assistance of my colleagues, Alan Clayton-
Matthews and John Havens of Boston College and Howard Young ofthe University of Michigan.'

I See Barry Bluestone, Alan
Clayton-Matthews, John Havens, and Howard

Young, "Financing Opportunity
for Post-Secondary Education in the U.S.: The

EQUITY INVESTMENT IN AKEPICA Program,"
Briefing Fuer, Economic Policy In-

stitute, June 1990 and Barry Bluestone,
Alan Clayton-Matthews, Jolla Ravens,

and Howard Young, "Generational Alliance: Social Security as a Bank for Ed-
ucation and Training," The Aserican Proaltect, Sumer 1990, pp. 15-29.
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Elements of a Good Postsecondary Eduzation Financing System

H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050 differ in detail, but share in
common three critical elements:

(1) Utiversal Eligibility
(2) Direct Federal Funding
(3) Income-Contingent Repayment

For brevity, we can refer to any highar education loan
systam containing these elements as a "U-D-I-C Loan Program".

The superiority of UDIC loan program over current fund-
ing mechanisms for postsecondary education is based on a com-
bination of all three elements:

Universal Eligibility - Under current financial arrange-
ments, when it comes to paying for the costs of attending col-
lege, the wealthy and a small but select number of low-income
students have things pretty wall in hand. Wealthier students,
by virtue of their family's economic circumstances, generally
pay these costs out of existing assets. High ability low-
income students, on the other hand, have available to them an
array of government and private sector grants and scholarships.
In contrast, most low income and virtually all moderate income
families have been left to fend for themselves. Just when
postsecondary education is taking on greater value for the in-
dividual and for the competitive position of the nation, the
current system of finance fails to provide a suitable method of
finance for the vast "middle class."

The new proposed legislation deals with this issue direct-
ly. Under every one of the bills, virtually every student in
an accredited institution of higher education is eligible for
loan support regardless of family income. Middle class stu-
dents as well as those from wealthy families can take advantage
of the proposed new prolrams without placing any burden on the
taxpayer since the full value of the loans plus interest are
repaid. Current grant support is maintained for low income
students in order to supplement available loans and provide an
incentive for pursuing postsecondary education.

(continued)

Parts of this testimony are also drawn from a paper, "Income Contingent
Student Loans," (October 25, 1991) of which I am a co-author along with
Jerome M. Comcowich of the University of Hawaii.

2 0;



202

-3-

Direct Funding - Current federal loan
programs (e.g. theStafford and Perkins loans) provide an interest subsidy to stu-dents and a loan guarantee to private banks. The upshot ofthis system is an implicit subsidy to the banking system and ahigh rate of defaults. Defaults on student loans now run morethan $1.5 billion per year.

By providing loans directly to students, bypassing thebanking slates, and by collecting loan repayments through theTreasury Department with the cooperation of the InternalRevenue Service, direct funding reduces the administrativecosts of the program and virtually
eliminates non-payment.

Incom_SoctIiAgenemiejanseat - Current loan programs re-quire students to repay education loans at a fixed rate oncethey leave school. For many students this means they areforced to make
repayments before their incomes reflect theiradded earning capacity. For others, this means repaying loanseven if they are unemployed. This not only puts enormous eco-nomic pressure on students, but contributes to the high defaultrates found in current student loan programs.

Under the proposed
legislation, loan repayments are incomecontingent. They vary with the income of the recipient and assuch reduce the strain of repaying the loans, particularly un-der adverse economic conditions. A. incomes rise, repaymentincreases. Repayment rates can be set along with the length ofthe repayment period so that the government is effectively as-sured of full return of principle and interest.

The Discrepancy
between School Cost'and School Resourcee

The need for new financing mechanism for postsecondaryeducation is not difficult to document. At the very same timethat schooling beyond high school is becoming more critical forindividual as well as national economic growth, the cost ofschooling is accelerating faster than the rate of inflation.Public resources available for loans and grants art by no meanskeeping pace with need. This is true for low income families,but even more apropos for the middle close. Accoveling to Ken-neth C. Orson of the Center for Scholarly Technoogy at theUniversity of Southern
California, tLe "sticker stock" of tui-tion and fees is forcing stuel.nts to "buy down." Students whowould have gone to private institutions

are selecting publicones. Those who would have gone full time are forced to gopart time. Some who would have selected four-year colleges aregoing instead to two-year schools, and more students from poorhomes are going to vocational schools rather than college -- ifthey go anywhere at all. A recent USA To4ev survey of highschool graduates suggests that some students are now fallingout, not just "buying down." One-third of the students in-timated thiy had delayed or indefinitely
put off college be-cause of the expense.

2i7
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Anyone with college age children can attest to the burden
of college costs. The College Board reports that by 1988-89
the cost to an in-state student for four years of school at a
4-year public college or university averaged over $23,000 in-
cluding tuition and fees, room and board, and miscellaneous
school expenses. The same education at a private 4-year in-
stitution was just under $50,000. At the elite schools, total
expenses run closer to $90,000. Yet, the amount of student aid
available from the federal government in the form of grants and
loans has not kept up with these costs. In 1979, according to
the The American Freshman survey conducted by the Higher Educa-
tion Research Institute at UCLA, nearly 32 percent of all
freshman students received Pell grants to attend college. Ten
years later, the percentage was down to less than 22 percent.
Meanwhile the proportion of students receiving Stafford and
Perkins loans from the federal government has risen only
marginally, from 21 to 25 percent between 1979 and 1989.

The only reason why college enrollments have not fallen
off precipitously in light of the growing gap between costs and
aid is that colleges and universities are themselves assuming a
greater share of the expense burden, providing more grants and
scholarships generated out of their own revenue. The UCLA sur-
vey notes that between 1979 and 1989, the percentage of fresh-
man receiving college grants and scholarships increased from
11.3 to 20.3 percent. Part of the higher tuitions being
charged by schools is being used to subsidize students from low
and lower-middle income backgrounds simply to maintain cultural
and social class diversity in the classroom.

Part of the difficulty is that the federal government has
moved to disenfranchise middle class students from federal as-
sistance by restricting eligibility for grants. In 1979, the
government set $32,500 ceiling on family income for a student
to be eligible for grant support. Today, despite inflation, a
family must have an income no higher than $28,000 to be
eligible for aid. Even then, if student is still eligible
for a grant, the amount provided has not kept up with increases
in college costs. The largest of the federal loan programs,
the Stafford Student Loan, provides maximum of $2,625 per
academic year for the first two years of undergraduate study
and $4,000 for each subsequent year, up to a five year maximum
of $17,250. Hence, student who takes out the maximum amount
of Stafford loans over four years still must come up with an-
other $9,750 on average to attend a public university and at
least $26,750 to go private. Perkins Loans have higher maxi-
mums, but fewer than 3 percent of all freshman take advantage
of them.

2 1 8
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For those not eligible for federal grants or loans, goingto the private market can cost a bundle. One example is theEducation Resources Institute TERI loan. With a TERI loan, astudent can borrow up to $20,000 a year with no income limit or"needs test". However, the standard rate on TERI loans is theprime rate plus 2 percent. With a deferment on interest andPrincipal while in school, a typical loan of this variety witha 5-year term carries an annual percentage rate (APR) of 15.3%at regular commercial banks. Professional Education Plan (PEP)loans for graduate study can be even more expensive if the stu-dent does not have a co-applicant. The APR on a 5-year loanwith a 2-year deferral of principal and interest is currentlyin the range of 18%.

On top of high interest
rates, the standard loan programsrequire students to begin paying back large sums as soon asthey finish school despite the fact that their initial earningsare almost always modest. It is not surprising that the de-fault rate on education loans is now 18 percent for those whowent to 2-year public colleges, 14 percent for those who at-tended 2-year private schools. 7 percent for those who went toeither private or public 4-year schools, and a whopping 33 per-cent for those who used their loans to go to trade schools.

The Practical Benefits of U-D-I-C based Loan Programs

Restructuring post-secondary education finance along thelines of the proposed
U-IMI-C legislation deals directly with anumber of problems inherent in current methods of supportingstudents in their quest for schooling.

(1) UDIC loans eliminate much of the morass of currentfederal loon programs in favor of one universal, com-prehensive plan available to all postsecondary stu-dents.

(2) ODIC loans provide a substantially greater amount offunds under superior terms to most current programs,thus allowing students to better meet the rising costof postsecondary education.

(3) UDIC loans are available to all students in accreditedpostsecondary schools regardless of family income.There is no "Leeds test". It is a middle class pro-gram every bit as much as one aimed at the low andmoderate income student.

(4) Since repayment is based on actual earnings, there iseffective deferral of principal and interest as longas the student is pursuing
full-time studies and haslittle wage and salary income.

2 19
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(5) UDIC loans can be made to apply equally to all forms
of post-secondary schooling from apprenticeships and
proprietary trade institutions to graduate and profes-
sional schools. They do not discriminate between the
student who pursues, say, an undergraduate degree in
political science and one who seeks retraining as a
welder or office machine repairer.

(6) Racial and gender discrimination in the labor market
is not automatically ratified as is the current prac-
tice under fixed obligation loans. The income con-
tingent feature of UDIC loans requires students to
repay based on actual earnings and therefore takes
full account of differences in earnings for any rea-
son.

(7) Because UDIC loans are income cJntingent, students
will be more likely to enroll in programs that conform
to their academic strengths and career goals than in
programs which simply hold out the promise of ex-
traordinarily high earnings that can be used to repay
fixed short-term loans. This may mean slightly fewer
students opting for law careers and MBAs and slightly
more students preparing for careers in elementary and
secondary school teaching, nursing, and other fields
where the monetary rewards are smaller but the contri-
bution to society is arguably no less and very likely
greater.

(8) Under an UDIC loan program, students pay for their own
education as the benefits from that education become
manifest. In most cases, this will reduce the major
financial burden on parents and shift much of it to
their children who benefit directly from the educa-
tional investment.

(9) By setting repayment rates and the length of the
repayment period appropriately, a UDIC program will be
self-financing, thus reducing or eliminating any sub-
sidy from the taxpayer.

(10) Finally, UDIC loans, by phasing out the Stafford and
Perkins loan programs, frees up $5.1 billion of feder-
al education spending per year. These dollars -- or
at least a portion of them -- could be used to expand
the Pell and SBOO grant programs for the most finan-
cially disadvantaged students.

There are likely to be other benefits as well: simplified &Id
cheaper administration of education loans is surely one of
them.
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Some Touah Questions *bout U-D-/-C Loan Programs

Loan programs as ambitious and "newfangled" as those nvi-
sioned in H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050 are bound to raise a numberof questions about their funding, their impact on public and
private institutions of higher education, and possible latent
adverse side effects such as tuition cost inflation. A numberof these can be answered here.

Q. Won't the implementation of a large scale U-D-I-C pro-
gram add too much to what we spend on postsecondary ed-
ucation?

A. No, for two reasons. First, UDIC programs simply sub-stitute a better financing mechanism for an inferior
patchwork quilt of current funding programs. Second,at least a small increase in higher education is now
warranted by the high rates of return that college and
university graduates now obtain. We are no longer.
"overeducated" as was the belief during the 1970. when
returns to higher education temporarily waned. One
quantitative measure of the value of education beyond
the high school diploma is the enhanced earnings that
educational investments produce for those who pursue
college and university training. My colleagues and /
have calculated that in 1990 dollars, the present dis-
counted value of completing some college beyond the
high school degree over the lifetime of the average
worker is approximately $140,000. The present dis-
counted value of four or more years of college is near-ly $500,000. These higher earnings reflect higher pro-ductivity.

Q. Won't a UDIC loan program jeopardize public higher edu-
cation by encouraging students to enroll in more ex-
pensive private schools?

A. Unlikely. While the repayment rates are reasonable,
students will still be forced to pay a significant
amount of their earnings over a substantial period of
time in loan repayments. As a result, students will
not automatically abandon public higher education for
higher priced private schools. Likewise, the maximum
lifetime limits stinulated on awards in most of the
UD/C programs force students to be price conscious in
making their investment decisions. Moreover, it is not

2...1
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unreasonable to expect that the overwhelming majority
of individuals who decide to pursue higher education
precisely 00C41180 of UDIC loans will choose lower
priced public colleges and universities, boosting the
overall numbers going into the public sector.

Q. Won't a UDIC program lead to enormous increases in the
level of tuition and fees?

A. Not necessarily. Continued competition between schools
for a relatively stable number of college and univer-
sity students will ultimately require high priced pri-
vate schools to limit increases in their tuition and
fee schedules. This is likely to occur with or without
UD/C loans. In any case, if tuition does continue to
skyrocket at private schools, the correct remedy is one
that is now being implemented, at least tentatively:
antitrust action. Ultimately, the agency entrusted
with implementing the UDIC program could be a powerful
ally against college cost inflation by refusing to
permit students to use federal loan funds at schools
that persist in raising tuition and fees to un-
acceptable levels.

Public colleges and universities may be another case.
They ray use the UDIC program to reduce the size of
state government subsidiea. Given the interstate
mobility of students after graduation and the subsidy
of middle class students on funds raised by regressive
state taxes, increases in in-state tuition may, in
fact, be justified. In an era of restrictive state
budgets, UDIC loans would relieve states of some of the
tuition burden. Yet, in order to maintain "good
business climate", one can expect state legislatures to
maintain relatively low college and university tuition
and fee rates in order to provide strong incentives for
their citizens to pursue what is presumably produc-
tivity enhancing higher education.

Q. What keeps unscrupulous operators from setting up
"sham" training schools to take advantage of UDIC-
funded students?

A. All UDIC programs require that institutions eligible
for federal loans be fully accredited and licensed by
the states within which they operate. Moreover, the
UDIC loan authority could be given oversight authority
to do spot checks on state accreditation and licensing.
To keep tuition and fees in line, the cost of education
could be made one criterion for UDIC loan accredita-
tion.

222
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Q. Won't the substitution of a UD/C program for current
federal loan programs force colleges and universities
to spend a much greater effort on administering finan-
cial aid?

A. No. The creation within the federal government of a
special agency or "Trust" to administer the UDIC pro-
gram will take much of this burden off of the individu-
al school. Of course, schools will have to continue to
supply the federal government with basic information
about enrollment status and provide a campus-based of-
fice where students can receive their loan payments.

Q. How will a UDIC program likely affect low-income stu-
dents?

A. Most UDIC plans provide additional resources to low-
income students. First, the program permits students
to borrow more funds with more reasonable repayment
schedules. Second, Congress can take a portion of the
$5.1 billion saved by eliminating the Stafford and
Perkins loan programs and transfer it into the Pell and
SMOG grants which have been especially helpful to low-
income students.

Q. Will implementation of a federal UDIC program make
state college prepayment programs like that in Michigan
obsolete?

A. No, not necessarily. States which wish to set up col-
lege prepayment programs can do so regardless of UDIC
loans. Parents who wish to make substantial contribu-
tions to their children's education tan do so using
this mechanism.

Q. Won't a UDIC program have a negative effect on
philanthropic contributions to institutions of higher
education?

A. Probably not. Most corporate and individual giving to
higher education is for capital expansion, not current
expenses. One suspects that corporations and individu-
als will continue to contribute to college and univer-
sity endowments for such purposes.

2 3
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Answering these questions obviously will not mollify all
those who would oppose such a program. Moving toward such a
radical restructuring of education finance will certainly have
its detractors. Private banks, subsidized by government guar-
anteed student loans, will certainly balk at losing this lucra-
tive market. Those who are part of the vast bureaucracy in-
volved in servicing the current array of loans may also object
on self-interest grounds to a system that makes their efforts
largely unnecessary. However, the gains from implementing a
UDIC loan plan -- from the perspective of students, their
families, and the corporate sector advocating more resources
for education -- presumably should carry the day.

Indeed, it is the rare government program that simulta-
neously satisfies a number of disparate public policy goals and
at the same time has the opportunity to garner broad bipartisan
support. The UD/C-type legislation now under consideration by
this Committee has the potential for being one of these. By
providing a significant increase in the level of federal fund-
ing available for post secondary education, by appealing to the
needs of *he middle class student as well as the student from
the low-income family, anu by providing a prudent investment
opportunity for the U.S. Treasury, a UDIC higher education loan
program meets both the criteria of efficiency and equity for a
government program.

The specifics of the program can be debated and revised,
but the basic structure provides a sound basis for promoting
the national debate on how America can renew its commitment to
education and to equal opportunity. Put simply, expanding on
the principles set forth in H.R. 2336 and H.R. 3050 could be
the ideal way to pay for education in the future.
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

We appreciate the opportunity to provide the Subcommittee with the views of
this group of higher education associations on the appropriate role of income-
contingent repayment of federal loans, and on HR 2336 and HR 3050, which authorize
new unsubsidized loan programs providing income-contingent repayment.

The Current Role of Student Loans

About half of the college enrollment, over 5 million students, currently
receive some form of federal need-based ald. Grant resources Are restricted by federal
and state budget constraints, and although most students work, jobs do not provide
sufficient income to be a primary financing mechanism for most full-time students,
particularly for those who do not live at home while attending college, and those
attending higher-priced institutions. Thus, loans are a necessary part of the financial
aid package for many undergraduate and graduate students. Over 4 million students
currently receive federal loans.

The primary goal of the grant, work and loan programs authorized under Title
IV of the Higher Education Act is to equalize educational opportunity and to enable
citizens to attend postsecondary education even if the financial resources of their
families are inadequate. These programs are based on a partnership between students,
families, and federal and state governments to enable needy students to finance
postsecondary education.

The federal statute expects families of needy students to contribute a reasonable
amount toward the student's educational expenses, including student self-help.
Federal and state grant, work, and loan programs try to cover the remaining cost of
attendance.

We believ.2 that these expectations contimie to be appropriate -- that parental
resources and federal and state grants should continue to provide the major support
in the student aid package for the needy traditional college-age undergraduate
population, and that federal and state grants should continue to supplement savings
and earnings for needy older students who are financially independent of their
parents. For both groups of needy students, loans should be a supplemental source of
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assistance, not the major source of financing, and loan repayment should not work an
undue hardship on needy borrowers, many of whom are at-risk students.

Role of Current Programs

'Mere are three ways in which public policy can Insure that repayment of federal
loans is not onerous: one is to limit the amount that students can borrow, particularly
in the early years of a student's college program; another is to make the terms and
conditions of loan repayment as simple and flexible as possIle; and a third is to
subsidize a portion of the federal cost of the loan.

The federally-guaranteed bank-based Stafford loan program attempts to meet
these goals through a number of mechanisms: lower loan limits in the first two years,
in-school interest subsidy, federal subsidy of the difference between student interest
rates and market rates, subsidy of defaults by the fede.al government and student
insurance premiums, and provisions for deferments, consolidation, and forbeaiance
during repayment.

Because of the desire to minimize student debt, Congress has authorized the
PLUS program of loans for the parents of dependent students, which do not subsidize
in-school interest, and carry a higher interest rate than Stafford loans, but which
provide access to credit over a 10-year period that these families might not have
otherwise. We strongly support the continuation and strengthening of the PLUS
program to help parents finance their children's education. We have recommended
that loan limits on this program be removed so that credit-worthy parents can borrow
up to the cost of their children's education minus other student aid.

We also recognize the need for the Supplemental Loans for Students (SLS)
program for independent students who do not qualify on the basis of need for Stafford
loans, or who, as graduate or professional students, need to augment the amount of
their Stafford loans. The statute also attempts to make these loans manageable for
eligible students, but it provides a minimum of federal subsidy. Since the interest rate
is hipher than the Stafford rate and is not paid by the federal government while the
student is in school, we hope that most undergraduate students, particularly at-risk
students, do not have to assume this kind of debt, particularly in the early years of
their undergraduate program. When interest is not paid by the federal government
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while the student is in school and is capitalized, interest acmes on interest. If the
student remains in school for a number of years, the debt service during repayment

can easily become burdensome. Thls Is presumably why Congress has been reluctant

to open up the SLS program, without restriction, to dependent undergraduate
students.

Policy Issues

There is increasing pressure from students and families to provide higher loan

limits in the subsidized Stafford program to help them finance postsecondary

education. Current budget restrictions make this difficult to do because they require
that a method of financing be provided for any federal additional subsidy in

entitlement programs. Further, there is apprehension among many in the
community and Congress that students will not be able to manage the increasing debt,

even when ill-school interest is federally subsidized, during the statutory 10-year
repayment period.

The other major federal policy problem is default on Stafford and SLS loans.

The federal government currently pays over $3 billion annually in default daims to
lenders; it anticipates that about half of this amount will ultimately be repaid. The

Department of Education has documented that borrowers with low-incomes prior to

enrollment and after enrollment have the most difficulty repaying loans on the
statutory repayment schedules, and have the highest default rates. When borrowers

default, the federal government pays off the lender; then the state guaranty agendes

and the federal government collect as much principal and interest as they can from the
borrower -- in effect running an income-contingent loan program, but one which

leaves the borrower with the stigma of default, a bad credit history, and loss of
eligibility for Title IV funds.

The recent interest in income.contingent repayment in a direct federal lending
program is prompted by these related goals -- namely, providing a way for students to

borrow and repay larger loans while minimizing the federal subsidy and alleviating
the default problem, which has tarnished the reputation of federally-guaranteed
student loans.

2,



214

Association Recommendations

Our response is threefold. Number one, we believe that it is far better policy for
parents to assume greater responsibility for their dependent children's education than
for the students to do it. Thus, we recommend increasing the ability of parents to
borrow under the PLUS program.

Second, inasmuch as increased student borrowing may be inevitable,
particularly anions older independent students, we believe that the federal
government has the responsibility to provide loans Pt the lowest possible cost to
needy, at-risk students with repayment terms that are in the students best interest and
enable them to repay without default.

Third, we believe that undergraduate and graduate students from families who
may not meet the federal criteria for "need" and borrow under an unsubsidized federal
program should have access to repayment terms that enable them to meet their federal
obligations for repayment with a minimum of hardship and adverse impact on career
choice.

Under the credit reform provisions of the Budget Enforcement Act, it appears
that greater benefits for borrowers are possible at lower cost to the federal government
by using direct federal borrowing rather than capital supplied by commercial banks.
We proposed in our package of reauthorization recommend.tions submitted to the
Subcommittee in April that institutions should have the option to participate in such
a direct leading program with subsidies similar to those provided in the Stafford
program.

HR 3553 includes a direct federal lending proposal similar to the one we
proposed, requiring the Secretary of Education to offer income contingent, graduated
repayment, and conventional repayment options to student borrowers. The CB0 has
estimated that direct federal lending could achieve sufficient savings to finance the
increased benefits, including increased limits for loans subsidizing in-school interest,
offered under this proposal. Further, ar. income contingent repayment option, as well
as regular amortization and graduated repayment, are easier because fewer steps are
required than under a bank-based program.
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The need for flexible repayment terms, however, goes far beyond the group of
students who participate in a new direct loan program. Students are currently
borrowing over $10 billion annually under the Stafford and SIS programs, and over
$50 billion is outstanding. We propose, therefore, that a comprehensive set of
repayment options for all federal loans be offered to all student borrowers irrespective
of the specific federal loan program under which they have borrowed, under policy
guidelines which protect the students' interests and are not so costly to the federal
government that they cannot be enacted in the current budget climate.

Congress has provided hardship deferments, graduated repayment (at lender
option), forbearance, and loan consolidation for borrowers. The first three are helpful
to borrowers with short-term difficulties; and loan consolidation is appropriate for
those with large debts and good incomes who need a longer period in which to repay.

There is a further group of borrowers who need additional help, and that is
those whose income in repayment is inadequate to service their debt for a period of
years, that is, those whose debt service exceeds 10% of their income. This group
includes those who dropped out of school and whose financial drcumstances did not
significantly improve as a result of their postsecondary experience, as well as those
who choose a career in a public service field with an annual salary less than their total
debt. We believe that these borrowers should have the option to petition the
government to allow them to repay on an income-contingent basis for as long as the
period lasts in which their income is inadequate to service their debt without undue
hardship. During this period, interest which Is not covered by their repayments
should be forgiven and should not be added to their total debt. We believe that this
period will be temporary for most borrowers, but if for some it is not, we believe that at
the end of 20-25 years, the remainder of the loan should be forgiven.

We realize that banks are unwilling to take on broad scale income-contingent
repayment without an enormous increase in the special allowance. An even more
significant issue is that we do not believe income-contingency and extended
repayment are necessarily appropriate for all borrowers. Since interest accrues on the
principal of all federal student loans throughout the repayment period, it is to the
borrower's advantage to pay the interest as it accrues and to repay in as short a time as
is reasonable to avoid excessive debt service. For those borrowers whose incomes in
repayment are inadequate to service their debt without undue hardship or default, we
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recommend that the GSLP be modified to allow the federal government to buy up
loans from eligible borrowers who petition for income-contingent repayment as it
does for those in default. The federal government, working through state agencies,
could purchase all the borrower's guaranteed loans, combine them with any other
direct federal loans, and allow the borrower to repay on an income-contingent basis
during the period in which the borrower's income was insufficient to repay without
undue hardship.

The basic principle which we believe is necessary in any income-contingent
program is that the federal government, not higher income borrowers, subsidize the
interest payments of borrowers whose incomes after leaving school are too low to
cover the cost of interest as it accrues in repayment, and that unpaid interest for this
group of borrowers not be added to the borrowers' principal.

Problems with HR 2336 and 3050

We believe that HR 2336, the "Income-Dependent Education Assistance Act"
(IDEA), introduced by Congressman Petri, and HR 3050, the"Self-Reliance Scholarship
Act," introduced by Congressman Miller, contain elements that are worthy of
consideration. Both bills authorize unsubsidized loan programs, but neither would
replace the Stafford loan program. Both bills would use federal borrowing as the
source of loan capita: to provide loans with lower student interest rates. Both attempt
to make repayment of student loans more manageable for students and the federal
government, and would alleviate the default problem, with its attached stigma for at-
risk students. The student would repay on an income-contingent basis, and IRS would
be responsible for collections through payroll-tax withholding. The potential
advantage of IRS collection of student loans has attracted the attention of many of our
members for years. We have not seen analysis of this approach and look forward to
the assessment by IRS on the feasibility and proected cost of this system.

Both bills, however, would establish large-scale programs that allow students to
borrow amounts greatly in excess of current programs, require one group of student
borrowers to subsidize another group of student borrowers in order to avoid any
federal subsidy, and attempt to make these changes to federal student loan policy
acceptable by providing income-contingent repayment and extending the repayment
period to 25 years.
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For the majority of students, extending repayment to 25 years, that is, into
middle-age, is not an unqualified benefit, particularly in an unsubsidized program in
which unpaid interest is steadily accruing. Income contingent repayment in and of
itself does not minimize the amount of principal and interest which must be paid.
We believe that the particular combination of features in the programs proposed by
these bills would add excessively to student debt, and shift responsibility from parents
and the government to students.

As Dr. Bruce Johnstone, now the Chancellor of the State University of New
York system, wrote in 1972, "we do not feel that income contingency should be
embraced as a major source of new revenue or as a painless way for parents, taxpayers,

or hard-pressed governments to shift substantially more of the costs of higher
education onto the student. Income contingency 'at its best -- even with substantial
low-income protection is not so much better than conventional debt that it can
eliminate the added financial burdens upon the student of a shift in the balance of
public versus private ,upport.... Decisions on pricing policy and the allocation of
financial responsibility among parents, students, and the government are vastly more
important and fundamental than decisions with respect to a particular credit
instrument. A preoccupation with income contingent loans or with any other means
of coping with the costs of higher education can only obscure these fundamental
questions."

Although the programs proposed in these two bills would supplement the
existing federal loan programs rather than replace them (except for SLS), we believe
that their long-run effect could be to undermine support for the principles embedded
in the existing need-based subsidized federal programs: that unsubsidized student
loans should not be the major financing mechanism, particularly for dependent
students; that parents should bear the primary responsibility for this group, and that
the federal government, not other borrowers, should bear the cost ofa borrower's
failure to repay, not other borrowers.

It is inherently difficult to assess how much it costs to subsidize borrowers with
low after-school incomes in an income contingent program. The Congressional
Budget Office (CBO) in its analysis of HR 2336 documents the difficulty in assessing the

costs of the IDEA proposal, stating "We can make only educated guesses about the
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future incomes of these students, but these assumptions are essential for determining
costs." We believe that the cost of income contingency on an exception basis kr
hardship cases is more manageable, and, like defaults, is an appropriate federal cost.

HR 2336 explicitly attempts to avoid any federal subsidy of borrowers with low
post-college incomes by having hlgher income borrowers pay at a higher interest rate
than borrowers are currently chart,--'. atder the S1S program. The basic rate for all
borrowers would be the rate of 91-day T-bills plus 2%, not to exceed 10%, but if a
borrower's post-college income were high enough to repay the loan in 12 years or less,
an "early repayment" penalty would be charged. At the end of 25 years, or in case of
death or disability, the loan would be forgiven. Borrowers whose incomes after
leaving school are so low that they do not file income tax forms would not have to
make payments.

According to the CBO, "The early repayment penalty would be equivalent to
the additional amount that would have been owed if the loan had been originally
charged an interest rate that was higher by 2.5 percentage points." That is, the
borrower who repaid the loan early would be charged an effective interest rate of T-bill
plus 4.5%. CBO's analysis pro)ected that the range of subsidy to borrowerswould vary
widely, depending on income, but that middle- and high-future income borrowers
would have a net negative average subsidy. That is, for every dollar the federal
government lends to these borrowers, it would make a profit on a net present value
basis. We believe that this is inappropriate for federal programs designed to assure
postsecondary opportunities.

The federal subsidy in the SIS program at the present time is limited to default
costs, as noted by CBO director Robert Reischauer in his October 11, 1991, letter to
Congressman Petri. We believe that the inability of borrowers to repay loans after
leaving school should continue to be borne by the federal government and not be
shifted to higher income students.

Even though repayment would be limited to a percentage of income, borrowers
with low incomes after graduation could still repay extremely large amounts of
interest as well as principal, because of the high loan limits and absence of subsidy,
and because repayment would continue for 25 years. Interest would acaue while the
borrower is in school, and during repayment periods in which the percentage of the
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borrower's income required for repayment is not sufficient to cover interest, resulting
in negative amortization.

We have no CB0 analysis of HR 3050, but the bill states that its goal is to be self-
financing. It allows students to borrow up to $10,000 per year, with a maximum of
$33,000. Length of repayment options would range from 15 to 25 years, and there Ls a
penalty for prepayment. There is also a surcharge for borrowers earning over
11 million annually after graduation. To cover program costs, there would be a
minimum repayment for all borrowers, irrespective of how low their income after
leaving college. Borrowers earning below 66% of the average salary of the college-
educated population would have their payments calculated as if they did earn 66% of
the average salary. This program would provide a significant increase in the total
aggregate federal loans for which a student could apply, and the precise repayment
terms, including the amounts of principal and interest paid, are critical to any
assessment of its equity and desirability. We would need an exhaustive analysis of the
impact of the program's repayment provisions on borrowers from varying post-college
income levels before we could fairly comment, but it appears that the desire to make
the program self-financing has produced terms and conditions that are unattractive to
borrowers whose post-college incomes are either very high or very low.

In conclusion, we support income-contingent repayment for students who have
difficulty repaying federal loans of all types, including borrowers who enter low-paying
professions and have difficulty repaying on standard repayment schedules. Further
analysis of the repayment formulas used in these bills would be useful in developing
prototypes to be used in such cases. Many of our members would support an income
contingent repayment plan that is part of a loan program that provides, overall, the
maximum benefits to students.

We also support institutions having the option to use direct federal lending to
provide greater student benefits at lower federal cost. We applaud the inclusion of
direct lending in HR 3553, but we recommend that the loan limits under this bill be
the same as those of current programs during the phase-in, that both large and small
institutions be encouraged to participate, and that the phase-in period should allow
the opportunity for Congress to assess progress and make any necessary adjustment.
Our analysis indicates that there are fewer steps involved in providing flexible
repayment terms under direct lending than under a bank-based program.
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Further, we believe that federal loan programs, particularly those for
undergraduate students, should contain some level of federal subsidy, such as at least
the modest amount in the SLS program covering defaults, rather than having
borrowers with high Incomes after graduation subsidize those with lower incomes,or
those with low incomes repay a percentage of income which they do not have.
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COALITION
OF

HIGHER
EDUCATION

ASSISTANCE
ORGANIZATIONS

1101 VERMONT AVEME. NW, SUITE 400
WASHINGTON, DC 20006-3621
(24:6) 2611-3000
FAX: (202) 371431E7

February 4, 1992

The Honorable William D. Ford
U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Chairman Ford:

On behalf of the Coalition of Higher Education Assistance
Organizations (COHEAO) we are writing to express strong objections
to the direct lending proposal contained in H.R. 2336.

The membership of COHEAO includes oampus-based student loan
managers, loan servicing and collection entities and other
organizations interested in the operational aspects of student
lending. These are individuals with in-depth knowledge about how
student loan programs operate on campus, who are often charged with
designing and implementing default management programs and who have
actively participated in the development of H.R. 3553, the House
bill to reauthorize the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended.

For the following reasons, COHEAO objects to your proposal to
establish a direct lending program, mandating income-contingent
repayment and utilizing the Internal Revenue Service to perform all
collections functions:

*IDEA would substantially increase the repayment obligations
for middle-income borrowers through the capitalization of
interest during the in-school period and the extended
repayment period

*IDEA denies students the in-school interest subsidy currently
paid by the government on their behalf in the GSL program

*IDEA discourages families from saving for the education of
their children by making large loan amounts available to
borrowers

*IDEA would impose origination, record keeping and reporting
responsibilities on many schools that do not want them and
cannot afford them
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The Honorable William D. Ford
February 4, 1992
Page 2

*IDEA discriminates against individuals on the basis of ageby restricting access to loans beginning at age 35

*IDEA eliminates "defaults" caused by borrower inabilityto pay through loan
forgiveness, creating the appearance ofreform without addressing the problem of excessive borrowing

*IDEA will serve to undermine the rationale for any grantprograms for students by making
excessive loan funds availableand allowing low-income earners to have their debts forgiven

*IDEA will impose on the Department of Education anadministrative burden they admittedly cannot manage

*IDEA complicates the tax system by using IRS as a collectionagency for student loans

*IDEA is extremely complicated and the repayment system isvery difficult to explain to borrowers.

*/DEA removes from the student loan market place thoseentities charged with providing training, oversight and checksand balances which assure program integrity.

At the COHEAO Annual Meeting and Student Loan seminar heldlast week in Washington D.C., the attached analyses of the issuescampuses must address to implement direct lending were presentedto the membership. We thought they would be of interest to you andother members of the Committee on Education and Labor and ask thatthey be included in the record for the February 6, 1992 hearing onDirect Loans. Thank you for your time and interest in ourconcerns.

182864

Sincerely,

4'
user
nt ith 1,4 nk

HEAO
e Pr dent
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"An Examination of Campus Implementation of Direct Lending a Mixed View"
Presented During a Panel Discussion on Direct Lending

at the COHEAO Annual Meeting, January 28, 1992

Presented by:
Judith Nemerovski Flink

Vice President of COHEAO
Director of Student Financial Services and Cashiering Operations

at the University of Illinois at Chicago



224

'An Examination of Campus Implementation of Direct Lending: A Mixed View".

The University of Illinois at Chicago is a public university with approximately 24,500

students, 60 per cent of which.receive some form of federal financial assistance. Our

participation in the Guaranteed Student Loan Programs amounts to an annual loan

volume of over $20 million with over 5,000 loans issued.

While the concept of direct lending merits consideration and further investigation I do

not endorse the proposals for direct loan programs included in House Bill 3553 or

Senate Bill 1845 introduced by Senators Simon and Durenberger. After conducting my

own analysis of both proposals I concluded that either proposal for direct lending would

increase my institution's workload without providing a substantial benefit for the student.

Let me preface my remarks by noting that the proposed bills do not provide the detail

needed to do an in-depth institutional administrative cost analysis. Many of the costs

assumed by the institution will be the result of Department of Education regulations.

House Bill

Under the House direct lending proposal loan origination becomes the responsibility of

the school. This process will increase administrative cats borne by institutions. Yes,

schools are currently originating Perkins Loans, but the Perkins Loan Program at

institutions are much smaller than the Guaranteed Loan Programs. My university has an

annual Perkins volume slightly more than million, whereas our Guaranteed Student
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Loan volume exceeds $20 million. This would mean originating nearly seven times morft

loans.

The origination of the loans by the school does not guarantee that a student will receive

their funds faster than under the current system. The school will have to estimate the

amount of direct loan funds needed well in advance of the academic year. If the amount

or the format of the request is incorrect delays would result. Schools will experience

restrictions similar to the Pell Grant Program in estimating campus loan needs. This in

addition to the complexity of federal budget restrictions and the timing of the schools

governing board establishing tuition and fee amounts will increase the probability of

adjustments and delays in funds.

Under the direct loan program students would now sign promissory notes at the

institution and the institution would maintain a file or promissory notes in addition to

sending the note to the Department of Education. For the institution this means having

the facility and staff to accommodate a large number of students signing promissory

notes and the physical space and staff to maintain these notes.

2
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The school would be responsible for transmitting the loan notes to MP Department of

Education along with informationon borrower status to perhaps more agents than under

the current system. The school would than need to reconcile their information with the

information the agency reported as received.

The added responsibility of loan origination and the volume of loans increases the

probability of mistakes by the institution such as incomplete promissory notes or lost

notes. Institutional liability under the proposal is uncertain but there is a likelihood that

the institution would be financially liable for ab errors. The additional responsibilities

assumed with direct lending and the sheer volume of loans increases the probability of

institutional errors. Under the current Guaranteed Program approximately 11 percent of

all loan default claims are not paid by guaranty agencies or the Federal Government due

to defects in originating and servicing. But instead are paid primarily by loan holders

and servicing agents. (NASFAA, Oct. 1991)

As direct lenders schools could also be involved in borrower lawsuits alleging that they

did not receive the education they were promised or that the school did not comply with

applicable state or federal disclosure or other consurter protection laws. Borrowers

could make claims that under these conditions they should nc: be responsible for

repaying their loan obligations. (1SAC, Oct. 1991)

3
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Under the House program the institution would receive a lump sum payment for loan

recipients. The institution would have to reconcile the direct loan account. Institutions

currently reconcile their Perkins accounts, but as I already indicated the direct loan

account would be substantially larger.

For students who withdraw from the University in the middle of the term the institution

will have to adjust the promissory note to reflect the change in status. The institution

would have to maintain proper documentation and perform accepted accounting

procedures for comprehensive audits of the program. The institution would be subject to

audits similar to those performed on lenders. For the protection of the institution an

expansion of internal audit and review procedures would be advisable.

Without lending institutions involved in the process institutions would be the sole

provider of loan counseling. My institution has benefitted from the literature and

counseling videos produced by lenders. The quality of loan counseling students would

receive without lender participation may be in question. Without the lenders and the

guarantors in the process the focus will be on institutions to reduce defaults.

4
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To cover these administrative costs an administrative fee of $20 per loan is included in

the proposal, subject to the annual appropriation cycle of Congress. Congress may

decide to cancel the fee. In my and many of my colleagues opinion, this administrative

fee will not offset the increased financial risks and administrative costs. We place the

cost of origination at $50 to $100 per loan. In addition, the administrative fee for a

public institution will go to the general fund and not my department's budget. Financial

aid administrators have made claims that the program will decrease the tasks a school

performs. This may be true for the financial aid office but not the business office.

Responsibilities are shifted but resources and personnel may not.

The Department of Education will be faced with new responsibilities including the

development of a data base to track the loans. ED, however, has failed in its attempt to

implement a National Data base. The implementation of an extensive data base that

would provide both institutions and the Department with information needed to

effectively manage the loan program based on ED's history may not be likely. The

program also assumes that institutions have the computer capability to transmit and

receive information. This not always true.

An important issue and one of great concern to myself is the phasing out of the current

Guaranteed Student Loan Program. It will take about 20 years to phase out these loans.

5

2.13



1 question the ability of ED to phase out the GSL program while implementing a direct

loan program. The institution, during this phase out period would be maintaining dual

loan programs. Even when the direct loan program is operational the institution will

continue to answer inquiries about guaranteed loans and processdeferments.

IDEA Program

I have several reservations about the IDEA Credit Bill and the effect the program will

have on higher education institutions and students. IDEA eliminates interest subsidies

and will cost students more money to repay the loan then the current Guaranteed

Student Loan Programs.

Under the IDEA Program a borrower will be in repayment for a maximum of 25 years.

After this period the loan balance will be forgiven by the federal government. This

method of repayment eliminates student loan defaults. However, there is no way to

predict the amount of loans that will be forgiven. Forgiveness could cost the federal

government significantly more than loan defaults. A Congressional Report released in

1988 stated that Contrary to popular perception, the typical defaulter is not a "deadbeat"

who refuses to pay, but appears to be a dropout who is unable to pay. Defaulters tend

to be first year students, from low income and minority backgrounds, with a small

6

2 1 ,1



230

balance loan who did not complete much more than the first year, have borrowed only

once, receive no or little assistance from parents in repaying, are likely to be unemployed

when the loans come due, and never make a paymene {Those students most likely to

default under the current program are most likely to have their loans forgiven under the

IDEA program. A student who borrowed $10,000 and earned $9,750 upon graduation

with an annual income growth of 5 per cent would have $14,650 of the loan balance

forgiven after the 25 year repayment period ceased.)

Similar to the House Bill, the IDEA bill creates additional administrative work for

institutions. This additional work includes loan origination which involves producing

promissory notes, having the student sign the note, maintain a loan file, sending the note

to the federal government, and reconciling the drawdown account. During this current

economic period many institutions are faced with serious budget shortfalls that would be

further strained by the passage of the IDEA Bill with no provision for an administrative

cost allowance. Both the House Bill and the Perkins Loan program provide the

institution with an administrative allowance.

The IDEA program ties the student's repayment to post-school income. This could

discourage both students and parents from saving for higher education. Sinceeveryone

qualifies for the loan there is no way to predict if this will increase the number of loans.

7
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The program also leads to an intergenerational shift of debt...with students assuming the

full responsibility of paying for higher education.

The IRS serves as the loan servicer for the IDEA program. The IRS will most likely

resist a change to their intent of this magnitude. The IRS is in the business of collecting

taxes, not student loans. I also have reservations about the quality of service students

will receive dealing with this large bureaucracy when questions or problems arise. When

students have difficulty resolving problems or have questions about their loans they are

likely to contact the school since the school originated the loan. In many instances the

institution may have to act in behalf of the student to resolve problems.

To conclude, I do not believe in abandoning our 26 year history of success with the

Guaranteed Student Loan Programs for an untested and unproven program. The

program can be modified more successfully than replaced. Forgiving loans under the

IDEA Program could prove much more costly than current loan defaults. Many of the

arguments for direct lending...standardization, simplification, and restoring the balance of

loans and grants...could be inatrporated in the current Guaranteed Loan Programs.

8
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"An Examination of Campus Implementation of Direct
Lending a Mixed View"

Presented During a Panel Discussion on Direct Lending
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Concordia College in a private church related Libaral.Arts College located in

the heart of the Red River Valley in Moorhead, Minnesota. Our full time

enrollment is 2933. The Federal, State. and Institutional grants

and loans in the academic year 1990-91 totaled over $17 million dollars.

The Financial Aid office employs the director and two anaiatanta.

HY office hen one person and that one person in ma. This morning I would

like to ehare ease of my concerns and thoee concerns related to se by others

in the private aector an well as the state in our geographical region.

On Tuesday, December 10, 1991, Senator David Durenberger aeked officials from

Moorhead State University, Concordia College and Moorhead Technical College

for input on hie proposal that would ehift the fundamental financial

reeponaibility from parents to etudente. He went into considerable detail on

hie "IDEA CREDIT" Proposal and quite honeetly painted a pretty picture. He

naked ue if thin wan "the right thing to do"? Thie briefing wae very well

attended by the college weeidents, Deans of Admienione, Financial Aids, Arts

and Humanitien, Fiecal Officern, and the newe media. The proponal wan met

with an "incredible lack of enthusiasm" (in Senator Durenbergere words) by all

2
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who attended. The concerns voiced were with regard to his comments that

"Higher Sdnoation is bemmimg a lifelong gursui . Will this lifelong pursuit

end up being a lifelong debt? The concept of having one format and me lender

has appeal to most. The concern about certain details make this almost

unacceptable, however. I do not believe that it is fair to let parents off the

hook so easily. I believe in saving for your childrens education. I wonder

how many young people today would be aware of the commences of taking on a

debt of up to $70,000.00? How many parents would just let their children take

on this debt rather than contribute to their education? Please keep in mind

that these young people will marry each other and then they are looking at

potentially $140,000 to repay over the next 25 years. I don't know about you

but 25 years after I graduated from college I would expect that I would be

saving for my grandobilde edUcation ---- not still paying for mine

Back in our day or should I say "my day" so that I do not offend anyone

by making the assumption that all of YOU are "my age" college was an

investment that paid off with better joba with security, higher pay with

benefits, and the general consensus of a time in our lives well worth the

effort. Todays young people face much lower expectations. If they are to

mortgage their future for up to 25 years for a 4 year bachelors degree at the

2.19
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institution of their choice their return is oftennmemploymente part time Jobe

with no benefits, minimum wage and a general consensus of "atlas in their

lives NOT worth the effort". How then are we going to keep young people in

education with that great of a burden?

Ite loan programs that are in place, though not perfect at least ask the

student and parent to share in the cost of higher education. Perhaps a more

attractive rate for the PLUS program would do more to encourage parental

participation than merely being required to inform the parent of PLUS

availability. Further, tax benefits to families that encourage savings and

provide deductions for tuition paid could encourage parents to do more.

Parents ere possibly better euited for repayment after the

student completes his/her course of study than the student who is just

beginning a.career and/or family obligations. The financing of a poet-

secondary education is a partnership between the family, the school, and the

government. This partnership has worked rather well in the peat but now we

are seeing the effecta of an erosion of that partnership. Specifically, at

Concordia, federal support to our students has declined by 10% in constant

dollars from 1981-82 until 1990-91. This 10X decline is in loan, work, and

2 5 0
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grant funding combined. On a national level the mix of grant to loan gor

those same years has eroded from a 52/45 ratio to a 48/49 ratio. Studente

are being forced into asauming an
increasing debt burden for their educational

expeneee.

Thie concern that studente will borrow more than ia neceesary has been

directed to Senator Simon and Senator Durenberger. The reeponee from Senator

Simon is hie latest letter to me indicated that even though the lisits in the

first two years are comparable to what an independent etudent could borrow if

ahe/he qualified for both a current Stafford and SLS, and the limit.to the

coat of attendance is maintained, that he intenda to maintain the currant

provisions that provide financial aid officers with aome discretion to control

unneceseary borrowing. I would be intereated in the data showing how maw

financial aid officere actually exercise thie diacretion when couneeling

student who is trying to finance his/her education and all resourcee have been

wed because the parent having the knowledge of the loan iimite haa made the

decision to allow the student to take on the extra debt rather than making the

contribution themselvee.

The use of the federal income tax system to collect student loans would
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significantly complicate the income tax proms am well as creating burdens

for companies of all sizes who have to adjust withholding to account for

amounts owed on loans. The probability of tax disobedience is increased and

in some instances I believe it could become a deterrent for a potential

employer to hire a college graduate who has student loans. Furthermore, ueing

the scenario of the average borrower mho over tne courea of his/her edUcation

has borrowed a total of $40,000.00 through IDiA credit. The interest has

accrued on this amount at 2% over the 91 day T-bill rate or the rate projected

by the Congressional Budget Office of 8% and upon graduation the $40,000 has

just become $45,918.00. After discussing this with our Financial Aid and

Placement Director we felt it would be fair to say that a college graduate

with a degree from a liberal arte college or university would make about

$25,000 per year for his/her job. Senator Simon and Senator Durenberger have

proposed that no payment may exceed 25% of the difference between actual

income and the minimum filing income which is $5,550.00, (if single and under age

65) . This would mean, using that formula, that the monthly with holding

could be as high as $405.20. With all the costs of starting up a "real life

in the "real world" taken into considertation, can any of us realistically say
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upon thwtask of Implementing a new program which mill affect the future of

the majority of our young people and the growth of our economy.

In closing please allow me to thank you for your kind attention. I realize

that this is a very emotional topic and that each person and institution haa

its own position. I appreciate being able to share nine with you and I would

ask that you not queations my dollar figures because I'm not very good with

numbera and I would hate to make a fool of myself. Whatever time I may have

left I will defer to Judith Flink. Thank you.
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DIRECT LOAN PROPOSAL
MIXED VIEW

JOSEPH A. RUSSO

COALITION OF HIGHER EDUCATION ASSISTANCE ORGANIZATION
ARLINGTON, VIRGINIA

JANUARY 28, 1992

THANK YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE NY COMMENTS ON THE CONCEPT OF THE DIRECT

LOAN PROGRAM. CERTAINLY THERE ARE MANNA/430R ISSUES WHICH NEEDEDOUR SERIOUS ATTENTION

AS WE REVIEW THE FEDERAL LEGISLATION GOVERNING OUR STUDENT AID PROGRAMS. IN FACT,

PRIOR TO THE BIRTH OF THE DIRECT LOAN PROPOSAL, LEGISLATORS AND OTHERS INVOLVED IN

DEVELOPING PUBLIC POLICY AGREED THAT WE DESPERATELY NEEDED TO AVOID THE "TINKERING"

WHICH THE REAUTHORIZATION PROCESS SEEMS TO HAVE EXPERIENCED THE LAST COUPLE OF TIMES

AMMO AND RATHER CONCENTRATE ON THE MORE FUNDAMENTAL QUESTIONS OF LOAN/GRANT

IMBALANCE, SIMPLICITY OF DELIVERY, ANO INTEGRITY. CONSENSUS ON THESE AS MAJOR CONCERNS

WAS ALSO FOUND AT THE PRACTITIONER LEVEL, I.E., THE FINANCIAL AID ADMINISTRATORS WERE

ALSO IN AGREEMENT THAT THE HEAVY DEBT BURDEN, THE NEED FOR SIMPLICITY, AND THE NEED FOR

INTEGRITY WERE IHE BIGGEST ISSUES.

IN SCME PEOPLE'S VIEW, THE DEBATE OVER THE DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM HAS BEEN A MAJOR

DISTRACTION TO THESE ISSUES. WITHOUT QUESTION, IT HAS CONSUMED A LOT OF TIME AND

EFFORT. IN FACT, FOR SEVERAL MONTHS NOW, IT HAS PICKED UP CONSIDERABLE MOMENTUM,

HAVING RECEIVED PUBLIC SUPPORT FROM SUCH INSTITUTIONS AS HARVARD AND MICHIGAN AND MANY

OTHERS. RECENTLY, HOWEVER, THIS MOMENTUM HAS SLOWED, AS MORE OF US HAVE BECOME MORE

VOCAL IN EXPRESSING OUR QUESTIONS.

TANI REMARKS TODAY, I WILL INDEED RAISE SONE OF NY CONCERNS. BUT PRIOR TO DOING

THIS, I BELIEVE WE MULTI ALL ASK VERY SERIOUSLY, IF THE DIRECT LOAN PROPOSALWERE SUCH

A LOUSY IDEA, WHY HAS IT RECEIVED SON/CH INTEREST AND SUPPORT? WHY WAS IT NOT SIMPLY

IGNORED?

I WOULD CONTEND THAT THE PRIMARY REASONS IT HAS NOT DIED A QUICK DEATH RELATE TO

THE FRUSTRATION THAT MANY HAVE WITH THE PROBLEMS SO OFTEN ASSOCIATED WITH STUDENT AID
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IN GENERAL: IT'S TOO COSTLY, TOO COMPLICATED, AND FRAUGHT WITH FRAUD AND ABUSE. DO

THESE PROBLEMS SOUND FAMILIAR? IN FACT, THEY ARE RIGHT ON TARGET WITH THE VERY BASIC

ISSUES OF EXCESSIVE BORROWING, THE NEED FOR SIMPLICITY, AND THE NEED FOR INTEGRITY - -ALL

OF WHICH WERE AGREED UPON BASIC PUBLIC POLICY THEMES IN NEED OF SERIOUS REVIEW PRIOR

TO THE DISCUSSIONS SURROUNDING THE REAUTHORIZATION DEBATES IN CONGRESS.

WHY IS THE COST OF THE STAFFORD STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM GROWN SO DRAMATICALLY IN THE

LAST DECADE? ARE THE COSTS REQUIRED TO DELIVER THESE FUNDS TO STUDENTS EXCESSIVE? HOW

DOES THE FACT THAT A RECENT STUDY OF BANKS' LENDING ACTIVITIES SHOWING STUDENT LOANS

TO BE THE THIRD MOST PROFITABLE VENTURE BEHIND CREDIT CARDS AND COMMERCIAL MORTGAGES

RELATE TO THE QUESTION OF EXCESSIVE COST? CAN THESE PROFIT MARGINS BE REDUCED BY A FEW

BASIS POINTS WITHOUT SIGNIFICANTLY IMPACTING THE ABILITY OF LENDERS TO PROVIDE TIMELY

AND ACCURATE LOANS? CAM CURRENTLY AVAILABLE MODERN TECHNOLOGY BE EMPLOYED TO REDUCE

COSTS AND COMPLEXITY IN THE DELIVERY OF STUDENT LOAN PROCEEDS? WHY CANNOT ALL OF THE

AGENCIES INVOLVED IN DELIVERY AGREE TO SOME COMM STANDARDS FOR REPORTING? WHY DO WE

HEAR SO MANY COMPLAINTS FROM BORROWERS RESULTING FROM LOANS BEING SOLD AND SOMETIMES

SOLD AGAIN AND MOVED FROM ONE PART OF THE COUNTRY TO ANOTHER FOR SERVICING? WHY DOES

THE IMAGE OF STUOENT AID CONTINUE TO DECLINE BECAUSE OF APPARENT BUREAUCRACY,

COMPLEXITY, AND INSENSITIVITY TO ALL SORTS OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES OF STUDENTS AND

FANILIES? WHY TOO HAS OUR IMAGE BEEN FURTHER DAMAGED BY STORIES OF FRAUD AND ABUSE,

CONGRESSIONAL INVESTIGATIONS REVEALING SCANAFTER SCAN, LOUSY GRADUATION AND PLACEMENT

RATES, AND OUTRAGEOUS DEFAULT RATES?

IT'S NO WONDER THAT 934E SUGGESTION TO CHANGE THE NATURE OF BY FAR THE LARGEST

OF THESE STUDENT AID PROGRAMS - -STUDENT LOANS- -HAS PICKED UP SUCH SUPPORT AND RECEIVED

SO LITTLE NEGATIVE REACTION... AT LEAST INITIALLY! I WHOLEHEARTEDLY AGREE WITH MANY

WHO ESPOUSE THE NEED FOR CHANGE. IN FACT, AS HAS BEEN RATHER APPARENT, THE CHALLENGES

RAISED BY THE DIRECT LOAN PRCCRAM ARE VERY SIMILAR TO THOSE RAISED PRIOR TO THE

BEGINNING OF THE LEGISLATIVE PROCESS RELATED TO REAUTHORIZATION. THIS DEBATE HAS NOT

BEEN A DISTRACTION BUT RATHER REFLECTS MANY OF TW. VALID PUBLIC POLICY QUESTIONS WE

2
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SHOULD BE RAISING! AS MUCH AS I AN CONCERNE13 ABOUT MANY ASPECTS OF THE DIRECT LOAN

PROPOSAL, IAN PLEASED THAT THE CONSIDERABLE
ATTENTION IT HAS RECEIVED AT LEAST HAS THE

POTENTIAL TO 00 MUCH TOWARD CORRECTING SOME
VERY FUNDAMENTAL PROBLEMS ASSOCIATED WITH

HOW WE CURRENTLY GO ABOUT OGR BUSINESS.
THE VERY WORST RESULT OF THIS ENTIRE NATIONAL

DEBATE WOULD BE THAT THE REASONS BEHIND THIS CONCEPT'S BIRTH AND SUPPORT WOULD BE

IGNORED. IN A NUTSHELL, I AN VERY HOCH IN 07POSITION TO DISMANTLING THE CURRENT

GUARANTEED STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM AND THE ESTABLISIOIENT OF ANEW DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM...

BUT I AN VERY SYMPATHETIC TO THE SERIOUS PROBLEMS IT IS TRYING TO ADDRESS. WHERE I

DISAGREE WITH BETSY AND OTHERS SUPPORTING
THE DIRECT LOAN, IS THE MANNER IN WHICH WE

GO ABOUT SOLVING THE PROBLEMS. I FEEL STRONGLY THE WE CAN FIX THE PROGRAM, WHICH HAS

WORKED SO WELL FOR SO KANY YEARS FOR SO
MANY MILLIONS OF INDIVIDUALS AND SO MANY

BILLIONS OF DOLLARS, WITHOUT THROWING THE ENTIRE THING OUT ANO STARTING ALL OVER.

NOW LET'S LOOK MORE SPECIFICALLY AT THE DIRECT LOAN PROPOSAL. FIRST OF ALL, ITS

IMPLEHENTATIONI WOULD REMOVE ANUNBEROF NONFEDERAL PLAYERS FROM THE PROCESS, INCLUDING

BANKS, GUARANTORS, SECONDARY MARKETS, AND PRIVATE BILLING AND COLLECTION

ORGANIZATIONS... THE ASSUMPTION BEING THAT THE DUALITY OF SERVICE BEING PROVIDED WOULD

BE BETTER THAN THAT NOV BEING DRIVEN BY A MORE COMPETITIVE BASED MARKET. THE TRACK

RECORD OF THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT IN
ADMINISTERING STUDENT AID iM AN EFFICIENT, TIMELY,

AND ACCURATE MANNER HOWEVER, L[0E5111010
BE DESIRED. JUST CHECK WITH SENATOR NUNN'S

SENATE COMMITTEE'S REPORT TO CONGRESS, WHICH REFLECTED A TOTAL LACK OF CONFIDENCE IN

THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT'S ABILITY TO PROPERLY OVER-SEE ITS PROGRAMS. READ LAST WEEK'S

CHRONICLE OF HIGHER EDUCATION ABOUT HOW THE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT'S ABILITY TO

ACCURATELY MEASURE AN INSTITUTION'S DEFAULT RATE HAS BEEN CHALLENGED BY CALIFORNIA

COMMUNITY COLLEGES. MOREOVER, THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION HAS ITSELF, ALONG WITH

THE ADMINISTRATION, INDICATED ITS SERIOUS CONCERN ABOUT BEING ABLE TO ADMINISTER A

DIRECT LOAN PROGRAN. SUCH A TRACK RECORD AND PUBLIC POSTURE DO VERY, VERY LITTLE IN

ESTABLISHING A FIRM LEVEL OF CONFIDENCE INA PROPOSAL WHICH WOULD BE SO DEPENDENT UPON

FEDERAL LEADERSHIP. AGAIN, THIS DOES NOT SUGGEST THAT THE QUALITY OF SERVICE PROVIDED

3

rr4.)



243

UNDER THE CURRENT GUARANTEED LOAN PROGRAM IS PERFECTLY ACLEPTABLE. IMPROVEMENT IS MUCH

NEEDED BUT, I CONTEND, IS VERY ACHIEVABLE WITHIN THE CURRENT STRUCTURE.

THE DIRECT LOAN PROPOSAL IS ALSO BASED UPON A NUMBER OF OTHER ASSUMPTIONS WHICH

ARE OPEN TO SERIOUS QUESTION. FOR EXAMPLE, IT ASSUMES THAT EACH INSTITUTION CURRENTLY

PARTICIPATING IN THE PROGRAM WOULD BE WILLING AND CAPABCE OF BECOMING A DIRECT LENDER.

MOREOVER, IT ASSUMES A VIRTUALLY UN-LIMITED AMOUNT OF LOAN DOLLARS BEING PROVIDED TO

EACH INSTITUTION, REGARDLESS OF WHATEVER BUDGET DEFICIENCIES OR NATIONAL DEBT PROBLEMS

BEING FACED IN OUR COUNTRY'S ECONOMY. ELIGIBLE STUDENTS ARE CURRENTLY ABLE TO SECURE

LOANS. WOULD THE SAME ASSURANCE BE PROVIDED UNDER THE NEW PROGRAM? THE PROGRAM ALSO

SUGGESTS THAT NEW EFFICIENCIES, SUCH AS ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER OR EFT, WOULD RESULT

FWOM DIRECT LOANS. ALTHOUGH SOME INTERSTATE BANKING REGULATIONS MAY INDEED NEED

RUISING, EFT IS ALREADY TECHNICALLY POSSIBLE UNDER THE PRESENT PROGRAM. LIKEWISE, THE

STANDARDIZATION ADVANTAGES WHICH WOULD PRESUMABLY FLOW FROM ONE DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM ARE

SO ACHIEVABLE NOW UNDER IKE GUARANTEED LOAN... IF WE CAN JUST GET TOGETHER AND WORK

THEM OUT. I MIGHT ADO THAT THIS HAS BEEN A PARTICULARLY FRUSTRATING ISSUE FOR AN

INSTITUTION SUCH AS BETSY'S AND MINE, WHICH DRAW ANNUALLY FROM A NATION WIDE

CONSTITUENCY. HAVING TO WORK WITH OVER FIFTY DIFFERENT STUDENT LOAN APPLICATION

PROCESSES, EACH WITH DIFFERENT FORMS, DIFFERENT DATA ELEMENTS, AND DIFFERENT POLICIES

AND PROCEDURES, CAUSED US NO SMALL PROBLEMS. BECAUSE OF SOME SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS

OUR INSTITUTION WAS ABLE TO ARRANGE WITH AN ANNUALLY EVALUATED LIST OF PREFERRED

LENDERS WORKING WITH ONE NATIONAL GUARANTOR CAPABLE OF ELECTRONIC PROCESSING, WE NOW

HAVE GONE A LONG WAY DOWN THE ROAD TOWARD STANDARDIZATION. THIS HAS RESULTED IN

POSITIVE CONSEQUENCES OF REDUCED COMPLEXITY, IMPROVED QUALITY OF SERVICE FOR BOTH

BORROWER AHD INSTITUTION, ANO GREATLY ENHANCED CASH FLOW TO THE INSTITUTION. OTHER

NATIONAL INSTITUTIONS HAVE ALSO ACHIEVED SIMILAR SUCCESSES. WHAT IF ALI OF OUR

PARTICIPATING COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES GOT TOGETHER AND DEMANDED SUCH CHANGE,

ESPECIALLY WITH SOME ENCOORAGING INCENTIVES BY CONGRESS? I BELIEVE THIS CAN AND SHOULD

4
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HAPPEN IN THIS REAUTHORIZATION PROCESS. I FOR ONE WOULD BE EXTREMELY DISAPPOINTED IF

THIS DEBATE DID NOT RESULT IN SUCH CHANGE.

BETSY AND OTHERS HAVE ALSONADE ANGER OF OTHER ASSUMPTIONS IN THEIR RATIONALE.

IN WHAT HAS NOW BECOME A MATTER OF PUBLIC RECORD, BETSY AND KAY JACKS OF COLORADO STATE

UNIVERSITY HAVE RATHER SIMPLISTICALLY SUGGESTED THAT SIGNIFICANT REDUCTIONS WOULD

RESULT IN THE TASKS CURRENTLY PERFORMED BY SCHOOLS IN ADMINISTERING THE GUARANTEED

S1UDENT LOAN. BY SUBTRACTING THE FUNCTIONS THEY INDICATE WOULD BE ELIMINATED AND

ADDING THE ALLEGED FEW WHICH A DIRECT LOAN WOULD REQUIRE, THEY SUGGEST THE NET RESULT

WOULD BE SIGNIFICANTLY LESSENED ADMINISTRATIVE BURDENS. I BELIEVE AT LEAST BETSY WOULD

CONCEDE THAT THEIR INITIAL ANALYSIS MAY BE IN NEED OF SOME CLARIFICATION. SINCE MANY

OF THE NEW RESPONSIBILITIES REQUIRED AT THE SCHOOL LEVEL WOULD UNDOUBTEDLY FALL UPON

PEOPLE LIKE YOURSELVES, I WOULD RECOMMEND THAT YOU TAKE A LOOK AT THE RESPONSE PREPARED

BY COURTNEY MONUFF AND MYSELF LAST FALL WHICH IS A HANDOUT FOR THIS SESSION. SINCE

WE WOULD EFFECTIVELY BECOME BANKERS, EACH INSTITUTION WOULD BE SUBJECT TO LEARNING AND

STAYING ON TOP OF A MOLE NEW Sri OF BANKING REGULATIONS. WE WOULD, FOR EXAMPLE, NEED

TO DO CREDIT WORTHY CHECKS ON AT LEAST SONE BORROWERS. WE WOULD ALSO BE HAVING TO DEAL

WITH THE BILLING AND COLLECTING PROBLEMS TYPICALLY ASSOCIATED WITH BORROWERS UNABLE TO

BE SATISFIED BY SONE FEDERAL CONTRACTOR-WHO, BY THE WAY, WOULD HAVE WON THE JOB BY

BEING THE LOWEST BIDDER ON A FEDERAL CONTRACT SUBJECT TO CHANGE EVERY THREE YEARS, YOU

MIGHT WANT TO BOUNCE THAT SCENARIO AROUND WITH YOUR SCHOOL'S ALUMNI DIRECTORS.

THE FINAL ASSUMPTION, AND PERHAPS THE ONE MOST SUSPECT, WOULD HAVE MANY OF THE

DIRECT LOAN'S SUCCESSES BASED UPON THE EXISTENCE OF AN ACCURATE AND EFFICIENT NAIIONAL

DATA BASE OF STUDENT AID INFORMATION. THE NATIONAL DATA BASE WOULD ELIMINATE THE NEED

FOR SUCH THINGS AS FINANCIAL AID TRANSCRIPTS AND CHECKING ON PREVIOUS PROBLEMS OF A

STUDENT'S LOAN DEFAULTS OR REFUNDS DUE SOME FEDERAL AID PROGRAM, EIC. OF COURSE, THE

DIRECT LOAN PROPOSAL WOULD HAVE THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT PUT THIS NATIONAL DATA BASE

FULLY IN PLACE IN THE FIRST YEAR OF THE NEW PROGRAM. THE LAST REAUTHORIZATION IN 1986

PROVIDED THE AUTHORITY FOR JUST SUCH A DATA BASE FOR STUDENT LOANS. THOSE OF US IN THE

5
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STUDENT AID WORLD ARE STILL AWAITING ITS ARRIVAL. THE FEDERAL PELL GRANT APPLICATION

PROCESS HAS ALSO ATTEMPTED TO GATHER SIMILAR DATA FOR THAT PARTICULAR FEDERAL PROGRAM.

IT WOULD BE VERY KIND TO INDICATE THAT IT CURRENTLY LACKS TNE FULL CONFIDENCE OF THOSE

WHO HAVE TO MORK WITH IT.

BEYONDQUESTIONING THE ASSUMPTIONSBEHIND THE DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM, ONE MIGHT ALSO

WONDER ABOUT ADDITIONAL DEMANDS THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT MIGHT REQUIRE OF INSTITUTIONS.

MATWOULD BEAN AiCEPTABLE FINANCIAL RATING AND HOW OFTEN WOULD IT HAVE TO OH REVIEWED

AND AT WHOSE EXPENSE? WHAT WOULD BEAN ACCEPTABLE AMOUNT OF ADOITIONU.HUMAN RESOURCES

REQUIRED TO PROPERLY ADMINISTER THE PROGRAM? WOULD THERE BE ANY OPPORTUNITY TO

CUSTOMIZE THE BILLING AND COLLECTION PROCESS TO THE PARTICULAR KINDS OF CIRCUNSTANCES

WHICH THE PERKINS PROCESS NOW PERMITS? WHAT ABOUT ALL OF THE OTHER QUESTIONS BEING

CURRENTLY RAISED BY THE ACADEMIC SIDE OF THE INSTITUTION AS THEY RELATE TO

ACCREDITATION ISSUES?

AGAIN, I WOULD BE THE LAST TO ARGUE THAT EVERY INSTITUTION PRESENTLY

PARTICIPATING IN THE GUARANTEED STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM IS PERFECTLY IMMACULATE AND NOT

WITHOUT FAULT. HERE AGAIN THE UGLY PICTURE OF FRAUD, ABUSE, SCAM, HIGH ATTRITION,

FINANCIAL INSOLVENCY, AND OUTRAGEOUS DEFAULT RATES LOONS BEFORE US. WE MUST ADDRESS

THE ISSUE OF INTEGRITY VERY SERIOUSLY AND CREATE TOUGH NEW STANDARDS TO WHICH ALL

SCHOOLS, LENDERS, AND AGENCIES NUST SUBSCRIBE. IN DEVELOPING THESE STANDARDS, WE MUST

ALSO TARGET OUR PUNITIVE REGULATIONS 70 THOSE WHOSE TRACK RECORDS OBVIOUSLY ARE

WANTING. UNFORTUNATELY, THESE RULES ARE,T00 OFTEN WRITTEN IN SUCH A BROAD BRUSHED

APPROACH THAT WE ALL MUST SUFFER EQUALLY WITH EXCESSIVE ADMINISTRATIVE BURDENS. IN

FACT, IN ADDRESSING THE INTEGRITY ISSUE, CONGRESS SHOULD PROVIDE EXEMPTIONS FROM

CERTAIN REGULATIONS TO THOSE PLAYERS WHOSE RECORDS ARE ABOVE REPROACH. I WOULD SUGGEST

114111 THEY SHOULD EVEN BE REWARDED WITH SPECIAL POSITIVE INCENTIVES IN ADDITION TO BEING

EXEMPTED FROM BURDENSOME REGULATIONS. THIS CAN BE ACHIEVED IN THE CURRENT PROGRAM AND

ONCE AGAIN I FIND MYSELF REPEATING THE THOUGHT OF HOW SAD IT WOULD BE THAT WE FAIL TO

REALLY TACKLE THIS ISSUE THIS TIME AROUND.

6
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I NEED NOT SPEND A my OF TINE WITH THIS AUDIENCE ON THE ISSUE OF LIABILITY.

OBVIOUSLY, EACH INSTITUTION MULD BE REQUIRED TO EXERCISE CONSIDERABLY MORE TINE AND .

EFFORT WITH EACH AND EVERY STEP OF THE DIRECT LOAN PROCESS, FAR BEYOND THE MANY

RESPONSIBILITIES WE ALREADY CARRY UNDER THE CURRENT PROCESS. FAILURE TO DD SO WOULD

RESULT IN THE SCHOOL'S FULL LIABILITY FOR THE LOAN. ALTHOUGH SPECIAL CARE SHOULD

CERTAINLY BE TAKEN IN CERTIFYING LOAN ELIGIBILITY FOR STUDENT BORROWERS, AN ENTIRELY

NEW LEVEL OF INVOLVEMENT WOULD BE REQUIRED IF WE WERE TO BECOME BANKERS. A MORE SHARED

RESPONSIBILITY IN ADMINISTERING STUDENT LOANS IS A VERY GOOD PUBLIC POLICY OBJECTIVE

WHICH I WOULD WHOLEHEARTEDLY SUPPORT. HOWEVER, THE SCHOOL'S ROLE IN THIS REGARD SHOULD

RELATE MORE TO THE INTEGRITY QUESTIONS, Of A STUDENT'S OF ABILITY TO BENEFIT, GRADUATION

AND PLACEMENT RATES, AM OTHER SIMILAR ISSUES RAISED EARLIER IN MY REMARKS.

FINALLY, WE MIGHT ALSO WANT TO REVIEW THE REASONS FOR THE DENISE OF THE FEDERALLY

INSURED STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM, ALSO KNOWN AS THE FISL PROGRAM. MANY OF THE QUESTIONS

AND PROBLEMS SOKE OF US HAVE WITH DIRECT LOANS WOULD FIND MANY PARALLELS WITH THOSE

WHICH WERE ASSOCIATED WITH THE DENISE OF THIS FEDERALLY CENTRALIZED PROGRAM, MOREOVER,

IN PROJECTING THE DISMANTLING COSTS OF THE GUARANTEED LuAN PROGRAM, WE MIGHT WANT TO

CHECK THE RECORD OF THE FISL-WHICH HAS BEEN OFF THE BOOKS FOR YEARS BUT IS STILL A

COST TO THE GOVERMENT DUE TO THE LONG TERM OBLIGATION TYPICALLY ASSOCIAJED WITH

STUDENT LOANS. KEEP. IN MIND THAT THERE WERE FAR FEWER FISL BORROWERS AND INFINITELY

LESS DOLLARS INVOLVED.

I APOLOGIZE FOR THE LENGTH OF MY REMARKS AND VERY MUCH APPRECIATE YOUR KIND

PATIENCE AND ATTENTION. IN SUMMARY, I AM VERY SYMPATHETIC TO ADDRESSING THE SAME

PROBLEMSWHICH A DIRECT LOAM PROGRAM MOULD ATTEMPT TO RESOLVE, BUT I STRONGLY BELIEVE

THAT ALL OF THESE MAJOR PROBLEMS CAN AND SHOULD BE ADDRESSED IN THIS REAUTHORIZATION

WITHIN THE CURRENT BASIC PARTNERSHIP OF PLAYERS IN THE GUARANTEED STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM.

AFTER OUR OTHER PANELISTS HAVE CONCLUDED, I WOULD VERY MUCH BE INTERESTED IN YOUR

COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS. THANK YOU.

7
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II

102o CONGRESS S. 18451ST SESSION

To ensure that all Americans have the opportunity for a higher education.

IN ThE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES
OCTOBER 22 (legislative day, SEPTEMBER 19), 1991

Mr. Stmcw (for himself and Mr. DURENBERGER) introduced the &Vowing bill;
which was read twice and referred to the Committee on Labor and
Human Resources

A BILL
To ensure that all Americans have the opportunity for a

higher education.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of 1.9vresenta

2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assemk!ed,

3 sEcTION I. SHORT TITLE.

4 This Act may be cited as the "Financial Aid for All

5 Students Act of 1991".
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2

1 TITLE I-PELL GRANT ENTITLE-
2 MENT, GRADUATE ASSIST-
3 ANCE, AND EXCELLENCE
4 SCHOLARSHIPS
5 SEC. 101. PEIL GRANT ENTITLEMENT.

6 Section 411 of the Higher Education Act of 1965

7 (hereafter in this Act referred to as the "Act") (20 U.S.C.

8 1070(a)) is amended by adding at the end the following

9 new subsections:

10 "(j) ENTITLEMENT TO AN ADDITIONAL $600.--(1)

11 Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g), after

12 July 1, 1994, no student shall be denied the additional

13 amount to which such student would be entitled if the

14 maximum basic grant allowable pursuant to the appro-

15 priate appropriation Act were increased by $600.

16 "(k) FULL ENTITLEMENT FOR ALL ELIGIBLE STU-

17 DENTS.Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection

18 (g), no student shall be denied the basic grant t.,n which

19 such student is entitled, as calculated under subsection

20 (b), if Congress makes available for such purpose sufti-

21 cient additional revenue or savings pursuant to the Budget

22 Enforcement Act of 1990.".

*8 1B46 IS
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1 SEC. 102. PELL GRANT FOR FIRST-YEAR GRADUATE STU-

2 DENTS.

3 Subsection (c) of section 411 of the Act is amended

4 by adding at the end the following new paragraph:

5 "(4) A graduate student who has not completed

6 the full-time equivalent of 1 year of coursework fol-

7 lowing the completion of the graduate student's first

8 undergraduate baccalaureate degree shall be eligible

9 for a basic grant in any fiscal year if-

10 "(A) sufficient funds have been made

11 available to provide the basic grant for which

12 all eligible undergraduate students are eligible

13 in accordance with subsection (b) to all eligible

14 undergraduate students; and

15 "(B) such graduate student would be eligi-

16 ble for a Pell grant if such student were an un-

17 dergraduate student.".

18 SEC. 103. FACELLENCE SCHOLARSHIPS FOR PELL GRANT

19 RECIPIENTS.

20 Part A of title IV of the Act (20 U.S.C. 1070 et seq.)

21 is amended by adding at the end the following new sub-

22 part:

23 "Subpart 9Excellence Scholarship Program

24 "SEc. 420C. (a) PURPOSE.-It is the purpose of this

25 part to award scholarships to Pell Grant recipients who

26 demonstrate high academie achievement, and thereby en-

s 1815 IS
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1 courage students to excel in elementary and secondary

2 studies, enter postsecondary education, and continue to

3 demonsteate high levels of academic achievement at the

4 postsecondary level.

5 "(b) ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM.The Secretary shall,

6 in accordance with the provisions of this section, award

7 scholarships to eligible students in accordance with this

8 section. An eligible student shall be deemed to have a con-

9 tractual right against thz United States to receive a schol-

10 arship under this section.

11 "(e) ELIGIBLE STUDENT.For the purposes of this

12 section, the term 'eligible student' means a student that-

13 "(1) is enrolled on at least half-time basis in a

14 program of study of not less than 2 academic years

15 in length that leads to a degree or certificate;

16 "(2) has received a Pell Grant under subpart 1

17 of this part for that academic year; and

18 "(3) in the ease of a student who will be at-

19 tending such student's first year of postsecondary

20 education-

21 "(A) has demonstrated academie achieve-

22 inent and preparation for postsecondary edu-

23 cation by taking college preparatory level

24 coursework equivalent to not less than 4 years

25 of English, 3 years of science, 3 years of mathe-

8 ISO IS
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1 matics, 3 years of social science (including his-

2 tory), and 2 years of a foreign language, unless

3 the Secretary determines that such courses

4 were not available to the student; and

5 "(B) ranks in the top 10 percent, by grade

6 point average, of the student's secondary school

7 graduating class;

8 "(C) achieves at least the minimum score,

9 as determined by the Secretary pursuant to reg-

10 ulations that are published in the Federal Reg-

11 ister, on 1 of the nationally administered,

12 standardized tests identified by the Secretary;

13 or

14 "(D) has participated, for a minimum pe-

15 Hod of 36 months, in a program 2W thorized

16 under section 415F or under subpart 4 of this

17 part or a similar program as determined by the

18 Secretary;

19 "(2) in the case of a student who initially quali-

20 fied for a scholarship as a first year student pursu-

21 ant to subparagraph (c)(3)(D) of this section, par-

22 ticipates in a student support services program de-

23 scribed in subpart 4 or a similar program as deter-

24 niMed by the Secretary in which such student is re-

25 wired to enter into an agreement to achieve certain

S 1845 18
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1 academie milestones and the student continues to
2 make significant progress toward those milestones;
3 and

4 "(3) in the case of any other student-
5 "(A) ranks in the top 10 percent, by cu-
6 mulative grade point average (or its equivalent,
7 if the institution does not use a system ,f
8 ing its students by grade point averages), of the
9 student's postsecondary education class as of

10 the last academic year of study completed; or
11 "(B) meets another measure of academic
12 achievement as determined by the Secretary.
13 "(d) SCHOLARSHIP AMOUNT.
14 "(1) IN GENERAL.Except as provided in para.
15 graphs (2) and (3), the amount of a scholarship
16 awarded under this section for any academic year
17 shall be $1,000.

18 "(2) RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER ASSIST-
19

ANCE.Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph
20 (1), the amount of a scholarship awarded under this
21 subpart shall be reduced, by the institution of higher
22 education that the student is or will he attending, by
23 the aniount that the scholarship-
24 "(A) exceeds the student's cost of attend-
25 ance, as defined in section 472; or

08 1845 IS
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1 "(B) when combined with other Federal or

2 non-Federal grant or scholarship assistance the

3 student receives in any academic year, exceeds

4 the student's cost of attendance, as defined in

5 section 472.

6 "(3) REDUCTION.Notwithstanding the provi-

7 sions of paragraph (1), if the Secretary projects that

8 the total amount of scholarships to be awarded dur-

9 ing an academic year under paragraph (1) will ex-

10 ceed $500,000,000, then the Secretary shall reduce

11 the amount of each scholarship awarded under this

12 section on a pro rata basis such that the projected

13 total amount will not exceed $500,000,000.

14 "(e) PERIOD OF SCHOLARSHIP.

15 "(1) IN CENERAL.An eligible student may re-

16 ceive not more than 4 scholarships under this sec-

17 tion, each awarded for a period of 1 academic year,

18 except that, in the case of a student who is enrolled

19 in an undergraduate course of study that requires

20 attendance for the full-time equivalent of 5 academie

21 years, the student may receive not. more than 5

22 scholarships under this section.

23 "(2) SPECIAL RULE.--A student's eligibility for

24 a scholarship under this section for an academic

25 year is not dependent on whether the student re-

*5 1845 IS
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1 ceived an excellence scholarship, Pell Grant, or any
2 other aid in the previous academic year.

3 "(f) ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.

4 "(1) IN GENERAL.The Secretary shall pro-

5 mulgate regulations establishing the procedures by
6 which scholarships under this section shall be

7 awarded.

8 "(2) INFORMATION.Each institution of higher
9 education receiving a payment under this section

10 shall provide to the Secretary such information as is
11 required by the Secretary regarding a potential
12 scholarship recipient's rank or test score.

13 "(3) INSTITUTIONAL PAYMENTS.The Sec-

14 retary shall make payments of scholarship proceeds
15 on behalf of eligible students to the institutions of
16 higher education at which such 'students are en-
17 rolled.".

18 TITLE II INCOME-DEPENDENT
19 EDUCATION ASSISTANCE
20 PROGRAM
21 SEC. 201, IDEA CREW.

22 (a) IN GENERAL.Part D of title IV of the Act is

23 amended to read as follows:

*9 1645 IS
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1 "PART DINCOME-DEPENDENT EDUCATION

2 ASSISTANCE CREDIT

3 "SEC. 451. ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM.

4 "(a) IN GENFIRAL.The Secretary shall, in aecord-

5 anee with the provisions of this part-

6 "(1) make loans to eligible students; and

7 "(2) enter into an agreement with the Secretary

8 of the Treasury for the collection of repayments tni

9 such loans in aceordanee with section 459.

10 "(b) ENTITLEMENT PROvIsloN.--An eligible student

11 shall be deemed to have a eontraetual right against the

12 United States to receive a loan under this part.

13 "(e) DEFINITIONS.For purposes of this part-

14 "(1) the term 'eligible institution' has the

15 meaning given to such term by seetion 435(a); and

16 "(2) the term 'eligible student' means a student

17 who is eligible for assistance under this title in zte-

18 coidance with section 484 and is carrying at least

19 one-half the normal full-time work load for the

20 cxnuse of study the student is pursuing as

21 mined by the eligible institution.

22 "(d) REFERENCES.---A loan pursuant to this part

23 may be referred to as an 'IDEA' loan.

24 "SEC. 452. ELIGIBILITY; USE OF LOANS.

25 "(a) ELIGIBILITY..An eligible student shall not be

26 eligible for a loan under this part unless

S 1845 IS 2
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1 "(1) in the ease of an independent student with
2 an &busted gross income in the applicable year of
3 less than $40,000 (or an appropriate amount deter-
4 mined by the Secretary), the eligible student has ap-
5 plied for need-based assistance under this title;
6 "(2) in the case of a dependent student with a
7 family income in the applicable year of less than
8 $60,000 (or an appropriate amount determined by
9 the Secretary), the eligible student has applied for

10 need-based assistance under this title;
11 "(3) in the case of a dependent student with an
12 expected family contribution (excluding the student's
13 own contribution) exceeding $2,000 (or an appro-
14 priate amount determined by the Secretary), the
15 head of household has been notified of such person's
16 eligibility for a loan under section 428B; and

17 "(4) such eligible student understands and
18 signs directly beneath the following statement: 'I un-
19 derstand that taking this loan will increase the in-
20 come taxes 1 owe each year until the loan is paid in
21 Hi, with interest.'.

22 "(b) USE OF LOAN.Each eligible student receiving
23 an IDEA loan shall use the proceeds of such loan only
24 to attend an eligible institution.

*8 1845 IS
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1 "SEC. 453. DISTRIBUTION TO ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONS AND

2 STUDENTS.

3 "The Secretary shall prescribe by regulation a proc-

4 ess for the distribution of funds authorized by this part

5 to eligible institutions and eligible students. To the extent

6 that the distribution process would be simpler and would

7 improve program accountability, the process shall be simi-

8 lar to the procedure under paragraphs (1) and (2) of sec-

9 tion 411(a).

10 "SEC. 454. AMOUNT AND TERMS OF LOANS.

11 "(a) ELIGIBLE AMOUNTS.

12 "(1) ANNUAL LIMITS.Any individual who is

13 determined by an eligible institution to be an eligible

14 student for any academic year shall be eligible to re-

15 ceive an IDEA loan for such academic year in an

16 amount which is not less than $500 or when com-

17 bined with other Federal student assistance received

18 by the student is not more than the cost of attend-

19 ance at such institution for the academie year 1991

20 1992, determined in accordance with section 472.

21 Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the amount

22 of such loan shall not exceed-

23 "(A) $6,500 in the case of any eligible stu-

24 dent who has not completed the second year of

25 undergraduate study;

0S 1845 IS
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1 "(B) $8,000 in the case of any eligible stu-
2 dent who has completed such second year but
3 who has not completed such student's course of
4 undergraduate study;

5 "(0) $20,000 in the case of any eligible
6 student who is enrolled in a medical or other
7 high-cost doctoral degree program as deter-
8 mined by the Secretary;

9 "(D) $30,000 in the case of any eligible
10 student who is enrolled in an extraordinarily
11 high-cost graduate degree program as deter-
12 mined by the Secretary; or

13 "(E) $11,000 in the case of an eligible stu-
14 dent who is enrolled in any other graduate de-
15 gree program.

16 "(2) LIMITATION ON BORROWING CAPACITY.-
17 No individual may receive any amount in an addi-
18 tional IDEA loan if the sum of the original principal
19 amounts of all IDEA loans to such individual (in-
20 eluding the pending additional loan) would equal or
21 exceed-

22 "(A) $70,000, minus

23 "(B) the product of

S 1845 18
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1 "(i) the number of years by which the

2 borrower's age (as of the close of the pre-

3 ceding calendar year) exceeds 40; and

4 "(ii) one-twentieth of the amount

5 specified in subparagraph (A), as adjusted

6 pursuant to paragraph (3).

7 "(3) EXCEPTIONS TO BORROWING CAPACITY

8 LIMITS FOR CERTAIN GRADUATE STUDENTS.For a

9 student who is-

10 "(A) a student described in paragraph

11 (1)(C), paragraph (2) shall be applied by sub-

12 stituting "$100,000" for "$70,000"; or

13 "(B) a student described in paragraph

14 (1)(D), paragraph (2) shall be applied by sub-

15 stituting "$120,000" for "$70,000".

16 "(4) COMPUTATION OF OUTSTANDING LOAN 013-

17 LIGATIONS.For the purposes of this subsection,

18 any loan obligations of an individual under student

19 loan programs under this title or title VII of the

20 Public IIealth Service Act shall be counted toward

21 IDEA loan annual and aggregate borrowing capacity

22 limits. For purposes of annual and aggregate loan

23 limits under any such student loan program, IDEA

24 loans shall In counted as loans under such student

25 loan program.

8 1845 IS 2 7,1
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1 "(5) ADJUSTMENTS OF ANNUAL LIMITS FOR

2 LESS THAN FULL-TIME STUDENTS.For any eligible

3 student who is enrolled on a less than full-time
4 basis, loan amounts for which such student shall be
5 eligible for any academic year under this subsection
6 shall be reduced in accordance with regulations pre-
7 scribed by the Secretary.

8 "(b) DURATION OF ELIGIBILITY.An eligible stu-

9 dent shall not be eligible to receive an IDEA loan for more

10 than a total of the full-time equivalent of 9 academic

11 years, of which not more than the full-time equivalent of
12 5 academie years shall be as an undergraduate student
13 and not more than the full-time equivalent of 5 academic

14 years shall be as a graduate student.

15 "(c) TERMS OF LOANS.Each eligible student apply-
16 ing for a loan under this title shall sign a written agree-
17 ment which-

18 "(1) is made without security and without en-
19 dorsement, except that if the borrower is a minor
20 and such note or other written agreement executed

21 by such student would not, under the applicable law,

22 create a binding obligation, endorsement may be re-
23 quired;

24 "(2) provides that such student will repay the
25 principal amount of the loan and any interest or ad-
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1 ditional charges thereon in accordance with section

2 459;

3 "(3) provides that the interest on the loan will

4 accrue in accordance with section 456;

5 "(4) certifies that the student has received and

6 read a notice of the student's obligations and re-

7 sponsibilities under the loan, including the statement

8 described in section 452(a)(4); and

9 "(5) contains such additional terms and condi-

10 tions as the Secretary may prescribe by regulation.

11 "SEC. 455. APPLICATION.

12 "Each eligible student desiring an IDEA loan shall

13 submit an application to the eligible institution which such

14 student plans to attend. Each such application shall con-

15 tain sufficient information to enable such institution to de-

16 termine such student's eligibility to receive an IDEA loan.

17 "SEC. 456. INTEREST CHARGES.

18 "Interest charges on IDEA loans made shall be

19 added to the recipient's obligation account at the end of

20 each calendar year. Such interest charges shall be based

21 upon an interest rate equal to the lesser of-

22 "(1) the sum of the average bond equivalent

23 rates of 91-day Treasury bills auctioned during that

24 calendar year, plus 2 percentage points, rounded to

25 the next higher one-eighth of 1 percent; or

*8 1845 IS
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1 "(2) 10 percent.

2 "SEC. 457. CONVERSION AND CONSOLIDATION OF OTHER
3 LAANS.

4 "(a) IN GENERAL.The Secretary may, upon re-
5 quest of a borrower who has received a federally insured
6 or guaranteed loan under this title or under title VII of
'7 the Public Health Service Act, make a loan to such bor-
8 rower in an amount equal to the sum of the unpaid prin-
9 cipal on loans made under this title or title VII of the

10 Public Health Service Act. The proceeds of the new loan
11 shall be used to discharge the liability on loans made
12 under this title or title VII of the Public Health Service
13 Act. Except as provided in subsection (b), any loan made
14 under this subsection shall be made on the same terms
15 and conditions as any other loan under this part and shall
16 be considered a new IDEA loan for purposes of this part.
17 "(b) CONVERSION REGULATIONS.The Secretary
18 shall prescribe regulations concerning the methods and
19 calculations required for conversion to IDEA loans under
20 subsection (a). Such regulations shall provide appropriate
21 adjustments in the determination of the principal and in-
22 terest owed on the IDEA loan in order to.
23 "(1) secure payments to the Federal Govern-
24 ment commensurate with the amounts the Federal

eS 1846 IS
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1 Government would have received had the original

2 loans been IDEA loans;

3 "(2) fairly credit the borrower for principal and

4 interest payments made on such original loans and

5 for origination fees deducted from such original

6 loans; and

7 "(3) prevent borrowers from evading their obli-

8 gations or otherwise taking unfair advantage of the

9 conversion option provided under this section.

10 "(c) MANDATORY CONVERSION OF DEFAULTED

11 LOANS.--Any loan which is-

12 "(1) made, insured, or guaranteed under part

13 B of this title or title VII of the Public Health Serv-

14 ice Act after the date of enactment of this Act; and

15 "(2) assigned to the Secretary or the Secretary

16 of Health and Human Services for collection after a

17 default by the borrower in repayment of such loan,

18 shall, in accordance with regulations prescribed by the

19 Secretary and the Secretary of Health and Human Serv-

20 ices, be treated for purposes of collection as if such loan

21 had been converted to an IDEA loaa under subsections

22 (a) and (b) of this section.

23 "SEC. 458. STUDY; REPORT; AND UPDATING

24 "(a) STUDY,The Secretary shall conduct a study

25 of the effects of-

S 1845 IS 3
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1 "(1) the loan program assisted under this part
2 on-
3 "(A) the tuition rates of eligible institu-
4 tions participating in such program; and
5 "(B) the accrediting and licensure stand-
6 ards of such institutions; and
7 "(2) inflation on-
8 "(A) the loan limits described in section
9 454;

10 "(B) the progressivity factor described in
11 section 459(b)(3); and

12 "(C) the cost of attendance at an eligible
13 institution.

14 "(b) REPORT.

15 "(1) IN GENERAL.The Secretary shall pre-
16 pare and submit a report to Congress, including rec-
17 ommendations, on the results of the study conducted
18 pursuant to subsection (a).

19 "(2) DATE.The report described in paragraph
20 (1) shall be submitted on or before December 31,
21 1995.

22 "(c) UPDATING.For any academic year after aca-
23 demic year 1996-1997, the Secretary is authorized after
24 consultation with the appropriate Congressional commit-
25 tees, to make adjustments to increase

uS 1845 18
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1 "(1) the loan limits described in section 454;

2 "(2) the adjusted cTross income levels used to

3 determine the progress,vity factor described in sec-

4 tion 459(b)(3'; and

5 "(3) the cost of attendance determination de-

6 scribed in section 454(a)(1),

7 "SEC. 459. COLLECTION OF INCOME-DEPENDENT EDU-

8 CATION ASSISTANCE LOANS.

9 "(a) NOTICE TO BORROWER.

10 "(1) IN GENERALDuring January of each

11 calendar year, the Secretary shall furnish to each

12 borrower of an IDEA loan notice as to-

13 "(A) whether the records of the Secretary

14 indicate that such borrower is in repayment sta-

15 tus;

16 "(B) the maximum account balance of

17 such borrower;

18 "(C) the account balance of such borrower

19 as of the close of the preceding calendar year;

20 and

21 "(D) the procedure for computing the

22 amount of repayment owing for the taxable year

23 bvinning in the preceding calendar year,

24 "(2) FoRM, ETC.The notice described in

25 paragraph (1) shall be in such furm as the Secretary

*8 1845 lb
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1 may by regulation prescribe and shall be sent by

2 mail to the individual's last known address or shall

3 be left at the dwelling or usual place of business of

4 such individual,

5 "(b) COMPUTATION OF ANNUAL REPAYMENT

6 AMOUNT.-

7 "(1) IN GENERAL.-(A) The annual amount
8 payable under this section by the taxpayer for any
9 taxable year shall be the lesser of-

10 "(i) the product of-

11 "(I) the base amortization amount,

12 and

13 "(II) the progressivity factor for the
14 taxpayer for such taxable year, or

15 "(ii) 20 percent of the excess of-
16 "(1) the modified .adjusted gross in-
17 come of the taxpayer for such taxable year,

18 over

19 "(11) the sum of the standard deduc-

20 tion and any exemption amount applicable

21 to such taxpayer's income tax return for
22 the taxable year.

23 "(B) For purposes of subparagraph (A)(ii)(II)
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1 "(i) the term 'standard deduction' has the

2 meaning given such term by section 63(c) of

3 the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; and

4 "(ii) the term 'exemption amount' has the

5 meaning given such term by section 151(d) of

6 such Code.

7 "(2) BASE AMORTIZATION AMOUNT.

8 "(A) IN GENERALFor purposes of this

9 section, the term 'base amortization amount'

10 means the amount which, if paid at the close of

11 each year for a period of 17 conseeutive years,

12 would fully repay (with interest) at the close of

13 such period the maximum account balance of

14 the borrower. For purposes of the preceding

15 sentence, an 8-pereent amival rate of interest

16 shall be assumed.

17 "(B) JOINT RETURNS.ln the ease of a

joint return where each spouse has an account

19 balance and is in repayment status, the amount

20 determined under subparagraph (A) shall be

21 the sum of the base amortization amount.! of

22 ea el spouse.

23 "( 3 ) PROGRESSIVITY FACTOR.

24 "(A) IN UENFAUL.For purposes of this

25 scetion, the term 'progressivity factor' means
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1 the number determined under tables prescribed

2 by the Secretary which is based on the following

3 tables for the circumstances specified:

4 "(1) JOINT RETURNS; SURVIVING

5 SPOUSES.In the case of a taxpayer to
6 whom section 1(a) of the Internal Revenue

7 Code of 1986 applies

"If the taxpayer's modified The progressivity
adjusted gross income is: factor is:

Not over $7,860 0.429
11,700 0.500
15,740 0.571
21,720 0.643
26,880 0.786
32,700 0.893
39,060 1.000
48,600 1.000
63,480 1.152
87,360 1.272
117,000 1.364
163,080 1.485
240,000 and over 2.000.

8

9

10

11

S 1845 18

"(ii) HEADS OF HOUSEHOLDS.----In

the case of a taxpayer to whom section

1(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986

applies
"If the taxpayer's modified The progressivity

adjusted gross income is: factor is:
Not over $6,540 0.429
10,320 0.500
12,300 0.607
16,080 0.643
19,920 0.714
25,020 0.857
31,380 1 000
37,740 1.000
47,280 1 094
63,180 1.313
85.440 1.406
114,060 1 500
204,000 and Over 2 000 .



269

23

1 "(iii) UNmARRIED INDIvIDUALS,

2 ETC.in the case of a taxpayer to Nvhorn

3 section 1(c) of the Internal Revenue Code

4 of 1986 applies
"If the taxpayer's modified The progressivity

adjusted gross income is: factor is:
Not over $6,540 0.467
9,000 0.500
11,580 0.533
14,220 0 GOO

16,740
19,920

0.0766677

25,020 0.867
31,380 1.000
37,740 1.000
45,360 1.118
58,080 1.235
82,260 1.412
94,320 1.500
168,000 and over 2.000

5 "(iV) MARRIED INDIVIDUALS PILING

6 SEPARATE RETURNS.In the ease of a
7 taxpayer to whom section 1(d) of the In-

8 ternal Revenue Code of 1986 applies

"If the taxpayer's .nodified The progressivity
adjusted gross income is: factor it

Not over $3,930
. .

0.483
5,850 0 552
8,370 ,, ,,, 0.655
10,860 0.759
13,440 0.862
16,350 1.000
19,530 1.000
24,300 1.182
31,740 1.333
43,680 1 485
84,000 and over 2.000.

9

10

11
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scribed by the Seeretary wider subparagraph
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1 to the nearest 1/1,000) in the progressivity fac-
/ tors between the amounts of modified adjusted
3 gross income contained in the tables.

4 "(4) MODIFIED ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME.

5 For purposes of this subsection, the term 'modified

6 adjusted gross income' means adjusted gross income

for the taxable year, modified as the Secretary deter-

8 mines is necessary to carry out the purposes of' this
9 part.

10 "(e) TERIVIINATION OF BORROWER'S REPAYMENT

11 OBLIGATION.

12 "(1) IN GENERALThe repayment obligation
13 of' a borrower of an IDEA loan shall terminate only

14 if there is repaid with respect to such loan an
15 amount equal to the principal amount of the loan
16 plus interest computed at the rates applicable to the
17 loan.

18 ''(2) No REPAYMENT REQUIRED AFTER 25

19 YEARS IN REPAYMENT STATUS.No amount shall lw
20 required to be repaid under this section with respect

21 to any loan for any taxable year after the 25th year
22 for which the borrower is in repayment status with
23 respect to such loan.

24 "(3) DETERMINATION OF YEARS IN REPAY-

MENT STATUS.--For purposes of paragraphs (1)(A)

*8 1845 18



271

25

1 and (2), the number of years in which a borrower
2 is in repayment status with respect to any IDEA
3 loan shall be determined without regard to any year
4 before the most recent year in which the borrower
5 received an IDEA loan.

6 "(d) DEPINITIONS.For purposes of this section-
7 "(1) MAXIMUM ACCOUNT BALANCE.The term
8 'maximum account balance' means the highest
9 amount (as of the close of any calendar year) of un-

10 paid principal and unpaid accrued interest on all
11 IDEA loan obligations of a borrower.

12 "(2) CURRENT ACCOUNT BALANCE.The term
13 'current account balance' means the amount (as of
14 the close of a calendar year) of unpaid principal and
15 unpaid accrued interest on all IDEA loans of a
16 rower.

17 "(3) REPAYMENT STATUS.A borrower is in
18 repayment status for any taxable year unless-
19 "(A) such borrower was, during it least 7
20 months of such year, an eligible student; or
21 "(B) such taxable year was the first year
22 in which the borrower was such an eligible stu-
23 dent and the borrower was such an eligible stu-
24 dent during the last 3 months of such taxable
25 year.
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1 "(e) LOANS OF DECEASED AND PERMANENTLY DIS-

2 ABLED BORROWERS; DISCHARGE BY SECRETARY.

3 "(1) DISCHARGE IN THE EVENT OF DEATH.

4 If a borrower of an IDEA loan dies or becomes per-

5 manently and totally disabled (as determined in ac-

6 cordance with regulations of the Secretary), then the

7 SeerAary shall discharge the borrower's liability on

8 the loan.

9 "(2) LIMITATION ON DISCHARGE.The dis-

10 charge of the liability of an individual under this

11 subsection shall not discharge the liability of any

12 spouse with respect to any IDEA loan made to such

13 spouse.

14 "(f) CRE DITING OF COLLECTIONS; SPECIAL

15 Rums.
16 "(1) CREDITING OF AMOUNTS PAID ON A JOINT

17 RETURN.Amounts collected under this section on a

18 joint return from a husband and wife both of whom

19 arc in repayment status shall be credited to the ae-

20 counts of such spouses in the following order:

21 "(A) First to repayment of interest added

22 to each account at the end of the preceding cal-

23 endar year in proportion to the interest so

24 added to the respective accounts of the spouses.
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1 "(B) Then to repayment of unpaid Kin-

2 cipa1, and unpaid interest accrued before such

3 preceding calendar year, in proportion to the re-

4 spective maximum account balances of the

5 spouses.

6 "(2) COMPUTATION OF ALTERNATIVE ANNUAL

7 PAYMENT FOR INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE ATTAINED

8 AGE 55.In the case of an individual who attains

9 age 55 before the close of the calendar year ending

10 in the taxable year, or of an individual filing a joint

11 return whose spouse attains age 55 before the close

12 of such calendar year, the progressivity factor appli-

13 cable to the base amortization amount of such indi-

14 vidual for such taxable year shall not be less than

15 1.0.

16 "(3) RULES RELATING TO BANKRUPTCY.

17 "(A) IN GENERALAn IDEA loan shall

18 not be dischargeable in a case under title 11 of

19 the United States Code.

20 "(B) CERTAIN AMOUNTS MAY BE POST-

21 PONED.If any individual receives a discharge

22 in a case under title 11 of the United States

23 Code, the Secretary may postpone any amount

24 of the portion of the liability of such individual

25 on any IDEA loan which is attributable to

013 1845 IS
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1 amounts required to be paid on such loan for

2 periods preceding the date of such discharge.

3 "(4) PAYMENTS IN EXCESS OF AMOUNT PAY-

4 ABLE.Nothing in this part shall be interpreted to

5 prohibit a borrower from paying an amount in ex-
6 eess of the amount requird to be repaid under this

7 part.".

8 (b) APPLICATION 010 ESTIMATED TAX.Subseetion
9 (f) of section 6654 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986

10 (relating to failure by individual to pay estimated income

11 tax) is amended by-

12 (1) striking "minus" at the end of paragraph
13 (2) and inserting "plus";

14 (2) redesignating paragraph (3) as paragraph
15 (4); and

16 (3) inserting after paragraph (2) the following

17 new paragraph:

18 "(3) the amount required to be repaid limier

19 section 6306 (relating to collection of ineome-de-

20 pendent educatior assistance loans), minus".

21 (e) PILING REQUIREMENT.Subseetion (a) of see-

22 tim 6012 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (relating

23 to persons required to make returns of income) is amend-

24 ed by inserting after paragraph (9) the following new

25 paragraph:

S 1845 IS
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1 "(10) Every individual required to make a pay-

2 ment for the taxable year under section 6306 (relat-

3 ing to collection of income-dependent education as-

4 sistance loans).".

5 (d) CLERICAL AMENDMENT.The table of sections

6 for subchapter A of chapter 64 of such Code is amended

7 by adding at the end thereof the following new item:

"See. 6306. Collection of income-dependent education assistance
loans.".

8 SEC. 202. REPAYMENTS USING INCOME TAX COLLECTION

9 SYSTEM.

10 (a) Subchapter A of chapter 64 of the Internal Reve-

1 1 nue Code of 1986 (relating to collection) is amended by

12 adding at the end the following new section:

13 "SEC. 6306. COLLECTION OF INCOME-DEPENDENT EDU-

14 CATION ASSISTANCE LOANS.

15 "The Secretary of the Treasury shall enter into an

16 agreement with the Secretary of Education to provide for

17 the collection of payments due pursuant to part D of title

18 IV of the Higher Edueation Act of 1965. The Secretary

19 shall assess and collect such payments in the same man-

20 ner, with the same powers, and subject to the same limita-

21 tions applicable to a tax imposed by subtitle C the collec-

22 Lion of which would be jeopardized by delay.".
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1 TITLE III-EARLY
2 INTERVENTION PROGRAM
3 SEC. 301. STATE DREAM FUNDS.

4 Subpart 3 of part A of title IV of the Higher Edu-

5 cation Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1070c et seq.) is amended

6 by adding at the end thereof the following new section:

7 "SEC. 415F. EARLY INTERVENTION PROGRAM.

8 "(a) FINDINGS AND PURPOSE.

9 "(1) FINDINGS.The Congress finds that at-

10 risk students who do not receive some form of inter-

11 vention early in their educational careers (in most

12 cases by junior high school) are more likely to drop

13 out of school and not pursue gainful educational or

14 employment opportunities as adults.

15 "(2) STATEMENT OP PURPOSE.It is the pur-

16 pose of this section to make incentive grants to

17 States to enable States to conduct early intervention

18 programs that-

19 "(A) raise the awareness of eligible stu-

20 dents about the advantages of obtaining a post-

21 secondary education; and

22 "(B) prepare students for postsecondary

23 education; and

24 "(C) qualify students for scholarship as-

25 .sistance pursuant to subpart 9.

.8 1845 I S
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1 "(b) EARLY INTERVENTION PROGRAM ESTAB-

2 LISHED.

3 "(1) PROGRAM ESTABLISHED.The Secretary

4 shall make payments to States in accordance with

5 paragraph (2).

6 "(2) AMOUNT OF PAYMENTS.Except as pro-

7 vided in paragraph 3, for any fiscal year, the Sec-

8 retary shall pay to each State an amount which

9 bears the same ratio to $100,000,000 as the number

10 of eligible students in such State bears to the total

11 number of eligible students in all the States.

12 "(3) ENTITLEMENT.Except as provided in

13 paragraph 5, each State shall be entitled to receive

14 the payment described in paragraph (2) in each fis-

15 cal year. Each State shall be deemed to have a con-

16 tractual right against the United States to receive a

17 payment in accordance with the provisions of this

18 part.

19 "(4) REALLOTMENT.If in any fiscal year the

20 Secretary determines that any amount of a State's

21 payment under paragraph (2) or (3) will not be re-

22 quired for such fiscal year for early intervention pro-

23 grams of that State or will be available as a result

24 of the State's failure to comply with subsection (c),

25 then such amount shall be available to make pay-
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1 ments from time to time, on such dates during such
2 year as the Secretary may fix, to oth, - States in
3 proportion to the original payment to such States
4 under such paragraphs for such year, but with such
5 proportionate amount for any of such States being
6 reduced to the extent it exceeds the sum the See-
7 retary estimates such State needs and will be able
8 to use such year for carrying out the State plan.
9 The total of such reductions shall be similarly paid

10 among the States whose proportionate amounts were
11 not so reduced. Any amount paid to a State under
12 this paragraph shall be deemed part of its payment
13 under paragraph (3).

14 "(5) PAYMENT SUBJECT TO CONTINUING Com-

15 PLIANCE.The Secretary shall make payments for
16 early intervention programs only to States which
17 continue to meet the requirements of subsection (c).

"(6) DEFINITIONS.For the purpose of this
19 section-

20 "(A) the term 'eligible institution' has the
21 same meaning provided such term in section
22 435(a); and

23 "(B) the term 'eligible student' means a
24 student eligible

eS 1845 IS
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1 "(i) to be counted under section

2 1005(c) of the Elementary and Secondary

3 Education Act of 1965;

4 "(ii) for assistance pursuant to the

5 National School Lunch Act; or

6 "(iii) for assistance pursuant to part

7 A of title IV of the Social Security Act

8 (Aid to Families with Dependent Chil-

9 dren).

10 "(c) USE OF PAYMENTS.-

11 "(1) IN GENERAL-A State shall use payments

12 received under this section to conduct an early inter-

13 vention program that-

14 "(A) provides eligible students in any of

15 the grades pre-school through 12 with a con-

16 tinuing system of mentoring and advising

17 that-
18 "(i) is coordinated with the Federal

19 and State community service initiatives;

20 "(ii) may include such support serv-

21 ices as after school and summer tutoring,

22 assistance in obtaining summer jobs, and

23 academic counseling; and

24 "(iii) may be provided by service pro-

25 viders such as conununity-based orgmiza-
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1 tions, schools, eligible institutions, and

2 pubiic and private agencies, particularly in-

3 stitutions and agencies sponsoring pro-

4 grams authorized under subpart 4;

5 "(B) requires each student to enter into an

6 agreement with the State under which the stu-

7 dent agrees to achieve certain academic mile-

8 stones, such as completing a prescribed set of
9 courses and maintaining satisfactory academic

10 progress as described in section 484(c), in ex-

11 change for receiving a scholarship pursuant to
12 subpart 9;

13 "(C) contains an incentive system to en-
14 courage greater collaboration between elemen-

15 tary and secondary schools and institutions of
16 higher education through the creation of new
17 linkage structures and programs; and

18 "(D) contains an evaluation component
19 that allows service providers to track eligible
20 student progress during the period such stu-
21 dents are participating in the program assisted
22 under this section.

23 "(2) EVALUATION STANDARDS.The Secretary
24 shall prescribe standards for the evaluation de-
25 scribed in paragraph (1)(E). Such standards shall-
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1 "(A) provide for input from States and

2 service pr:viders; and

3 "(B) ensure that data protocols and proce-

4 dures are consistent and uniform.

5 "(d) STATE PLAN.

6 "(1) IN GENERAL.Etteh State desiring a pay-

7 ment under this section shall submit a State plan to

8 the Secretary at such time, in such manner, and ac-

9 companied by such information as the Secretary may

10 reasonably require.

11 "(2) CONTENTS.Eaeh State plan submitted

12 pursuant to paragraph (1/ shall-

13 "(A) describe tho activities for which as-

14 sistance under this section is sought;

15 "(B) contain assurances that the State will

16 provide matching funds to help pay the cost of

17 activities assisted under this part in an amount

18 equal to the Federal payment received under

19 this part; and

20 "(C) provide such additional assurances as

21 the Secretary determines necessary to ensure
22 compliance with the requirements of this sec-

23 tion.

24 "(3) APPROVAL.The Secretary shall approve

25 a State plan submitted pursuant to paragraph (1)
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1 within 6 months of receipt of the plan unless the
2 plan fails to comply with the provisions of this sec-

3 tion.

4 "(e) EVALUATION AND REFORT.

5 "(1) EVALUATION.Each State receiving a
6 payment under this section shall annually evaluate

7 the early intervention program assisted under this
8 section in accordance with the standards described

9 in subsection (c)(3) and shall submit to the Sec-
10 retary a copy of such evaluation.

11 "(2) REPORT.The Secretary shall annually

12 report to the Congress on the activities assisted
13 under this section and the evaluations conducted

14 pursuant to paragraph (1).".

15 SEC. 302. CONFORMING AMENDMENT.

16 Section 415A(a) of the Higher Education Act of

17 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1070c(a)) is amended by adding the fol-

18 lowing new sentence at the end thereof: "It is also the

19 purpose of this part to make payments to States to enable

20 States to conduct early intervention programs described

21 in section 415F.".
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1 TITLE 1V-GUARANTEED
2 STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS
3 SEC. 401. TERMLNATION OF ALL LOAN PROGRAMS EXCEPF

4 THE PLUS LOAN PROGRAM.

5 (a) STAFFORD LOANS, SUPPLEMENTAL LOANS AND

6 PLUS LOANS.Notwithstanding any other provision of

7 law, no new loans shall be made, insured or guaranteed

8 pursuant to part B of title IV of the Higher Education

9 Act of 1965 after June 30, 1994, except loans made, in-

10 sured or guaranteed pursuant to section 428B of such Act.

11 (b) ADMINISTRATION.The provisions of this section

12 shall not affect the administration of the loans described

13 in subsections (a) and (b) made on or before June 30,

14 1994.

0
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102n CONGRESS

1-1..R. 30501ST SESSION

To amend the Higher Education Act of 1965 to estolish a higher education
loan program in which the amount of a stAent's loan repayment is
contingent upon suvh student's invonw. and for other purposes.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
JULY `25. 1991

Mr. MILLER of California (for himself. Mr. MCDERMOTT, and Mr. GEJDEN.
soN) introduced the following hill; which was referred jointly to the Com-
mittees on Education and Labor and Ways and Means

A BILL
To amend the Highcr Education Act of 1965 to establish

a higlwr education loan proxrain in which the amount
of a student's loan repayment is contingent upon such
student's inconw, and for other purposes.

1 Be it enacted by t;;e Senate and House of Representu-

2 tires of the United States ofAmerica in Congress assembled,

3 SECTION 1. PROGRAM ESTABLISHED.

4 The Higher Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.c. 1001
5 et seq.) k amended by inserting at the end thereof the
6 follow;1.- new title:
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1 "TITLE XVI-SELF-RELIANCE
2 SCHOLARSHIPS
3 "SEC. 1601. SHORT TITLE.

4 "This title may be cited as the 'Self-Reliance Scholar-

5 ship Act of 1991'.

6 "SEC. 1602. PURPOSE.

7 "It is the purpose of this title to create a self-reliance

8 scholarship program to assist students in financing their

9 undergraduate and graduate education.

10 "SEC. 1603. PROGRAM AUMORIZED.

11 "(a) LOAN PROGRAM ESTABLISHED.

12 "(1) PROGRAM ESTABLISHED.The Director

13 shall carry out a program of making loans to eligible

14 students in accordance with the provisions of this

15 title.

16 -(2) ENTITLEMENT.The Director shall make

17 loans in accordance with the provisions of this title

18 to each eligible student who qualifies for a loan

19 under this title in an amount determined in accord-

20 ance with section 1605(a).

21 "(3) CONTRACT AUTHORITY.The Director

22 may enter into a contract for the conduct of the pro-

23 gram, or any portion of the program, assisted under

24 this title.
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1 "(b) PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS.The program de-

2 scribed in subsection (a) shall-

3 "(1) require a student who receives a loan
4 under this title to use such loan to attend an eligible

5 institution;

6 "(2) require each eligible institution that re-
7 ceives funds under this title to-
8 "(A) submit to the Director, at such time
9 and in such form as the Director may require

10 by regulation, a list of loan applicants and the
11 amounts for which such applicants are qualified

12 under section 1605; and

13 "(B) promptly notify the Director, on re-
14 quest, of any change in enrollment status of
15 any recipient of a loan under this title; and

16 "(3) require the Director-

17 "(A) to establish an account for each re-
18 cipient of a loan under this title by name and
19 taxpayer identification number; and

20 "(B) provide for the increase in the total
21 amount stated for each such account by any
22 amounts subsequently loaned to such recipient.

ifit 3050 IH
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1 "SEC. 1604. INSTITUTIONAL AGREEMENTS.

2 "(a) TERMS OF AGREEMENT.In order to qualify its

3 students for loans under this title, an eligible institution

4 shall enter into an agreement with the Director which-

5 "(1) provides that the institution shall collect

6 applications for loans under this title from its stu-

7 dents that are in such form and contain, or are ac-

8 companied by, sueh information as the Director may

9 require by regulation;

10 "(2) contains assurances that the institution

11 shall, on the basis of such applications, provide to

12 the Director the information required by section

13 1503(b)(2) and shall certify to the Director that

14 each loan amount in a given year does not exceed

15 the student's cost of attendance at such institution;

16 "(3) provides that the institution shall provide

17 to each student applying for a loan under this title

18 a notice provided by the Director of the student's

19 obligations and responsibilities under the loan;

20 "(4) provides that, if a student withdraws after

21 receiving a loan under this title and is owed a

22 refund-

23 "(A) the institution shall pay to the Direc-

24 tor for deposit into the Education Trust Fund

25 a portion of such refund, in accordance with

26 regulations prescribed by the Director to ensure

HR 3050 IH
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1 receipt of an amount which bears the same

2 ratio to such refund as such loan bore to the
3 cost of attendance of such student; and

4 "(B) the Director shall credit the amount

5 of such refund to the student's account;

6 "(5) contains assurances that the institution
7 shall comply with the reporting requirements de-

8 scribed in subsection (c); and

9 "(6) contains such additional terms and condi-

10 tions as the Director and the Secretary of the Treas-

11 ury prescribe by regulation to protect the fiscal in-

12 terest of the United States and to ensure effective

13 administration of the program established under this

14 title.

15 "(b) ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.The Secre-

16 tary may, after notice and opportunity for a hearing to

17 the institution concerned, suspend or revoke, in whole or

18 in part, the agreement of any eligible institution if the Di-

19 rector finds that such institution has failed to comply with

20 this title or any regulation prescribed under this title or

21 has failed to comply with any term or condition of the

22 agreement described in subsection (a). No funds shall

23 loaned under this title to any student at any eligible insu-

24 tution while the agreement of such institution is suspend-

25 ed or revoked, and the Director may institute proceedings

R 3050 1H
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1 to recover any funds held by such institution. The Director

2 shall have the same authority with respect to functions

3 under this title as the Secretary has with respect to his

4 functions under part B of title IV of this Act.

5 "(c) REPORTS.

6 "(1) CERTAIN ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONS.Each

7 eligible institution entering into an agreement pursu-

8 ant to subsection (a) that experiences a percentage

9 increase in the cost of attendance at such institution

10 which exceeds by a significant amount, as deter-

11 mined by the Secretary, the increase in the higher

12 education price index, as developed by the Secretary,

13 shall report to the Director on the increase in the

14 cost of attendance at such institution, including a

15 justification for such increase.

16 "(2) DIRECTOR.(A) The Director, using the

17 information received pursuant to paragraph (1),

18 shall report to Congress on-

19 "(i) the reasons for excessive increases in

20 the cost of attendance at eligible institutions;

21 and

22 "(ii) whether suci, information should be

23 used as a basis on which to suspend or revoke,

24 in whole or in part, the agreement of an eligible

25 institution.
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1 "(B) The report described in subparagraph (A)

2 shall be submitted to the Congress within 2 years of

3 the date of enactment of this title.

4 "SEC. 1605. AMOUNT AND TERMS OF LOAN.

5 "(a) ELIGIBLE AMOUNTS.

6 "(1) ANNUAL LIMITS.Any individual desiring

7 a loan under this title who is determined by an eligi-

8 ble institution to be an eligible student for any aea-

9 demic year shall receive a loan for such academie

10 year in an amount which shall not exceed the lesser

11 of-
12 "(A) $10,000, or

13 "(B) the greater of-

14 "(i) the cost of attendance at sueh in-

15 stitution, or

16 "(ii) $500.

17 "(2) LIMITATION ON BORROWING CAPACITY.

18 No individual may receive any amount in an addi-

19 tional loan under this title if the sum of the original

20 principal amounts of all loans under this title to
21 such individual (including the pending additional

22 loan under this title) would exceed $33,000.

23 "(3) ADJUSTMENT OF LIMITS FOR INFLA-

24 TION.Each of the dollar amounts specified in
25 paragraphs (1) and (2) shall be adjusted for any

011R 3050 IH
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1 academic year beginning after calendar year 1992 by

2 the cost-of-living a4justment for the calendar year

3 immediately preceding such academic year deter-

4 mined under section 1(f)(3) of the Internal Revenue

5 Code of 1986 by substituting '1991' for '1989'.

6 "(4) ADJUSTMENTS OF ANNUAL LIMITS FOR

7 LESS THAN FULL-TIME STUDENTS.For any eligible

8 student who is enrolled on a less than full-time

9 basis, loan amounts to which such student is entitled

10 for any academic year under this subsection shall

11 equal the cost of attendance at the eligible institu-

12 tion reduced in accordance with regulations pre-

13 scribed by the Director.

14 "(b) TERMS OF LOANS.Each eligible student apply-

15 ing for a loan under this title shall sign a written agree-

16 ment which-

17 "(1) is made without security and without en-

18 dorsement, except that if the borrower is a minor

19 and such note or other written agreement executed

20 by him would not, under the applicable law, create

21 a binding obligation, endorsement may be required;

22 "(2) provides that such student shall repay

23 such loan in accordance with the repayment provi-

24 sions described in section 1607;
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1 "(3) certifies that the student has received and
2 read the notice required by section 1604(a)(3); and
3 "(4) contains such additional terms and condi-
4 tions as the Director may prescribe by regulation.

5 "(e) DISBURSEMENT OF PROCEEDS OF LOANS.--The

6 Director shall, by regulation, provide for the distribution

7 of loans to eligible students and for the appropriate notifi-

8 cation of eligible institutions of the amounts of loans
9 which are approved for any eligible student, and for the

10 allocation of the proceeds of such loan by semester or

11 other portion of an academic year. The Director shall dis-

12 tribute the proceeds of loans under this title by disbursing
13 to the eligible institution a check or other instrument that

14 is payable to and requires the endorsement or other certifi-

15 cation by the student. Such proceeds shall be credited to

16 any obligations of the eligible student to the eligible insti-

17 tution related to the cost of attendance at such institution,

18 with any excess being paid to the student.

19 "(d) CONSIDERATION OF OTHER STUDENT ASSIST-

20 ANcE.The amount of any loan received under this title
21 shall not be taken into consideration in determining stu-

22 dent elitribility for assistance pursuant to any other pro-

23 gram assisted under this Act.

lilt ;3050 I1-1-2
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1 "SEC. 1606. TRUST FUND.

2 "(a) ESTABLISHMENT.There is established in the

3 Treasury of the United States a trust fund, tx) be known

4 as the Education Trust Fund (hereafter in this section

5 referred to as the 'Trust Fund'), consisting of such

6 amounts as are transferred to the Trust Fund under sub-

7 seetion (b)(1) of this section, such amounts as are received

8 pursuant to the issuance of obligations pursuant to sub-

9 section (d), and any interest earned on investment of

10 amounts in the Trust Fund under subsection (c)(3) of this

11 section,

12 "(b) TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS.

13 "(1) IN GENERALSubject to the limitation in

14 paragraph (2)

15 "(A) the Secretary of the Treasury shall

16 transfer to the Trust Fund amounts equivalent

17 to taxes received in the Treasury under sections

18 59B. 59C, and 59D of the Internal Revenue

19 Code of 1986, and

20 "(B) the Director shall transfer to the

21 Trust Fund refunds received pursuant to see-

22 tion 1604(a)(4).

23 "(2) TRANSFERS BASED ON ESTIMATES.The

24 moulds required to he trans Ferred to the Trust
25 niml under paragraph (1)(A) shall be transferred at

26 least quarterly from the general fund of the Treas-

14 ;mu III
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1 ury to the Trust Fund on the basis of estimates
2 made by the Secretary of the Treasury. Proper ad-
3 justment shall be made in amounts subsequently
4 transferred to the extent prior estimates were in ex-

5 eess of or less than the amounts required to be
6 transferred.

7 "(c) INVESTMENT OF TRUST FUND.-
8 "(I) IN GENERAL.-It shall be the duty of the
9 Secretary of the Treasury to invest such portion of

10 the Trust Fund as is not, in the Director's judg-
11 ment, required to meet current withdrawals. Such
12 investments may be made only in interest-bearing
13 obligations of the United States or in obligations
14 guaranteed as to both principal and interest by the
15 United States. For ;uch purpose, such obligations
16 may be acquired-

17 "(A) on original issue at the issue price, or
18 "(B) by purchase of outstanding obliga-
19 tions at the market price.

20 The purposes for which obligations of the United
21 States may be issued under chapter 31 of title 31,
22 United States Code, are hereby extended to author-
23 ize the issuance at par of special obligations exelu-

24 sively to the Trust Fund. Such special obligations
25 shall bear interest at a rate equal to the average
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1 rate of interest, computed as to the end of the calen-

2 dar month next preceding the date of such issue,

3 borne by all marketable interest-bearing obligations

4 of the United States then forming a part of the Pub-

5 lic Debt; except that where such average rate is not

6 a multiple of one-eighth of 1 percent, the rate of in-

7 terest of such spc2ih! obligations shall be the multi-

8 ple of one-eighth of 1 percent next lower than such

9 average rate. Such special obligations shall be issued

10 only if the Director determines that the purchase of

11 other interest-bearing obligations of the United

12 States, or of obligations guaranteed as to both prin-

13 cipal and interest by the United States on original

14 issue or at the market price, is not in the public in-

15 terest.

16 "(2) SALE OF OBLIGATION.Any obligation ac-

17 quired by the Trust Fund (except special obligations

18 issued exclusively to the Trust Fund) may be sold by

19 the Director at the market price, and such special

20 obligations may be redeemed at par plus accrued in-

21 terest,

22 "(3) CREDITS TO TRUST FUND.The interest

23 on, and the proceeds from the sale or redemption of,

24 any obligations held in the Trust Fund shall be

25 credited to and form a part of the Trust Fund.
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1 "(d) AUTHORITY TO ISSUE OBLIGATIONS.The

2 Trust Fund may issue bonds, notes, debentures and simi-

3 lar obligations in an amount not to exceed the amount

4 of funds the Director determines necessary to carry out

5 the provisions of this title. Such bonds, notes, debentures

6 and similar obligations shall be issued at such time and

7 price, in such form and at such rate of interest as the

8 Director may prescribe.

9 "(e) OBLIGATIONS FROM TRUST FUND.The Direc-

10 tor is hereafter authorized to obligate-

11 "(1) such sums as are available in the Trust

12 Fund (including any amounts not obligated in previ-

13 ous fiscal years) for awarding loans to eligible stu-

14 dents in accordance with the provisions of this title;

15 "(2) such sums as are available in the Trust

16 Fund to .pay the principal and interest on the obliga-

17 tions issued under subsection (d); and

18 "(3) such sums as are available in the Trust

19 Fund, as provided in appropriation Acts, for proper-

20 ly allocable administrative costs of the Federal Gov-

21 ernment for the activities specified above.

22 "(f) REPORT TO CONGRESS.It shall be the duty of

23 the Director to hold the Trust Fund, and to report to the

24 Congress each year on the financial condition and the re-

25 sults of the operations of the Trust Fund during the pre-
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1 ceding fiscal year and on its expected condition and oper-

2 ations during the next fiscal year. Such report shall be

3 printed as both a House and Senate document of the se3-

4 sion of the Congress to which the report is made.

5 "nc. 1607. REPAYMENT PROVISIONS.

6 "(a) PROCEDURE.

7 "(1) IN GENERAL.The Director shall develop

8 and implement a procedure for computing repay-

9 ment percentage options for each borrower under

10 this title.

11 "(2) CONTENTS.The procedure for determin-

12 ing the repayment percentage described in para-

13 graph (1) shall take into consideration the following

14 factors:

15 "(A) The total amount of loans awarded to

16 the borrower under this title and the eonsolida-

17 tion of all loans after the date of graduation

18 under a single repayment percentage.

19 "(B) The repayment percentage shall not

20 exceed 5 percent of an individual's gross income

21 in any year.

22 "(C) Borrowers with gross incomes for a

23 taxable year of not more than 66 percent of the

24 average gross income of individuals with college

25 educations as determined by the Bureau of the

*RR 3000 ni
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1 Census from the most recent data available

2 shall pay a minimum repayment amount for

3 such year equal to the borrower's repayment

4 percentage of 66 percent of such average gross

5 income. Borrowers with gross incomes for a

6 taxable year of more than 150 percent of the

7 average gross income of individuals with college

8 educations as determined by the Bureau of the

9 Census from the most recent data available

10 shall pay a maximum repayment amount for

11 such year equal to the borrower's repayment

12 percentage of 150 percent of such average gross

13 income.

14 "(D) An aggregate repayment interest rate

15 for all individuals who borrow in an academic

16 year under this title shall not exceed the lesser

17 of the average of the rates of interest applicable

18 to 10- and 30-year United States Treasury obli-

19 gations for such year, or 10 percent, so that, to

20 the extent possible, the program is self-financ-

21 ing.

22 "(E) Individuals shall be provided the op-

23 tion to select a 15, 20, or 25 year repayment

24 option.

*RR 3050 III
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1 "(F) The maximum repayment period shall

2 not exceed 25 years.

3 "(G) The amount of repayment interest

4 accrued shall be taken into account if repay-

5 ment is deferred by an individual beyond the

6 first taxable year beginning after the date of

7 the loan.

8 "(H) The buyout procedure described in

9 paragraph (3).

10 "(3) BUYOUT PROCEDURE.The Director shall

11 develop a procedure under which borrowers may

12 repay, at any time, the total amount of loans bor-

13 rowed under this title. Such procedure shall include

14 interest and a prepayment penalty.

15 "(b) CERTIFICATION TO THE BORROWER AND THE

16 SECRETARY OF THE TREASURY.

17 -(1) IN GENERALThe Director shall provide

18 each borrower with the option to select a repayment

19 status with a repayment percentage determined in

20 accordance with this section and shall transmit such

21 information along with the borrower's taxpayer iden-

22 tifieation number to the borrower and to the Secre-

tary of the Treasury by January 1 of each calendar

24 year.

25 "(2) REPAYMENT STATUS.

*RR 3050 111
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1 "(A) IN GENERAL.Except as provided in

2 subparagraph (B), for purposes of paragraph

3 (1), repayment status commences either at the

4 start of the first taxable year following-

5 "(i) the date of the loan, or

6 "(ii) the date of graduation,

7 but in no event later than the sixth taxable year

8 after the date of the loan.

9 "(B) EXCEPTIONS.The Director may, by

10 regulation, establish special repayment policies

11 for individuals in categories of special consider-

12 ation determined by the Director.

13 "SEC. 1608. DEFINITIONS.

14 "For purposes of this title-

15 "(1) the term 'cost of attendance' has the same

16 meaning given to such term by section 472 of the

17 Higher Education Act of 1965;

18 "(2) the term "Director" means the Director of

19 the Office of Self-Reliance Scholarships;

20 "(3) the term 'eligible institution' has the
21 meaning given such term by paragraph (1) or (2) of

22 section 435(a) and does not include a proprietary

23 trade school (as such term is defined in section

24 481(b)); and

tift 3050 lB
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1 "(4) the term 'eligible student' means a student

2 who is a United States citizen and has attained the

3 age of 17 years but not the age of 51 years.".

4 SEC. 2. COLLECTION OF LOANS.

5 (a) IN GENERALSubchapter A of chapter 1 of the

6 Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (relating to determination

7 of tax liability) is amended by adding at the end thereof

8 the following new part:

9 "PART VIIIEDUCATIONAL LOAN REPAYMENT

10 TAX

"Sec. 59B. Educational loan repayment tax.

11 "SEC. 59B. EDUCATIONAL LOAN REPAYMENT TAX.

12 "(a) IN GENERALExcept as provided in subsection

13 (b), in the case of an individual who receives a certification

14 from the Director of the Office of Self-Reliance Scholar-

15 ships under section 1607(b) of the Higher Education Act

16 of 1965, there is hereby imposed (in addition to any other

17 tax imposed by this subtitle) a tax equal to the repayment

18 percentage (as certified by the Director) of the taxpayer's

19 gross income for the taxable year.

20 "(b) MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM GROSS INCOME

21 AMOUNTS.

22 "(1) MINIMUM AMOUNT.Subsection (a) shall

23 be applied by substituting '66 percent of the average

24 gross income of individuals Avith college educations

HR 3O IH
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1 as determined by the Bureau of the Census from the

2 most recent data available' for 'the twayer's gross

3 income for the taxable year', if the taxpayer's gross

4 income for such year does not exceed 66 percent of

5 such average gross income.

6 "(2) MAx[mUm AMOUNT.Subsection (a) shall

7 be applied by substituting '150 percent of the aver-

8 age gross income of individuals with college educa-

9 tions as determined by the Bureau of the Census

10 from the most recent data available' for 'the taxpay-

11 er's gross income for the taxable year', if the taxpay-

12 er's gross income for such year exceeds 150 percent

13 of such average gross income.

14 "(e) DETERMINATION OF GROSS INCOME.

15 "(1) JOINT RETURN REQUIRED.Any individ-

16 ual who receives a certification described in subsec-

17 tion (a) shall be required to file a joint return for

18 any taxable year at the end of which such individual

19 is married.

20 "(2) BASIS FOR TAX.In the case of an indi-

21 vidual filing a joint return for a taxable year, the tax

22 under subsection (a) shall be determined with re-
23 speet to the greater of-

24 "(A) the individual's gross income, or

25 "(B) 1/2 of the taxpayer's gross income.".

*RH 3050 111-1
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1 (b) CLERICAL AmENDMENT.The table of parts for

2 subchapter A of chapter 1 of such Code is amended by

3 adding at the end thereof the following new item:

"Part VIII. Educational loan repayment tax.".

4 SEC 3, SURTAX ON INDIVIDUALS WITH INCOMES OVER

5 $1,000,000.

6 (a) GENERAL RULE.Subchapter A of chapter 1 of

7 the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (relating to determina-

8 tion of tax liability), as amended by section 2, is further

9 amended by adding at the end thereof the following new

10 part:

11 "PART IXSURTAX ON INDIVIDUALS WITH

12 INCOMES OVER $1,000,000

"Sec. 59C. Surtax on section 1 tax.
"Sec. 59D. Surtax on minimum tax.
"Sec. 59E. Special rules.

13 "SEC. 59C. SURTAX ON SECTION 1 TAX.

14 "In the case of an individual who has taxable income

15 for the taxable year in excess of $1,000,000, the amount

16 of the tax imposed under section 1 for such taxable year

17 shall be increased by 10 percent of the amount which

18 bears the same ratio to the tax imposed under section 1

19 (determined without regard to this section) as-

20 "(1) the amount by which the taxable income of

21 such individual for such taxable year exceeds

22 $1,000,000, bears to

61111 3050 lli
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1 "(2) the total amount of such individuars tax-

2 able income for such taxable year.

3 "SEC. 59D. SURTAX ON MINIMUM TAX.

4 "In the case of an individual who has alternative min-

5 imum taxable income for the taxable year in excess of

6 $1,000,000, the amount of the tentative minimum tax de-

7 termined under section 55 for such taxable year shall be

8 increased by 2.5 percent of the amount by which the alter-

9 native minimum taxable income of such taxpayer for the

10 taxable year exceeds $1,000,000.

11 "SEC. 59E. SPECIAL RULES.

12 "(a) SURTAX To APPLY TO ESTATES AND

13 TRUSTS.For purposes of this part, the term 'individual'

14 includes any estate or trust taxable under F,ection 1.

15 "(b) TREATMENT OF MARRIED INDIVIDUALS FILING

16 SEPARATE RETURNS.In the case of a married individual

17 (within the meaning of section 7703) filing a separate re-

18 turn for the taxable year, sections 59C and 59D shall be

19 applied by substituting '$500,000' for '$1,000,000'.

20 "(c) COORDINATION WITH OTHER PROVISIONS.

21 The provisions of this part-

22 "(1) shall be applied after the application of

23 seetion 1(h), but

Ft 3050 1/1
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1 "(2) befone the application of any other provi-

2 sion of this title which refers to the amount of tax

3 imposed by section 1 or 55, as the case may be.".

4 (b) CLERICAL AMENDMENT.The table of parts for

5 subchapter A of chapter 1 of the Internal Revenue Code

6 of 1986 is amended by adding at the end the following

7 new item:
"Part a. Surtax on individuals with incomes over $1,000,000.".

8 (e) EFFECTIVE DATE.The amendments made by

9 this seetion shall apply to =able years beginning after

10 December 31, 1991.

11 SEC. 4, OFFICE OF SELF-RELIANCE SCHOLARSHIPS ESTAB-

12 LISHED.

13 Title II of the Department of Education Organization

14 Act is amended by inserting at the end thereof the follow-

15 ing new section:

16 "OFFICE OF SELF-RELIANCE SCHOLARSHIPS

17 "SEe. 214. There shall be in the Department an Of-

18 rice of Self-Reliance Scholarships, to be administered by

19 the Director of the Office of Self-Reliance Scholarships.

20 The Director shall be responsible for overseeing the Self-

21 Reliance Scholarship Ad.".

0
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102D CONGRESS

H. R. 23361ST 6ESSI0N

To establish a higher education loan program in which a borrower's annual
repayment obligation is dependent upon both postschool income level
and borrowing history, and for other purposes.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
MAY 14, 1991

Mr. PETRI (for himself, Mr. GEJDENSON, Ms. MOLINARI, Mr. INHOFE, Mr.
SANTORUM, Mr. PORTER, Mr. LAFALoG, Mr. LANCASTER, Mr. SUND-
QUIST, Mr. NUSSLE, Mr. HORTON, Mr. MOCoLLUM, Mr. HUGHES, Mr.
HERTEL, Mr. CAMPBELL of Colorado, and Mr. DE LuGo) introduced the
following bill; which was referred jointly to the Committees on Education
and Labor and Ways and Means

A BILL
To establish a higher education loan program in which a

borrower's annual repayment &ligation is dependent
upon both postschool income level and borrowing history,
and for other purposes.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 fives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

4 This Act may be cited as the "Income Dependent

5 Education Assistance Act of 1991".
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1 TITLE ISYSTEM FOR MAKING INCOME-

2 DEPENDENT EDUCATION ASSISTANCE LOANS

-3 SEC. 101. PROGRAM AUTHORITY.

4 The Secretary of the Treasury shall, in accordance

5 with the provisions of this title-

6 (1) make loans to eligible students in accord-

7 ance with this title, and

8 (2) establish an account for each borrower of

9 such a loan, and collect repayments on such loans,

10 in accordance with section 6306 of the Internal Rev-

11 enue Code of 1986.

12 SEC. 102. AGREEMENTS BY ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONS.

13 (a) TERMS OF AGREEMENT.In order to qualify its

/4 students for loans under this title, an eligible institution

15 shall enter into an agreement with the Secretary of Educa-

16 tion which-

17 (1) provides that the institution will collect ap-

18 plications for loans under this title from its students

19 that are in such form and ..)ntain or are accompa-

20 nied by such information as the Secretary of the

21 Treasury may require by regulation;

22 (2) contains assurances that the institution will,

23 on the basis of such applications, provide to the See-

24 retary of the Treasury the information required by

IER 2334
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1 section 104 and will certify to the Secretary of the

2 Treasury-

3 (A) the cost of attendance determination

4 for each student; and

5 (B) the amount of any outstanding loans

6 to such student under title IV of the Higher

7 Education Act of 1965 or title VII of the Public

8 Health Service Act;

9 (3) provides that the institution will provide to

10 each student applying for a loan under this title a

11 notice provided by the Secretary of Education of the

12 student's obligations and responsibilities under the

13 loan;

14 (4) provides that, if a student withdraws after

15 receiving a loan under this title and is owed a

16 refund-

17 (A) the institution will pay to the Secre-

18 tary of the Treasury a portion of such refund,

19 in accordance with regulations prescribed by the

20 Secretary of the Treasury to ensure receipt of

21 an amount which bears the same ratio to such

22 refund as such loan bore to the cost of attend-

23 ance of such student; and

iilt 2336 al
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1 (B) the Secretary of the Treasury will

2 credit the amount of such refund to the stu-

3 dent's account; and

4 (5) contains such additional terms and condi-

5 tions as the Secretary of the Treasury or Secretary

6 of Education prescribes by regulation to prothct the

7 fiscal interest of the United States and to emure ef-

8 fective administration of the program under this

9 Act.

10 (b) ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.The Secretary

11 of Education may, after notice and opportunity for a hear-

12 ing to the institution concerned, suspend or revoke, in

13 whole or in part, the agreement of any eligible institution

14 if the Secretary of Education finds that such institution

15 has failed to comply with this title or any regulation pre-

16 scribed under this title or has failed to comply with any

17 term or condition of its agreement under subsection (a).

18 No funds shall be loaned under this title to any student

19 at any institution while its agreement is suspended or re-

20 yoked, and the Secretary of Education may institute pro-

21 ceedings to recover any funds held by such an institution.

22 The Secretary of Education shall have the same authority

23 with respect to his functions under this Act as the Secre-

24 tary of Education has with respect IA) his functions under

25 part B of title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965.

*HE 2938 IH
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1 (c) NOTICE TO SECRETARY.The Secretary of Edu-

2 cation shall annually submit to the Secretary of the Treas-

3 ury a list of the eligible institutions having effective agree-

4 ments under this section, and shall promptly notify the

5 Secretary of the Treasury of any action taken under sub-

6 section (b) to suspend, revoke, or reinstate any such agree-

7 ment.

8 SEC. 103. AMOUNT AND TERMS OF LOANS.

9 (a) ELIGIBLE AMOUNTS.

10 (1) ANNUAL LIMITS.Any individual who is de-

1 1 termined by an eligible institution to be an eligible

12 student for any academic year shall be eligible to re-

13 eeive an IDEA loan for such academic year in an
14 amount which is not less than $500 or more than
15 the cost of attendance at such institution, deter-

16 mined in accordance with section 484 of the Higher

17 Education Act of 1965. The amount of such loan
18 shall not exceed-

19 (A) $6,500 in the ease of any student who

20 has not completed his or her second year of. un-

21 dergraduate study;

22 (B) $8,000 in the ease of any student who

23 has completed such second year but who hat,
24 not eomdleted his or her course of undergradu-

25 ate study;

.110233610
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(C) $30,000 in the ease of any student

2 who is enrolled in a graduate degree program in

3 medicine, dentistry, veterinary medicine, podia-

4 try, optometry, or osteopathic medicine; or

5 (D) $22,500 in the case of any student

6 who is enrolled in a graduate degree program in

7 pharmacy, chiropractic, public health, health

8 administration, clinical psychology, or allied

9 health fields, or in an undergraduate degree

10 program in pharmacy; or

11 (E) $11,000 in the case of any other stu-

12 dent.

13 (2) LIMITATION ON BORROWING CAPACITY.-

14 No individual may receive any amount in an addi-

15 tional IDEA loan if the sum of the original principal

16 amounts of all IDEA loans to such individual (in-

17 eluding the pending additional loan) would equal or

18 exceed-

19 (A) $70,000, minus

20 (B) the product of (i) the number of years

21 by which the borraxer's age (as of the close of

22 the preceding calendar year) exceeds 35, and

23 (ii) one-twentieth of the amount specified in

24 subparagraph (A), as aitusted pursualit, to

25 paragraph (3).

.IM 2336 III

3 !6



312

1 (3) EXCEPTIONS TO BORROWING CAPACITY LIM-

2 ITS FOR CERTAIN GRADUATE STUDENTS.For a

3 student who is-

4 (A) a student described in paragraph

5 (1)(C), paragraph (2) shall be applied by sub-

6 stituting "$143,370" for "$70,000"; or

7 (B) a student described in paragraph

8 (1)(D), paragraph (2) shall be applied by sub-

9 stituting "$115,770" for "$70,000".

10 (4) ADJUSTMENT OF LIMITS FOR INFLATION.

11 Each of the dollar amounts specified in paragraphs

12 (1), (2), and (3) shall be adjusted for any academic

13 year after calendar year 1994 by the cost-of-living

14 adjustment for the calendar year preceding such

15 academic year determined under section

16 6306(h)(3)(C) of the Internal Revenue Code of

17 1986, rounded to the nearest multiple of $100 (or,

18 if such adjustment is a multiple of $50 and not a
19 multiple of $100, such adjustment shall be increased

20 to the next higher multiple of $100).

21 (5) COMPUTATION OF OUTSTANDING LOAN OB-

22 LIGATIONS.For the purposes of this subsection,

23 any loan obligations of an individual under student

24 loan programs under title IV of the Higher Educa-

25 tion Act of 1965 or title VII of the Public Health

HR 2938 ER
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1 Service Act shall be counted toward IDEA annual

2 and aggregate borrowing capacity limits. For pur-

3 poses of annual and aggregate loan limits under any

4 such student loan program, IDEA loans shall be

5 counted as loans under such program.

6 (6) ADJUSTMENTS OF ANN1TAL LIMITS FOR

7 LESS THAN FULL-TIME STUDENTS.For any stu-

8 dent who is enrolled on a less than full-time basis,

9 loan amounts for which such student shall be eligible

10 for any academic year under this subsection shall be

11 reduced in accordance with regulations prescribed by

12 the Secretary of Education.

13 (b) DURATION OF ELIGIBffirrv.An eligible student

14 shall not be eligible to receive a loan under this title for

15 more than a total of the full-time equivalent of 9 academic

16 years, of which not more than the full-time equivalent of

17 5 academic years shall be as an undergraduate student

18 and not more than the full-time equivalent of 5 academic

19 years shall be as a graduate student.

20 (c) TERMS OF LOANS.Each eligible student apply-

21 ing for a loan under this title shall sign a written agree-

22 ment which-

23 (1) is made without security and without en-

24 dorsement, except that if the borrower is a minor

25 and such note or other written agreement executed

.im 2331 Ill
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1 by him would not, under the applicable law, create
2 a binding obligation, endorsement may be required,
3 (2) provides that such student will repay the
4 principal amouit of the loan and any interest or ad-
5 ditional charges thereon in accordance with section
6 6306 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954;
7 (3) provides that the interest on the loan will
8 accrue in accordance with section 105;
9 (4) certifies that the student has received and

10 read the notice required by section 102(a)(3); and
11 (5) contains such additional terms and condi-
12 tions as the Secretary of the Treasury may prescribe
13 by regulation.

14 (d) DISBURSEMENT OF PROCEEDS OF LOANS.The

15 Secretary of the Treasury shall, by regulation, provide for
16 the distribution of loans to eligible students and for the
17 appropriate notification of eligible institutions of the
18 amounts of loans which are approved for any eligible stu-
19 dent, and for the allocation of the proceeds of such loan
20 by semester or other portion of an academic year. The
21 Secretary of the Treasury shall distribute the proceeds of
22 loans under this title by disbursing to the institution a
23 check or other instrument that is payable to and requires
24 the endorsement or other certification by the student.
25 Such proceeds shall be credited to any obligations of the

HR 2336 IH-2
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1 eligible student to the institution related to the cost of at-

2 tendance at such institution, with any excess being paid

3 to the student. The first installment of the proceeds of

4 any loan under this title that is made to a student borrow-

5 er who is entering the first year of a program of under-

6 graduate education, and who has not previously obtained

7 a loan under this title, shall not be presented by the insti-

8 tution to the student for endorsement until 30 days after

9 the borrower begins a course of study, but may be deliv-

10 ered to the eligible institution prior to the end of that 30-

11 day period.

12 SEC. 104. INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS FOR LOAN PRO-

13 GRAM.

14 (a) RESPONSIBILITIES OF ELIGIBLE INSTITU-

15 TIONS.Each eligible institution which receives funds

16 under this title shall-

17 (1) submit to the Secretary of the Treasury, at

18 such time and in such form as the Secretary may re-

19 quire by regulation, a machine-readable list of appli-

20 cants and the amounts for which they are qualified

21 under section 103;

22 (2) promptly notify the Secretary of the Treas-

23 ury, on request, of any change in enrollment status

24 of any recipient of a loan under this title; and

23311 10 330
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1 (3) submit to the Secretary of the Treasury, at
2 such time and in sueh forms as the Secretary of the
3 Treasury may require by regulation for use in deter-
4 mining the repayment status of borrowers, a ma-
5 chine-readable list of eligible students who have pre-
6 viously received loans under this title but who are
7 not included as current applicants in the list re-
8 quired by such paragraph.

9 (b) RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SECRETARY OF THE
10 TREASURY.The Secretary of the Treasury shall, on the
11 basis of the lists received under subsection (a)(2), estab-
12 lish an obligation account, by name and taxpayer identifi-
13 cation number, with respect to each recipient of a loan
14 under this title. The Secretary of the Treasury shall pro-
15 vide for the increase in the total amount stated for each
16 such account by any amounts subsequently loaned to that
17 recipient under this title and by the amount of any interest
18 charges imposed pursuant to section 105. The Secretary
19 of the Treasury shall, with the notice required by section
20 6306(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, trans-
21 rnit to each recipient of a loan under this title a statement
22 of the total amount of the obligation of such recipient as
23 of the close of the preceding calendar year.

GHR 2336 III
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1 SEC. 105. INTEREST CHARGES.

2 Interest charges on loans made under this title shall

3 be added to the recipient's obligation account at the end

4 of each calendar year. Such interest charges shall be based

5 upon an interest rate equal to the lesser of-

6 (1) the sum of the average bond equivalent

7 rates of 91-day Treasury bills auctioned during that

8 calendar year, plus 2 percentage points, rounded to

9 the next higher one-eighth of 1 percent; or

10 (2) 10 percent.

11 SEC. 106. CONVERSION AND CONSOLIDATION OF OTHER

12 LOANS.

13 (a) IN GENERAL.The Secretary of the Treasury

14 may, upon request of a borrower who has received a feder-

15 ally insured or guwanteed loan or loans under title IV

16 of the Higher Education Act of 1965 or under title WI

17 of the Public Health Service Act, make a new loan to such

18 borrower in an amount equal to the sum of the unpaid

19 principal on the title IV or title VII loans. The proceeds

20 of the new loan shall be used to discharge the liability on

21 such title IV or title VII loans. Except as provided in sub-

22 section (b), any loan made under this subsection shall be

23 made on the same terms and conditions as any other loan

24 under this Act and shall be considered a new IDEA loan

25 for purposes of this title and section 6306 of the Internal

26 Revenue Code of 1986.

IKR 2336 111
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1 (b) CONVERSION REGULATIONS.The Secretary of

2 the Treasury shall prescribe regulations concerning the

3 methods and calculations required for conversion to IDEA

4 loans under subsection (a). Such regulations shall provide

5 appropriate adjustments in the determination of the prin-

6 cipal and interest owed on the IDEA loan in order to-

7 (1) secure payments to the Government com-

8 mensurate with the amounts the Government would

9 have received had the original loans been IDEA

10 loans;

11 (2) fairly credit the borrower for principal and

12 interest payments made on such original loans and

13 for origination fees deducted from such original

14 loans; and

15 (3) prevent borrowers from evading their obli-

16 gations or otherwise taking unfair advantage of the

17 conversion option provided under this section.

18 (c) MANDATORY CONVERSION OF DEFAULTED

19 LOANS.

20 (1) CONVERSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGU-

21 LATIONS.Any loan which is-

22 (A) made, insured, or guaranteed under

23 title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965

24 or title VII of the Public Health Service Act

25 after the date of enactment of this Act, and
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1 (B) assigned to the Secretary of Education

2 or Health and Human Services for collection

3 after a default by the borrower in repayment of

4 such loan,

5 shall, in accordance with regulations prescribed by

6 the Secretaries of Education and Health and

7 Human Services, be treated for purposes of eollee-

8 tion, under section 6306 of the Internal Revenue

9 Code of 1986, as if such loan had been converted to

10 an IDEA loan under subsectims (a) and (b) of this

11 section.

12 (2) NOTICES.The Secretaries of Education

13 and Health and Human Services shall notify-

14 (A) the Secretary of the Treasury of the

15 need to establish or adjust an account balance

16 of any borrower by reason of the provisions of

17 this subsection; and

18 (B) the borrower of the conversion of the

19 defaulted loans to an IDEA loan and of the

20 procedures for collection under section 6306 of

21 the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

22 SEC. 107. TERMINATION OF OTHER STUDENT LOAN PRO-

23 GRAMS.

24 The authority to make additional loans under section

25 428A and part 1) of title IV of the Higher Education Act
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1 of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1078-1) is terminated for any aca-

2 demic year beginning after the date that regulations are

3 presenled by the Secretaries of the Treasury and Eduea-

4 tion to carry out this title. This section shall not affect

5 the administration of such section and part with respect

6 to loans made prior to that date.

7 SEC. 108. AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS.

8 (a) LOAN FUNDS.There are authorized to be ap-

9 propriated to make distnlutions of loan funds under sec-

10 tion 102 such sums as may be necessary.

11 (b) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES.There are author-

12 ized to be appropriated such sums as may be necessary

13 to administer and carry out this title.

14 SEC. 109. DEFINITIONS.

15 For purposes of this title-

16 (1) the term "eligible institution" has the
17 meaning given it by section 435(a) (1) or (2) of the
18 Higher Education Act of 1965;

19 (2) the term "eligible student" means a student
20 who is eligible for assistance under title IV of the
21 Higher Education Act of 1965 as required by sec-
22 tion 484 of such Act (relating to eligibility for stu-
23 dent assistance) and who is carrying at least one-
24 half the normal full-time academic workload (as de-
25 termined by the institution); and
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1 (3) the term "IDEA loan" means a loan made

2 under this title,

3 TITLE IICOLLECTION OF INCOME-

4 DEPENDENT EDUCATION ASSISTANCE LOANS

5 SEC. 201. REPAYMENTS USING INCOME TAX COLLECTION

6 SYSTEM.

7 (a) IN GENERAL.Subchapter A of chapter 64 of the

8 Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (relating to collection) is

9 amended by adding at the end thereof the following

10 new section:

11 "SEC. 8300. COLLECTION OF INCOMEDEPENDENT EDUCA-

12 TION ASSISTANCE LOANS.

13 "(a) NOTICE TO BORROWER,

14 "(1) IN GENERAL.During January of each

15 calendar year, the Secretary shall furnish to each

16 borrower of an IDEA loan notate as to-
17 "(A) whether the records of the Secretary

18 indicate that such borrower is in repayment sta-

19 tus,

20 "(B) the maximum account balance of

21 such borrower,

22 "(C) the current aecount balance of such

23 borrower as of the close of the preceding calen-

24 dar year, and
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1 "(D) the procedure for computing the
2 amount of repayment owing for the taxable year
3 beginning in the preceding calendar year.
4 "(2) FORM) ETC.The notice under paragraph
5 (1) shall be in such form as the Secretary may by
6 regulations prescribe and shall be sent by mail to the
7 individual's last known address or shall be left at the
8 dwelling or usual place of business of such individ-
9 uaL

10 "(b) COMPUTATION OF ANNUAL REPAYMENT
11 AMOUNT.
12 "(1) IN GENERAL.The annual amount pay-
13 able under this section by the taxpayer for any tax-
14 able year shall be the lesser of-
15 "(A) the product of-
16 "(i) the base amortization amount,
17 and

18 "(ii) the progressiv4 factor for the
19 taxpayer for such taxable year, or
20 "(B) 20 percent of the excess of-
21 "(i) the modified adjusted gross in-
22 come of the taxpayer for such taxable year,
23 over

24 "(ii)(I) in the case of a joint return,
25 the sum of the standard deduction applica-

HR 2338 111
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1 ble to such return and twice the exemption

2 amount for the taxable year, and

3 "(II) in any other case, the sum of

4 the standard deduction applicable to such

5 individual and the exemption amount for

6 the taxable year.

7 For purposes of subparagraph (B)(ii), the term

8 'standard deduction' has the meaning given

9 such term by section 63(c), and the term 'ex-

10 emption amount' has the meaning given such

11 term by section 151(d).

12 "(2) BASE AMORTIZATION AMOUNT.

13 "(A) IN GENERAL.For purposes of this

14 section, the term 'base amortization amount'

15 means the amount which, if paid at the close of

16 each year for a period of 12 consecutive years,

17 would fully repay (with interest) at the close of

18 such period the maximum account balance of

19 the borrower. For purposes of the preceding

20 sentence, an 8-percent annual rate of interest

21 shall be assumed.

22 " (B) JOINT RETURNS.In the case of a

23 joint return where each spouse has an account

24 balance and is in repayment status, the amount

25 determined under subparagraph (A) shall be

4IR WI
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1 the sum of the base amortization amounts of
2 each spouse.

3 "(3) PROGRESSWITY FACTOR.
4 "(A) IN GENERAL.For purposes of this
5 section, the term 'progressivity factor' means
6 the number determined under tables prescribed
7 by the Secretary which is based on the following
8 tables for the circumstances specified:
9 "(i) JOINT RETURNS; SURVIVING

10 SPOUSES.In the case of a taxpayer to
11 whom section 1(a) applies

"If the taxpayer's modified
The progressivityadjusted gross income is:

factor is:Not over $7,860
0.42911,700
0.50016,740
0.57121,720
0.64326,880
0.78632,700
0.89339,060
1.00048,600
1.00063,480
1.15287,360
1.272117,000
1.364163,080
1.485240,000 and over
2.000

12 "(ii) HEADS OP HOUSEHOLDS.In
13 the ease of a taxpayer to whom section
14 1(b) applies

"if the taxpayer's modified
The progressivityadjusted gross income is: factor is:Not over $6,540

0.42910,320
0.50012,300
0.60716,080
0,64319,920
0.71425,020
0.85731,380
1.000
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37,740 1.000
47,280 1.094
63,180 1.313
85,440 1.406
114,060 1.500
204,000 and over 2.000

1 "(Hi) UNMARRIED INDIVIDUALS,

2 ETC.In the ease of a taxpayer to whom

3 section 1(e) applies
"If the taspayer's modified The progressivity

adjusted gross income is: factor is:
Not over $6,540 0.467

9,000 0.500
11,580 0.533
14,220 0.600
16,740 0.667
19,920 0.767
25,020 0.867
31,380 1.000
37,740 1.000
45,360 1.118
58,080 1.235
82,260 1.412
94,320 1.500

168,000 and over 2.000

4 "(iV) MARRIED INDIVIDUALS PILING

5 SEPARATE RETURNS.In the ease of a

6 taxpayer to whom section 1(d) applies--

"If the taxpayer's modified The progressivity
adjusted gross income is: factor is:

Not over $3,930 0.483
5,850 0.552
8,370 0.655

10,860 0.759
13,440 0.862
16,350 1.000
19,530 1.000
24,300 1.182
31,740 1.333
43,680 1.485
84,000 and over 2.000

7

8

"(B) RATABLE CHANGES.The tables pre-

scribed by the Secretary under subparagraph

HR 2338 Ui
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1 (A) shall provide for ratable increases (rounded

2 to the nearest 1/1,000) in the progressivity fac-

3 tors between the amounts of modified adjusted

4 gross income contained in the tables.

5 "(C) INFLATION ADJUSTMENT OF MODI-

6 FIED AOl AMOUNTS.For inflation atustment

7 of amounts of modified adjusted gross income,

8 see subsection (h)(3).

9 "(4) MODIFIED ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME.

10 For purposes of this subsection, the term 'modified

11 adjusted gross income' means adjusted gross income

12 for the taxable year-

13 "(A) determined without regard to section

14 62(b) and without regard to the deductions

15 from gross income allowable under section

16 62(a) by reason of-

17 "(i) paragraph (6) thereof (relating to

18 profit-sharing, annuities, and bond-pur-

19 chase plans of self-employed individuals),

20 "(ii) paragraph (7) thereof (relating

21 to retirement savings), and

22 "(iii) paragraph (11) thereof (relating

23 to reforestation expenses), and

24 "(B) increased by
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1 "(i) interest exempt from the tax im-

2 posed by chapter 1, and

3 "(ii) the items of tax preference de-

4 scribed in section 57 (other than subsec-

5 tion (a)(5) thereof),

6 "(c) TERMINATION OF BORROWER'S REPAYMENT

7 OBLIGATION.

8 "(1) IN GENERALThe repayment obligation

9 of a borrower of an IDEA loan shall terminate only

10 if there is repaid with respect to such loan an

11 amount equal to-

12 "(A) in the case of any repayment during

13 the first 12 years for which the borrower is in

14 repayment status with respect to any loan, the

15 sum of-

16 "(i) the principal amount of the loan,

17 plus

18 "(ii) interest computed for each year

19 the loan is outstanding at an annual rate

20 equal to the annual rate otherwise applica-

21 ble to such loan for such year, plus 2.5
22 percent, and

23 "(B) in the case of any repayment during

24 any subsequent year, the principal amount of

Int 2338 111
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1 the loan plus interest computed at the rates ap-

2 plicable to the loan.

3 "(2) No REPAYMENT REQUIRED AFTER 25

4 YEARS IN REPAYMENT STATUS.No amount shall be

5 required to be repaid under this section with respect

6 to any loan for any taxable year after the 25th year

7 for which the borrower is in repayment status with

8 respect to such loan.

9 "(3) EXCEPTION FOR DE MINIMUS LOANS RE-

10 PAID DURING FIRST 12 YEARS IN REPAYMENT STA-

11 TUS.In any case where the maximum account bal-

12 ance of any borrower is $3,000 or less, subpara-

13 graph (B), and not subparagraph (A), of paragraph

14 (1) shall apply to repayment of such loan.

15 "(4) DETERMINATION OF YEARS IN REPAY-

16 MENT STATUS.For purposes of paragraphs (1)(A)

17 and (2), the number of years in which a borrower

18 is in repayment status with respect to any IDEA

19 loan shall be determined without regard to any year

20 before the most recent year in which the borrower

21 received an IDEA loan.

22 "(5) EXTENSION OF REPAYMENT YEARS FOR

23 MEDICAL INTERNS.The number of years specified

24 in paragraphs (1)(A) and (2) shall be increased by

25 1 year for each calendar year during any 5 months

.11R 23M M
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1 of which the individual is an intern in medicine, den-

2 tistry, veterinary medicine, or osteopathic medicine.

3 "(d) DEFINITIONS.For purposes of this section-

4 "(1) MAXIMUM ACCOUNT BALANCE.The term

5 `maximum account balance' means the highest

6 amount (as of the close of any calendar year) of un-

7 paid principal and unpaid accrued interest on all

8 IDEA loan obligations of a borrower.

9 "(2) CURRENT ACCOUNT BALANCE.The term

10 `current account balance' means the amount (as of

11 the close of a calendar year) of unpaid principal and

12 unpaid accrued interest on all IDEA loans of a bor-

13 rower.

14 "(3) REPAYMENT STATUS.A borrower is in

15 repayment status for any taxable year unless-

16 "(A) such borrower was, during at least 7

17 months of such year, an eligible student, as

18 that term is defined in section 109(3) of the In-

19 come-Dependent Education Assistance Act of

20 1991; or

21 "(B) such taxable year was the first year

22 in which the borrower was such an eligible stu-

23 dent and the borrowei was such an eligible stu-

24 dent during the last 3 months of such taxable

25 year.
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1 "(4) IDEA LOAN.The term 'IDEA loan'
2 means any loan made under title I of the Income-

Dependent Education Assistance Act of 1991.

4 "(e) PAYMENT OF AMOUNT OWING.Any amount to

5 be collected from an individual under this section shall be

6 paid-
7 "(1) not later than the last date (determined

8 without regard to extensions) prescribed for filing

9 his return of tax imposed by chapter 1 for the tax-

10 able year ending before the date the notice under

11 subsection (a) is sent, and

12 "(2)(A) if such return is filed not later than
13 such date, with such return, or

14 "(B) in any case not described in subparagraph

15 (A), in such manner as the Secretary may by regula-

16 tions prescribe.

17 "(f) FAILURE TO PAY AMOUNT OWING.If an indi-

18 vidual fails to pay the full amount required to be paid on

19 or before the last date described in subsection (e)(1), the

20 Secretary shall assess and collect the unpaid amount in

21 the same manner, with the same powers, and subject to

22 the same limitations applicable to a tax imposed by sub-

23 title C the collection of which would be jeopardized by

24 delay.
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1 "(g) LOANS OF DECEASED AND PERMANENTLY DIS-

2 ABLED BORROWERS; DISCHARGE BY SECRETARY.

3 "(1) DISCHARGE IN THE EVENT OF DEATH.

4 If a borrower of an IDEA loan dies or becomes per-

5 manently and totally disabled (as determined in ac-

6 cordance with regulations of the Secretary), then the

7 Secretary shall discharge the borrower's liability on

8 the loan.

9 "(2) LIMITATION ON DISCHARGE.The dis-

10 charge of the liability of an individual under this

11 subsection shall not discharge the Liability of any

12 spouse with respect to any IDEA loan made to such

13 spouse.

14 "(h) CREDITING OF COLLECTIONS; SPECIAL

15 RULES.

16 "(1) CREDITING OF AMOUNTS PAID ON A JOINT

17 RETURN.Amounts collected under this section on a

18 joint return from a husband and wife both of whom

19 are in repayment status shall be credited to the ac-

20 counts of such spouses in the following order:

21 "(A) first, to repayment of interest added

22 to each account at the end of the preceding cal-

23 endar year in proportion to the interest so

24 added to the respective accounts of the spouses,

25 and

HR 2336 111 3 16



332

27

1 "(B) then, to repayment of unpaid princi-

2 pal, and unpaid interest accrued before such

3 preceding calendar year, in proportion to the re-

4 spective maximum account balances of the

5 spouses.

6 "(2) COMPUTATION OF ALTERNATIVE ANNUAL

7 PAYNMNT FOR INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE ATTAINED

8 AGE 55.In the ease of an individual who attains

9 age 55 before the close of the calendar year ending

10 in the taxable year, or of an individual filing a joint

11 return whose spouse att6ns age 55 before the close

12 of such calendar year, the progressivity factor appli-

13 cable to the base amortization amount of such indi-

14 vidual for such taxable year shall not be less than

15 1.0.

16 "(3) INFLATION ADJUSTMENT IN COMPUTATION

17 OF PROGRESSIVITY FACTOR.

18 "(A) IN GENERAL.Not later than De-
19 ember 15 of 1996 and of each 3d calendar
20 year thereafter, the Secretary shall prescribe ta-

21 bles which shall apply in lieu of the tables con-

22 tained in subsection (b)(3)(A) with respect to

23 the succeeding 3 calendar years.

24 "(B) METHOD OF PRESCRIBING TABLES.
25 The table which under subparagraph (A) is to
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1 apply in lieu of the table contained in clause (i),

2 (ii), (iii), or (iv) of subsection (b)(3)(A), as the

3 case may be, shall be prescribed-

4 "(1) by increasing each amount of

5 modified adjusted gross income in such

6 table by the cost-of-living adjustment for

7 the calendar year, and

8 "(ii) by not changing the progressivity

9 factor applicable to the modified adjusted

10 gross income as adjusted under clause (i).

11 If any increase under the preceding sentence is

12 not a multiple of $10, such increase shall be

13 rounded to the nearest multiple of $10 (or, if

14 such increase is a multiple of $5 and is not a

15 multiple of $10, such increase shall be in-
16 creased to the next highest multiple of $10).

17 "(C) COST-OF-LIVING ADJUSTME NT.For

18 purposes of this paragraph, the cost-of-living

19 adjustment for any calendar year is the per-
20 centage (if any) by which-

21 "(i) the CPI for the preceding eaten-

22 dar year, exceeds

23 "(ii) the CPI for the calendar year

24 1995.
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1 "(D) CPI FOR ANY CALENDAR YEAR.FOT

2 purposes of subparagraph (C), the CPI for any

3 calendar year is the average of the Consumer

4 Price Index as of the close of the 12-month pe-

5 riod ending on September 30 of such calendar

6 year.

7 "(E) CONSUMER PRICE INDELFOT pur-

8 poses of subparagraph (D), the term 'Consumer

9 Price Index' means the last *Consumer Price

10 Index for all-urban consumers published by the

11 Department of Labor.

12 "(5) RULES RELATING TO BANKRUPTCY.

13 "(A) IN GENERAL.An IDEA loan shall

14 not be dischargeable in a ease under title 11 of

15 the United States Code.

6 "(B) CERTAIN AMOUNTS MAY BE POST-

17 PONED.If any individual receives a discharge

18 in a case under title 11 of the United States-

19 Code, the Secretary may postpone any amount

20 of the portion of the liability of such individual

21 on any IDEA loan which is attributable to

22 amounts required to be paid on such loan for

23 periods preceding the date of such discharge.

24 "(6) FINALITY OF ASSESSMENT AND COLLEC.

25 TION.The first sentence of subsection (b) of sec-
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1 tion 6305 shall apply to assessments and collections

2 under subsection (f) of this section."

3 (b) APPLICATION OF ESTIMATED TAXSubsection

4 (f) of section 6654 of such Code (relating to failure by

5 individual to pay estimated income tax) is amended by

6 striking "minus" at the end of paragraph (2) and insert-

7 ing "plus", by redesignating paragraph (3) as paragraph

8 (4), and by inserting after paragraph (2) the following new

9 paragraph:

10 "(3) the amount required to be repaid under

11 section 6306 (relating to collection of income-de-

12 pendent education assistance loans), minus."

13 (c) FILING REQUIREMENT.Subsection (a) of sec-

14 tion 6012 of such Code (relating to persons required to

15 make returns of income) is amended by inserting after

16 paragraph (9) the following new paragraph:

17 "(10) Every individual required to make a pay-

18 rnent for the taxable year under section 6306 (relat-

19 ing to collection of income-dependent education as-

20 sistanee loans)."

21 (d) CLERICAL AMENDMENT.The table of sections

22 for subchapter A of chapter 64 of such Code is amended

23 by adding at the end thereof the following new item:

"See 6306. Collection of income-dependent education assistance
loans."

0
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